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SECTION I - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references in this Prospectus to “Issuer”, “Our Company”, “the
Company” are to Muthoot Mercantile Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956,
registered as non-deposit non-banking financial company -base layer with the Reserve Bank of India under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Registered Office is at 1% Floor, North Block, Muthoot
Floors, Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud, Thiruvananthapuram, - 695 014, Kerala, India.

Unless specified elsewhere or the context otherwise indicates, all references in this Prospectus to “we” or “us”
or “our” are to our Company.

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, the following terms have the following meanings in this
Prospectus and references to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such
legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended from time to time.

The words and expressions used in this Prospectus but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the
same meaning ascribed to such words and expressions under the SEBI NCS Regulations, the Companies Act,
2013, the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations notified thereunder.

Company Related Terms

Term Description
AoA / Articles / Articles of  Articles of Association of our Company, as amended.
Association
Audited Ind AS Financial The Audited Ind AS Financial Statements of our Company for the financial year
Statements ended March 31, 2024 comprising of the statement of assets and liabilities and

the schedules forming part thereof, the statement of financial results and the
schedules forming part thereof, statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flow for the respective periods, statement of significant accounting policies,
and other explanatory statements including notes thereto, issued by Previous
Statutory Auditor of the Company.

Audited Financial The Audited Ind AS Financial Statements and Special Purpose Audited Financial
Statements Statements

Asset Under Management/  For the year ended as on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and
AUM for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 AUM represents aggregate

value of outstanding loans before adjustment for provisions for NPA in
accordance with Ind AS or IGAAP, as applicable.

Board / Board of Directors The Board of Directors of our Company and includes any Committee thereof

/ BoD

Company Secretary and The company secretary and compliance officer of our Company appointed in

Compliance Officer relation to this Issue i.e. Arun Kumar V K.

Debenture Allotment The committee re-constituted by the Board of Directors of our Company by a

Committee board resolution dated September 11, 2023. For further details, see “Our
Management” on page 112.

Equity Shares Equity shares of face value of X 10 each of our Company.

Financial Information The financial information stated in the Financial Statements (defined herein
below).

Group Companies Group Companies as defined in terms of Regulation 2(1)(r) of SEBI NCS
Regulations, namely Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited and Muthoot Mercantile
Nidhi Limited.

Key Managerial Personnel ~ The key managerial personnel of the Company as defined under Regulation
2(1)(sa) of the SEBI NCS Regulations.

Loan Assets Assets under financing activities.

Memorandum / MoA / Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended.

Memorandum of

Association

Net Loan Assets Assets under financing activities net of provision for non-performing assets.




Term

Description

Networth

As defined in Section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

“Networth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all
reserves created out of the profits, securities premium account and debit or credit
balance of profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the
accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not
written off, as per the audited balance sheet but does not include reserves created
out of revaluation of assets, write back of depreciation and amalgamation.”

Previous Statutory Auditor

The previous statutory auditor of our Company, M/s. Manikandan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Promoter

Mathew Mathaininan and Richi Mathew.

Promoter Group

Includes the individuals and entities covered by the definition under Regulation
2(1) (ff) of the SEBI NCS Regulations

RoC /
Companies

Registrar  of

The Registrar of Companies, Kerala at Kochi.

Reqgistered Office

1st Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors, Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram, - 695 014, Kerala, India

“Senior Management
Personnel” or “SMP”

Senior Management Personnel of our Company in accordance with definition of
Senior Management in Regulation 2 (iia) of the SEBI NCS Regulations, as
described in “Our Management” on page 112.

Statutory  Auditor(s) /

The statutory auditor of our Company, being M/s. Varma & Varma, Chartered

Auditor(s) Accountants.
Shareholders Equity Shareholders of our Company from time to time.
Special Purpose Audited The special purpose audited financial statements of our Company for the

Financial Statements/
Audited IGAAP Financial
Statements

financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 comprising of the
statement of assets and liabilities and the schedules forming part thereof, the
statement of financial results and the schedules forming part thereof, statement
of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow for the respective periods,
statement of significant accounting policies, and other explanatory statements
including notes thereto, issued by Previous Statutory Auditor of the Company.

Limited Review Unaudited
Financial
Results//Unaudited
Financial Results

Limited review unaudited financial results / unaudited financial results of our
Company as at and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the Indian Accounting Standards 34“Interim Financial Reporting” as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the relevant rules
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in
compliance with Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations along with the
limited review report issued thereon by the Statutory Auditor of our Company.

Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

Abridged Prospectus

A memorandum accompanying the Application Form for a Public Issue
containing the salient features of the Prospectus as specified by SEBI.

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an Applicant as
proof of registration of the Application Form.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted

The issue and allotment of the NCDs to successful Applicants pursuant to the
Issue.

Allotment Advice

The communication sent to the Allottees conveying the details of NCDs allotted
to the Allottees in accordance with the Basis of Allotment.

Allottee(s)

The successful Applicant to whom the NCDs are being/have been Allotted
pursuant to the Issue.

Applicant / Investor

A person who applies for the issuance and Allotment of NCDs pursuant to the
terms of this Prospectus and the Application Form for the Issue.

Application /  ASBA

Application

An application (whether physical or electronic) to subscribe to the NCDs offered
pursuant to the Issue by submission of a valid Application Form and authorising
an SCSB to block the Application Amount in the relevant ASBA Account and
will include application made by UPI Investors using UPI where the Application




Term

Description

amount will be blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by UPI
Investors, which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of
this Prospectus.

Application Amount

The aggregate value of NCDs applied for, as indicated in the Application Form
for the Issue.

Application Form / ASBA
Form

Form in terms of which an Applicant shall make an offer to subscribe to NCDs
through the ASBA process or through the UPI Mechanism and which will be
considered as the Application for Allotment of NCDs and in terms of this
Prospectus.

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount / ASBA

The Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Applicant to
make an Application by authorising the SCSB to block the bid amount in the
specified bank account maintained with such SCSB.

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained with a SCSB as specified in the ASBA Form
submitted by ASBA Applicants for blocking the Application Amount mentioned
in the ASBA Form, and will include a bank account of a retail individual investor
linked with UPI, for retail individual investors submitting application value up
to 5,00,000

ASBA Applicant

Any Applicant who applies for NCDs through the ASBA process.

Base Issue

% 5,000 lakhs.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which NCDs will be allotted to successful applicants under the Issue
and which is described in “Issue Procedure — Basis of Allotment for NCDs” on
page 214.

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchange, where Applicants can submit the
Application Forms (including ASBA Forms under UPI in case of UPI Investors)
to a Trading Member. The details of such Broker Centres, along with the names
and contact details of the Trading Members are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange.

Business Days

All days excluding Saturdays, Sundays or a public holiday in India or at any other
payment centre notified in terms of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881.

Client ID

Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation
to the demat account.

Collection Centres

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Application
Forms, being the Designated Branch for SCSBs, Specified Locations for the
Syndicate, Broker Centres for Registered Brokers, Desighated RTA Locations
for CRTAs and Designated CDP Locations for CDPs.

Collecting Depository
Participants / CDPs

A depository participant, as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996 and
registered with the SEBI Act and who is eligible to procure Applications at the
Designated CDP Locations in terms of the SEBI Master Circular.

Collecting Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents /
CRTAs

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Applications at the Desighated RTA Locations in terms of the SEBI Master
Circular.

Credit Rating Agency /
India Ratings

For the present Issue, the credit rating agency, in this case being India Ratings
and Research Private Limited.

Coupon Rate / Interest Rate

As specified in “Issue Structure — Specific terms of NCDs” on page 181 and
“Annexure I Day Count Convention” on page 294.

Cut-off Date

Shall mean March 10, 2025

Debenture  Trust cum
Hypothecation Deed/
Debenture Trust Deed

The Debenture Trust cum Hypothecation Deed to be executed by our Company
and the Debenture Trustee for creating the security over the NCDs issued under
the Issue

Debenture Trusteeship
Agreement

Debenture Trusteeship Agreement dated March 11, 2025 entered into between
our Company and the Debenture Trustee.

Debentures /NCDs

Secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures issued pursuant to this Issue.

Deemed Date of Allotment

The date on which the Board or the Debenture Allotment Committee of the Board
approves the Allotment of the NCDs or such date as may be determined by the
Board or the Debenture Allotment Committee and notified to the Designated
Stock Exchange. All benefits relating to the NCDs including interest on NCDs
shall be available to the Debenture holders from the Deemed Date of Allotment.




Term

Description

The actual Allotment of NCDs may take place on a date other than the Deemed
Date of Allotment

Demographic Details

The demographic details of an Applicant such as his address, bank account
details, category, PAN, UPI ID etc. for printing on refund/interest orders or used
for refunding through electronic mode as applicable.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996.

Depository(ies)

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and/or Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Forms used by
the ASBA Applicants and a list of which is available at https://www.sebi.gov.in
or at such other web-link as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Designated CDP Locations

Such centres of the Collecting Depository Participants where Applicants can
submit the Application Forms. The details of such Designated CDP Locations,
along with the names and contact details of the CDPs are available on the website
of the Stock Exchange and updated from time to time.

Designated Date

The date on which the Registrar to the Issue issues the instruction to SCSBs for
unblocking of funds from the ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Account in
terms of this Prospectus and the Public Issue Account and Sponsor Bank
Agreement and following which the Board, shall Allot the NCDs to the
successful Applicants.

Designated Intermediaries

Collectively, the Lead Managers, the Syndicate Members/Lead Brokers, Trading
Members, agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs, who are
authorised to collect Application Forms from the Applicants in the Issue

In relation to ASBA applicants authorising an SCSB to block the amount in the
ASBA Account, Designated Intermediaries shall mean SCSBs.

In relation to ASBA applicants submitted by Retail Individual Investors where
the amount was blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request using the UPI
Mechanism, Designated Intermediaries shall mean the CDPs, RTAs, Lead
Manager, Members of the Syndicate, Trading Members and Stock Exchange
where applications have been submitted through the app/web interface as
provided in the SEBI Master Circular

Designated Stock

Exchange/ DSE

BSE Limited.

Designated RTA Locations

Such centres of the CRTAs where Applicants can submit the Application Forms
(including Application Forms by UPI Investors under the UPI Mechanism). The
details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with the names and contact
details of the CRTAs are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.bseindia.com) and updated from time to time.

DP/ Depository Participant

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Direct Online Application

An online interface enabling direct applications through UPI by an app
based/web interface, by investors to a public issue of debt securities with an
online payment facility

Draft Prospectus / Draft
Offer Document

The draft prospectus dated March 13, 2025 filed by our Company with the
Designated Stock Exchange and with SEBI for receiving public comments, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI NCS
Regulations.

Existing Secured Creditors

Indian Overseas Bank, The South Indian Bank Limited, State Bank of India
Limited, The Federal Bank Limited, The Karur Vysya Bank, Bajaj Finance
Limited, Piramal Enterprises Limited, Oxyzo Financial Services Limited,
debenture holders of the privately placed secured non-convertible debentures and
debenture holders of the listed secured non-convertible debentures issued
through public offers.

Fugitive Economic

Offender

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

Interest Payment Date /
Coupon Payment Date

As specified in “Issue Structure —terms of NCDs” on page 181 and “Annexure I
Day Count Convention” on page 294




Term

Description

Institutional Portion

Portion of Applications received from Category | of persons eligible to apply for
the issue which includes Resident Public Financial Institutions as defined in
Section 2(72) of the Companies Act 2013; Statutory Corporations including State
Industrial Development Corporations; Scheduled Commercial Banks, Co-
operative Banks and Regional Rural Banks, which are authorised to invest in the
NCDs, Provident Funds of minimum corpus of % 2,500 lakhs, Pension Funds of
minimum corpus of T 2,500 lakhs; Superannuation Funds and Gratuity Fund,
which are authorised to invest in the NCDs; Venture Capital funds and/or
Alternative Investment Funds registered with SEBI, Insurance Companies
registered with the IRDA; National Investment Fund set up by resolution no. F.
No. 2/3/2005-DDII dated November 23, 2005 of the Government of India and
published in the Gazette of India: Insurance funds set up and managed by the
Indian army, navy or the air force of the Union of India or by the Department of
Posts, India; Mutual Funds, registered with SEBI; and Systemically Important
NBFC registered with RBI and having a net-worth of more than % 50,000 lakh
as per the last audited financial statements.

Issue/ Issue Size

Public issue by our Company of NCDs aggregating up to 5,000 lakhs (“Base
Issue Size”), with an option to retain over-subscription up to ¥5,000 lakhs,
cumulatively aggregating up to 10,000 lakhs on the terms and in the manner set
forth therein.

The Issue is being made pursuant to the provisions of SEBI NCS Regulations,
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder as amended to the extent
notified and the SEBI Master Circular.

Issue Closing Date

Tuesday, April 15, 2025

Issue Opening Date

Friday, March 28, 2025

Lead Manager

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited.

Market Lot

1 (one) NCD.

Maturity Amount

In respect of NCDs Allotted to NCD Holders, the repayment of the face value of
the NCD along with interest that may have accrued as on the redemption date.

Mobile App(s)

The mobile applications listed on the website of Stock Exchange as may be
updated from time to time, which may be used by Applicants to submit Bids
using the UPI Mechanism

NCD Holder/Debenture

Holder

Any debenture holder who holds the NCDs issued in this Issue and whose name
appears on the beneficial owners list provided by the Depositories.

Non-Institutional Portion

Category Il of persons eligible to apply for the Issue which includes Companies
falling within the meaning of Section 2(20) of the Companies Act 2013; bodies
corporate and societies registered under the applicable laws in India and
authorised to invest in the NCDs; Educational institutions and Associations Of
Persons and/or bodies established pursuant to or registered under any central or
state statutory enactment, which are authorised to invest in the NCDs; Trust
Including Public/private charitable/religious trusts which are authorised to invest
in the NCDs; Scientific and/or industrial research organisations, which are
authorised to invest in the NCDs; Partnership firms in the name of the partners;
Limited liability partnerships formed and registered under the provisions of the
Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 (No. 6 of 2009); Resident Indian
individuals and Hindu undivided families through the Karta aggregating to a
value exceeding X 5 lakhs.

Offer Document

The Draft Prospectus, this Prospectus, Application Form and abridged
Prospectus.

Prospectus

The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC in accordance with the SEBI NCS
Regulations, containing inter alia the coupon rate for the NCDs and certain other
information.

Public Issue Account

Account(s) opened with the Public Issue Account Bank to receive monies from
the ASBA Accounts maintained with the SCSBs (including under the UPI
Mechanism) on the Designated Date.

Public Issue Account Bank

The Banker to the Issue being HDFC Bank Limited with whom Public Issue
Account will be opened.




Term

Description

Public Issue Account and
Sponsor Bank Agreement

The agreement dated March 19, 2025 entered into amongst our Company, the
Registrar to the Issue, the Lead Manager, the Public Issue Account Bank and the
Sponsor Bank for the appointment of the Sponsor Bank in accordance with the
SEBI Master Circular for collection of the Application Amounts from ASBA
Accounts under the UPI Mechanism and the Refund Bank for remitting the and
where applicable, refunds of the amounts collected from the Applicants on the
terms and conditions thereof.

Retail Individual Investors

Resident Indian individuals or HUFs applying through the Karta, for NCDs for
an amount aggregating up to and including I5 Lakh, across all Series of NCDs
in Issue including bids received from UPI mechanism.

Record Date

The record date for payment of interest in connection with the NCDs or
repayment of principal in connection therewith shall be 15 Days prior to the date
on which interest is due and payable, and/or the date of redemption. Provided
that trading in the NCDs shall remain suspended between the aforementioned
Record Date in connection with redemption of NCDs and the date of redemption
or as prescribed by the Stock Exchange, as the case may be.

Refund Account

Account opened with the Refund Bank from which refunds, if any, of the whole
or any part of the Application Amount shall be made and as specified in this
Prospectus.

Refund Bank

The Banker to the Issue being HDFC Bank Limited, with whom the Refund
Account(s) will be opened.

Registrar to the Issue /
Registrar

Kfin Technologies Limited

Register of NCD Holders

The statutory register in connection with any NCDs which are held in physical
form on account of rematerialisation, containing name and prescribed details of
the relevant NCD Holders, which will be prepared and maintained by our
Company/Registrar in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act.

Rlls Retail Individual Investors
RTAs/ Registrar and Share The registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to
Transfer Agent procure Application in the Issue at the Designhated RTA Locations.

SCSBs or Self Certified
Syndicate Banks

The banks registered with SEBI, offering services in relation to ASBA and UPI,
a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes for
ASBA and
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intml
d=40 for UPI, updated from time to time and at such other websites as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SEBI
Regulations

Delisting

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021.

SEBI NCS Master Circular

Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2024/54 dated May 22, 2024
as amended, which consolidates and has replaced multiple circulars issued by
SEBI in relation of issue and listing of debt securities.

SEBI Master Circular for
Debenture Trustees

Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD3/P/CIR/2024/46 dated May 16, 2024 as
amended from time to time.

SEBI Listing Regulations/
Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Security

The principal amount of the NCDs to be issued in terms of this Prospectus
together with all interest due on the NCDs, as well as all costs, charges, all fees,
remuneration of Debenture Trustee and expenses payable in respect thereof shall
be secured by way of first ranking pari passu charge with Existing Secured
Creditors, on all movable assets, including book debts and receivables, cash and
bank balances, other movable assets, loans and advances, both present and future
of the Company equal to the value of one time of the NCDs outstanding plus
interest accrued thereon.

Senior Citizens

Individuals attaining the age of at least 60 years as on the Deemed Date of
Allotment of this Issue.

Specified Locations

Collection centres where the Members of the Syndicate shall accept Application
Forms, a list of which is included in the Application Form.
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Term

Description

Sponsor Bank

The Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI, which has been appointed by our
Company to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the National
Payments Corporation of India in order to push the mandate collect requests and
/ or payment instructions of the retail individual investors into the UPI for retail
individual investors applying through the app/web interface of the Stock
Exchange(s) with a facility to block funds through UPI Mechanism for
application value up to X 5,00,000 and carry out any other responsibilities in
terms of the SEBI Master Circular. (In this Issue, HDFC Bank Limited )

Stock Exchange

BSE Limited.

Syndicate ASBA

Applications through the Designated Intermediaries.

Syndicate ASBA
Application Locations

Collection centers where the Designated Intermediaries shall accept Application
Forms from Applicants, a list of which is available on the website of the SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in and at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to ASBA Applications submitted to a member of the Syndicate, such
branches of the SCSBs at the Syndicate ASBA Application Locations named by
the SCSBs to receive deposits of the Application Forms from the members of the
Syndicate, and a list of which is available on https://www.sebi.gov.in or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Tenor

Tenor shall mean the tenor of the NCDs.

Trading Member(s)

Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as “trading member(s)” under the
SEBI (Stock-Brokers and Sub-Brokers) Regulations, 1992, and who hold the
right to trade in stocks listed on stock exchanges, through which investors can
buy or sell securities listed on stock exchanges whose list is available on stock
exchanges.

Transaction
Slip/ TRS

Registration

The acknowledgement slip or document issued by any of the Members of the
Syndicate, the SCSBs, or the Trading Members as the case may be, to an
Applicant upon demand as proof of upload of the Application on the application
platform of the Stock Exchange.

Tripartite Agreement(s)

Agreements as entered into between our Company, Registrar and each of the
Depositories under the terms of which the Depositories shall act as depositories
for the securities issued by our Company.

Trustees for the holders of the NCDs allotted pursuant to Public Issue being
MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited.

Unified Payments Interface is an instant payment system developed by the NPCI.
It enables merging several banking features, seamless fund routing and merchant
payments into one hood. UPI allows instant transfer of money between any two
persons’ bank accounts using a payment address which uniquely identifies a
person’s bank account.

An Applicant who applies with a UPI number whose Application Amount for
NCDs in the Issue is up to X 5,00,000.

Trustees [/  Debenture
Trustee

UPI

UPI Investor

UPI ID

ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for single-window mobile
payment system developed by the NPCI.

UPI Application Limit

Maximum limit to utilize the UPI mechanism to block the funds for application
value up to 500,000 for issues of debt securities pursuant to SEBI Master
Circular or any other investment limit, as applicable and prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the UPI Investors, by way of a notification on the UPI
application and by way of an SMS directing the UPI Investors to such UPI
application) to the UPI Investors using the UPI Mechanism initiated by the
Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds equivalent to the Application
Amount in the relevant ASBA Account through the UPI, and the subsequent
debit of funds in case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism

Unified Payments Interface mechanism in accordance with SEBI Master Circular
as amended from time to time, to block funds for application value up to UPI
Application Limit submitted through intermediaries.

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transaction.




Term

Description

Web Interface

Web interface developed by Designated Stock Exchange wherein the bid is
automatically uploaded onto the Stock Exchange bidding platform and the
amount is blocked using the UPI mechanism

Wilful Defaulter

Includes wilful defaulters as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 which includes a Person or a company categorized as a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful
defaulters issued by the RBI and includes a company whose director or promoter
is categorised a Wilful defaulter.

Working Days

All days excluding Sundays or a holiday of commercial banks in Mumbai and/or
Thiruvananthapuram, except with reference to Issue Period, where Working
Days shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holiday in
Mumbai. Furthermore, for the purpose of post issue period, i.e. period beginning
from Issue Closure to listing of the NCDs on the Stock Exchange, Working Days
shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank
holidays in Mumbai, as per the SEBI NCS Regulations, however, with reference
to payment of interest/redemption of NCDs, Working Days shall mean those

days wherein the money market is functioning in Mumbai.

Business / Industry Related Terms

Term Description

AFC Asset Finance Companies

CAD Current Account Deficit

CIC Core investment companies

EMI Equated Monthly Instalment

ETFs Exchange Traded Fund

FSIAPL Fitch Solutions India Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
GDP Gross Domestic Product

GDS Gold Deposit Scheme

GFCE Government Final Consumption Expenditure
GFCF Gross Fixed Capital Formation

GMS Gold Monetisation Scheme

GNI Gross National Income

GST Good and Service Tax

GVA Gross Value Added

HFC Housing Finance Company

IC Investment Companies

ICC Investment and Credit Companies
IDF-NBFC Infrastructure Debt Fund

IFC Infrastructure Finance Company

1P Index of Industrial Production

KYC Know your customer

LC Loan Companies

LTV Loan to value

MFI Micro finance institutions

NBFC-MFI NBFC — Microfinance Institutions
NBFC-AA NBFC — Account Aggregator

NBCICCs NBFC-Investment and Credit Companies
NBFC (MGCs) Factors and Mortgage Guarantee Companies
NBFC-P2P NBFC—Peer to Peer Lending Platform
NBFC-D NBFCs Deposit Taking

NBFC-ND NBFCs Non-Deposit Taking

NBFCs Non Banking Financial Companies
NBFC-ND-NSI Non-deposit taking NBFCs below the asset size of X 1,00,000 lakh and (b) NBFCs
(NBFC-BL/ undertaking the following activities- (i) NBFC-Peer to Peer Lending Platform




Term Description

NBFC — Base (NBFCP2P), (ii) NBFC-Account Aggregator (NBFC-AA), (iii) Non-Operative

Layer) Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) and (iv) NBFCs not availing public funds and
not having any customer interface

NBFC-ML/ (a) all deposit taking NBFCs (NBFC-Ds), irrespective of asset size, (b) non-deposit

NBFC - taking NBFCs with asset size of 31,00,000 lakh and above and (¢) NBFCs undertaking

Middle Layer the following activities (i) Standalone Primary Dealers (SPDs), (ii) Infrastructure Debt
Fund - Non-Banking Financial Companies (IDF-NBFCs), (iii) Core Investment
Companies (CICs), (iv) Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and (v) Infrastructure
Finance Companies (NBFC-IFC)

NBFC - TL-D NBFC-UL which in the opinion of RBI has substantial increase in the potential
systemic risk NBFCs Deposit Taking

NBFC — UL-ND NBFCs which are specifically identified by the RBI as warranting enhanced
regulatory requirement based on a set of parameters and scoring methodology as
provided in SBR Framework NBFCs Non-Deposit Taking

NBFI Non Banking Financial Institutions

NOF Net Owned Fund

NOFHC Non-Operative Financial Holding Company

NPA Non-Performing Asset

OGL Online Gold Loans

PFCE Private Financial Consumption Expenditure

PMI Purchasing Manager’s Index

PSL Priority Sector Lending

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Master Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale

Directions Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

R-GDS Revamped Gold Deposit Scheme

R-GML Revamped Gold Metal Loan Scheme

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SPD Standalone Primary Dealer

TAT Turnaround Time

Tier 1 “Tier 1 capital” for NBFCs (except NBFCs-BL) is the sum of (i) Owned fund as
reduced by investment in shares of other NBFCs and in shares, debentures, bonds,
outstanding loans and advances including hire purchase and lease finance made to and
deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group exceeding, in aggregate,
ten percent of the owned fund; and (ii) Perpetual debt instruments issued by a non-
deposit taking NBFCs in each year to the extent it does not exceed 15 percent of the
aggregate Tier 1 capital of such company as on March 31 of the previous accounting
year. Note — NBFCs-BL are not eligible to include perpetual debt instruments in their
Tier 1 capital.

Tier 2 “Tier 2 capital” for NBFCs (except NBFCs-BL) is the sum of (i) Preference shares
other than those which are compulsorily convertible into equity; (ii) Revaluation
reserves at discounted rate of 55 percent; (iii) General provisions (including that for
Standard Assets) and loss reserves to the extent these are not attributable to actual
diminution in value or identifiable potential loss in any specific asset and are available
to meet unexpected losses, to the extent of one and one fourth percent of risk weighted
assets; (iv) Hybrid debt capital instruments; (v) Subordinated debt; and (vi) Perpetual
debt instruments issued by a non-deposit taking NBFC which is in excess of what
qualifies for Tier 1 capital; to the extent the aggregate does not exceed Tier 1 capital.
Note — NBFCs-BL are not eligible to include perpetual debt instruments in their Tier
2 capital.

WEO World Economic Outlook

WGC World Gold Council

WPI Wholesale Price Index

Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term

Description

AGM

Annual General Meeting




Term Description

AML Anti-Money Laundering

BSE BSE Limited

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CGST Act Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

Companies The Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed by the Government of India from

Act/Companies  Act time to time

2013

DIN Director Identification Number

DRR Debenture Redemption Reserve

DT Circular Operational Circular for Debenture Trustees no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/50
issued by SEBI on March 31, 2023, as amended from time to time

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EPS Earnings Per Share

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FDI Policy FDI in an Indian company is governed by the provisions of the FEMA read with the
FEMA Regulations and the Foreign Direct Investment Policy

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

FEMA Non-Debt Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Regulations

FEMA Debt Foreign Exchange Management (Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Regulations

FFMC Full Fledged Money Changer

Financial Year/FY

Financial Year ending March 31

FII/FPI Foreign Institutional Investors defined under the SEBI (Foreign Institutional
Investors) Regulations, 2014 registered with SEBI and as repealed by Foreign
Portfolio Investors defined under the SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GFCE Government First Consumption Expenditure

GFCF Gross Fixed Capital Formation

Gol Government of India

G-Sec Government Securities

GST Goods and services tax

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India established by an Act of Parliament, viz.
The Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 (Act No. XXXVIII of 1949)

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IFSC Indian Financial System Code

IGST Act Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

IND AS The Indian Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

Indian GAAP Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006
notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

IRDAI Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India

IT Information Technology

IT Act The Income Tax Act, 1961

KYC Know Your Customer

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition

MIS Management Information System

MoU Memorandum of Understanding

NA Not Applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer

NII(s) Non-Institutional Investor(s)
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Term Description

NIM Net Interest Margin

NPCI National Payments Corporation of India

NRI Non-Resident Indian

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

PAN Permanent Account Number

PDI Perpetual Debt Instrument

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

RM Relationship Manager

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI Delisting SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021

Regulations

SEBI Listing Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Regulations/ Listing Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Regulations

SEBI NCS Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible

Regulations/  SEBI  Securities) Regulations, 2021

Regulations

SGST Act State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, as enacted by various state governments.

TDS Tax Deducted at Source

WDM Wholesale Debt Market

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, capitalised terms that have been defined in the chapters titled
“Capital Structure”, “History and Certain Other Corporate Matters”, “Our Management”, “Financial
Statements”, “Financial Indebtedness”, “Issue Procedure”, “Outstanding Litigations”, “Key Regulations and
Policies”, and “Summary of Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”” and on pages 42, 110, 112, 129, 131,
175, 220, 255 and 274 respectively will have the meanings ascribed to them in such chapters.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to “India” are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and all references to the
“Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise stated, references in this Prospectus to a particular year are to the calendar year ended on
December 31 and to a particular “fiscal” or “fiscal year” are to the fiscal year ended on March 31.

All references to “India” are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions, and the “Government”,
the “Central Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as
applicable.

Financial Data
Our Company publishes its financial statements in Rupees.

The Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 has been prepared by
the Previous Statutory Auditor, Manikandan & Associates, in accordance with Ind AS notified under the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory and / or regulatory requirements, as applicable.

With effect from April 1, 2019, as per the roadmap issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) dated
January 18, 2016, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, for Non-Banking Finance
Companies (other than the Non-Banking Finance Companies having total assets of 350,000 lakhs or more), for
financial reporting purposes, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 and/or Rule 7 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (“IND AS”), as applicable.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), in its press release dated January 18, 2016, issued a roadmap for
implementation of Ind AS converged with IFRS for non-banking financial companies, scheduled commercial
banks, insurers, and insurance companies, which was subsequently confirmed by the RBI through its circular
dated February 11, 2016. The notification further explains that NBFCs whose equity and/or debt securities are
listed or in the process of listing on any stock exchange in India or outside India and having a net worth of less
than ¥50,000 lakh, shall comply with Ind AS for accounting periods beginning from April 1, 2019. Accordingly,
Ind AS is applicable to our Company with effect from April 1, 2023.

Our Company’s Special Purpose Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022, are prepared by the Previous Statutory Auditor, Manikandan & Associates, in accordance with
accounting standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory and / or regulatory
requirements, as applicable.

The Company’s Special Purpose Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 have been prepared on the basis of audited financial statements prepared by Mohandas &
Associates and Paulson Michael & Co., respectively, in accordance with Indian GAAP notified under the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory and/or regulatory requirements.

The Limited Review Unaudited Financial Results of our Company for the nine month period ended December 31,
2024 have been prepared by Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants, in accordance with recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the aforesaid Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued there-under and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations along with the limited review report issued thereon.

The Limited Review Unaudited Financial Results as issued by our Company’s Statutory Auditor, Varma &
Varma, Chartered Accountants and Audited Financial Statements and the reports issued thereon, as issued by our
Company’s Previous Statutory Auditor, Manikandan & Associates, Chartered Accountants, is included in this
Prospectus, in the chapter titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 129.
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Unless stated otherwise, the financial data used in this Prospectus is derived from the Limited Review Unaudited
Financial Results, Audited Ind AS financial Statements for the financial year March 31, 2024 and Special Purpose
Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, of the Company.

In this Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table, including “Capital Structure” and “Objects of the Issue”
between the total and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding off. All the decimals have been rounded
off to two decimal places.

Further, the financial data and numbers used in this Prospectus are under Ind AS/ IGAAP, as specifically
mentioned and is not strictly comparable.

Unless stated otherwise or unless the context requires otherwise, the financial data used in this Prospectus is on a
standalone basis.

Currency and units of Presentation

In this Prospectus, all references to ‘Rupees’/ ‘Rs.’/ ‘INR’/ ‘%’ are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the
Republic of India. Except where stated otherwise in this Prospectus, all figures have been expressed in ‘lakhs’.
All references to ‘lakh/lakhs’ means ‘one hundred thousand’ and ‘crore’ means ‘ten million’ and ‘billion /billions’
means ‘one hundred crores’.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used throughout this Prospectus has been obtained from industry
publications. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in those publications has been
obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and
their reliability cannot be assured. Accordingly, no investment decision should be made on the basis of such
information. Although our Company believes that industry data used in this Prospectus is reliable, it has not been
independently verified. Also, data from these sources may not be comparable. Similarly, internal reports, while
believed by us to be reliable, have not been verified by any independent sources.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Prospectus is meaningful depends on the reader’s
familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. Certain information and
statistics in relation to the industry in which we operate, which has been included in this Prospectus has been
extracted from an industry report titled “Gold Loan Industry in India”, dated March 07, 2025, prepared and issued
by Fitch Solutions India Advisory Private Limited (“Fitch Report”). Please refer to “Industry Overview” on page
61 for further details. Following is the disclaimer of Fitch Solutions India Advisory Private Limited in relation to
the Fitch Report:

“This report is prepared by Fitch Solutions India Advisory Pvt. Ltd. (FSIAPL) (erstwhile IRR Advisory Services
Pvt. Ltd.) FSIAPL has taken utmost care to ensure accuracy and objectivity while developing this report. This
report is for the information of the intended recipients only and no part of this report may be published or
reproduced in any form or manner without prior written permission of FSIAPL. ”

General Risk

Investment in NCDs involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in NCDs unless they can
afford to take the risk attached to such investments. Investors are advised to take an informed decision and to
read the risk factors carefully before investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors
must rely on their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of investors is
invited to statement of risk factors contained under section “Risk Factors” on page 16. These risks are not,
and are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to the NCDs or Investor’s
decision to purchase such securities.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain statements that are not statements of historical fact and are in the nature of
“forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases
such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, ‘“continue”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “objective”, “plan”,
“potential”, “project”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “will likely result”, “will seek to”, “seek” or other
words or phrases of similar import. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of
operations and business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
include statements as to our business strategy, revenue and profitability and other matters discussed in this

Prospectus that are not historical facts.

All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual
results, performance or achievements to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant statement.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward looking statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to
our businesses and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategies, our growth
and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in
India and which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of
India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the
performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws, regulations and taxes and
changes in competition in our industry.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations including, without
limitation, the following:

1. Any increase in the levels of non-performing assets (“NPA”) in our loan portfolio, for any reason
whatsoever, would adversely affect our business and results of operations;

2. Any volatility in interest rates which could cause our Gross Spreads to decline and consequently affect our
profitability;

3. Unanticipated turbulence in interest rates or other rates or prices; the performance of the financial and
capital markets in India and globally;

4. Our operations are concentrated in 3 states i.e. Kerala, Maharashtra and Odisha and any adverse
developments in these states of India may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows;

5. Changes in Indian and/or foreign laws and regulations, including tax, accounting, banking, securities,
insurance and other regulations; changes in competition and the pricing environment in India; and regional
or general changes in asset valuations;

6. Any changes in connection with policies, statutory provisions, regulations and/or RBI directions in
connection with NBFCs, including laws that impact our lending rates and our ability to enforce our
collateral;

7. Competition from our existing as well as new competitors;

8. Availability of adequate debt and equity financing at commercially acceptable terms;
9. General, political, economic, social and business conditions in Indian and other global markets; and

10. Other factors discussed in this Prospectus, including under the chapter titled “Risk Factors” beginning on
page 16.

For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ from our expectations, please refer to

the chapter titled “Risk Factors” and chapters titled “Industry Overview” and “Our Business” beginning on pages
16, 61 and 92, respectively.
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By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what
actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have
been estimated. Forward looking statements speak only as on the date of this Prospectus. The forward-looking
statements contained in this Prospectus are based on the beliefs of management, as well as the assumptions made
by and information currently available to management. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in
such forward-looking statements are reasonable at this time, we cannot assure investors that such expectations
will prove to be correct or will hold good at all times. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of these risks and uncertainties materialise, or if
any of our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, our actual results of operations or financial condition
could differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. All subsequent
forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference to these
cautionary statements.

Neither the Lead Manager, our Company, its Directors and its officers, nor any of their respective affiliates or
associates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after
the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come
to fruition. In accordance with the SEBI NCS Regulations, our Company, the Lead Manager will ensure that
investors in India are informed of material developments between the date of filing this Prospectus with the Stock
Exchange and the date of the Allotment.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

The following are some of the important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the
Company’s expectations:

An investment in NCDs involves a certain degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
contained in this Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, and the information provided
in the sections titled “Our Business” on page 92 and “Financial Statements” on page 129 before making an
investment decision. The following are the risks envisaged by the management of the Company relating to the
Company, the NCDs and the market in general. Potential investors should carefully consider all the risk factors
stated in this Prospectus in relation to the NCDs for evaluating the Company and its business and the NCDs
before making any investment decision relating to the NCDs. The Company believes that the factors described
below represents the principal risks inherent in investing in the NCDs but does not represent that the statements
below regarding the risks of holding the NCDs are exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to
facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor
over another. Potential investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus
and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision. The market prices of the NCDs could decline
due to such risks and you may lose all or part of your investment including interest thereon.

If any one of the following stated risks actually occurs, the Company’s business, financial conditions and results
of operations could suffer and, therefore, the value of the Company’s NCDs could decline and/or the Company’s
ability to meet its obligations in respect of the NCDs could be affected. More than one risk factor may have
simultaneous affect with regard to the NCDs such that the effect of a particular risk factor may not be predictable.
In addition, more than one risk factor may have a compounding effect which may not be predictable. No prediction
can be made as to the effect that any combination of risk factors may have on the value of the NCDs and/or the
Company’s ability to meet its obligations in respect of the NCDs. These risks and uncertainties are not the only
issues that the Company faces. These risk factors are determined on the basis of their materiality. Additional risks
and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company currently believes to be immaterial
may also have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or business. Unless specified or quantified in
the relevant risk factors, the Company is not in a position to quantify the financial or other implications of any
risk mentioned herein below.

This Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our results could
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors,
including events described below and elsewhere in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, the financial
information used in this section is derived from and should be read in conjunction with the Limited Review
Unaudited Financial Results and Audited Financial Statements.

Internal Risk Factors

1. We are subject to certain restrictive covenants in our loan documents and other debts, which may restrict
our operations and ability to grow and may adversely affect our business.

We have entered into agreements for availing financial facilities from various lenders. Certain covenants in these
agreements require us to obtain approval / permission from our lenders in certain conditions. These conditions
include, amongst others, implementation of any scheme of expansion / diversification / renovation / capital
expenditure, formulation of any scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction, undertaking of guarantee obligation,
any change in our capital structure. In the event of default or the breach of certain covenants, our lenders have the
option to make the entire outstanding amount payable immediately. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to comply with these financial or other covenants or that we will be able to obtain consents necessary to take
the actions that we believe are required to operate and grow our business.

For further details in this regard, including approvals obtained from our lenders for this Issue, please refer chapter
“Financial Indebtedness” on page 131.

2. Our ability to access capital also depends on our credit ratings. Any downgrade in our credit ratings would

increase borrowing costs and constrain our access to capital and lending markets and, thus, would
negatively affect our net interest margin and our business.
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The cost and availability of capital is also dependent on our long-term and short-term credit ratings. Ratings reflect
a rating agency’s opinion of our financial strength, operating performance, strategic position, and ability to meet
our obligations. Any downgrade of our credit ratings would increase borrowing costs and constrain our access to
debt and bank lending markets and, thus, would adversely affect our net interest margins and business. In addition,
downgrading of our credit ratings could increase the possibility of additional terms and conditions being added to
any new or replacement financing arrangements. The NCDs proposed to be issued under this Issue have been
rated “IND BBB/Stable”, by India Ratings and Research Private Limited (“India Ratings”) for an amount up to
%10,000 lakhs vide its revalidation letter dated February 24, 2025. We have also been assigned IND BBB/Stable,
by India Ratings for our bank facilities. For details regarding ratings received by our Company, please refer to
“Our Business” on page 92.

3. Our Company, our Promoters and Directors are subject to certain legal proceedings and any adverse
decision in such proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our Company, our Promoters and Directors are subject to certain legal proceedings including civil suits, consumer
litigations, tax litigations, trademark infringement suits etc. We incur substantial cost in defending these
proceedings before a court of law. Moreover, we are unable to assure you that our Company, our Promoter and
Directors shall be successful in any or all of these actions. In the event we or our Promoter and Directors suffer
any adverse order, it may have an adverse impact on our reputation, business and results of operations. Further,
our Company is involved in certain criminal proceeding with third parties in relation to our business operations.
Any adverse decision in such proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our Company, our Promoter, our Directors and our Group Companies are party to legal proceedings. These legal
proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals and statutory,
regulatory and other judicial authorities in India, and, if determined against us, could adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition. We cannot assure you that an adverse order by any statutory or
governmental authority will not have a negative impact on our profit and financial condition.

Should any new developments arise, such as any change in applicable Indian law or any rulings against us by
appellate courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase
expenses and current liabilities, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

A summary of the outstanding proceedings involving our Company, Directors, Promoter and Group Companies
in accordance with requirements under the SEBI NCS Regulations, as disclosed in this Prospectus, to the extent
quantifiable, have been set out below:

Name Criminal Tax Statutory [Disciplinary| Material | Aggregate amount
Proceedings | Proceedings or actions by Civil involved
Regulatory | the SEBI or | Litigations
Proceedings Stock  in lakh)
Exchanges
Company
By the Company 30 - - - - 251.47
Against the - 3 - - - 104.13
Company
Directors
By the Directors - - - - 1 -
Against the - - - - - -
Directors
Promoters
By the Promoters - - - - 1 -
Against the - - - - 1 -
Promoters
Group Companies
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Name Criminal Tax Statutory [Disciplinary| Material | Aggregate amount
Proceedings | Proceedings or actions by Civil involved
Regulatory | the SEBI or | Litigations
Proceedings Stock  in lakh)
Exchanges

By the Group - - - - - -

Companies

Against the - 3 - - - 124.19

Group

Companies

Subsidiaries

By the Not Applicable

Subsidiaries

Against the

Subsidiaries

For further details of the legal proceedings that we are subject to, please refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding
Litigations” beginning on page 220.

4. Supporting documents in connection with the biographies of the directors included in the section “Our
Management” of this Prospectus are unavailable.

Certain documents supporting the information included in this Prospectus with respect to previous work
experience of the directors, disclosed in the sections titled “Our Management” on page 112 may not be available.
Accordingly, reliance has been placed on declarations and undertakings furnished by such director to us and the
Lead Manager to disclose details of their previous work experience in this Prospectus. We and the Lead Manager
have been unable to independently verify these details prior to inclusion in this Prospectus. Further, there can be
no assurances that our Director will be able to trace the relevant documents pertaining to their previous work
experience in future, or at all.

5. A part of our branch network is concentrated in Kerala, Maharashtra and Odisha, and we derive majority
of our revenue from these states. Any breakdown of services in these areas could have a material and
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial conditions.

We derive majority of our revenue from our 171 branches situated in Kerala, Maharashtra and Odisha out of 288
of our total branches as on February 28, 2025. Further, approximately 67.17% of our loan portfolio as on
December 31, 2024 is concentrated in these 3 states i.e. Kerala, Maharashtra and Odisha. As a result, we are
exposed to risks including any change in policies relating to these states, any localised social unrest, any natural
disaster and any event or development which could make business in such states less economically beneficial.
Any such risk, if materialises, could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial position and results
of operations of our Company. For further details of our branch network within India, please refer to the chapter
titled “Our Business - Branch Network” on 90.

6. Our business is capital intensive and any disruption or restrictions in raising financial resources could
have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

Our liquidity and ongoing profitability are largely dependent upon our timely access to and the costs associated
in raising resources. Our funding requirements historically have been met from a combination of borrowings such
as working capital limits and term loans from banks and issuance of secured redeemable non-convertible
debentures on private placement basis and subordinated debts. Thus, our business depends and will continue to
depend on our ability to access diversified low-cost funding sources.

Our ability to raise funds on acceptable terms and at competitive rates continue to depend on various factors
including our credit ratings, the regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India, developments in the
international markets affecting the Indian economy, investors' and/or lenders' perception of demand for debt and
equity securities of NBFCs, and our current and future results of operations and financial condition.

The global and Indian capital and lending markets are, by nature, highly volatile and access to liquidity can, at
times, be significantly reduced. Moreover, since 2018, default in debt repayments by a large NBFC in India led
to heightened investor focus around the health of the broader NBFC sector as well as their sources of liquidity.
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This has led to some tightening in liquidity available to certain NBFCs and, as a result, it has become more difficult
for certain NBFCs to renew loans and raise capital in recent times. If any event of similar nature and magnitude
occurs again in the future, it may result in increased borrowing costs and difficulty in accessing debt in a cost-
effective manner. Moreover, we are a NBFC-ND-BL, and do not have access to public deposits.

A significant portion of our debt matures each year. Out of the total amount of our outstanding non-convertible
debentures (excluding interest thereon but including non-convertible debentures that are matured but not
redeemed), issued by our Company as of December 31, 2024, non-convertible debentures amounting to ¥7,106.86
lakhs will mature during the next 12 months. In order to retire these instruments, we either will need to refinance
this debt, which could be difficult in the event of volatility in the credit markets or raise equity capital or generate
sufficient cash to retire the debt.

Changes in economic and financial conditions or continuing lack of liquidity in the market could make it difficult
for us to access funds at competitive rates. As a NBFC, we also face certain restrictions on our ability to raise
money from international markets, which may further constrain our ability to raise funds at attractive rates. Any
disruption in our primary funding sources at competitive costs would have a material adverse effect on our
liquidity and financial condition.

7. Our financial performance is primarily dependent on interest rate risk. If we are unable to manage interest
rate risk in the future it could have an adverse effect on our net interest margin, thereby adversely affecting
business and financial condition of our Company.

Our results of operations are substantially dependent upon the level of our Net Interest Margins. Income from
loans is the largest component of our total income, and constituted 98.80%, 98.34 %, 96.96% and 96.89 % for the
Financial Years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2024 and nine months period ended
December 31, 2024 respectively. Interest rates are sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including the
RBI’s monetary policies, domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors.

Over the last several years, the Government of India has substantially deregulated the financial sector. As a result,
interest rates are now primarily determined by the market, which has increased the interest rate risk exposure of
all banks and financial intermediaries in India, including us.

Our policy is to attempt to balance the proportion of our interest earning assets, which bear fixed interest rates,
with interest bearing liabilities. A significant portion of our liabilities, such as our NCDs carry fixed rates of
interest. Moreover, we do not hedge our exposure to interest rate changes. We cannot assure you that we can
adequately manage our interest rate risk in the future or can effectively balance the proportion of our fixed rate
loan assets and liabilities. Further, changes in interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on interest
earning assets and the interest rates paid on interest bearing liabilities in different ways. Thus, our results of
operations could be affected by changes in interest rates and the timing of any re-pricing of our liabilities compared
with the re-pricing of our assets.

In a rising interest rate environment, if the yield on our interest earning assets does not increase at the same time
or to the same extent as our cost of funds, or, in a declining interest rate environment, if our cost of funds does
not decline at the same time or to the same extent as the yield on our interest earning assets, our net interest income
and net interest margin would be adversely affected. There can be no assurance that we will be able to adequately
manage our interest rate risk. If we are unable to address the interest rate risk, it could have an adverse effect on
our net interest margin, thereby adversely affecting our business and financial condition.

Wactbioat’
8. We depend on the recognition of the brand, and failure to use, maintain and

enhance awareness of the brand would adversely affect our ability to retain and expand our base of
customers.

Pethiact)
Our business is dependent on the continued usage of the brand and trademark. The mark

Wtuthood)
has been registered as a trademark by M. Mathews, Chairman of our Company. Further,
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an application was filed by Thomas Muthoot, Thomas John Muthoot and Thomas George Muthoot before the
Intellectual Property Appellate Board, Chennai on July 3, 2012 for the removal, expungement, rectification,
cancellation and variation of the trademark with registration number 1267883 in class 36 in the name of M
Matthew. Subsequently, the application was transferred to the Intellectual Property Division of the High Court of
Judicature at Madras and is currently pending. Any damage to the brand or our reputation may substantially impair
our ability to maintain or grow our business or have a material adverse effect on our overall business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

In addition, any unauthorized or inappropriate use of our brand, trademarks and other related intellectual property
rights by others in their corporate names or product brands or otherwise may harm our brand image, competitive
advantages and business and dilute or harm our reputation and brand recognition Moreover, we may also be
harmed by the actions of or negative press relating to entities which have similar names. We have in the past
instituted proceedings against third parties for infringing upon our licensed trademarks and trade names. Further,
if a dispute arises with respect to any of our intellectual property rights or proprietary information, we will be
required to produce evidence to defend or enforce our claims, and we may become party to litigation, which may
strain our resources and divert the attention of our management.

9. Our Company has high Debt Equity ratio and any further increase in borrowings may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company has raised funds from a combination of borrowings such as working capital limits and term loans
from banks and issuance of secured redeemable non-convertible debentures on private placement basis, secured
redeemable non-convertible debentures by way of public issue and subordinated debts. We are subject to the
RBI’s guidelines on financial regulation of NBFCs, including leverage ratio, capital adequacy, exposure and other
prudential norms. As per the prudential norms, the leverage ratio of NBFCs (except NBFC-MFIs, NBFCs-ML
and above) shall not be more than 7 at any point of time and our debt equity ratio of 3.87 as on December 31,
2024, is within the stipulated limits. While this strategic choice has facilitated our ability to undertake various
initiatives improving the top lines and bottom lines, it also introduces certain financial considerations. We will
continue to monitor and evaluate our capital structure to ensure we maintain a healthy balance between debt and
equity financing. For further information, refer section ‘Capital Structure - Debt - equity ratio’ on page 45.

10. We have had negative cash flows in the past. Any negative cash flows in the future could adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We have had negative cash flows for operating activities in the past on account of high growth in loans and
advances i.e., disbursals as compared with collections for the year and may have negative cash flows in the future.
If we experience any cash outflow in the future, this could adversely affect our business prospects, financial
condition and results of operations. For further information, see the section titled ‘Financial Statements’ on page
129.

(< in lakhs)

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (10,875.19) (15,544.08) (3,269.11)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (1,737.57) 756.82 (1,320.47)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities 9,125.46 15,876.63 7,851.06

11. Volatility in the market price of gold may adversely affect our financial condition, cash flows and results
of operations.

We extend loans secured mostly by household gold jewellery. A sustained decrease in the market price of gold
could cause a corresponding decrease in new Gold Loan in our loan portfolio and, as a result, our interest income.
In addition, customers may not repay their loans and the gold jewellery securing the loans may have decreased
significantly in value, resulting in losses which we may not be able to support. The impact on our financial position
and results of operations of a hypothetical decrease in gold values cannot be reasonably estimated because the
market and competitive response to changes in gold values is not pre-determinable.

12. We face increasing competition in our business which may result in declining interest margins. If we are
unable to compete successfully, our market share may also decline.

Our principal business is providing Gold Loan to customers in India secured by gold jewellery. Historically, the
Gold Loan industry in India has been largely unorganised and dominated by local jewellery pawn shops and
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money lenders, with little involvement from public sector or private sector banks. Gold Loan financing was
availed predominantly by lower income group customers with limited or no access to other forms of credit,
however, such income group has gained increased access to capital through organised and unorganised money
lenders, which has increased our exposure to competition. The demand for Gold Loan has also increased due to
relatively lower and affordable interest rates, increased need for urgent borrowing or bridge financing
requirements, the need for liquidity for assets held in gold and increased awareness and acceptance of Gold Loan
financing.

All of these factors have resulted in increased competition from other lenders in the Gold Loan industry, including
commercial banks and other NBFCs, who also have access to funding from customers’ savings and current
deposits. We are reliant on higher cost loans and debentures for our funding requirements, which may reduce our
margins compared to competitors. Our ability to compete effectively will depend, to some extent, on our ability
to raise low cost funding in the future. If we are unable to compete effectively with other participants in the Gold
Loan industry, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected. Furthermore,
as a result of increased competition in the Gold Loan industry, Gold Loan are becoming increasingly standardised.
Variable interest rates, variable payment terms and waiver of processing fees are also becoming increasingly
common.

13. We may not be able to realise the full value of our pledged gold, which exposes us to potential loss.

We may not be able to realise the full value of our pledged gold, due to, among other things, defects in the quality
of gold or sharp downward movement in the price in the future of gold which could result in fall in collateral
value. In the event of any decrease in the price of gold, customers may not repay their loans and the value of
collateral gold jewellery securing the loans may have decreased significantly, resulting in losses which we may
not be able to support. Although, we have in place an internal policy on determining the quality of gold prior to
disbursement of the Gold Loan. However, we cannot assure you that the methods followed by us are fool proof
and the impurity levels in the gold can be accurately assessed.

Further, increase in price of gold allows us to lend more on gold jewellery. We may not be able recover dues on
the loan entirely while auctioning the gold jewellery obtained as collateral on account of subsequent fall in gold
price.

In the case of a default, we may auction the pledged gold in accordance with our auction policy. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to auction such pledged gold jewellery at prices sufficient to cover the amounts under
default. Moreover, there may be delays associated with the auction process or other processes undertaken by us
to recover the amount due to us. Any such failure to recover the expected value of pledged gold could expose us
to a potential loss and which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We may also be affected by failure of employees to comply with internal procedures and inaccurate appraisal.
Failure by our employees to properly appraise the value of the collateral provides us with no recourse against the
borrower and the loan sanction may eventually result in a bad debt on our books of accounts. In the event we are
unable to check the risks arising out of such lapses, our business and results of operations may be adversely
affected.

14. We may not be able to successfully sustain our growth strategy. Inability to effectively manage our growth
and related issues could materially and adversely affect our business and impact our future financial
performance.

Our income from operations increased from T 6,673.83 lakhs in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 to
12,993.00 lakhs in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, thereby achieving compounded annual growth rate
(“CAGR”) 0f 39.53%. Furthermore, the loan book increased from X 33,851.92 lakhs for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022 to % 66,314.01 lakhs in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 at a CAGR of 39.96%.

Our income from operations for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, amounted to 311,613.95 lakhs
and the loan book as on December 31, 2024 was at 379,689.31 lakhs.

Our growth strategy includes growing our loan book, expanding network of branches and expanding the range of
products and services. We cannot assure you that we will be able to execute our growth strategy successfully or
continue to achieve or grow at the levels of revenue earned in recent years, or that we will be able to expand
further our loan book. Furthermore, there may not be sufficient demand for our services or they may not generate
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sufficient revenues relative to the costs associated with offering such services. Even if we were able to introduce
new services successfully, there can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve our intended return on such
investments.

Further, principal component of our strategy is to continue to grow by expanding the size and geographical scope
of our businesses. This growth strategy will place significant demands on our management, financial and other
resources. It will require us to continuously develop and improve our operational, financial and internal controls.
It also includes undertaking permission from various authorities, including RBI and various regulatory
compliances. Continuous expansion increases the challenges involved in financial management, recruitment,
training and retaining high quality human resources, preserving our culture, values and entrepreneurial
environment, and developing and improving our internal administrative infrastructure.

15. If we are not able to control the level of non-performing assets in our portfolio, the overall quality of our
loan portfolio may deteriorate and our results of operations may be adversely affected.

We may not be successful in our efforts to improve collections and/or enforce the security interest on the gold
collateral on existing as well as future non-performing assets. Moreover, as our loan portfolio increases, we may
experience greater defaults in principal and/or interest repayments. Thus, if we are not able to control our level of
non-performing assets, the overall quality of our loan portfolio may deteriorate and our results of operations may
be adversely affected. Our gross NPAs for the financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31,
2024 and nine months period ended December 31, 2024 were %123.56 lakhs, 2139.16 lakhs, ¥346.14 lakhs,
%719.87 lakhs respectively.

The RBI Master Directions prescribe the provisioning required in respect of our outstanding loan portfolio. Should
the overall credit quality of our loan portfolio deteriorate, the current level of our provisions may not be adequate
to cover further increases in the amount of our non-performing assets. Furthermore, although we believe that our
total provision will be adequate to cover all known losses in our asset portfolio, our current provisions may not
be adequate. Moreover, there also can be no assurance that there will be no further deterioration in our
provisioning coverage as a percentage of gross non-performing assets or otherwise, or that the percentage of non-
performing assets that we will be able to recover will be similar to our past experience of recoveries of non-
performing assets. In the event of any further increase in our non-performing asset portfolio, there could be an
even greater, adverse impact on our results of operations.

16. Our ability to lend against the collateral of gold jewellery has been restricted on account of guidelines
issued by RBI, which may have a negative impact on our business and results of operation.

RBI vide the Master Directions has stipulated all NBFCs to maintain a loan to value (LTV) ratio not exceeding
75% for loans granted against the collateral of gold jewellery and further prohibits lending against bullion/primary
gold. This notification will limit our ability to provide loan on the collateral of gold jewellery and thereby putting
us at a disadvantage vis-a-vis unregulated money lenders offering similar products. Further, RBI in the Master
Directions, has mandated NBFCs primarily engaged in lending against gold jewellery (such loans comprising
50% or more of their financial assets) to maintain a minimum Tier 1 capital of 12%. Such restrictions imposed by
RBI may erode our margins, impact our growth and business prospects.

RBI in the Master Directions further tightened the norms for lending against the security of gold ornaments by
pegging the maximum lendable value (LTV) to 30 day moving average closing price of 22 carat gold quoted by
India Bullion and Jewellers Association Limited (formerly known as Bombay Bullion Association Limited). Any
such future restrictions by RBI could have a negative impact on our business and results of operation.

17. We are subjected to supervision and regulation by the RBI as a NBFCs — Base Layer, and changes in
RBI’s regulations or period inspection governing us could adversely affect our business.

We are subject to the RBI’s guidelines on financial regulation of NBFCs, including capital adequacy, exposure
and other prudential norms. The RBI also regulates the credit flow by banks to NBFCs and provides guidelines to
commercial banks with respect to their investment and credit exposure norms for lending to NBFCs. The RBI’s
regulations of NBFCs could change in the future which may require us to restructure our activities, incur additional
cost or could otherwise adversely affect our business and our financial performance. Through the Master
Directions, RBI has amended the regulatory framework governing NBFCs to address concerns pertaining to risks,
regulatory gaps and arbitrage arising from differential regulations and aims to harmonise and simplify regulations
to facilitate a smoother compliance culture among NBFCs.
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As a NBFCs — Base Layer, our Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15.00% of
our aggregate risk-weighted assets of our balance sheet (on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off balance
sheet items) on an ongoing basis. Our Company’s capital adequacy ratio was 26.01% as of December 31, 2024.
If we continue to grow our Total Credit Exposure and asset base, we will be required to raise additional capital in
order to continue to meet applicable capital adequacy ratios with respect to our business. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to raise adequate additional capital in the future on terms favourable to us or at all, which
could result in non-compliance with applicable capital adequacy ratios and may adversely affect the growth of
our business. Further, our Tier | capital adequacy ratio of was 19.30% as of December 31, 2024. If we continue
to grow our loan portfolio and asset base, we will be required to raise additional Tier | and Tier Il capital in order
to continue to meet applicable capital adequacy ratios and Tier | capital requirements with respect to our business
of Gold Loan. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain adequate capital adequacy ratio or Tier
| capital by raising additional capital in the future on terms favourable to us, or at all. Failure to maintain adequate
capital adequacy ratio or Tier | capital may adversely affect the growth of our business.

Moreover, under the Master Directions — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023, the threshold for defining the NBFCs based on their size, activity and perceived
riskiness. NBFCs-Base Layer will be those NBFCs which have below asset size of ¥ 100,000 lakhs as per the last
audited balance sheet. We cannot assure you that the Master Directions and its applicability to us will not have a
material and adverse effect on our future financial conditions and results of operations.

Even though the RBI, has not provided for any restriction on interest rates that can be charged by non-deposit
taking NBFCs, there can be no assurance that the RBI and/or the Government will not implement regulations or
policies, including policies or regulations or legal interpretations of existing regulations, relating to or affecting
interest rates, taxation, inflation or exchange controls, or otherwise take action, that could have an adverse effect
on non-deposit taking NBFCs. In addition, there can be no assurance that any changes in the laws and regulations
relative to the Indian financial services industry will not adversely impact our business.

As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspection by RBI under Section 45N of the RBI Act, 1934 (“RBI Act”),
pursuant to which the RBI inspects our books of accounts and other records for the purpose of verifying the
correctness or completeness of any statement, information or particulars furnished to the RBI. Any irregularities
found during such investigations by such regulatory authorities could, similarly, expose us to warnings, penalties
and restrictions. During the course of finalization of inspection, regulatory authorities share their findings and
recommendations with us and give us an opportunity to provide justification and clarifications. Further, such
regulatory authorities also seek certain clarifications and share their findings in the ordinary course of business.
We respond to observations made by such authorities and address them appropriately; however, we cannot assure
you that these authorities will not find any deficiencies in future inspections or otherwise/ the authorities will not
make similar or other observations in the future.

18. We may be subject to regulations in respect of provisioning for non-performing assets. If such provisions
are not sufficient to provide adequate cover for loan losses that may occur, this could have an adverse
effect on our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

RBI guidelines prescribe the provisioning required in respect of our outstanding loan portfolio. These provisioning
requirements may require us to reserve lower amounts than the provisioning requirements applicable to financial
institutions and banks in other countries. The provisioning requirements may also require the exercise of
subjective judgments of management. The RBI vide the Master Directions provides for the regulatory framework
governing NBFCs pertaining to provision for standard assets. The requirement is to make a provision for standard
asset at 0.4% of the outstanding.

There are multiple factors that affect the level of NPAs in our Company. Prominent among them are fall in value
of gold, increase in the LTV ratio for gold loan etc.

The level of our provisions may not be adequate to cover further increases in the amount of our nonperforming
assets or a decrease in the value of the underlying gold collateral. If such provisions are not sufficient to provide
adequate cover for loan losses that may occur, or if we are required to increase our provisions, this could have an
adverse effect on our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations and may require us to raise additional
capital.
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19. Our ability to borrow from various banks may be restricted on account of guidelines issued by the RBI,
imposing restrictions on banks in relation to their exposure to NBFCs. Any limitation on our ability to
borrow from such banks may increase our cost of borrowing, which could adversely impact our growth,
business and financial condition.

Under RBI Master Circular DBR.BP.BC.N0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 on bank finance to NBFCs issued on July 1,
2015, the exposure (both lending and investment, including off balance sheet exposures) of a bank to a single
NBFC engaged in lending against collateral of gold jewellery (i.e. such loans comprising 50% or more of its
financial assets) should not exceed 7.5%, of its capital funds. Banks may, however, assume exposures on a single
NBFC up to 12.5% of their capital funds, provided the exposure in excess of 7.5% is on account of funds on-lent
by the NBFC to the infrastructure sector. Further, banks may also consider fixing internal limits for their aggregate
exposure to all NBFCs put together and should include internal sub-limit to all NBFCs providing Gold Loan (i.e.
such loans comprising 50% or more of their financial assets), including us. This limits the exposure that banks
may have on NBFCs such as us, which may restrict our ability to borrow from such banks and may increase our
cost of borrowing, which could adversely impact our growth, business and financial condition.

20. Our Gold Loan are due within 12 months of disbursement, and a failure to disburse new loans may result
in a reduction of our loan portfolio and a corresponding decrease in our interest income.

The Gold Loan we offer are due within a period of upto 12 months of disbursement. The relatively short-term
nature of our loans means that we are not assured of long-term interest income streams compared to businesses
that offer loans with longer terms. In addition, our existing customers may not obtain new loans from us upon
maturity of their existing loans, particularly if competition increases. The short-term nature of our loan products
and the potential instability of our interest income could materially and adversely affect our results of operations
and financial position.

21. Inaccurate appraisal of gold by our personnel may adversely affect our gold loan business and financial
condition.

The accurate appraisal of pledged gold is a significant factor in the successful operation of our business and such
appraisal requires a skilled and reliable workforce. Inaccurate appraisal of gold by our workforce may result in
gold being overvalued and pledged for a loan that is higher in value than the gold’s actual value, which could
adversely affect our reputation and business. Further, we are subject to the risk that our gold appraisers may
engage in fraud regarding their estimation of the value of pledged gold. Any such inaccuracies or fraud in relation
to our appraisal of gold may adversely affect our reputation, business and financial condition.

22. We are subject to regulations in relation to minimum capital adequacy requirements and our inability to
maintain our capital adequacy ratio could adversely affect our business.

The RBI Master Directions currently require NBFCs to comply with a capital to risk (weighted) assets ratio
(“CRAR?”), consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital. Under these requirements, Tier I and Tier II capital should not
be less than 15% of the sum of the NBFC’s risk-weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of
off-balance sheet items, as applicable. In addition, our Tier | capital, at any point in time, shall not be less than
10%. For details, see “Key Regulations and Policies” on page 255.

As of December 31, 2024, our CRAR was 26.01%, with Tier | capital comprising 19.30% and Tier Il capital
comprising of 6.71%. As we continue to grow our loan portfolio and asset base, we will be required to raise
additional Tier | and Tier Il capital in order to remain in compliance with the applicable CRARs. Further, the RBI
may increase its minimum CRAR threshold, which may require us to raise additional capital. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to raise adequate capital in the future on terms favourable to us, or at all, which may
adversely affect the growth of our business. Further, the RBI may also in the future require compliance with other
prudential norms and standards, which may require us to alter our business and accounting practices or take other
actions that could adversely affect our business and operating results.

23. Our branches are vulnerable to theft and burglary. While we are insured against the risk of burglary
arising from our business, such insurance may not be sufficient to fully cover the losses we suffer and this
may result in adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Storage of pledged gold jewellery as part of our business entails the risk of theft/burglary and resulting loss to our
reputation and business. The short tenure of the loans advanced by us and our practice of processing loan
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repayments within short timelines require us to store pledged gold on our premises at all points in time. With
regard to cases of theft/burglaries, we may not be able to recover the entire amount of the loss suffered and may
receive only a partial payment of the insurance claim. While we are insured against the risk of burglary arising
from our business, such insurance may not be sufficient to fully cover the losses we suffer. Further, the actual
recovery of the insured amount from the insurer requires the undertaking of certain procedures, and any delay in
recovery could adversely affect our reputation and results of operation.

24. The insurance coverage taken by us may not be adequate to protect against certain business risks. This
may adversely affect our financial condition and result of operations.

Operating and managing a Gold Loan business involves many risks that may adversely affect our operations and
the availability of insurance is therefore important to our operations. We believe that our insurance coverage is
adequate to cover us. However, to the extent that any uninsured risks materialise or if it fails to effectively cover
any risks, we could be exposed to substantial costs and losses that would adversely affect our financial condition.
In addition, we cannot be certain that the coverage will be available in sufficient amounts to cover one or more
large claims or that our insurers will not disclaim coverage as to any particular claim or claims. Occurrence of any
such situation could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

25. Our entire customer base comprises individual borrowers, who generally are more likely to be affected by
declining economic conditions than larger corporate borrowers.

A majority of our customer base belongs to the low to medium income group. Furthermore, unlike many
developed economies, a nationwide credit bureau has only recently become operational in India, so there is less
financial information available about individuals, particularly our focus customer segment of the low to medium
income group. It is therefore difficult to carry out precise credit risk analyses on our customers. While we follow
certain procedures to evaluate the credit profile of our customers before we sanction a loan, we generally rely on
the quality of the pledged gold rather than on a stringent analysis of the credit profile of our customers. Although
we believe that our risk management controls are sufficient, we cannot be certain that they will continue to be
sufficient or that additional risk management policies for individual borrowers will not be required. Failure to
maintain sufficient credit assessment policies, particularly for individual borrowers, could adversely affect our
loan portfolio, which could in turn have an adverse effect on our financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations.

26. We strive to attract, retain, and motivate key employees, Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Management,
as they play a critical role in driving our business operations and success. Any failure to hire key executives
or employees, or the loss of any member could adversely affect our business, results of operations, and
overall performance.

While we strive to attract, train, motivate, and retain highly skilled employees, including branch managers and
gold assessment technical personnel, any inability on our part to hire additional personnel or retain existing
qualified employees may impair our ability to expand our business and could result in a decline in revenue.
Hiring and retaining skilled managers and sales representatives is critical to our future, particularly given the
intense competition for experienced employees in the gold loan industry. Additionally, we may face challenges
in hiring and retaining sufficient skilled and experienced personnel to replace those who leave, or in re-
deploying and retaining employees to adapt to technological advancements, evolving standards, and changing
customer preferences.

Our business success is also significantly reliant on our core management team, which oversees the operations,
strategy, and growth of our businesses. Our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management have been
integral to our development and the implementation of our strategy. If one or more members of our
management team were unable or unwilling to continue in their present roles, it could be challenging to find
suitable replacements, which may adversely affect our business, operations, and results.

27. We are subject to the risk of fraud by our employees and customers. Our lending operations involve
significant amounts of cash collection which may be susceptible to loss or misappropriation or fraud by
our employees. Specifically, employees operating in remote areas may be susceptible to criminal elements
which may adversely affect our business, operations and ability to recruit and retain employees

We are exposed to the risk of fraud and other misconduct by employees and customers. While we carefully recruit
all of our employees and screen all our employees who are responsible for disbursement of Gold Loan and custody
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of gold, there could be instances of fraud with respect to Gold Loan and cash related misappropriation by our
employees. We are required to report cases of internal fraud to the RBI, which may take appropriate action. We
cannot guarantee you that such acts of fraud will not be committed in the future, and any such occurrence of fraud
would adversely affect our reputation, business and results of operations.

Our lending and collection operations involve handling of significant amounts of cash, including collections of
instalment repayments in cash which is the norm in the finance industry. Large amounts of cash collection expose
us to the risk of loss, fraud, misappropriation or unauthorised transactions by our employees responsible for
dealing with such cash collections. While we obtain insurance, coverage including fidelity coverage and coverage
for cash in safes and in transit and undertake various measures to detect and prevent any unauthorised transactions,
fraud or misappropriation by our employees, these measures may not be sufficient to prevent or deter such
activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our business operations and financial condition. In addition, we
may be subject to regulatory or other proceedings in connection with any such unauthorised transaction, fraud or
misappropriation by our agents or employees, which could adversely affect our goodwill, business prospects and
future financial performance.

Further, our employees operating in remote areas may be particularly susceptible to criminal elements as they are
involved in cash collection and transportation due to lack of local banking facilities. In the event of any such
adverse incident our ability to continue our operations in such areas will be adversely affected and our employee
recruitment and retention efforts may be affected, thereby affecting our expansion plans. In addition, if we
determine that certain areas of India pose a significantly higher risk of crime or political strife and instability, our
ability to operate in such areas will be adversely affected.

28. We are subject to the risk of unknowingly receiving stolen goods as collateral from customers which may
result in loss of collateral for the loan disbursed

We have a policy in place to satisfy ownership of the gold jewellery and have taken adequate steps to ensure that
the KYC guidelines stipulated by RBI are followed and due diligence of the customer is undertaken prior to the
disbursement of loans. However, in the event that we unknowingly receive stolen goods as collateral from a
customer, the goods can be seized by authorities. Once seized by the authorities, gold items will be stored in court
storage facilities without a surety arrangement. No recourse is generally available to our Company in the event of
such seizure, except the recovery of the loss from the customer. Any seizure of the gold ornaments by the
authorities shall result in us losing the collateral for the loan disbursed and could adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

29. System failures or inadequacy and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our
operations and result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to
our reputation.

Our business is increasingly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, a large number of transactions.
Through our information technology systems, we manage our operations, market to our target customers, and
monitor and control risks. We are dependent upon the IT software for effective monitoring & management, and
any failure in our IT systems or loss of connectivity or any loss of data arising from such failure can impact our
business and results of operations.

Our ability to operate and remain competitive will depend in part on our ability to maintain and upgrade our
information technology systems on a timely and cost-effective basis. The information available to and received
by our management through our existing systems may not be timely and sufficient to manage risks or to plan for
and respond to changes in market conditions and other developments in our operations. We may experience
difficulties in upgrading, developing and expanding our systems quickly enough to accommodate our growing
customer base and business operations.

Our operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information
in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to
unauthorised access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data
integrity and security.

Any failure to effectively maintain or improve or upgrade our management information systems in a timely

manner could materially and adversely affect our competitiveness, financial position and results of operations.
Moreover, if any of these systems do not operate properly or are disabled or if there are other shortcomings or
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failures in our internal processes or systems, it could affect our operations or result in financial loss, disruption of
our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct business
may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our businesses and the localities in
which we are located.

30. We have entered into, and will continue to enter into, related party transactions.

We have entered into certain transactions with related parties and are likely to continue to do so in the future.
Although all such related-party transactions are at arm’s length, as required under the Companies Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations. We cannot assure you that such transactions, individually or in aggregate, will not have an
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations or that we could not have achieved more
favourable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with related parties. Such related-party transactions
may potentially involve conflicts of interest which may be detrimental to our interest and we cannot assure you
that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the best interests of our minority
shareholders and will not have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. For
further details, see Note 38, Note 23 and Note 23 of “Financial Statements” on page F- 184, F-95, F-39,
respectively beginning on page 129.

31. Our internal procedures, on which we rely for obtaining information on our customers and loan collateral,
may be deficient and result in business losses.

We rely on our internal procedures for obtaining information relating to our customers and the loan collateral
provided. In the event of lapses or deficiencies in our procedures or in their implementation, we may be subject
to business or operational risk. For example, in the event that we unknowingly receive stolen goods as collateral
from a customer, the goods can be seized by authorities. Once seized by the authorities, gold items will be stored
in court storage facilities without a surety arrangement. No recourse will generally be available to our Company
in the event of such seizure, except the recovery of the loss from the customer.

32. Our inability to open new branches at correct locations may adversely affect our business.

Our business is dependent on our ability to service and support our customers from proximate locations and
thereby giving our customers easy access to our services. Further, it is vital for us to be present in key locations
for sourcing business as we depend on these branches to earn revenue. Thus, any inability on our part to open new
branches at correct locations may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

33. Our inability to obtain, renew or maintain our statutory and regulatory permits and approvals required to
operate our business may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulations and supervision by the RBI. In addition to the numerous conditions
required for the registration as a NBFC with the RBI, we are required to maintain certain statutory and regulatory
permits and approvals for our business. In the future, we will be required to renew such permits and approvals
and obtain new permits and approvals for any proposed operations. There can be no assurance that the relevant
authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in the time-frame anticipated by us or at all. Failure on our
part to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals may result in the interruption of our operations
and may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, our branches are required to be registered under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the
states in which they are located. The shops and establishment laws regulate various employment conditions,
including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime compensation. Some of our branches have not applied
for such registration while other branches still have applications for registration pending. If we fail to obtain or
retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business may be
adversely affected. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we have not complied, with any of these conditions,
our certificate of registration may be suspended or cancelled and we shall not be able to carry on such activities.

RISKS PERTAINING TO THIS ISSUE

34. Changes in interest rates may affect the price of our NCDs which frequently accompany inflation and/or
a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the price of our NCDs.
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All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as our NCDs, are subject to price risk. The price of
such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e., when interest rates rise, prices of
fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the prices
is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of prevailing interest
rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing economy, are likely to
have a negative effect on the price of our NCDs.

35. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue have not been appraised by
any bank or financial institution.

We intend to use the proceeds of the Issue, after meeting the expenditures of and related to the Issue, for the
purpose of onward lending and for repayment of interest and principal of existing loans and also for general
corporate purposes. For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” at page 47. The fund requirement and
deployment are based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution. The management will have significant flexibility in applying the proceeds received by us from the
Issue. The utilization details of the proceeds of the Issue shall be adequately disclosed as per applicable law.
Further, as per the provisions of the SEBI NCS Regulations, we are not required to appoint a monitoring agency
and therefore no monitoring agency has been appointed for the Issue.

36. The liquidity for the NCDs in the secondary market is very low and it may remain so in the future and the
price of the NCDs may be volatile.

The Issue will be a new public issue of NCDs for our Company and the liquidity in NCDs at present is very low
in the secondary market. Although an application has been made to list the NCDs on BSE, there can be no
assurance that liquidity for the NCDs will improve, and if liquidity for the NCDs were to improve, there is no
obligation on us to maintain the secondary market. The liquidity and market prices of the NCDs can be expected
to vary with changes in market and economic conditions, our financial condition and prospects and other factors
that generally influence market price of NCDs. Such fluctuations may significantly affect the liquidity and market
price of the NCDs, which may trade at a discount to the price at which you purchase the NCDs.

37. You may not be able to recover, on a timely basis or at all, the full value of the outstanding amounts and/or
the interest accrued thereon in connection with the NCDs. Failure or delay to recover the expected value
from a sale or disposition of the assets charged as security in connection with the NCDs could expose the
holders to a potential loss.

Our ability to pay interest accrued on the NCDs and/or the principal amount outstanding from time to time in
connection therewith would be subject to various factors, including, inter-alia our financial condition, profitability
and the general economic conditions in India and in the global financial markets. We cannot assure you that we
would be able to repay the principal amount outstanding from time to time on the NCDs and/or the interest accrued
thereon in a timely manner or at all. Although our Company will create appropriate security in favour of the
Debenture Trustee for the NCD Holders on the assets adequate to ensure minimum 100.00% asset cover for the
NCDs, which shall be free from any encumbrances, the realisable value of the assets charged as security, when
liquidated, may be lower than the outstanding principal and/or interest accrued thereon in connection with the
NCDs. A failure or delay to recover the expected value from a sale or disposition of the assets charged as security
in connection with the NCDs could expose you to a potential loss.

38. There can be no assurance that the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue will be listed on the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner, or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of the NCD issued pursuant to this
issue will not be granted until after the NCDs have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will
require all relevant documents authorising the issue of NCDs to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in
listing the NCDs in BSE for reasons unforeseen. If permission to deal in and for an official quotation of the NCDs
is not granted by BSE, our Company will forthwith repay, without interest, all monies received from the
Applicants in accordance with prevailing law in this context, and pursuant to this Prospectus.

39. In case of outstanding debt instruments, deposits, or borrowings, any default in compliance with the
material covenants could expose you to significant risks. These covenants may include the creation of
security as per the agreed terms, default in payment of interest, default in redemption or repayment, and
default in payment of penal interest wherever applicable.
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The covenants of the Issue are set out under “Issue Structure — Covenants of the Issue” at page 183 and in the
Debenture Trust Hypothecation Deed which will be duly filed with the stock exchange in terms of SEBI Master
Circular, as amended. These covenants have been mutually agreed upon between our Company and the Debenture
Trustee.

Our ability to comply with these covenants is subject to various factors including our financial condition,
profitability, and the general economic conditions in India and in the global financial markets. In accordance with
the terms and conditions of the outstanding debt instruments, deposits, or borrowings, any failure to comply with
the material covenants could lead to significant risks. These covenants may include the creation of security as per
terms agreed, default in payment of interest, default in redemption or repayment, and default in payment of penal
interest, among others.

While our Company shall take all necessary steps to comply with these covenants within the timelines prescribed
by SEBI, there could be a failure or delay in compliance due to unforeseen circumstances. Any such default could
lead to penalties, legal actions, or even trigger a default on other obligations under cross-default provisions which
may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. There is no assurance
that the Company will be able to avoid such defaults, and any such event could expose you to significant financial
and legal risks. It is important for investors to understand these risks and consider them when making their
investment decisions.

40. There may be no active market for the NCDs on the retail debt market/capital market segment of the BSE.
As a result, the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may fail to develop and may accordingly be
adversely affected.

There can be no assurance that an active market for the NCDs will develop. If an active market for the NCDs fails
to develop or be sustained, the liquidity and market prices of the NCDs may be adversely affected. The market
price of the NCDs would depend on various factors inter alia including (i) the interest rate on similar securities
available in the market and the general interest rate scenario in the country, (ii) the market price of our Equity
Shares, (iii) the market for listed debt securities, (iv) general economic conditions, (v) our financial performance,
growth prospects and results of operations and (vi) limited and sporadic trading. The aforementioned factors may
adversely affect the liquidity and market price of the NCDs, which may trade at a discount to the price at which
you purchase the NCDs and/or be relatively illiquid.

41. We cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of facts and other statistics with respect to India, the
Indian economy and the NBFC and Gold Loan industries contained in this Prospectus.

While facts and other statistics in this Prospectus relating to India, the Indian economy as well as the Gold Loan
industry have been based on various publications and reports from agencies that we believe are reliable, we cannot
guarantee the quality or reliability of such materials, particularly since there is limited publicly available
information specific to the Gold Loan industry. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of such
information, industry facts and other statistics, the same have not been prepared or independently verified by us
or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore we make no representation as to their accuracy or
completeness. These facts and other statistics include the facts and statistics included in the chapter titled “Industry
Overview” beginning on page 61. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective data collection methods or discrepancies
between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or
may not be comparable to statistics produced elsewhere and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no
assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy, as the case may
be, elsewhere.

42. Our Company may raise further borrowings and charge its assets after receipt of necessary consents from
its existing lenders. In such a scenario, the Debenture Holders holding the NCDs will rank pari passu with
other secured creditors and to that extent, may reduce the amounts recoverable by the Debenture Holders
upon our Company’s bankruptcy, winding up or liquidation

Our Company may, subject to receipt of all necessary consents from its existing lenders and the Debenture Trustee
to the Issue, raise further borrowings and charge its assets. Our Company is free to decide the nature of security
that may be provided for future borrowings. In such a scenario, the Debenture Holders holding the NCDs will
rank pari passu with other creditors and to that extent, may reduce the amounts recoverable by the Debenture
Holders upon our Company’s bankruptcy, winding up or liquidation.
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43. In the event of liquidation or bankruptcy, the new bankruptcy code in India may affect our Company's
right to recover loans from its borrowers.

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Bankruptcy Code”) was notified on August 5, 2016. The
Bankruptcy Code offers a uniform and comprehensive insolvency legislation encompassing all companies,
partnerships and individuals (other than financial firms). It allows creditors to assess the viability of a debtor as a
business decision and agree upon a plan for its revival or a speedy liquidation. The Bankruptcy Code creates a
new institutional framework, consisting of a regulator, insolvency professionals, information utilities and
adjudicatory mechanisms, which will facilitate a formal and time-bound insolvency resolution and liquidation
process.

In case insolvency proceedings are initiated against a debtor to our Company, we may not have complete control
over the recovery of amounts due to us. Under the Bankruptcy Code, upon invocation of an insolvency resolution
process, a committee of creditors is constituted by the interim resolution professional, wherein each financial
creditor is given a voting share proportionate to the debts owed to it. Any decision of the committee of creditors
must be taken by a vote of not less than 66% of the voting share of all financial creditors. Any resolution plan
approved by committee of creditors is binding upon all creditors, even if they vote against it. In case a liquidation
process is opted for, the Bankruptcy Code provides for a fixed order of priority in which proceeds from the sale
of the debtor’s assets are to be distributed. Before sale proceeds are distributed to a secured creditor, they are to
be distributed for the costs of the insolvency resolution and liquidation processes, debts owed to workmen and
other employees, and debts owed to unsecured credits. Further, under this process, dues owed to the Central and
State Governments rank at par with those owed to secured creditors. Moreover, other secured creditors may decide
to opt out of the process, in which case they are permitted to realise their security interests in priority.

Accordingly, if the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code are invoked against any of the borrowers of our Company,
it may affect our Company’s ability to recover our loans from the borrowers and enforcement of our Company’s
rights will be subject to the Bankruptcy Code.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

44. Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative impact
on our business.

India’s sovereign debt rating could be downgraded due to several factors, including changes in tax or fiscal policy
or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves, all which are outside our control. Any adverse revisions to
India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact
our ability to raise additional external financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such
additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our business and future financial
performance and our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures.

45. Instability of economic policies and the political situation in India could adversely affect the fortunes of
the industry.

There is no assurance that the liberalisation policies of the government will continue in the future. Protests against
privatisation could slow down the pace of liberalisation and deregulation. The Government of India plays an
important role by regulating the policies and regulations that govern the private sector. The current economic
policies of the government may change at a later date. The pace of economic liberalisation could change and
specific laws and policies affecting the industry and other policies affecting investments in our Company’s
business could change as well. A significant change in India’s economic liberalisation and deregulation policies
could disrupt business and economic conditions in India and thereby affect our Company’s business.

Unstable domestic as well as international political environment could impact the economic performance in the
short term as well as the long term. The Government of India has pursued the economic liberalisation policies
including relaxing restrictions on the private sector over the past several years. The present Government has also
announced polices and taken initiatives that support continued economic liberalisation.

The Government has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a significant influence over many aspects
of the Indian economy. Our Company’s business may be affected not only by changes in interest rates, changes
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in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest but also by other political, economic or other developments
in or affecting India.

46. Financial difficulties and other problems in certain financial institutions in India could cause our business
to suffer and adversely affect our results of operations.

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system, which in turn may be affected by financial difficulties
and other problems faced by certain Indian financial institutions. Certain Indian financial institutions have
experienced difficulties during recent years. Some co-operative banks (which tend to operate in rural sector) have
also faced serious financial and liquidity crises. There has been a trend towards consolidation with weaker banks,
NBFCs and HFCs being merged with stronger entities. The problems faced by individual Indian financial
institutions and any instability in or difficulties faced by the Indian financial system generally could create adverse
market perception about Indian financial institutions, banks and NBFCs. This in turn could adversely affect our
business, our future financial performance, our shareholders’ funds and the market price of our NCDs.

47. Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India and other countries could
adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect our business and may also adversely
affect the worldwide financial markets. These acts may also result in a loss of business confidence. In addition,
any deterioration in relations between India and its neighbouring countries might result in investor concern about
stability in the region, which could adversely affect our business.

India has also witnessed civil disturbances in recent years, and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other
adverse social, economic and political events in India could have a negative impact on us. Such incidents could
also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could
have an adverse impact on our business and the market price of our NCDs.

48. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, particularly the agriculture
sector, and cause our business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods and drought in the past few years.
The extent and severity of these natural disasters determines their impact on the Indian economy. Further,
prolonged spells of below normal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian
economy thereby, adversely affecting our business.

49. Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative impact
on our business.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies
may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, the interest rates and other commercial terms at
which such additional financing is available. This could have a material adverse effect on our business and
financial performance, our ability to raise financing for onward lending and the price of our NCDs.

50. Significant fluctuations in exchange rates between the Rupee and foreign currencies may have an adverse
effect on our results of operations.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected if the Indian rupee fluctuates significantly against foreign
currencies or if our hedging strategy is unsuccessful. To the extent that our liabilities and expenditures are not
denominated in Indian rupees, despite us entering into foreign exchange hedging contracts from time to time,
exchange rate fluctuations could affect the amount of income and expenditure we recognise. In addition, the
policies of RBI may also change from time to time, which may limit our ability to hedge our foreign currency
exposures adequately.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated on March 3, 1997, as ‘Muthoot Mercantile Limited’, a public limited company
under the Companies Act, 1956 with a certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kerela
at Kochi. Our Company also obtained the certificate of commencement of business dated March 11, 1997 from
the Registrar of Companies, Kerala at Kochi. For details of changes in our registered office, see “History and
Certain Other Corporate Matters” on page 110.
NBFC Registration
Our Company had originally obtained a Certificate of Registration in the name of Muthoot Mercantile Limited
dated December 12, 2002 bearing registration no. 16.00178 issued by the RBI to commence the business of non-
banking financial institution without accepting public deposits subject to the conditions mentioned in the
Certificate of Registration under Section 45 IA of the RBI Act.
Registration

The registration number, corporate identity number and Legal Entity Identifier Number of our Company are as
follows:

i.  Company Registration Number with RoC: 011260

ii.  Corporate Identity Number issued by RoC: U65921KL1997PLC011260.
iii. LEI: 984500F0IH75EC7A4156

iv. Permanent Account Number: AABCM5297K

Liability of the members of the Company

Limited by shares

Registrar of Companies

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Kerala, Ernakulam, which is situated at the following
address:

Company Law Bhavan, BMC Road,
Thrikkakara P.O Kakkanad,
Kochi - 682 021, Kerala

Registered Office

1%t Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors,
Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695014,

Kerala, India.

Email: info@muthootenterprises.com
Telephone: +91-0471-277-4800
Website: www.muthootenterprises.com

For further details regarding changes to our Registered Office, see “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on
page 110.

Board of Directors

The following table sets out the details regarding the Board of Directors as on date:
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Designation: Independent Director

DIN: 09771752

Name, Designation and DIN Age Address
(in years)

Mathew Mathaininan 82 Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam, Thiruvananthapuram — 695

Designation: Chairman and Whole-Time 003, Kowdiar, Kerala India.

Director

DIN: 00063078

Richi Mathew 50 Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam, Thiruvananthapuram — 695

Designation: Managing Director 003, Kowdiar, Kerala India.

DIN: 00224336

Ammini Mathew 74 Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam, Thiruvananthapuram — 695

Designation: Whole Time Director 003, Kowdiar, Kerala India.

DIN: 00533771

Asha Richi Mathew 39 Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam, Thiruvananthapuram — 695

Designation: Non-Executive Director 003, Kowdiar, Kerala India.

DIN: 05172361

Anthony Robert John 58 Little Flower, Cottage, Pravachambalam,
Nemom P O, Pallichal, Thiruvananthapuram

Designation: Independent Director — 695020, Kerala India.

DIN: 10213030

Dillark Justin 44 Pushpa Vihar, TENRA -124-A, Elankam

Nagar, Thycadu PO, Thiruvananthapuram —
695014, Kerala, India.

Chief Financial Officer

Rajeev M R

Muthoot Mercantile Limited, 1% Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors,

Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695014,
Telephone: +91 -0471 2774800
E-mail: cfo@muthootenterprises.com

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Arun Kumar V K

Muthoot Mercantile Limited, 1% Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors,

Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695014,
Telephone: +91 0471 2774800
E-mail: cs@muthootentereprises.com

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or the Compliance Officer for the Issue and Company Secretary
in case of any pre- Issue or post Issue related issues such as non-receipt of Allotment Advice, demat credit of

allotment of NCDs or refund orders.

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as name
of the Applicant, Application Form number, Applicant’s DP ID, Client ID, PAN, address of Applicant, number
of NCDs applied for, ASBA Account number in which the amount equivalent to the application, Amount was
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blocked or the UPI ID (for UPI Investors who make the payment of Application Amount through the UPI
Mechanism), date of Application Form and the name and address of the relevant Designated Intermediary where
the Application was submitted.

All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the
relevant SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of Applicant, Application Form number, number of
NCDs applied for, amount blocked on Application and the Designated Branch or the collection centre of the SCSB
where the Application Form was submitted by the ASBA Applicant.

All grievances related to the UPI process may be addressed to the Stock Exchange, which shall be responsible for
addressing investor grievances arising from applications submitted online through the App based/ web interface
platform of stock exchange or through their Trading Members. The intermediaries shall be responsible for
addressing any investor grievances arising from the applications uploaded by them in respect of quantity, price or
any other data entry or other errors made by them. All grievances arising out of Applications for the NCDs made
through the Online Stock Exchanges Mechanism (app based/wed interface platform) of the Stock Exchanges, or
through Trading Members, may be addressed directly to the Stock Exchange, with a copy to the Registrar to the
Issue.

Lead Manager to the Issue

VIVRO

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited
Vivro House 11, Shashi Colony,

Opposite Suvidha Shopping Center,

Paldi, Ahmedabad - 380007

Guijarat, India.

Telephone: +91 7940404242/40/41

Email: investors@vivro.net

Contact Person: Jay Dodiya / Kruti Saraiya
Website: www.vivro.net

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122

Legal Counsel to the Issue

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.
4th Floor, State Bank Buildings
N.G.N. Vaidya Marg, Fort
Mumbai 400 023,

Maharashtra, India
Telephone: +91 22 2266 3353
Contact Person: Sanjay Asher

Debenture Trustee

MITCON CREDENTIA

MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited
1402/1403, B-Wing, Dalamal Towers,

14th Floor, Free Press Journal Marg, 211,

Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400 021,

Maharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91 22 2282 8200

Email: contact@mitconcredentia.in

Investor Grievance Email: investorgrievances@mitconcredentia.in
Website: www.mitconcredentia.in

Contact Person: Vaishali Urkude

SEBI Registration No.: INDO00000596

MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited has by its letter dated March 13, 2025, given its consent for its
appointment as Debenture Trustee to the Issue and for its name to be included in this Prospectus and in all the
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subsequent periodical communications to be sent to the holders of the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue. The
Debenture Trustee Agreement entered into between MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited and the
Company on March 11, 2025, is available at https://muthootenterprises.com/pdf/dta.pdf.

All the rights and remedies of the NCD Holders under this Issue shall vest in and shall be exercised by the
appointed Debenture Trustee for this Issue without having it referred to the NCD Holders. All investors under this
Issue are deemed to have irrevocably given their authority and consent to the Debenture Trustee so appointed by
our Company for this Issue to act as their trustee and for doing such acts and signing such documents to carry out
their duty in such capacity. Any payment by our Company to the NCD Holders/Debenture Trustee, as the case
may be, shall, from the time of making such payment, completely and irrevocably discharge our Company pro
tanto from any liability to the NCD Holders. For details on the terms of the Debenture Trust cum Hypothecation
Deed see, “Issue Related Information” on page 156.

Registrar to the Issue

KFin Technologies Limited

Selenium, Tower-B,

Plot No — 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddi — 500 032,
Telangana, India

Telephone: +91 40 6716 2222

Toll free number: 18003094001
Email: mml.ncdipo@kfintech.com
Investor grievance e-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www.kfintech.com

Contact Person: M Murali Krishna
SEBI Registration No.: INR000000221

Credit Rating Agency

IndiaRatings
& Research

India Ratings and Research Private Limited
Wockhardt Towers: 4th floor, West Wing,
Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051,

Maharashtra, India

Telephone: 022-4000 1700

E-mail: infogrp@indiaratings.co.in

Website: www.indiaratings.co.in

Contact Person: Ismail Ahmed

SEBI Registration No: IN/CRA/002/1999

Credit Rating

The NCDs proposed to be issued under this Issue have been rated “IND BBB/Stable”, by India Ratings for an
amount up to X 10,000 lakhs vide its letter dated July 23, 2024 read with revalidation letter dated February 24,
2025. The rating of NCDs by India Ratings indicates that instruments with this rating are considered to have
moderate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations and carry moderate credit risk. The
rating provided by India Ratings may be suspended, withdrawn or revised at any time by the assigning rating
agency and should be evaluated independently of any other rating. This rating is not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities. For the rationale for the ratings, see Annexure Il to this Prospectus.

Disclaimer clause of India Ratings

Users of India Ratings should understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party
verification can ensure that all of the information India Ratings relies on in connection with a rating will be
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accurate and complete. Ultimately, the Issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the information
they provide to India Ratings and to the market in offering documents and other reports. In issuing its ratings India
Ratings must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditors with respect to financial statements and
attorneys with respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings are inherently forward-looking and embody
assumptions and predictions about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite
any verification of current facts, ratings can be affected by future events or conditions that were not anticipated at
the time a rating was issued or affirmed.

Ratings are not a recommendation or suggestion, directly or indirectly, to you or any other person, to buy, sell,
make or hold any investment, loan or security or to undertake any investment strategy with respect to any
investment, loan or security or any issuer. Ratings do not comment on the adequacy of market price, the suitability
of any investment, loan or security for a particular investor (including without limitation, any accounting and/or
regulatory treatment), or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect of any investment, loan
or security. The Rating Agency shall neither have construed to be nor acting under the capacity or nature of an
‘expert' as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013. India Ratings is not your advisor, nor is India
Ratings providing to you or any other party any financial advice, or any legal, auditing, accounting, appraisal,
valuation or actuarial services. A rating should not be viewed as a replacement for such advice or services.
Investors may find India Ratings to be important information, and India Ratings notes that you are responsible for
communicating the contents of this letter, and any changes with respect to the rating, to investors.

Statutory Auditors of our Company

Varma & Varma , Chartered Accountants
T C 9/1504, Galaxy, Sasthamangalam,
Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala - 695010, India
Telephone: +0471-2727345

Email: trivandrum@varmaandvarma.com
Website: www.varmaandvarma.com

Contact Person: Rajeev R

Membership No: 211277

Firm Registration Number: 004532S

Peer Review No.: 014223

Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants has been the Statutory Auditors of our Company since September 30,
2024,

Change in Auditors for preceding three financial years and current financial year as on date of this
Prospectus:

Name of the Address Date of Date of cessation Date of
Auditor Appointment if applicable resignation if
applicable
Paulson Michael & | 2™ Floor, FC November 30, | September 21, NA
Co., Chartered Centenary Building, | 2021 2022
Accountants Tana, Irinjalakuda —
680 121, Kerala
India.
Mohandas and 3 Floor, Sree September 22, | NA September 7, 2023
Associates, Residency, Press 2022
Chartered Club Road, Thrissur
Accountants — 680 001, Kerala, Re-appointed as on
India. September 5, 2023
Manikandan & Krishna Arcade, September 29, | September 30, NA
Associates, Near Marathompilly | 2023 2024
Chartered Krishna Temple,
Accountants. KSRTC Road,
Chalakudy, Thrissur
— 680307, Kerala,
India.
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Name of the Address Date of Date of cessation Date of

Auditor Appointment if applicable resignation if
applicable
Varma & Varma, | Varma & Varma, September 30, | NA NA
Chartered Chartered 2024
Accountants Accountants, T C

9/1504, Galaxy,
Sasthamangalam,
Thiruvananthapuram,
Kerala - 695010,
India

Public Issue Account Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank

r
L HDFC BANK

HDFC Bank Limited

Address: Lodha -1 Think Techno Campus, O-3 Level,

Next to Kanjurmarg Railway Station,

Kanjurmarg (East), Mumbai -400042

Telephone: +91 22 30752929 / 2928 / 2914Tel: +91 22 30752929 / 2928 / 2914Fax: +91 22 25799801
Email: siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com, sachin.gawade@hdfcbank.com,
eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com,tushar.gavankar@hdfcbank.com, pravin.teli2@hdfcbank.comContact Person: Eric
Bacha, Siddharth Jadhav, Sachin Gawde, Tushar Gavankar, Pravin TeliWebsite: www.hdfcbank.comSEBI
Registration No.: INBI00000063

Syndicate Member

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

607/608 Marathon Icon

Opp. Peninsula Corporate

ParkOff. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg Veer Santaji Lane, Lower Parel
Mumbai -400 013, Maharashtra, India

Contact person: Tushar Ashar

Telephone: +91 22 6666 8040/41/42Facimile: +91 22 6666 8047
Email: tushar.ashar@vivro.net

Website: www.vivro.net

SEBI Registration Number: INM000010122

Bankers to our Company

State Bank of India The South Indian Bank Limited
Commercial Branch, 1%t Floor, Safa International Building,

2" Floor, Vankarath Towers, Near Aristo Junction, Thampanoor,

NH Bypass, Thiruvananthapuram — 695 014,
Padivattom, Ernakulam-682 024 Kerala, India.

Kerala, India. Email: br0721@sib.co.in

Email: rm4.cbekm@sbi.co.in/sbi.04062@sbi.co.in Website: www.southindianbank.com
Website: www.sbi.co.in Tel: 0471 — 2329585

Tel: 0484 — 2341555 Contact Person: Ms. Sheena Sudheendran

Contact Person: Asst General Manager &
Relationship Manager (AMT V)

The Federal Bank Limited The Karur Vysya Bank Limited
Corporate & Institutional Banking Department, CBU-Ernakulam, Door No. 1/1014,
4™ Floor - Federal Towers, Marnatha Towers, Ground Floor,
MG Road, Pulimood- Statue, Parutheli Jn., Edapally,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695001, Kerala Ernakulam — 682 024,

Email: dennis@federalbank.co.in Kerala, India.
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Website: www.federalbank.co.in
Tel: +91 7012889683
Contact Person: Dennis Sebastian

Piramal Enterprises Limited

CMML, 3" Floor, Amit Building, Piramal Agastya
Corporate Park, kamini Junction, LBS, Marg, Kurla
West — 400070

Email: pretesh.jain@piramal.com

Website: www.piramal.com

Tel: + 91 9043540153

Email: cbucoimbatore@kvbmail.com;
haridastk@kvbmail.com

Website: www.kvb.co.in

Tel: 9159944554

Contact Person: Haridas T K

Oxyzo Financial Services Limited

(formerly known as ‘Oxyzo Financial Services
Private Limited”)

Shop No. G-22 C (UGF) D-1 (K-84) Green Park
Main New Delhi, South Delhi-Delhi-110016
Email: aridaman@ofbusiness.in

Contact Person: Mr. Pretesh Jain Website: www.0xyzo.in
Tel: 7353013499
Indian Overseas Bank Contact Person: Aridaman Singh
Geeth Tower, Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud
Email: iob1303@iob.in
Website: www.iob.in
Tel: 0471 2335210
Contact Person: Mr. Ajesh SV
Bajaj Finance Limited
16 ™ Floor, B- wing, The Capital, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051
Email: Murali.Rao@bajajfinserv.in

Contact Person: Murali Rao

Impersonation

As a matter of abundant precaution, attention of the investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-Section
(1) of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to punishment for fictitious applications. Section 38(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 provides that:

“Any person who:

a. makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing
for, its securities; or

b. makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different
combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

c. otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him,
or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447"

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least
%10 lakh or 1.00% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which
shall not be less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest,
such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud,
extending up to three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is less than X 10 lakh
or 1.00% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such
fraud is punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending
up to X 50 lakh or with both.

Minimum Subscription

In terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations, for an issuer undertaking a public issue of debt securities the minimum
subscription for public issue of debt securities shall be 75% of the Base Issue. If our Company does not receive
the minimum subscription of 75% of Base Issue being 3,750 lakhs, within the prescribed timelines under the
Companies Act, SEBI Regulations, and any rules thereto, the entire Application Amount blocked shall be
unblocked in the relevant ASBA Account(s) of the Applicants within eight working days from the Issue Closing
Date or such time as may be specified by the Board. In the event the Application Amount has been transferred to
the Public Issue Account from the respective ASBA Accounts, such Application Amount shall be refunded from
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the Refund Account to the relevant ASBA Accounts(s) of the Applicants within eight working days from the Issue
Closing Date, failing which the Company will become liable to refund the Application Amount along with interest
at the rate 15 (fifteen) percent per annum for the delayed period.

Under Section 39(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11(2) of the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 if the stated minimum subscription amount is not received within the
specified period, the application money received is to be credited only to the bank account from which the
subscription was remitted. To the extent possible, where the required information for making such refunds is
available with our Company and/or Registrar, refunds will be made to the account prescribed. However, where
our Company and/or Registrar does not have the necessary information for making such refunds, our Company
and/or Registrar will follow the guidelines prescribed by SEBI in this regard included in the SEBI Master Circular.

Arrangers to the Issue

There are no arrangers to the Issue.

Guarantor to the Issue

There are no guarantors to the Issue.

Recovery Expense Fund

Pursuant to SEBI Master Circular for Debenture Trustee, as amended, our Company is required to create a
recovery expense fund. Our Company shall deposit in the recovery expense fund an amount equal to 0.01% of the
issue size, subject to maximum of 325 lakhs.

Consents

The written consents of Directors of our Company, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, our Statutory Auditor, the Legal Counsel to the Issue, the Lead Manager, the Registrar to the Issue, Public
Issue Account Bank, Sponsor Bank, Refund Bank, Credit Rating Agency, FSIAPL, the Banker to our Company,
the Debenture Trustee, and the Syndicate Member to act in their respective capacities, will be filed along with a
copy of the Prospectus with the RoC as required under Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 and such consents
have not been withdrawn up to the time of delivery of the Prospectus with RoC.

Utilisation of Issue proceeds

For details on utilisation of Issue proceeds please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 47 of
this Prospectus.

Underwriting

This Issue will not be underwritten.

Designated Intermediaries

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as the SCSBs for the ASBA and UPI Mechanism process
is provided on the website of SEBI at http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
and https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 respectively as updated
from time to time. For a list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive the ASBA Forms

and UP1 Mechanism through app/web interface from the Designated Intermediaries, refer to the above-mentioned
links.

In relation to Applications submitted to a member of the sub-syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the
Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Application Forms from the members
of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI (http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.
do?doRecognised=yes), or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.
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Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to Applications submitted to the Designated Intermediaries, the list of branches of the SCSBs to receive
deposits of ASBA Applications from such Designated Intermediaries is provided on www.sebi.gov.in or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. For more information on such branches collecting
Applications from Designated Intermediaries, see the above-mentioned web-link.

SCSBs eligible as issuer banks for UPI Mechanism and eligible mobile applications

In accordance with SEBI Master Circular, UPI Investors making an Application in the Issue using the UPI
Mechanism, may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the
SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in, and updated from time to time.

Registered Brokers / RTAs / CDPs

The list of the RTAs and CDPs, eligible to accept Applications in the Issue, including details such as postal
address, telephone number and email address, are provided on the websites of BSE at http://www.bseindia.com,
for RTAs and CDPs, as updated from time to time.

Broker Centres/ Designated CDP Locations/ Designated RTA Locations

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated October 4, 2012 and
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/ 2015 dated November 10, 2015, Applicants can submit the Application Forms with
the registered brokers at the Broker Centers, CDPs at the Designated CDP Locations or the RTAs at the Designated
RTA Locations, respective lists of which, including details such as address and telephone number, are available
at www.bseindia.com. The list of branches of the SCSBs at the Broker Centres, named by the respective SCSBs
to receive deposits of the Application Forms from the registered brokers will be available on the website of the
SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time.

For further details, see “Issue Procedure” on page 189.

Issue Programme:

ISSUE OPENING DATE Friday, March 28, 2025
ISSUE CLOSING DATE Tuesday, April 15, 2025
PAY IN DATE Application Date. The entire Application Amount is payable on Application
DEEMED DATE OF The date on which the Board of Directors or the Debenture Allotment
ALLOTMENT Committee thereof authorised by the Board approves the Allotment of the

NCDs for the Issue or such date as may be determined by the Board of
Directors/ Committee authorised by the Board thereof and notified to the
Designated Stock Exchange. The actual Allotment of NCDs may take place
on a date other than the Deemed Date of Allotment. All benefits relating to
the NCDs including interest on NCDs shall be available to the Debenture
Holders from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

* This Issue shall remain open for subscription on Working Days from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard
Time) during the period indicated above, except that the Issue may close on such earlier date or extended date
(subject to a minimum period of two Working Days and a maximum period of ten Working Days from the date of
opening of the Issue and subject to not exceeding thirty days from filing the Prospectus with ROC) as may be
decided by the Board of Directors of our Company (“Board”) or Debenture Allotment Committee of the Board
subject to compliance with Regulation 33A of the SEBI NCS Regulation. In the event of such early closure or
extension to this Issue, our Company shall ensure that notice of the same is provided to the prospective investors
through advertisement in all the newspapers in which pre-issue advertisement for opening of this Issue has been
given on or before such earlier or initial date of Issue Closure. Application Forms for the Issue will be accepted
only from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as may be permitted by the Stock
Exchange, on Working Days during the Issue Period. On the Issue Closing Date, the Application Forms will be
accepted only between 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) and uploaded until 5:00 p.m. or such
extended time as may be permitted by the Stock Exchange. Further, pending mandate requests for bids placed on
the last day of bidding will be validated by 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on one Working Day after the Issue

Closing Date. For further details, see “General Information — Issue Programme” on page 40.
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Further, pending mandate requests for bids placed on the last day of bidding will be validated by 5:00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time) on one Working Day after the Issue Closing Date. For further details please refer to the chapter
titled “Issue Related Information” on page 156 of this Prospectus. It is clarified that the Applications not uploaded
on the Stock Exchange Platform would be rejected.

Due to limitation of time available for uploading the Applications on the Issue Closing Date, Applicants are
advised to submit their Application Forms one day prior to the Issue Closing Date and, no later than 3:00 p.m.
(Indian Standard Time) on the Issue Closing Date. Applicants are cautioned that in the event a large number of
Applications are received on the Issue Closing Date, there may be some Applications which are not uploaded due
to lack of sufficient time to upload.

Such Applications that cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation under the Issue. Application
Forms will only be accepted on Working Days during the Issue Period. Neither our Company, nor the Lead
Manager, or Trading Members of the Stock Exchange are liable for any failure in uploading the Applications due
to failures in any software/hardware systems or otherwise. Please note that, the Basis of Allotment under the Issue
will be on the basis of date of upload of each application into the electronic book of the Stock Exchange in
accordance with the SEBI Master Circular. However, from the date of oversubscription, and thereafter, the
allotments will be made to the applicants on proportionate basis.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
1. Details of share capital

The share capital of our Company as on December 31, 2024 is set forth below:

Particulars Amount in
Authorised Share Capital
5,50,00,000 Equity Shares of 210 each 55,00,00,000
Total Authorised Share Capital 55,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
3,64,18,747 Equity Shares of 10 each 36,41,87,470
Total Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 36,41,87,470

2. Details of change in authorised share capital of our Company as at the last quarter ended December
31, 2024 and for the preceding three financial years preceding and the current financial year:

There is no change in the authorised share capital of our Company as at the last quarter ended and for the last
three financial years preceding the date of this Prospectus.

3. Details of Equity Share capital history of our Company in the last three financial years and current
financial year is set forth below:

Equity Share capital history of the Company for the last three financial years preceding the date of this Prospectus
and current financial year, is set forth below:

Date of | No. of | Face Issue | Consid | Nature of | Cumulative Cumulative Cumulative
Allotment | equity Value Price | eration | Allotment No of equity | Equity Share | Equity Share
shares (in %) (in %) shares Capital Premium
(in %) (in%)
February | 69,99,997 10 10 Cash Rights Issue®® | 3,64,18,747 36,41,87,470 Nil
01, 2024
Total 3,64,18,747 36,41,87,470

(1) Allotment of 25,10,458 Equity Shares to Mathew Mathaininam, 22,342 Equity Shares to Ammini Mathew,
15,47,000 Equity Shares to Reena Varghese, 25,00,119 Equity Shares to Richi Mathew, 4,20,000 Equity Shares
to Asha Richi Mathew, and 78 Equity Shares to Nikitha Elizabath on right issue basis.
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4. The following table sets forth the shareholding pattern of our Company as on December 31, 2024:

(A) Promoter and 3,64,18,737 - 3,64,18,737 99.99  3,64,18,737  3,64,18,737 99.99 99.99 3,64,18,737
Promoter
Group
(B)  Public 10 - 10 0.01 10 10 0.01 0.01 10
(C) Non- - - - - - - - - -
Promoter
Non-Public
(C) Shares - - - - - - - - -
(1)  underlying
DRs
(C) Shares held - - - - - - - - -
(2) by Employee
Trusts
Total 3,64,18,747 3,64,18,747 100 3,64,18,747  3,64,18,747 100 100 3,64,18,747
(A)+(B)+(C)
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5. Details of the aggregate number of securities of the Issuer purchased or sold by the promoter group
and by the Directors of the Issuer and their relatives within six-months immediately preceding the date
of filing the Prospectus with RoC are as follows:

There are no aggregate number of securities of the Issuer purchased or sold by the promoter group and by the
Directors of the Issuer and their relatives within six-months immediately preceding the date of filing of the
Prospectus:

6. List of top ten holders of Equity Shares of our Company as on December 31, 2024 are as follows:

S. Name of shareholder Number of Equity | Number of Equity | Total shareholding
No. Shares held Shares in demat | as % of total no of
form Equity Shares

1. M Mathew 1,30,61,100 1,30,61,100 35.86
2. Richi Mathew 1,30,07,317 1,30,07,317 35.72
3. Reena Varghese 80,48,545 80,48,545 22.10
4. Asha Richi Mathew 21,85,125 21,85,125 6.00
5. Ammini Mathew 1,16,241 1,16,241 0.32
6. Nikitha Elizebath 409 409 0.00
7. Syamala Devi L 10 10 0.00

Total 3,64,18,747 3,64,18,747 100.00

7. List of top ten debenture holders of our Company as on December 31, 2024

a. Unlisted privately placed secured redeemable non-convertible debentures as on December 31, 2024
are as follows:
S. Name of holders Category of Number Face Amount (In % of total
No. holder of Value per 3) non-
NCDs NCDs convertible
held (Ing) securities
outstanding
1. Nalini Joel Individual 9200 1000 92,00,000 3.22%
2. Accamma Mathews Individual 5400 1000 54,00,000 1.89%
3. George John Individual 5000 1000 50,00,000 1.75%
4. Rogi John Individual 5000 1000 50,00,000 1.75%
5. Kuruvilla A.P Individual 4900 1000 49,00,000 1.71%
6. Vijayakrishnan C.K Individual 4000 1000 40,00,000 1.40%
7. Bindu Balakrishnan Individual 3700 1000 37,00,000 1.29%
Anand
8. Beena Mathai Individual 3480 1000 34,80,000 1.22%
9. Indu Prakash Individual 2700 1000 27,00,000 0.94%
10. | Amrish Singhania Individual 2500 1000] 25,00,000 0.87%
Total 45,880 4,58,80,000

b. Listed secured redeemable non-convertible debentures as on December 31, 2024 are as follows:

S. Name of holders Category of | Number of | Face Value Amount % of total
No. holder NCDs held per NCDs (Ing) Listed non-
(Ing) convertible
securities
outstanding
1. Sheeba George Public 9,000 1,000 90,00,000 0.41%
2. Jose V.J Public 6,635 1,000 66,35,000 0.30%
3. Asha Biju Public 6,500 1,000 65,00,000 0.30%
4. Benny Wilson Public 6,274 1,000 62,74,000 0.29%
5. Shine Kumari A.K Public 6,000 1,000 60,00,000 0.27%
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S. Name of holders Category of | Number of | Face Value Amount % of total
No. holder NCDs held per NCDs (In %) Listed non-
(In¥) convertible
securities
outstanding
6. Estheramma Raju Public 5,800 1,000 58,00,000 0.27%
7. Ratnam Arul Public 5,800 1,000 58,00,000 0.27%
Rajamani
8. Archana Sharan Public 5,100 1,000 51,00,000 0.23%
9. Vaishali Subodh Public 5,050 1,000 50,50,000 0.23%
Sarang
10. Claramma Mahews Public 5,000 1,000 50,00,000 0.23%
Total 61,159 6,11,59,000

8. List of top ten Subordinated Debt Instrument (“SDI”) holders of our Company as on December 31,
2024 are as follows:

S. Name of holders Number of Face Value | Amount (In %) % of total non-
No. SDIs held per SDIs convertible securities
(In3) outstanding
1. Sasidharan Nair S 20,561 1000 2,05,61,000 1.08%
2. Faisal Rehim 5,500 1000 55,00,000 0.29%
3. Alexander C Isaac 5,000 1000 50,00,000 0.26%
4. Thoomas Joseph 5,000 1000 50,00,000 0.26%
5. LMerlin Felix 4,800 1,000 48,00,000 0.25%
6. Lija Ann Mathew 4,800 1,000 48,00,000 0.25%
7. George Kaleekan 4,550 1,000 45,50,000 0.24%
Senapathy
8. Dr. Mridula Ambwani 4,300 1,000 43,00,000 0.23%
Benjamin
9. Zanu Zacharias 4,174 1,000 41,74,000 0.22%
10. Jacob George 4,000 1,000 40,00,000 0.21%
Total 62,685 6,26,85,000

9. List of top ten Perpetual Debt Instrument (“PDI”) holders of our Company as on December 31, 2024
are as follows: Nil

10. Details of holding of Equity Shares by our Promoters as on the date of December 31, 2024 is set out
below are as follows:

S. Name of the Number of  Total shareholding No. of Total percentage of

No. Promoter Equity Shares  as a percent of total Equity  Equity Shares pledged

held number of Equity Shares with respect to total

Shares (in %) pledged number of Equity

Shares held (in %)

1. Mathew 1,30,61,100 35.86 NA NA
Mathaininan

2. Richi Mathew 1,30,07,317 35.72 NA NA

Total 2,60,68,417 71.58 NA

11. Details of holding of Equity Shares by our Directors as on the date of this Prospectus

For details of shareholding of our Directors in the Company, please refer to “Our Management” on page 112.

12. Debt - equity ratio:

The debt equity ratio of our Company on standalone basis, prior and post to this Issue as on December 31, 2024,

is as follows:
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(2in lakhs)

. As on December 31, 2024
Particulars

Pre- Issue Post- Issue”

Debt

Debt Securities 25,231.72 35,231.72
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 22,503.16 22,503.16
Subordinated Liabilities 21,256.52 21,256.52
Total Debts 68,991.40 78,991.40
Equity

Equity Share Capital 3,641.87 3,641.87
Other Equity

Capital Redemption Reserve 2,280.63 2,280.63
Statutory Reserve Fund 3,383.73 3,383.73
Retained Earnings 8,802.94 8,802.94
Less: Prepaid expenses and deferred tax assets and Intangible Assets (272.55) (272.55)
Total Equity 17,836.62 17,836.62
Debt/Equity 3.87 443

#The debt-equity ratio post the Issue is indicative and is on account of inflow of 10,000 lakh from the Issue and
does not include contingent and off-balance sheet liabilities. The actual debt-equity ratio post the Issue would
depend upon the actual position of debt and equity on the date of allotment.

Notes:

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

19.
20.

1) The figures disclosed above are based on unaudited financial statements of the Company for the nine
months ended December 31,2024

2) Debt/ Equity Ratio= Total Debt (Borrowings) / Net worth

3) Impairment reserve created as per RBI requirement amounting to < 311.92 lakhs created as on March
31,2024 and Other Comprehensive Income (36.38) lakhs are not considered in arriving at the Net worth
for the purpose of debt equity ratio computation.

For details on the total outstanding debt of our Company, see “Financial Indebtedness” beginning on page
131

Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year

Our Company has not made any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year prior to the date of this
Prospectus.

Details of any reorganisation or reconstruction in the last one year

Our Company has not made any reorganisation or reconstruction in the last one year prior to the date of this
Prospectus.

Our Company does not have any outstanding borrowings taken/debt securities issued where taken/issued (i)
for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount or (iii) in pursuance
of an option.

None of the Equity Shares held by the Promoter are pledged or encumbered otherwise.

As on date of prospectus, 3,64,18,747 Equity Shares of our Company are in dematerialised form.

Our Company does not have any employee stock option scheme.

Details of change in promoter holding in our Company during the last financial year beyond 26% (as
prescribed by RBI:
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company is significantly involved in the business of gold loan and as part of our business operations, we
raise/avail funds for onward lending, financing and for repayment of interest and principal of existing borrowings.

Our Company proposes to utilise the funds which are being raised through the Issue, after deducting the Issue
related expenses to the extent payable by our Company (“Net Proceeds”), estimated to be approximately
9,891.36 lakhs, towards funding the following objects (collectively, referred to herein as the “Objects”):

1. For the purpose of onward lending, financing and repayment/prepayment of principal and interest on existing
borrowings; and

2. General Corporate Purposes.
The Main Objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company permits our Company to undertake
the activities for which the funds are being raised through the present Issue and also the activities which our

Company has been carrying on till date.

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are set forth in the following table:

(% in lakh)
S.No.  Description Amount
1.  Gross proceeds of the Issue Up to 10,000.00
2. (less) Issue related expenses* 108.64
3. Net Proceeds* 9,891.36

* Assuming the issue is fully subscribed and our Company retains oversubscription up to < 5,000 lakh.
Requirement of funds and Utilisation of Net Proceeds

The following table details the objects of the Issue and the amount proposed to be financed from the Net Proceeds:

S.No.  Obijects of the Issue Percentage of amount proposed

to be financed from Net Proceeds

1. Onward lending, financing and repayment/prepayment of At least 75%
principal and interest on existing borrowings

2. General Corporate Purposes* Maximum up to 25%

Total 100%

*The Net Proceeds will be first utilised towards the Objects mentioned above. The balance is proposed to be
utilised for general corporate purposes, subject to such utilisation not exceeding 25% of the amount raised in the
Issue, in compliance with the SEBI NCS Regulations.

For further details of our Company’s outstanding indebtedness, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 131.
Funding plan

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, funding plan will not be applicable

Summary of the project appraisal report

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, summary of the project appraisal report will not be
applicable.

Schedule of implementation of the project

Our Company confirms that for the purpose of this Issue, schedule of implementation of the project will not be
applicable.

Interest of Directors/Promoter
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No part of the proceeds from this Issue will be paid by us as consideration to our Promoter, our Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel or companies promoted by our Promoter except in ordinary
course of business.

Issue related expenses

The expenses for this Issue include, inter alia, Lead Manager’s fees and selling commission to the Lead Manager,
Consortium Member and intermediaries as provided for in the SEBI Master Circular, fees payable to Debenture
Trustee, the Registrar to the Issue, Sponsor Bank, SCSBs’ commission/fees, printing and distribution expenses,
legal fees, advertisement expenses, listing fees and any other expense directly related to the Issue. The Issue
expenses and listing fees will be paid by our Company. Our Company shall include the details of commission and
processing fees payable to each intermediary and the timelines for payment will be made on the basis of valid
invoices within such timelines mutually agreed to/ prescribed by the Company with the Designated
Intermediaries/Sponsor Bank.

The estimated breakdown of the total expenses for the Issue is as follows:

Particulars Estimated As percentage | As percentage
expenses* (% of Issue of total
amount in proceeds expenses of the
lakh) (in%)* Issue (in%)

Lead Managers fees 21.00 0.21% 19.33%
Underwriting commission - - -
Brokerage, selling commission and upload fees 15.30 0.15% 14.08%
Fees payable to the registrar to the issue 2.80 0.03% 2.58%
Others
- Fees payable to Credit Rating Agency - - -
- Fees payable to the legal counsel 15.00 0.15% 13.81%
- Advertising and marketing expenses 42.08 0.42% 38.73%
- Fees payable to the regulators including stock exchange 9.33 0.09% 8.59%
and depository
- Expenses incurred on printing and distribution of issue 0.43 0.00% 0.40%
stationary
- Any other fees, commission or payments under 2.70 0.03% 2.49%
whatever nomenclature
Total 108.64 1.09% 100.00%

* Assuming the Issue is fully subscribed and our Company retains oversubscription up to < 5,000 lakh

Note: 1) Issue related expenses disclosed above are exclusive of GST as applicable on such expenses. Our
Company shall claim input tax credit for the expenses.

2) In case of any difference between the estimated Issue related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the
shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards general corporate purposes.

The above expenses are indicative and are subject to change depending on the actual level of subscription to the
Issue and the number of Allottees, market conditions and other relevant factors.

Our Company shall pay processing fees to the SCSBs for Application forms procured by the Designated
Intermediaries and submitted to the SCSBs for blocking the Application Amount of the applicant, at the rate of X
10 per Application Form procured (plus other applicable taxes). However, it is clarified that in case of Application
Forms procured directly by the SCSBs, the relevant SCSBs shall not be entitled to any ASBA processing fee.

Our Company shall pay to the Sponsor Bank X 8 per valid block of application amount (plus applicable taxes).
The Sponsor Bank shall be responsible for making payments to the third parties such as remitter bank, NPCI and
such other parties as required in connection with the performance of its duties under applicable SEBI circulars,
agreements and other Applicable Laws.

Interim Use of Proceeds
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Our Management, in accordance with the policies formulated by it from time to time, will have flexibility in
deploying the proceeds received from the Issue. Pending utilisation of the proceeds out of the Issue for the
purposes described above, our Company intends to temporarily invest funds in high quality interest bearing liquid
instruments including money market mutual funds, deposits with banks or temporarily deploy the funds in
investment grade interest bearing securities as may be approved by the Board. Such investment would be in
accordance with the investment policies approved by the Board or any committee thereof from time to time. Also,
such investments shall be in line with the guidelines and regulations prescribed by RBI.

Monitoring of Utilisation of Funds

There is no requirement for appointment of a monitoring agency in terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations. The
Board shall monitor the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue. For the relevant Financial Years commencing
from Fiscal 2025-26, our Company will disclose in our financial statements, the utilisation of the Net Proceeds of
the Issue under a separate head along with details, if any, in relation to all such proceeds of the Issue that have not
been utilised thereby also indicating investments, if any, of such unutilised proceeds of the Issue. Our Company
shall utilize the proceeds of the Issue only upon the execution of the documents for creation of security and receipt
of final listing and trading approval from BSE.

Variation in terms of contract or objects

The Company shall not, in terms of Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, at any time, vary the terms of the
objects for which this Prospectus is issued, except as may be prescribed under the applicable laws and under
Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other Confirmation

In accordance with the SEBI NCS Regulations, our Company will not utilise the proceeds of the Issue for
providing loans to or for acquisitions of shares of any entity who is a part of the promoter group and group
companies.

No part of the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company to our Promoter, our Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, Senior Managerial Personnel or companies promoted by our Promoter except in ordinary course of
business.

The NCDs shall be considered as secured only if the charged asset is registered with Sub-registrar and Registrar
of Companies or CERSAI or Depository etc., as applicable, or is independently verifiable by the debenture trustee.

The Issue Proceeds shall not be utilised towards full or part consideration for the purchase or any other acquisition,
inter alia by way of a lease, of any property. The Issue Proceeds shall not be used for buying, trading or otherwise
dealing in equity shares of any other listed company.

The Issue Proceeds from NCDs allotted to Banks will not be utilised for any purpose which may be in
contravention of the RBI guidelines on bank financing to NBFCs including those relating to classification as
capital market exposure or any other sectors that are prohibited under the RBI regulations.

Further our Company undertakes that the Issue proceeds from NCDs Allotted to banks shall not be used for any
purpose, which may be in contravention of the RBI guidelines on bank financing to NBFCs.

Our Company confirms that it will not use the proceeds of the Issue for the purchase of any business or in the
purchase of any interest in any business whereby our Company shall become entitled to the capital or profit or
losses or both in such business exceeding 50% thereof, directly or indirectly in the acquisition of any immovable
property or acquisition of securities of any other body corporate.

The fund requirement as above is based on our current business plan and is subject to change in light of variations
in external circumstances or costs, or in our financial condition, cash flows, business or strategy. Our management,
in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of the industry, will have the discretion to revise its business
plan from time to time and consequently our funding requirements and deployment of funds may also change
Benefits / interest accruing to our Promoters/Directors out of the object of the Issue

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors of our Company are interested in the Objects of this Issue.
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Utilisation of Issue Proceeds

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

All monies received pursuant to the issue of NCDs to public shall be transferred to a separate bank account
other than the bank account referred to in Section 40 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013;

Details of all monies utilised out of the Issue referred to in sub-item (a) shall be disclosed under an
appropriate separate head in our Company’s balance sheet indicating the purpose for which such monies
had been utilised,;

Details of all unutilised monies out of issue of NCDs, if any, referred to in sub-item (a) shall be disclosed
under an appropriate separate head in our balance sheet indicating the form in which such unutilised monies
have been invested;

The Issue Proceeds shall not be utilised towards full or part consideration for the purchase or any other
acquisition, inter alia, by way of a lease, of any immovable property; and

Details of all utilised and unutilised monies out of the monies collected in the previous issue made by way
of public offer shall be disclosed and continued to be disclosed in the balance sheet till the time any part of
the proceeds of such previous issue remains unutilised indicating the purpose for which such monies have
been utilised and the securities or other forms of financial assets in which such unutilised monies have been
invested.
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To,

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

The Board of Directors

Muthoot Mercantile Limited

1st Floor, North Block,

Muthoot Floors,

Opposite W&C Hospital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram 695 014,
Kerala, India

And

To

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited
Vivro House 11, Shashi Colony,

Opposite Suvidha Shopping

Center, Paldi, Ahmedabad — 380 007,
Gujarat, India

(“Lead Manager” or “LM”)

Sub:

Proposed Public Offering of Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture of face value of 1,000
each (“NCDs”) amounting up to Z5,000 lakhs (“Base Issue”), with an option to retain over-
subscription up to ¥5,000 lakhs, aggregating up to T10,000 lakhs ("Issue") of Muthoot Mercantile
Limited (“Company” or “Issuer”)

We, M/s Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants, hereby confirm that the accompanying statement
of possible tax benefits available to the debenture holder(s) (Annexure 1) states the possible tax benefits
available to the debenture holders of the Company under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (the “IT Act”), as
amended by the Finance Act, 2024, i.e. applicable for the Financial Year 2024-25 relevant to the
assessment year 2025-26 respectively, presently in force in India (hereinafter referred to as the “Indian
Income Tax Regulations”) for the purpose of inclusion in the Offer document, in connection with the
Issue, has been prepared by the management of the Company, which we have initiated for identification
purposes. We are informed that such debentures raised in the Issue will be listed on BSE Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and the Statement has been prepared by the Company’s management on such basis.

Several of these benefits are dependent on the debenture holders fulfilling the conditions prescribed
under the relevant tax laws. Hence, the ability of the debenture holders to derive the tax benefits is
dependent upon their fulfilling of such conditions which, debenture holders may or may not choose to
fulfil.
The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure | are not exhaustive. The statement is only intended to
provide general information and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for the professional
tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each
investor is advised to consulst their own tax consultant with respect to specific tax implications arising
out of their participation.
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

Q) Debenture holders of the Company will continue to obtain these benefits in future;

(i) the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met with; and

(iii) the revenue authorities/Courts will concur with the views expressed herein.
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5. The contents of the enclosed Annexure | are based on the information, explanations and representations
obtained from the Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and
operations of the Company.

6. This Statement has been issued at the request of the Company for use in connection with the Issue and
may accordingly be furnished as required to SEBI, BSE Limited or any other regulatory authorities, as
required, and shared with and relied on as necessary by the Company’s advisors and intermediaries duly
appointed in this regard.

For Varma & Varma
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N0:004532S

Rajeev R

Partner

Membership N0:211277

UDIN: 25211277BMKONU2234
Date : March 13, 2025

Place: Thiruvananthapuram
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Annexure |

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS UNDER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961 (“IT ACT”)
AVAILABLE TO THE DEBENTURE HOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE INCOME-TAX LAWS
IN INDIA.

The following tax benefits will be available to the debenture holders of the Company (“Debenture Holders”) as
per the existing provisions of law. The tax benefits are given as per the prevailing tax laws under the provisions
of the IT Act, as on date, taking into account the amendments made by the Finance Act, 2024, and may vary from
time to time in accordance with amendments to the law or enactments thereto. The Debenture Holders are advised
to consider the tax implications in respect of subscription to the Debentures after consulting his tax advisor as
alternate views are possible.

IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE IT ACT

I.  TO THE RESIDENT DEBENTURE HOLDER (“RESIDENT” AS DEFINED UNDER SECTION 6
OF THE IT ACT)

A

1.

In Respect of Interest on Debentures (NCDs)

Interest on NCD received by Debenture Holders would be subject to income tax at the normal rates of
tax in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the IT Act. Interest will be assessed to Income
tax on receipt basis or mercantile basis (accrual basis) depending on the method of accounting regularly
employed by the NCD holders under Section 145 of the IT Act.

Income Tax is deductible at source at the rate of 10% on interest on debentures held by resident Indians
as per the provisions of Section 193 of the IT Act (in case where interest is paid to Individual or HUF,
no TDS will be deducted where interest is paid by a company in which the public is substantially
interested if the amount of interest paid to such person does not exceed five thousand rupees in a
financial year and interest is paid by way of account payee cheque).

Further, Tax will be deducted at source at reduced rate, or no tax will be deducted at source in the
following cases:

a) When the Assessing Officer issues a certificate on an application by a Debenture Holder on
satisfaction that the total income of the Debenture holder justifies no/lower deduction of tax at
source as per the provisions of Section 197(1) of the IT Act; and that a valid certificate is filed with
the Company before the prescribed date of closure of books for payment of debenture interest;

b) When the resident Debenture Holder with Permanent Account Number (‘PAN’) (not being a
company or a firm) submits a declaration as per the provisions of section 197A(1A) of the IT Act
in the prescribed Form 15G verified in the prescribed manner to the effect that the tax on his
estimated total income of the financial year in which such income is to be included in computing
his total income will be NIL. However, under section 197A(1B) of the IT Act, Form 15G cannot
be submitted nor considered for exemption from tax deduction at source if the dividend income
referred to in section 194, interest on securities, interest, withdrawal from NSS and income from
units of mutual fund or of Unit Trust of India as the case may be or the aggregate of the amounts
of such incomes credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid during the financial year in which
such income is to be included exceeds the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income
tax;

c) Senior citizens, who are 60 or more years of age at any time during the financial year, enjoy the
special privilege to submit a self-declaration in the prescribed Form 15H for non-deduction of tax
at source in accordance with the provisions of section 197A(1C) of the Act even if the aggregate
income credited or paid or likely to be credited or paid exceeds the maximum amount not
chargeable to tax, provided that the tax due on the estimated total income of the year concerned
will be NIL; and

d) In all other situations, tax would be deducted at source as per prevailing provisions of the IT Act.
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Please find below the class of resident investors and respective documents that would be required

for granting TDS exemption:

Sr | Class of Investors Relevant Section | Documents to be taken on record from
No. which grants TDS | Investors
exemption
1 Resident Individual or resident | Claiming non- | Form No.15G with PAN / Form No.15H
HUF deduction or lower | with PAN / Certificate issued u/s 197(1)
deduction of tax at | hasto be filed with the Company.
source under section | However in case of NCD Holders
193 of the IT Act, claiming non-deduction or lower
deduction of tax at source, as the case
may be, the NCD Holder should furnish
either
(a) a declaration (in duplicate) in the
prescribed form i.e.
(i) Form 15H which can be given by
individuals who are of the age of 60
years or more
(if) Form 15G which can be given by all
applicants (other than companies, and
firms), or
(iii) a certificate, from the Assessing
Officer which can be obtained by all
applicants (including companies and
firms) by making an application in the
prescribed form i.e. Form No.13.
2 Life insurance Corporation of | Clause vi of Proviso to | Copy of Registration certificate
India Section 193
3 a. General Insurance Corporation | Clause vii of Proviso to | a. Copy of Registration
of India, Section 193 certificate
b. 4 companies formed under b. Copy of Registration
section 16(1) of General certificate
Insurance Business Act, 1972 ¢. Copy of shareholding pattern
and
c. any company in which GIC
and aforesaid 4 companies has
full beneficial interest (100%
shareholding)
4 Any other Insurer Clause viii of Proviso | Copy of Registration certificate issued by
to Section 193 IRDA
5 Mutual Funds Section 196(iv) read | Copy of Registration certificate issued by
with Section 10(23D) SEBI / RBI and notification issued by
Central Government
6 Government, RBI and | Section 196(i),(ii) and | In case of Corporation, Declaration that
corporation established (iii) their income is exempt from tax with
under Central / State Act whose applicable provisions
income is exempt from tax
7 Recognized Provident Funds, | Section 10(25) and | Copy of Registration and Recognition
Recognized Gratuity Funds, | 10(25A) and CBDT | certificate issued by relevant statutory
Approved Superannuation | Circular - 18/2017 authorities and income-tax authorities
Funds, Employees’ State and Declaration from the funds that their
Insurance Fund etc. income is exempt u/s 10(25) and 10(25A)
8 New Pension System Trust Section 10(44) read | Relevant Registration certificate issued
with Section 196(iii) | to NPS Trust under section Indian Trusts
and CBDT Circular - | Act, 1882
18/2017
9 Other entities like Local | Section 10(20) etc. read | Declaration that they fall within the
authority, Regimental Funds, | with CBDT Circular - | relevant income-tax section and eligible
IRDA etc. 18/2017
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Sr | Class of Investors Relevant Section | Documents to be taken on record from
No. which grants TDS | Investors
exemption
for income-tax exemption on their
income
10 | Alternative Investment Funds | Section 197A(1F) Copy of Registration certificate issued by
(Category | and I1) SEBI
B. Inrespect of Capital Gains

Long Term Capital Gain

Under Section 2(29AA) read with section 2(42A) of the IT Act, listed Debentures held as Capital Asset
as defined under section 2(14) of the IT Act is treated as long term capital asset if it is held for more than
12 Months. Debentures held as capital asset for a period of 12 Months or less will be treated as short
term capital asset.

As per Section 112 of the IT Act, Capital Gains arising on transfer of long term capital assets being listed
debentures are subject to tax at the rate of 12.5% (plus applicable surcharge and health education cess)
on the capital gains calculated without indexing the cost of acquisition.

In case of an individual or HUF, being a resident, where the total income as reduced by such long-term
capital gains is below the maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax, then, such long-term
capital gains shall be reduced by the amount by which the total income as so reduced falls short of the
maximum amount which is not chargeable to income-tax and the tax on the balance of such long-term
capital gains shall be computed at the rate mentioned above.

Short Term Capital Gains

Listed Debentures held as capital asset under Section 2(14) of the IT Act for a period of not more than
12 months would be treated as Short term capital asset under Section 2(42A) of the IT Act. Short Term
Capital Gains on transfer of NCD will be taxed at the normal rates of tax in accordance with the
provisions of the IT Act. The provisions relating to maximum amount not chargeable to tax would apply
to short term capital gains.

Capital Loss on transfer of Debentures.

As per Section 74 of the IT Act, short-term capital loss on transfer of debentures suffered during the year
is allowed to be set-off against short-term as well as long-term capital gains of the said year. Balance
loss, if any could be carried forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent years’ short
term as well as long-term capital gains. Long-term capital loss on debentures suffered during the year is
allowed to be set-off only against long-term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, could be carried forward
for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent year’s long-term capital gains.

Exemption available for Individuals and HUF for Long Term Capital gains of the IT Act.

As per the provisions of Section 54F of the IT Act, any long-term capital gains on transfer of a long term
capital asset(not being a residential house) arising to a Debenture Holder who is an individual or Hindu
Undivided Family, is exempt from tax if the entire net sales consideration is utilized, within a period of
one year before, or two years after the date of transfer, in purchase of a residential house in India, or for
construction of residential house in India within three years from the date of transfer subject to
conditions. If part of such net sales consideration is invested within the prescribed period in a residential
house, then such gains would be chargeable to tax on a proportionate basis. This exemption is available,
subject to the conditions stated therein.

Under section 54EE of the IT Act, long term capital gains arising to the Debenture Holder(s) on transfer
of debentures in the company shall not be chargeable to tax to the extent such capital gains are invested
in long term specified asset (a unit or units issued before 01.04.2019) as notified by Central Government
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within six months after the date of transfer. If only part of the capital gain is so invested, the exemption
shall be proportionately reduced. However, if the said notified bonds are transferred or converted into
money within a period of three years from their date of acquisition, the amount of capital gains exempted
earlier would become chargeable to tax as long-term capital gains in the year in which the bonds are
transferred or converted into money. However, the exemption is subject to a limit of investment of 50
lakhs during any financial year in the notified bonds. Further, in case where loan or advance on the
security of such notified units is availed, such notified units shall be deemed to have been transferred on
the date on which such loan or advance is taken.

Where the benefit of Section 54EE of the IT Act has been availed of on investments in the notified bonds,
a deduction from the income with reference to such cost shall not be allowed under section 80C of the
Act.

In respect of Business Income

In case the Debentures are held as stock in trade by the debenture holder, the income/loss from transfer
of debentures would be taxed as Income from Business. Such income is to be computed in accordance
with the Income Computation and Disclosure Standard VIII, which is notified by the Ministry of
Finance, Government of India under Section 145(2) of the IT Act. Where debentures are held as stock
in trade and unpaid interest has accrued before acquisition of Debentures and is included in the price
paid for the Debentures, subsequent receipt of interest is to be allocated between pre-acquisition and
post-acquisition periods, the pre-acquisition portion of the interest is reduced from the actual cost and is
to be treated as interest. In the case of Debentures held by Scheduled Bank and Public Financial
Institutions, income is to be recognized in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of
India in this regard.

Debentures received as gift without consideration or inadequate consideration.

As per section 56(2)(x) of the IT Act, except in cases which are specifically exempted under this clause
(such as gift received from relative as defined under the section), where the debentures are received
without consideration where the aggregate market value of all gifts received exceeds ¥50,000/- the
aggregate market value of the debentures shall be taxable as income in the hands of the recipient.
Similarly, if debentures are received for inadequate consideration, the shortfall in the consideration will
be treated as income of the recipient subject to the provisions contained in section 56(2)(x) of the IT Act.
There is no gift tax for the Donor of the Debentures.

II. TO THE NON-RESIDENT DEBENTURE HOLDER.

a)

b)

c)

A Non — Resident Indian has an option to be governed by Chapter XII — A of the IT Act, subject
to the provisions contained therein which are given in brief as under:

As per Section 115E of the IT Act, interest income from debentures acquired or purchased with or
subscribed to in convertible foreign exchange will be taxable at 20%, whereas long term capital gains
on transfer of such Debentures will be taxable at 12.5% of such capital gains without indexation of
cost of acquisition. Short-term capital gains will be taxable at the normal rates of tax in accordance
with and subject to the provisions contained therein.

As per Section 115G of the IT Act, it shall not be necessary for a non-resident Indian to file a return of
income under Section 139(1) of the IT Act, if his total income consists only of investment income as
defined under Section 115C and/or long term capital gains earned on transfer of such investment
acquired out of convertible foreign exchange, and the tax has been deducted at source from such
income under the provisions of Chapter XV1I- B of the IT Act in accordance with and subject to the
provisions contained therein.

As per Section 115D (1) of the IT Act no deduction in respect of any expenditure or allowance shall

be allowed under any provisions of the IT Act in the computation of income of a non-resident Indian
under Chapter XII — A of the IT Act.

56



d)

€)

9)

h)

)

k)

In accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 115-1 of the IT Act, a Non-Resident Indian
may opt not to be governed by the provisions of Chapter XII — A of the IT Act. In such a case, long
term capital gains on transfer of listed debentures would be subject to tax at the rate of 12.5% computed
without indexation of cost of acquisition.

Interest income and Short-term capital gains on the transfer of listed debentures, where debentures are
held for a period of not more than 12 months preceding the date of transfer, would be taxed at the
normal rates of tax in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the IT Act.

Where debentures are held as stock in trade, the income on transfer of debentures would be taxed as
business income or loss in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the IT Act.

Under Section 195 of the IT Act, the applicable rate of tax deduction at source is 20% on investment
income and 12.5% on any long-term capital gains as per Section 115E, and 30% for Short Term Capital
Gains if the payee debenture Holder is a Non-Resident Indian.

The income tax deducted shall be increased by applicable surcharge and health and education cess. As
per Section 74 of the IT Act, short-term capital loss on transfer of debentures suffered during the year
is allowed to be set-off against short-term as well as long-term capital gains of the said year. Balance
loss, if any could be carried forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent years’ short-
term as well as long-term capital gains. Long-term capital loss on debentures suffered during the year
is allowed to be set-off only against long-term capital gains. Balance loss, if any, could be carried
forward for eight years for claiming set-off against subsequent year’s long-term capital gains.

As per Section 90(2) of the IT Act read with the Circular No. 728 dated October 30, 1995 issued by
the Central Board of Direct Taxes, in the case of a remittance to a country with which a Double Tax
Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) is in force, the tax should be deducted at the rate provided in the
Finance Act of the relevant year or at the rate provided in the DTAA, whichever is more beneficial to
the assessee. However, submission of tax residency certificate (TRC), is a mandatory condition for
availing benefits under any DTAA. If the tax residency certificate does not contain the prescribed
particulars as per CBDT Notification 57/2013 dated August 1, 2013, a self-declaration in Form 10F
would need to be provided by the assessee along with TRC.

Alternatively, to avail non deduction or lower deduction of tax at source, as the case may be, the
Debenture Holder should furnish a certificate under Section 195(2) and 195(3) of the IT Act, from the
Assessing Officer before the prescribed date of closure of books for payment of debenture interest.

In case the Debentures are held as stock in trade by the debenture holder, the income/loss from transfer
of debentures would be taxed as Income from Business. Such income is to be computed in accordance
with the Income Computation and Disclosure Standard VIII which is notified by the Ministry of
Finance, Government of India under Section 145(2) of the IT Act. Where debentures are held as stock
in trade and unpaid interest has accrued before acquisition of Debentures and is included in the price
paid for the Debentures, subsequent receipt of interest is to be allocated between pre-acquisition and
post-acquisition periods, the pre-acquisition portion of the interest is reduced from the actual cost and
is to be treated as interest. In the case of Debentures held by Scheduled Bank, income is to be
recognized in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

As per section 56(2)(x) of the IT Act, except in cases which are specifically exempted under this clause
(such as gift received from relative as defined under the section), where the debentures are received
without consideration where the aggregate market value of all gifts received exceeds Rs. 50,000/- the
aggregate market value of the debentures shall be taxable as income in the hands of the recipient.
Similarly, if debentures are received for inadequate consideration, the shortfall in the consideration
will be treated as income of the recipient subject to the provisions contained in section 56(2)(x) of the
IT Act. There is no gift tax for the Donor of the Debentures.

As per the provisions of Section 54F of the IT Act, any long-term capital gains on transfer of a long
term capital asset(not being a residential house) arising to a Debenture Holder who is an individual or
Hindu Undivided Family, is exempt from tax if the entire net sales consideration is utilized, within a
period of one year before, or two years after the date of transfer, in purchase of a new residential house
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in India, or for construction of residential house in India within three years from the date of transfer
subject to conditions. If part of such net sales consideration is invested within the prescribed period in
aresidential house, then such gains would be chargeable to tax on a proportionate basis. This exemption
is available, subject to the conditions stated therein

I1l.  TO THE FOREIGN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS/ FOREIGN PORTFOLIO INVESTORS (Flls/
FPIs)

1.

As per Section 2(14)(b) of the IT Act, any securities held by FlIs which has invested in such securities
in accordance with the regulations made under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992,
shall be treated as capital assets. Accordingly, any gains arising from transfer of such securities shall be
chargeable to tax in the hands of Flls as capital gains.

In accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 115AD of the IT Act, long term capital gains
on transfer of debentures by Flls are taxable at 10% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) and short-term
capital gains are taxable at 30% (plus applicable surcharge and cess). The benefit of cost indexation will
not be available. Further, benefit of provisions of the first proviso of Section 48 of the IT Act will not

apply.

Interest on NCD may be eligible for concessional tax rate of 5% (plus applicable surcharge and health
and education cess) for interest referred under Section 194LD.

Further, in case where section 194LD is not applicable, the interest income earned by FlIs/FPIs should
be chargeable to tax at the rate of 20% under section 115AD of the IT Act. Tax shall be deducted u/s.
196D of the IT Act on such income 141 at 20%. Where DTAA is applicable to the payee, the rate of tax
deduction shall be lower of rate as per DTAA or 20%, subject to the conditions prescribed therein.

Section 194LD in the IT Act provides for lower rate of withholding tax at the rate of 5% on payment by
way of interest paid by an Indian Company to FlIs and Qualified Foreign Investor in respect of rupee
denominated bond of an Indian Company between June 1, 2013 and July 1, 2023 provided such rate
does not exceed the rate as may be notified by the Government.

The income tax deducted shall be increased by applicable surcharge and health and education cess.

In accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 196D(2) of the IT Act, no deduction of tax
at source is applicable in respect of capital gains arising on the transfer of debentures by Flls referred to
in section 115AD.

The CBDT has issued a Notification No. 9 dated 22 January 2014 which provides that Foreign Portfolio
Investors (FPI) registered under SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014 shall be treated
as FII for the purpose of Section 115AD of the IT Act.

IV. TO MUTUAL FUNDS

All mutual funds registered under Securities and Exchange Board of India or set up by public sector
banks or public financial institutions or authorized by the Reserve Bank of India are exempt from tax on
all their income, including income from investment in Debentures under the provisions of Section 10
(23D) of the IT Act in accordance with the provisions contained therein. Further, as per the provisions
of section 196 of the IT Act, no deduction of tax shall be made by any person from any sums payable to
mutual funds specified under Section 10(23D) of the IT Act, where such sum is payable to it by way of
interest or dividend in respect of any securities or shares owned by it or in which it has full beneficial
interest, or any other income accruing or arising to it.
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V. TO SPECIFIED FUNDS (“SPECIFIED FUND” AS DEFINED UNDER SECTION 10(4D) OF THE
ITACT)

a)

b)

c)

The income of Specified Funds is taxable for the year beginning April 1, 2020, to the extent attributable
to units held by non-resident (not being a permanent establishment of a non-resident in India), and in
accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 115AD of the IT Act, as under:

The interest income earned are chargeable to tax at the rate of 10%;

long term capital gains on transfer of debentures to the specified extent are taxable at 10% (benefit of
provisions of the first proviso of section 48 of the IT Act will not apply); and

Short-term capital gains are taxable at 30%.
Further, where any income in respect of NCD is payable to Specified Funds, tax shall be deducted at
the rate of 10% on the income other than exempt under section 10(4D) with effect from November 1,

2020 as per Section 196D of the IT Act.

The income tax deducted shall be increased by applicable surcharge and health and education cess.

VI. REQUIREMENTS TO FURNISH PAN/FILING OF RETURNS UNDER THE IT ACT

1.

a)

b)

<)

d)

SEC. 139A (5A):

Section 139A (5A) requires every person from whom income tax has been deducted at source under
chapter XVII — B of the IT Act to furnish his PAN to the person responsible for deduction of tax at
source.

SEC. 206AA:

Section 206 AA of the IT Act requires every person entitled to receive any sum, on which tax is deductible
under Chapter XVIIB (‘deductee’) to furnish his PAN to the deductor, failing which tax shall be deducted
at the higher of the following rates:

(i) at the rate specified in the relevant provision of the IT Act; or
(ii) at the rate or rates in force; or
(iii) at the rate of twenty per cent.

A declaration under Section 197A (1) or 197A (1A) or 197A (1C) shall not be valid unless the person
furnishes his PAN in such declaration and the deductor is required to deduct tax as per Para (a) above
in such a case.

Where a wrong PAN is provided, it will be regarded as non-furnishing of PAN and Para (a) above will
apply.

As per Rule 37BC, the higher rate under section 206 AA shall not apply to a non resident, not being a
company, or to a foreign company, in respect of payment of interest, if the non-resident deductee
furnishes the prescribed details inter alia TRC and Tax ldentification Number (TIN).

SEC. 206AB
Further, the Finance Act, 2021 inserted new section for punitive withholding tax rate for non-filers of
return of income with effect from July 01, 2021 as per which payments made to the specified persons

will be subject to TDS at higher of twice the applicable rate or 5% in respect of all TDS/TCS provisions
except for specific exclusions.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete
analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of
debenture/bonds.

The above statement covers only certain relevant benefits under the IT Act and does not cover benefits
under any other law.

The above statement of possible tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the
Assessment Year 2025-2026 (Financial year 2024-25) and taking into account the amendments made by
the Finance Act, 2024.

This statement is intended only to provide general information to the Debenture Holders and is neither
designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of
tax consequences, each debenture Holder is advised to consult his/her/its own tax advisor with respect
to specific consequences of his/her/its holding in the debentures of the Company.

Several of the above tax benefits are dependent on the debenture holders fulfilling the conditions
prescribed under the relevant tax laws and subject to Chapter X and Chapter XA of the IT Act.

The stated benefits will be available only to the sole/ first named holder in case the debenture is held by
joint holders.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject
to any benefits available under the relevant tax treaty, if any, between India and the country in which the
non-resident has fiscal domicile.

In respect of non-residents, taxes paid in India could be claimed as a credit in accordance with the
provisions of the relevant tax treaty and applicable domestic tax law.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein.
Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes
from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We
shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of
fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith
or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this statement.

60



SECTION IV - ABOUT OUR COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Unless otherwise indicated, all of the information and statics disclosed in this section are extracted from an
industry report titled “Gold Loan Industry in India” dated March 07, 2025 prepared and issued by Fitch Solutions
India Advisory Private Limited ("Fitch Report”). For details of risks in relation to Fitch Report and other
publications, see “Risk Factors” contained in this Prospectus on page 16.

Unless otherwise indicated, all industry and other related information derived from Fitch Report. The information
presented in this section, including forecasts and projections, have not been prepared or independently verified
by us, our Directors, our Promoters, the Lead Manager or any of our or their respective advisors.

The data may have been re-classified by us for the purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications
generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be
reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their
reliability cannot be assured. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of
specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.

Industry sources and publications may also base their information on estimates, projections, forecasts and
assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, investors must rely on their independent examination
of, and should not place undue reliance on, or base their investment decision solely on this information. The
recipient should not construe any of the contents in the Fitch Report as advice relating to business, financial,
legal, taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own business, financial, legal, taxation, and
other advisors concerning the transaction.

Overview of Global Economy

The global economy is holding steady, although the degree of grip varies widely across countries. As per the IMF
World Economic Outlook (WEO) January 2025, Global growth is projected at 3.3% both in 2025 and 2026, below
the historical (2000-2019) average of 3.7%. Growth in China, at 4.7% in year-over-year terms was below
expectations. Faster than expected net export growth only partly offset a faster than expected slowdown in
consumption amid delayed stabilization in the property market and persistently low consumer confidence. Growth
in India also slowed more than expected, led by a sharper than expected deceleration in industrial activity. Growth
continued to be subdued in the euro area (with Germany’s performance lagging that of other euro area countries),
largely reflecting continued weakness in manufacturing and goods exports even as consumption picked up in line
with the recovery in real incomes. In Japan, output contracted mildly owing to temporary supply disruptions. By
contrast, momentum in the United States remained robust, with the economy expanding at a rate of 2.7% t in year-
over-year terms in the third quarter, powered by strong consumption.

Few Global macro trends as per the IMF World Economic Outlook (WEO) January 2025 report are as follows:

Trends in Global inflation: Global disinflation continues, but there are signs that progress is stalling in some
countries and that elevated inflation is persistent in a few cases. The global median of sequential core inflation
has been just slightly above 2% for the past few months. Nominal wage growth is showing signs of moderation,
alongside indications of continuing normalization in labor markets. Although core goods price inflation has fallen
back to or below trend, services price inflation is still running above pre COVID-19 averages in many economies,
most notably the United States and the euro area. Pockets of elevated inflation, reflecting a range of idiosyncratic
factors, also persist in some emerging market and developing economies in Europe and Latin America. Where
inflation is proving more sticky, central banks are moving more cautiously in the easing cycle while keeping a
close eye on activity and labor market indicators as well as exchange rate movements. A few central banks are
raising rates, marking a point of divergence in monetary policy.
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Trends in Global financial condition: Global financial conditions remain largely accommodative, again with
some differentiation across jurisdictions. Equities in advanced economies have rallied on expectations of more
business-friendly policies in the United States. In emerging market and developing economies, equity valuations
have been more subdued, and a broad-based strengthening of the US dollar, driven primarily by expectations of
new tariffs and higher interest rates in the United States, has kept financial conditions tighter.

Trends in Economic policy: Economic policy uncertainty has increased sharply, especially on the trade and fiscal
fronts, with some differentiation across countries. Expectations of policy shifts under newly elected governments
in 2024 have shaped financial market pricing in recent months. Bouts of political instability in some Asian and
European countries have rattled markets and injected additional uncertainty regarding stalled progress on fiscal
and structural policies. Geopolitical tensions, including those in the Middle East, and global trade frictions remain
elevated.

World Economic Outlook
As per the IMF World Economic Outlook (WEQ), January 2025; Global growth is projected at 3.3% both in 2025
and 2026, below the historical (2000-2019) average of 3.7%.

Economic Outlook for Advanced Economies

Among advanced economies, growth forecast revisions go in different directions. In the United States, underlying
demand remains robust, reflecting strong wealth effects, a less restrictive monetary policy stance, and supportive
financial conditions. Growth is projected to be at 2.7% in 2025. This reflects carryover from 2024 as well as robust
labor markets and accelerating investment, among other signs of strength. Growth is expected to taper to potential
in 2026.

Economic Outlook for Euro Area

In the euro area, growth is expected to pick up but at a more gradual pace than anticipated in October 2024, with
geopolitical tensions continuing to weigh on sentiment. Weaker-than-expected momentum at the end of 2024,
especially in manufacturing, and heightened political and policy uncertainty explain a downward revision to 1.0%
in 2025. In 2026, growth is set to rise to 1.4%, helped by stronger domestic demand, as financial conditions loosen,
confidence improves, and uncertainty recedes somewhat. In other advanced economies, two offsetting forces keep
growth forecasts relatively stable. On the one hand, recovering real incomes are expected to support the cyclical
recovery in consumption. On the other hand, trade headwinds - including the sharp uptick in trade policy
uncertainty - are expected to keep investment subdued.

Economic Outlook for Emerging market and Developing economies

In emerging market and developing economies, growth performance in 2025 and 2026 is expected to

broadly match that in 2024. Growth in 2025 for China would be at 4.6%. This revision reflects carryover from
2024 and the fiscal package announced in November 2024 largely offsetting the negative effect on investment
from heightened trade policy uncertainty and property market drag. In 2026, growth is projected mostly to remain
stable at 4.5%, as the effects of trade policy uncertainty dissipate, and the retirement age increase slows down the
decline in the labor supply. In India, growth is projected to be solid at 6.5% in 2025 and 2026, as projected in
October 2024 and in line with potential.

62



Overview of the World Economic Outlook Projections (% change)

Name of the Country/ Economy Actuals || Estimate Projections
2023 2024 2025 2026
World Output 3.3 3.2 3.3 33
Advanced Economies 1.7 1.7 1.9 1.9
United States 2.9 2.8 2.7 2.7
Euro Area 0.4 0.8 1.0 1.4
Japan 1.5 -0.2 1.1 0.8
United Kingdom 0.3 0.9 1.6 1.5
Canada 1.5 1.3 2.0 2.0
Other Advanced Economies 1.9 2.0 2.1 2.3
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 4.4 4.2 4.2 4.3
Emerging and Developing Asia 5.7 5.2 5.1 5.1
China 5.2 4.8 4.6 4.5
India 8.2 6.5 6.5 6.5
Emerging and Developing Europe 3.3 3.2 2.2 2.4
Russia 3.6 3.8 1.4 1.2
Latin America and the Caribbean 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.7
Brazil 3.2 3.7 2.2 2.2
Mexico 3.3 1.8 1.4 2.0
Middle East and Central Asia 2.0 2.4 3.6 3.9
Saudi Arabia -0.8 1.4 3.3 4.1
Sub-Saharan Africa 3.6 3.8 4.2 4.2
Nigeria 2.9 31 3.2 3.0
South Africa 0.7 0.8 1.5 1.6
World Trade Volume (goods and services) 0.7 3.4 3.2 33
Advanced Economies 0.0 2.2 2.1 2.5
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 2.0 5.4 5.0 4.6
Commodity Prices
Qil -16.4 -1.9 -11.7 -2.6
Non-fuel -5.7 3.4 2.5 -0.1
World Consumer Prices 6.7 5.7 4.2 3.5
Advanced Economies 4.6 2.6 2.1 2.0
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 8.1 7.8 5.6 4.5

Source - IMF World Economic Outlook, January 2025

Economic Outlook for Middle East and Central Asia

In the Middle East and Central Asia, growth is projected to pick up. This mainly reflects a 1.3% point downward
revision to 2025 growth in Saudi Arabia, mostly driven by the extension of OPEC+ production cuts. In Latin
America and the Caribbean, overall growth is projected to accelerate slightly in 2025 to 2.5%, despite an expected
slowdown in the largest economies of the region. Growth in sub-Saharan Africa is expected to pick up in 2025,
while it is forecast to slow down in emerging and developing Europe.

Outlook on World trade volume and Inflation

World trade volume estimates are revised downward slightly for 2025 and 2026. The revision owes to the sharp
increase in trade policy uncertainty, which is likely to hurt investment disproportionately among trade-intensive
firms. That said, in the baseline, the impact of heightened uncertainty is expected to be transitory. Furthermore,
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the front-loading of some trade flows in view of elevated trade policy uncertainty, and in anticipation of tighter
trade restrictions, provides some offset in the near term. Progress on disinflation is expected to continue. The
gradual cooling of labor markets is expected to keep demand pressures at bay. Combined with the expected decline
in energy prices, headline inflation is projected to continue its descent toward central bank targets. That said,
inflation is projected to be close to, but above, the 2% target in 2025 in the United States, whereas inflationary
dynamics are expected to be more subdued in the euro area. Low inflation is projected to persist in China.
Consequently, the gap between anticipated policy rates in the United States and other countries becomes wider.

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY

India had surpassed the UK to become the world's fifth-largest economy and is now behind only the US, China,
Japan and Germany. India's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) has reached USD3.9trn (trillion) in 2024 from around
USD2.0trn in 2014.

In its February 2025 bulletin, the Reserve Bank of India reported that India’s economic activity is exhibiting
sustained momentum, with high-frequency indicators suggesting a sequential increase in growth during the second
half of FY25. Key metrics such as vehicle sales, air traffic, steel consumption, and GST e-way bills indicate that
the economy is on course to continue its upward path. The bulletin highlights that rural demand is projected to
increase, bolstered by strong agricultural performance. Urban demand is also set for a rebound, aided by declining
inflation and a rise in disposable incomes following notable income tax relief in the Union Budget 2025-26. While
the global economy is expanding at a moderate rate with varied growth prospects among countries, emerging
market economies, including India, are encountering external vulnerabilities due to a strong US dollar. The dollar's
strength, fueled by the robust US economy and changing trade policies, is leading to capital outflows from EMEs
and raising risk premiums. Nonetheless, domestic demand is expected to gain from the recent repo rate cut by the

RBI’s Monetary Policy Committee, further enhancing economic activity and growth.

Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

According to the Second Advance Estimates of Annual Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for FY25 released by the
National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI) on 28™"
February 2025, Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) prices in FY25 is estimated to attain a level of
INR188.0trn, as against the Final Revised Estimate of GDP for FY24 of INR176.5trn.

Components of GDP

SI. No.|Domestic Product Amount in INR Trillion % change over previous year
2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25
1 GVA at Basic Prices 148.8 161.5 171.8 8.6% 6.4%
2 |Net Taxes on Products 12.9 15.0 16.2 16.5% 7.7%
3 |Gross Domestic Product 161.6 176.5 188.0 9.2% 6.5%
4 |Net Domestic Product 140.8 154.2 164.2 9.6% 6.5%
Expenditure Components
5 |Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE) 93.8 99.1 106.6 5.6% 7.6%
6 |Government Final Consumption Expenditure (GFCE) 15.4 16.7 17.3 8.1% 3.8%
7 |Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) 54.4 59.2 62.8 8.8% 6.1%
8 |Changes in Stocks (CIS) 2.0 3.1 3.2 53.4% 4.3%
9 |Valuables 2.4 2.7 2.7 14.4% 1.0%
10 |Exports 37.4 38.3 41.0 2.2% 7.1%
11 |Imports 38.6 43,9 43.4 13.8% -1.1%
12 |Discrepancies -5.2 1.5 -2.2 0.8% -1.2%
13 |GDP 161.6 176.5 188.0 9.2% 6.5%

Source: National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPi)
Note: 2022-23 is Final Estimates, 2023-24 is First Revised Estimates and 2024-25 is Second Advance Estimates of National Income
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The growth rate of Real GDP during FY25 is estimated at 6.5% as compared to growth rate of 9.2% in FY24. The
Indian economy likely picked up pace in the December 2024 quarter, fueled by strong agricultural output, a revival
in rural demand and higher capital expenditure. However, external challenges such as a strong US dollar and
global economic uncertainties, pose potential risks. Overall, the outlook remains optimistic, with policy measures
and domestic factors expected to drive growth in the near term.

Gross Value Added (GVA)

According to the Second Advance Estimates of Annual Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for FY 25 released by the
National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI) on 28™"
February 2025,

aggregate supply - India's GVA Growth Rate (%)
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year ago. GVA
growth was driven by a construction sector which grew by 8.6% in FY25. Construction sector grew by a surge in
investment, improved investor confidence and strong domestic demand conditions. Similarly, a robust increase in
cement and steel production portends well for a sustained rise in construction activity. Aided by government
interventions and increased demand for residential properties in tier-2 and tier-3 cities, the construction sector is
capturing new markets. The strong thrust to infrastructure investment through initiatives like GatiShakti and
National Infrastructure pipeline have also raised the demand for construction.
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Components of GVA

Sr. Industry Amount in INR Trillion % change over previous year
No. 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25
1 |Agriculture, Livestock, Forestry and Fishing 231 23.7 24.8 2.7% 4.6%
2 |Mining & Quarrying 32 33 34 3.2% 2.8%
3 |Manufacturing 25.2 28.3 29.5 12.3% 4.3%
4 |Electricity, Gas, Water Supply and other utilities 35 3.8 41 8.6% 6.0%
5 |Construction 13.0 14.4 15.6 10.4% 8.6%
6 |Trade, Hotels, Transport, Communication services 279 299 31.9 7.5% 6.4%
7 |Financial, Real Estate & Professional Services 346 38.1 40.9 10.3% 7.2%
8 |Public Administration, Defence &Other services 18.4 20.0 21.7 8.8% 8.8%

GVA at Basic Prices 148.8 161.5 171.8 8.6% 6.4%

Source: National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPi)
Note: 2022-23 is Final Estimates, 2023-24 is First Revised Estimates and 2024-25 is Second Advance Estimates of National Income

India's large domestic market, driven by strong consumption patterns, and its strategic positioning in the global
supply chain diversification, further bolster its manufacturing prospects. The sector wise data of the (GVA) at
basic prices by economic activity (at 2011-12 Prices) reveals the subdued performance of the agricultural sector.
The agriculture and allied sectors are projected to grow by 4.6% in FY25, a significant recovery from the 2.7%
growth recorded last year. Meanwhile, the construction sector and the financial, real estate, and professional
services sectors are expected to post robust growth rates of 8.6% and 7.2%, respectively in FY25.

Industrial Growth trends

The Index of Industrial Production (1IP) is a composite indicator that measures the short-term changes in the
volume of production of a basket of industrial products during a given period with respect to that in a chosen base
period. 1P expanded by 5.8% during FY24 as compared with 5.2% in the previous year. Within the manufacturing
sector, 13 of 23 industry groups recorded y-0-y expansion, led by transport equipment, motor vehicles and basic
metals. In terms of the use-based classification, all categories recorded y-0-y expansion.

Yearly IIP Growth Rate (%)
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As per the data released by the Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India's industrial
output measured by IIP grew by 3.2% in December 2024, from 5.2% in November 2024. The slowdown was
largely due to weaker manufacturing activity, which grew 3.0% in December 2024 compared to 5.5% in
November 2024. Among key sectors, mining output rose 2.6% against 1.9% in November 2024, while electricity
generation expanded by 6.2% in December 2024, up from 4.4% in the prior month. A sector-wise breakdown
showed that capital goods, a key indicator of investment demand, registered a robust 10.3% growth in December
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2024 compared to 8.8% in November 2024. Infrastructure and construction goods, however, slowed to 6.3%
growth in December 2024 from 8.1% in November 2024.

Per Capita GDP, Income and Final Consumption

According to the Second Advance Estimates of Annual Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for FY25 released by the
National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI) on 28™"
February 2025, India’s per capita gross domestic product (GDP) at Constant (2011-12) Prices grew by 8.2% to
INR126,528 in FY24, while it increased by 5.5% to INR133,488 in FY25.

Per Capita Gross National Income
(GNI) at Constant (2011-12) Prices
increased by 8.2% in FY24, whereas
it increased by 5.4% to INR131,544
in FY25. The per capita private final
consumption expenditure (PFCE) at
Constant  (2011-12) Prices, that
represents consumer spending, grew
by 4.6% in FY24; while it increased
by 6.6% to INR75,723 in FY25.
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Second Advance Estimates of National Income for FY2025 (Amount in INR)

. 2024-25 Change in 2023-24 Change in 2024-25
Particulars
(SAE) (%) (5%)
Per Capita GDP (INR) 116,892 126,528 133,488 8.2% 5.5%
Per Capita GNI (INR) 115,261 124,764 131,544 8.2% 5.4%
Per Capital NNI (INR) 100,163 108,786 114,705 8.6% 5.4%
Per Capita PFCE (INR) 67,865 71,016 75,723 4.6% 6.6%

Source: NSO, MOSPI

Note: 2022-23 is Final Estimates, 2023-24 is First Revised Estimates and 2024-25 is Second Advance Estimates of National Income

Indian Economic Outlook FY26

An overview of the India’s Macro Economic projections is given in the table below:

India - Economic Outlook FY26 (% change)
Gross value added at FY12 prices

- Agriculture

- Industry

- Services

Real GDP

- Private final consumption expenditure (PFCE)
- Government final consumption expenditure (GFCE)
- Gross fixed capital formation (GFCF)

Nominal GDP

Average wholesale inflation

Average retail inflation

Year-end interest rate (10-yr G-sec)

Average exchange rate (INR/USD)

Fiscal deficit (central government, % of GDP)
Current account deficit (% of GDP)

FY21
-4.1
4.0
-0.4
-8.4
-5.8
-5.3
-0.8
-7.1
-1.2
13
6.2
6.3
74.2
9.2
-0.9

FY22

9.4
4.6
12.2
9.2
9.7
11.7
6.6
17.5
18.9
13.0
5.5
6.8
74.5
6.7
1.2

FY23 FY24 FY25 | FY26f
6.7 7.2 6.4 6.6
4.7 14 3.8 34
2.1 9.5 6.2 6.6

10.0 7.6 7.2 7.4
7.0 8.2 6.4 6.6
6.8 4.0 7.3 6.9
9.0 2.5 4.1 4.3
6.6 9.0 6.4 7.2

14.2 9.6 9.7 10.2
9.4 -0.7 2.7 2.8
6.7 5.4 4.9 4.3
7.3 7.1 ~6.6 ~6.5

80.4 82.8 84.2 86.9
6.5 5.6 4.8 4.5
2.0 0.6 1.0 1.1
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Source: Union Budget, NSO, RBI, FSIAPL
Note: f - forecast, FY25 GVA and GDP numbers are as per NSO's First Advance Estimates

The lower GDP growth for FY25 at 6.4% has been the result of a cyclical slowdown in the Indian economy in the
past three quarters. Other factors affecting the growth were the strong base effect, the general elections, the weak
private sector capex and the monetary and fiscal tightening. FSIAPL estimates GDP growth to come in at 6.6%
in FY26.

On the demand side, while the private final consumption expenditure (PFCE), government final consumption
expenditure (GFCE), and exports have been pegged by the NSO to grow at 7.3%, 4.1% and 5.9%, respectively,
in FY25, the gross fixed capital formation (GFCF) is expected to grow at 6.4%. Except GFCF, growth of all
demand-side drivers has improved in FY25 over FY24, which is a positive feature of the latest GDP numbers.
Despite the improvement in majority of demand-side drivers, the overall economic growth in FY25 will be lower
than FY24, mainly due to discrepancies of negative INR 2.14trn compared to INR 1.29trn in FY24. Another
reason for the slower GDP growth in FY25 is the four-year-low growth in net production taxes (production taxes
net of subsidies). The net production taxes are estimated to grow 5.9% y-o0-y in FY25.

On the supply side, agriculture is pegged to grow at 3.8% in FY25 due to the favourable monsoons. Industrial
sector growth is likely to be down to 6.2% y-0-y in FY25 from 9.5% in FY24, owing to subdued growth in all
sub-segments. The manufacturing sector growth (the largest sector within industry) is expected to slow down to
5.3% y-0-y in FY25 from 9.9% y-0-y in FY24. The other sectors namely mining, electricity & utility services and
construction are expected to grow 2.9% y-o0-y, 6.8% y-0-y and 8.6% y-o0-y, respectively, during FY25, slower
than FY24.

Services, the largest component of GVA, sustained its growth pace and grew 7.2% y-o-y in FY25. The leading
growth driver was the ‘public administration & other services’ segment at 9.1% in FY25, as new-age services are
beginning to gain some ground. Financial, real estate & professional services grew 7.3% y-o-y in FY25 and trade,
hotels, transport and communication grew at 5.8%.

OVERVIEW OF THE NBFC MARKET IN INDIA

Introduction

Non-banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs) form an integral part of the Indian financial system by complementing
the banking sector in reaching out credit to the unbanked segments of society, especially to the micro, small and
medium enterprises which form the cradle of entrepreneurship and innovation.
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Structure of NBFIs under the Reserve Bank Regulation
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On the basis of liabilities, NBFCs are classified into two categories (i) NBFCs-Deposit taking (NBFCs-D) and (ii)
NBFCs-non-deposit taking (NBFCs-ND). NBFCs-D are subject to requirements of capital adequacy, liquid assets
maintenance, exposure norms (including restrictions on exposure to investments in land, building, and unquoted
shares), Asset-liability management and reporting requirements. The NBFCs, depending upon its nature of
business, are broadly categorized as loan companies, investment companies, infrastructure finance companies
(IFCs), asset finance companies (AFCs), core investment companies (CIC), infrastructure debt funds (IDFC),
micro finance institutions (MFIs). In 2018-19, three categories of NBFCs namely, AFCs, loan companies (LCs)
and investment companies (1Cs) were merged into a new category called investment and credit companies (ICCs)
for harmonisation and operational flexibility. The regulatory and supervisory framework for NBFCs has been
continuously strengthened in order to ensure their strong and healthy functioning, limit excessive risk-taking
practices, and protect the interests of the deposit holders.

NBFCs are primarily governed by the RBI Act and the RBI Master Directions. NBFCs are permitted to operate
in similar sphere of activities as banks; there are a few important and key differences. The most important
distinctions are:

e An NBFC cannot accept deposits repayable on demand — in other words, NBFCs can only accept fixed term
deposits. Thus, NBFCs are not permitted to issue negotiable instruments, such as cheques which are payable
on demand; and

e NBFCs are not allowed to deal in foreign exchange, even if they specifically apply to the RBI for approval in
this regard.

While an NBFC may be registered as a deposit accepting NBFC (NBFC-D) or as a non-deposit accepting NBFC

(NBFC-ND), NBFCs registered with RBI are further classified as:
e Investment and Credit Company: The main business of these companies is lending and investment.
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Systemically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI): A systematically important NBFC
(assets INR1.0bn and above) which has deployed at least 90% of its assets in the form of investment in shares
or debt instruments or loans in group companies is called CIC-ND-SI. Out of the 90%, 60% should be invested
in equity shares or those instruments which can be compulsorily converted into equity shares. Such companies
do accept public funds.

Infrastructure Finance Companies (IFC): A company which has net owned funds of at least INR3.0bn and
has deployed 75% of its total assets in Infrastructure loans is called IFC provided it has credit rating of A or
above and has a CRAR of 15%.

Infrastructure Debt Fund — NBFCs (IDF-NBFC): An IDF-NBFC is a non-deposit taking NBFC that has
Net Owned Fund of INR3.0bn or more and which invests only in Public Private Partnerships and post
commencement operations date (COD) infrastructure projects which have completed at least one year of
satisfactory commercial operation and becomes a party to a Tripartite Agreement.

NBFC - Micro Finance Institutions: Microfinance companies are non-deposit taking firms that are entitled
to provide loans up to INR50K to individuals coming under low-income group living in rural or semi-urban
areas.

NBFC - Factors: An NBFC-Factoring Company should have a minimum NOF of INR50.0mn and its
financial assets in the factoring business should constitute at least 75% of its total assets and its income
derived from factoring business should not be less than 75% of its gross income.

Mortgage Guarantee Companies: Mortgage Guarantee Company acts as an insurance against defaults on
loans by the homebuyer, thereby reducing the loan exposure and credit risks for the lender. Mortgage
Guarantee Company is a financial institution for which at least 90% of the business turnover is mortgage
guarantees or at least 90% of the gross income is from the mortgage guarantee business and whose net-owned
funds is at least INR1000mn.

NBFC-Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC): For permitting promoter/ promoter groups
of NBFCs to set up a new bank.

NBFC-Account Aggregator (NBFC-AA): NBFC-AA engages in collecting and providing information
about a customer’s financial assets in a consolidated, organised and retrievable manner to the customer or
others as specified by the customer.

NBFC-Peer to Peer Lending Platform (NBFC-P2P): PBFC — P2P provides an online platform to bring
lenders and borrowers together to help mobilise funds.

Housing Finance Companies (HFC): HFC is another form of a non-banking financial company NBFC
which primarily is engaged in the business of providing finance for housing.

Scale Based Classification of NBFCs

A four-layered scale-based approach to regulate NBFC in the country was introduced vide circular
DOR.CRE.REC. N0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated 22™ October 2021. RBI subsequently released Master Direction
— Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 on
October 19, 2023 which was recently updated on February 27, 2025 vide DOR.FIN.REC. N0.45/03.10.119/2023-
24. The direction states that NBFCs shall comprise of four layers based on their size, activity and perceived
riskiness as mentioned below:

NBFCs in the lowest layer shall be known as NBFCs-Base Layer (NBFCs-BL)

NBFCs in middle layer shall be known as NBFCs-Middle Layer (NBFCs-ML)

NBFCs in upper layer shall be known as NBFCs-Upper Layer (NBFCs-UL)

The Top Layer is ideally expected to be empty and will be known as NBFCs-Top Layer (NBFCs-TL)
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Base Layer - The Base Layer shall comprise of (a) non-deposit taking NBFCs below the asset size of INR1,000
crore and (b) NBFCs undertaking the following activities - (i) NBFC-Peer to Peer Lending Platform (NBFC-P2P),
(if) NBFC-Account Aggregator (NBFC-AA), (iii) Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) and (iv)
NBFC not availing public funds and not having any customer interface.

Middle Layer - The Middle Layer shall consist of (a) all deposit taking NBFCs (NBFCs-D), irrespective of asset
size, (b) non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of INR1,000 crore and above and (c) NBFCs undertaking the
following activities (i) Standalone Primary Dealer (SPD), (ii) Infrastructure Debt Fund-Non-Banking Financial
Company (IDF-NBFC), (iii) Core Investment Company (CIC), (iv) Housing Finance Company (HFC) and (v)
Non-Banking Financial Company-Infrastructure Finance Company (NBFC-IFC).

Upper Layer - The Upper Layer shall comprise of those NBFCs which are specifically identified by the Reserve
Bank as warranting enhanced regulatory requirement based on a set of parameters and scoring methodology. The
top ten eligible NBFCs in terms of their asset size shall always reside in the upper layer, irrespective of any other
factor. On January 16, 2025, RBI released the list of NBFCs in the upper layer under scale-based regulation for
NBFCs for the year FY25.

m Name of the NBFC Category of the NBFC

1 LIC Housing Finance Limited Deposit taking HFC

2  Bajaj Finance Limited Deposit taking NBFC-ICC

3 Shriram Finance Limited Deposit taking NBFC-ICC

4  Tata Sons Private Limited Core Investment Company

5 Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited  Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC

6 L&T Finance Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC
(Formerly known as L&T Finance Holdings Limited)

7 Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited Deposit taking NBFC-ICC

8 Aditya Birla Finance Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC

9 Tata Capital Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC

10 Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited Non-deposit taking HFC

11 PNB Housing Finance Limited Deposit taking HFC

12 HDB Financial Services Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC

13 Sammaan Capital Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC
(Formerly known as Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited)

14 Muthoot Finance Limited Non-deposit taking NBFC-ICC

15 Bajaj Housing Finance Limited Non-deposit taking HFC

Source: RBI

In terms of the framework, once an NBFC is classified as NBFC-Upper Layer, it shall be subject to enhanced
regulatory requirement, at least for a period of five years from its classification in the layer, even in case it does
not meet the parametric criteria in the subsequent year/s.

Top Layer - The Top Layer will ideally remain empty. This layer can get populated if the Reserve Bank is of the
opinion that there is a substantial increase in the potential systemic risk from specific NBFCs in the Upper Layer.
Such NBFCs shall move to the Top Layer from the Upper Layer.

Categorization of NBFCs carrying out specific activity

As the regulatory structure envisages scale based as well as activity-based regulation, the following prescriptions
shall apply in respect of the NBFCs.
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NBFC-P2P, NBFC-AA, NOFHC and NBFC not availing public funds and not having any customer interface
will always remain in the Base Layer of the regulatory structure.

NBFC-D, CIC, NBFC-IFC and HFC will be included in Middle Layer or the Upper Layer (and not in the
Base layer), as the case may be. SPD and IDF-NBFC will always remain in the Middle Layer.

The remaining NBFCs, viz., NBFC-Investment and Credit Companies (NBFCICCs), NBFC-Micro Finance
Institutions (NBFC-MFIs), NBFC-Factors and Mortgage Guarantee Companies (MGCs) could lie in any of
the layers of the regulatory structure depending on the parameters of the scale based regulatory framework.
Government owned NBFCs shall be placed in the Base Layer or Middle Layer, as the case may be. They will
not be placed in the Upper Layer till further notice.

References to NBFC-ND, NBFC-ND-SI and NBFC-D

From October 01, 2022, all references to NBFC-ND (i.e., non-systemically important non-deposit taking NBFC)
shall mean NBFC-BL and all references to NBFC-D (i.e., deposit taking NBFC) and NBFC-ND-SI (systemically
important non-deposit taking NBFC) shall mean NBFC-ML or NBFC-UL, as the case may be.

Classification in Middle Layer in case of Multiple NBFCs in a Group

NBFCs that are part of a common Group or are floated by a common set of promoters shall not be viewed on
a standalone basis. The total assets of all the NBFCs in a Group shall be consolidated to determine the
threshold for their classification in the Middle Layer.

If the consolidated asset size of the NBFCs in the Group is INR1000 crore and above, then each NBFC-ICC,
NBFC-MFI, NBFC Factor and MGC lying in the Group shall be classified as an NBFC in the Middle Layer
and consequently, regulations as applicable to the Middle Layer shall be applicable to them. However, NBFC-
D, within the Group, if any, shall also be governed under the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance
of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016.

Statutory Auditors are required to certify the asset size (as on March 31) of all the NBFCs in the Group every
year. The certificate shall be furnished to the Department of Supervision of the Reserve Bank under whose
jurisdiction the NBFCs are registered.

Provisions contained above shall not be applicable for classifying an NBFC in the Upper Layer.

Criteria for deciding NBFC-Middle Layer status.

Once an NBFC reaches an asset size of INR1,000 crore or above, it shall be subject to the regulatory
requirements as per Section I11 of these Directions, despite not having such assets as on the date of last balance
sheet. All such non-deposit taking NBFCs shall comply with the regulations/directions issued to NBFCs-ML
from time to time, as and when they attain an asset size of INR1,000 crore, irrespective of the date on which
such size is attained.

In a dynamic environment, the asset size of a NBFCs can fall below 1,000 crore in a given month, which
may be due to temporary fluctuations and not due to actual downsizing. In such a case the NBFC shall
continue to meet the reporting requirements and shall comply with the extant directions as applicable to
NBFC-ML, till the submission of its next audited balance sheet to the Reserve Bank and a specific
dispensation from the Reserve Bank in this regard.

Regulatory revisions applicable to all layers of NBFCs under Scale Based Regulations

1) Raising minimum Net Owned Fund (NOF) for certain NBFCs: The regulatory minimum net-owned fund

for finance companies acting as NBFC — ICC, NBFC- MFI and NBFC — Factors will be increased to INR 10
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2)

3)

4)

crore. The RBI has set a three-year glide path for the existing NBFCs to achieve the net-owned funds (NOF)
of INR 10 crore by 31% March 2027. The following glide path is provided for the existing NBFCs:

Current NOF By 31st March 2025 By 31st March 2027
NBFC-ICC INR 2 crore INR 5 crore INR 10 crore
NBEC-ME !NRScror.e(INRZ crore INR7crore(INR5crore in INR 10 crore

in NE Region) NE Region)
NBFC-Factors INR 5 crore INR 7 crore INR 10 crore

Source: RBI’s ‘Scale Based Regulation: A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs’ circular dated 22"
Oct 2021

However, for NBFC-P2P, NBFC-AA, and those with no public funds and no customer interface, the NOF
shall continue to be INR 2 crore. NBFCs failing to achieve the prescribed level within the stipulated period
shall not be eligible to hold the Certificate of Registration (CoR) as NBFCs.

Harmonizing Non-Performing Assets (NPA) classification norms: The RBI has revised existing norms
for classifying loans as non-performing assets (NPASs). The extant NPA classification norm stands changed
to the overdue period of more than 90 days for all categories of NBFCs. A glide path is provided to NBFCs
in Base Layer to adhere to the 90 days NPA norm as under —

NPA Norms Classification

>150 days overdue By March 31, 2024
>120 days overdue By March 31, 2025
> 90 days By March 31, 2026

Source: RBI’s ‘Scale Based Regulation: A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs’ circular dated 22™
Oct 2021

The glide path will not be applicable to NBFCs which are already required to follow the 90-day NPA norm.
The central bank has provided a three-year transit period to NBFCs in the base layer to adhere to the revision.
NBFCs in middle and upper layers have to make a thorough internal assessment of the need for capital,
commensurate with the risks in their business. NBFCs in the upper layer will have to have a common equity
tier-1 capital of at least 9% to enhance the quality of regulatory capital. In addition to the CRAR, the upper
layer NBFCs will also be subjected to leverage requirements to ensure that their growth is supported by
adequate capital. A suitable ceiling for leverage will be prescribed subsequently as and when necessary.

Experience of the Board: At least one of the directors in the Board of Directors should have relevant
experience of having worked in a Bank/NBFC. This is a requirement for all NBFCs.

Ceiling on Initial Public Offer (IPO) funding: A limit of INR1 crore per borrower has been set for financing

subscription to IPOs (earlier NBFCs had no ceiling on an IPO funding). Ceiling on an IPO funding has been
made applicable from 15t April 2022.
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EVOLUTION OF GOLD LOAN MARKET IN INDIA

Introduction

Gold has long been a valued commaodity, historically regarded as among the most liquid assets and accepted
universally as a currency since time immemorial. In India, Gold has traditionally been consumed by individuals
in the form of jewellery — it is considered auspicious to buy gold jewellery during festive seasons - and handed
down generations as family wealth. Gold is considered to be a safe haven in times of economic uncertainty.

Gold Demand in India (2013-2024)

India is one of the largest markets for gold and growing affluence is driving growth in demand. Gold has a central
role in the country’s culture, considered a store of value, a symbol of wealth and status and a fundamental part of
many rituals. Aside from Diwali, one of the most important dates in the Indian calendar, regional festivals across
the country are celebrated with gold: in the south, Akshaya Tritiya, Pongal, Onam and Ugadi; in the east, Durga
Puja; in the west, Gudi Pavda; in the north, Baisakhi and Karva Chauth. Two-thirds of India’s gold demand came
from rural areas, where jewellery is a traditional store of wealth. The chart given below depicts the trend of India’s
gold demand (in tonnes) from 2015-2024.

India's Geld Demand in Tonnes
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As per World Gold Council (WGC), Gold demand in India witnessed a 5% year-on-year rise at 803 tonnes in
2024 supported by reduction in import duty, and purchases related to weddings and festivals, and going ahead
consumption of gold in 2025 is likely to be between 700-800 tonnes. In this year, gold has surged ~INR7,500 or
~9.5-10.0% to INR87,000 per 10 grams in February 2025 from INR79,400 per 10 grams on 1% January 2025. The
total jewellery demand, in terms of volume, decreased by 2% to 563 tonnes in 2024, despite the gold price reaching
multiple record highs. This indicates the resilience of gold jewellery demand in India and highlights the effect of
the duty cut in July 2024 as well as India’s stronger economic growth compared to many other markets. There
was consistent ETF demand throughout the year, and the festival period of Dhanteras and Diwali in
October/November stimulated buying in the final quarter of 2024. This was further enhanced in major
metropolitan cities by e-commerce platforms offering rapid delivery of small gold investment bars and coins. It
is anticipated that the trend of robust gold investment demand will continue, with retail investors showing growing
interest in gold ETFs, digital gold, and coins and bars.
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Gold Price Movement in India

Gold prices in India have been showing an overall upward trend since the last 3 decades. There was a steady
increase in the prices of gold from FY10 to FY13. From FY14 to FY16, there was a decline in gold prices owing
to geopolitical stability, low oil prices, low inflation and strong growing equity market. During this period, gold
lost its attractiveness to investors either from a capital appreciation perspective as a hedge against inflation or as
a safe haven, causing a significantly reduced demand.

Historical Data of Indian Gold Prices (INR/10 gram)
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However, from FY17 to FY19, gold prices started to surge to the pre-FY13 levels, further increasing to
INR37,017.9 per 10 gram in FY20 and INR 48,732.2 per 10 gram in FY21. Gold prices crossed INR 50,000 per
10 gram in FY23 and INR 60,000 per 10 gram in FY24. It is currently at INR 85,659.0 per 10 grams as of 21
February 2025.

Gold prices rallied in February 2025 as concerns over US President Donald Trump's tariff policies fueled safe-
haven demand. Investors turned to bullion amid fears of a potential global trade war. Key factors driving gold
prices currently are as follows:

i US tariff uncertainty: Trump has imposed a 10% tariff on Chinese imports and a 25% tariff on steel
and aluminium. He recently announced that additional tariffs on lumber, cars, semiconductors, and
pharmaceuticals would be introduced within a month, intensifying trade war fears.

ii. Inflation and Fed policy: Minutes from the latest Federal Reserve meeting revealed concerns about
rising inflation due to Trump's trade policies. While the Fed remains cautious about rate cuts, the prospect
of persistent inflation is keeping investors bullish on gold.

iii.  Strong central bank buying: Central banks continue to increase their gold reserves, while gold ETFs
are shifting from net sellers to marginal buyers, further supporting prices.

iv. Safe-haven demand: Gold remains a preferred hedge against geopolitical risks, with ongoing conflicts
and economic instability driving demand.

Gold Loan Market in India

Gold enjoys a unique connection with Indians in terms of social status, financial security and rich cultural legacy.
Along with the country’s growing population and ever-increasing disposable income, India’s inclination and
liking for gold has also increased. Due to the emotional value associated with household jewellery, people are
hesitant to sell their gold to meet their immediate financial needs; as an alternative, people pledge their gold
ornaments as collateral and secure a short-term loan. The pledging of gold ornaments and other gold assets to
local pawnbrokers and money lenders to avail loans has been prevalent in Indian society over ages. The increased

75



holding of gold as an asset among large section of people, and the practices related to borrowing against gold in
the informal sector, have encouraged some loan companies to provide loans against the collateral of used
household gold jewelleries. Over a period of time, many companies have emerged as specialised gold loan
companies.

Most of the gold in India is held by people in rural market. Rural residents and low-income groups are the major
customers of gold loans, as gold is usually the only asset they possess, in some quantity. They also typically lack
access to banking facilities. Thus, gold loan has emerged as one of the most reliable credit sources for these
categories of customers at a broader level, there are mainly two categories of gold loan providers:

i Formal sector (Banks, NBFCs and cooperatives)
ii. Informal sector (local moneylenders).

The key factors that drove the rapid growth phase of gold loan in India included low cost of funds (eligibility
under Priority Sector Lending), rise of India’s middle class, consumerism and urbanization, rising gold prices,
and high Loan to Value (LTV) of up to 75.0%. Convenience of access, quick disbursals and lower interest rates
compared to moneylenders led to NBFCs becoming the customer’s de-facto choice. Meanwhile, from the
beginning of 2013, gold prices reduced drastically globally. With the pledged gold having lower market value,
customers walked away from the loans resulting in increased Non-Performing Assets (NPAS).

The gold loan industry was also subsequently impacted by demonetization in 2016 when cash crunch in the market
led to immediate shortfall in business. However, digital eco-system is now leading to increased credibility and
tilting scales of gold loan business in favor of the specialized gold loan NBFCs. Alongside, the introduction of
GST in 2017 has also impacted the market. In the pre-GST era, the taxation on gold was 1% excise duty, along
with a VAT of 1-1.5%, totaling to 2.0% tax. GST rates on gold have now been pegged to 3%. This is in addition
to an import duty of 7.5% and 3% GST on making charges.

In order to stabilize the proliferation and books of gold loan NBFCs, RBI intervened and released certain

guidelines:

e Removal of Priority Sector Lending (PSL) status. This immediately resulted in substantially higher borrowing
cost.

e Restricted credit exposure to single gold NBFC to 7.5% from 10% resulting in lower bank funding.

e  Prohibition of grant of loans against bullion and gold coins.

The COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent nationwide lockdown resulted in a significant amount of job losses,
leaving people to burn out their savings for a living. People heavily relied on borrowings through banks and other
sources to fulfil their financing needs amid the pandemic. Consumers used their gold holdings as collateral to
obtain their financing needs rather than outright selling. These higher borrowings lifted demand for gold loans
during the pandemic both through NBFCs and banks. Gold loans will benefit not just from the demand side but
supply-side dynamics too as many banks and non-banking institutions target this product segment on account of
its acceptable risk profile. Borrowers had benefited from higher loan value for the same collateral while lenders
have benefited from lower LTV ratios on their existing loans and higher demand. Demand during the pandemic
has pushed gold loan Asset Under Management (AUM) higher by 20-30% for most of India's leading gold loan
NBFCs and banks.

Gold Loan NBFCs in India
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Till the last century, most of the lending was in the unorganized
sector through pawnbrokers and money lenders. However, this

Gold Loan market (%) as of FY24

scenario has changed over the last two decades post India’s economic
liberalization and financial sector reforms, and the organised sector
has become more dominant. Buoyed by the spurt in gold prices
during the last decade, organised lenders grew during the period
FY09 to FY12. However, correction in gold prices in FY13, adverse
regulatory scenario, restrictions on offering high LTV products, and

increase in competition intensity has seen gold loan industry’s AUM
stagnating. This is also reflected in the stagnating portfolio of gold Organised market M Unorganised market
|0an NBFCS Souce: FSIAPL

The total gold loan industry AUM stood at approximately INR22,018.6bn in FY24, out of which approximately
35% accounted for organised market. India’s unorganised gold loan market is estimated to be around 65% of the
total gold loan market. There are no official estimates available on the size of this market, which is characterised
by the presence of numerous pawnbrokers, moneylenders and landlords operating at a local level. However, this
market is believed to be almost double the size of organised gold loans market.

The demand for gold has a regional bias with southern Indian

states accounting for around 45.0% of the annual demand. There Regional Gold Loan Demand (FY24)
is potential to expand gold loans market to the Northern and
Western regions of India, provided the branch network is
expanded, and the loans are available with ease and with flexible
options. The prevalence of high level of rural indebtedness, easy
availability of gold loans on extremely flexible terms, relative
scarcity of personal and retail loans from the banks and
changing attitude of customers to gold loans will contribute to
the growth in the gold loan AUM to newer regions. Many Gold
loan companies are reducing their geographical concentration
risk and gradually shifting their focus to northern and western
region over the last 3 years.

Souce: FSIAPL

Growth in Gold Loans market of Organized Players in the Last 5 Years

As per WGC report, the organized gold loan industry is around 35% and unorganized industry is around 65%.
The total gold loan industry AUM stood at INR22,018.6bn in FY24, out of which approximately 35% valuing
INR7,706.5bn accounted for organised market.

Indian Gold loan market size of organised players (INR bn)
7,706.5

6,050.0

2,2Q3.6 2,394 23168
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m Gold Loan Market (INR bn)  =s==Growth y-o-y

Source: FSIAPL
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NBFCs were marked by slowdown and weakening competitive positioning during FY12 and FY15 owing to
withdrawal of eligibility for NBFCs under priority sector lending, RBI putting a ceiling on LTV ratio that could
be given out by NBFCs at 60%, as against 75% for banks and RBI norms for conducting gold loan auctions.
Indian Gold loan market of organised players has increased at a CAGR of 15% from INR2,203.6bn in FY15 to
INR7,706.5bn in FY24 owing to increase in gold prices, good monsoon and favourable macroeconomic factors.
During this period, NBFCs’ focused on improving the business per branch, undertook aggressive marketing and
diversified into new regions.

Overview of some operational parameters of organized players is provided below:

Parameters Gold Loan NBFCs Banks Money Lenders
Loan to Value Upto 75% Upto 75% Higher than 75%
Not highly peneterated.

Penetration Highly peneterated . Highly peneterated
Selective branches
Usually in the range
Interest Charges Around 15-25% p.a Around 8-18% p.a v 8
of 30-50% p.a.
Regulatory Body RBI RBI Not regulated
Processing Fees No/Minimal processing fees Higher than NBFCs Nil
Documentaion Minimal, Govt. ID proof Complete KYC compliance  Nil or minimal
Customer Service High-Gold Loan is core focus Non- core focus Core focus

Repayment Structure EMI based. Pre-payment
py ucture / Flexible. No pre-payment charges ) paym
Flexibility penalty is charged.

One time

Cash, Cheque/Electronic Transfer

Model of Disbursal
(Cash upto INR20,000/-)

Cheque, Electronic Transfer Cash

Open beyond

Working Hours Open beyond banking hours Typical Banking Hours .
banking hours

Fixed Office Space Branch with dedicated staff for Bank branches No fixed place
gold loans

More than 10

Turn Around Time Around 10 minutes 1-2 hours .
minutes

Source: Industry Sources, FSIAPL

Growth in Gold Loans market of NBFCs (Gold Loan) in the Last 6 Years

The gold loan AUM of NBFCs grew at a CAGR of 17% between FY 18 and FY24. NBFCs witnessed a decline in
gold loan AUM between FY12 and FY 14, as RBI’s regulations curbed the performance as mentioned earlier.
However, due to NBFCs flexible loan offerings and quicker disbursement time helped them to grow their gold
loan AUM from INR641.5bn in FY18 to INR1628.6bn in FY24.
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Indian NBFC's Gold Loan market size (INR Bn)

1628.55

i

Fy18 FY 19 FY20 Fr21 FY22 Fy23 Fy24

1700.0 -
1500.0 -
1300.0
1100.0 -
900.0 -

1300.0
700.0 4 6415 e
500.0 -
300.0 -
100.0 -

-100.0 -

Source: FSIAPL

Gold Loan NBFCs AUM further mainly due to geographic expansion, rise in gold prices and higher marketing
expenditure undertaken by players in order to improve product awareness and build brand identity. NBFCs and
banks approach the gold loan market differently, which is reflected in their interest rates, ticket sizes and loan
tenures. NBFCs focus more single-mindedly on the gold loans business and have accordingly built their service
offerings by investing significantly in manpower, systems, processes and branch expansion. This has helped them
attract and serve more customers.

Percentage share of organized players in Gold Loan market during the last 2 years is provided below:

Player-wise Share of Gold Loan AUM (FY24) Player-wise Share of Gold Loan AUM (FY23)
Kosamattam Kosamattam
Manappuram Finance Ltd. Manappuram Finance Ltd.
Others Finance Ltd 3.2% Finance Ltd 3.1%

23.9% 12.8% Others 12.6%

Muthoot ety

Mercantile Ltd.
0.4%

ini Muthoot
M.utnm?tw Mini —-_- FY23 AUM:

EY24 AUM: i -
Financiers Ltd. Mercantile Ltd.
2.0% Muthoot Fincorp Ltd. INEL.518.4hn 0.3% INR1,512.50n
12.7% Muthoot Finance Ltd Muthoot Finance Ltd
45.0% Muthoottu Mini 40.9%

Financiers Ltd. Muthoot Fincorp
2.0% Ltd.

Source: Company Annual Reports, Credit Rating Reports, FSIAPL

Within the Gold Loan NBFCs, Muthoot Finance Ltd., Manappuram Finance Ltd. and Muthoot Fincorp Ltd. are
the largest players accounting for 70.5% of the gold loan portfolio as of FY24.

Muthoot Finance Ltd. holds the highest share of 45.0% in the gold loan market among Gold Loan NBFCs in India
as of FY24. Manappuram Finance Ltd. has witnessed a growth of 8.9% in Gold AUM from INR190.0bn in FY23
to INR207.0bn in FY24. Kosamattam Finance Ltd. had growth of 9.6% in Gold AUM from INR47.5bn in FY23
to INR52.0bn. Muthoot Finance Ltd. has witnessed growth of 17.8% in Gold AUM from INR619.0bn in FY23 to
INR729.0bn in FY24. Muthoot Fincorp Ltd. has witnessed growth of 14.2% in Gold AUM from INR179.4bn in
FY23 to INR204.8bn in FY24. Muthoottu Mini Financiers Ltd. had a growth of 5.6% in Gold AUM from
INR30.5bn in FY23 to INR32.2bn in FY24. Muthoot Mercantile Ltd. has seen a substantial increase of 26.1% in
its Gold AUM from INR4.9bn in FY23 to INR6.2bn in FY24. Muthoottu Mini Financiers Ltd. holds 2.0% share
in the gold loan market among Gold Loan NBFCs in India as of FY24.
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KEY GROWTH DRIVERS OF GOLD LOAN

Gold financing companies form an integral part of the Indian financial system. It plays an important role in nation
building and financial inclusion by complementing the banking sector in reaching out credit to the unbanked
segments of society, especially to the MSMEs, which form the cradle of entrepreneurship and innovation. NBFCs’
ground-level understanding of their customers profile and their credit needs gives them an edge, as does their
ability to innovate and customise products as per their clients’ needs. This makes them the perfect conduit for
delivering credit to lower-income group people and MSMEs. Gold loan as a credit product is not a new
phenomenon in the country; it is only in the recent past that Indians have started losing their inhibitions over
pledging their family heirlooms to mainstream commercial lenders and leveraging multiple benefits, such as
instant credit, flexible schemes, lower interest rates and minimal paperwork without the hassles of rigid credit
appraisal. As banks and NBFCs offer gold loans at interest rates much lower than those of informal moneylenders;
they have successfully targeted a new segment of customers who would have otherwise not taken a gold loan. The
key growth drivers for gold loan are provided below:

Lack of reach of banking to rural and lower-income groups

In India, the reach of NBFCs in rural areas is comparatively higher than the banks. Due to which NBFCs have an
advantage in terms of business revenue and larger base of customer over the banks. The traditional banking
products are not accessible to rural and lower-income groups as those products are to relatively higher-income

groups. Credit scores would undermine one’s effort to get normal loans during distress periods. This is the
situation faced by a large portion of the Indian population engaged in farming and rural employment. Gold loans
offer a viable solution in this situation since, gold loans are fully securitized, lenders have the option to recoup the
full principle amount (in most cases) if the borrower defaults - hence, there is no need for extensive checks on
borrower’s previous repayment records. The relative ease in obtaining a loan approval has boosted the popularity
of gold loans.

Rising consumerism in rural areas

WGC estimates that about 65% of the Indian household gold belongs to rural communities, who are the biggest
purchasers of gold loan. Unpredictability of the rain and harvest season means farmers become cash-strapped
frequently. For them, unlocking value of their household gold is the easiest way to meet their financial obligations.
Consumption growth in rural India had outpaced urban spending by the widest margin in last decade, encouraged
by relatively good rainfall and an increase in government spending on infrastructure. However, the year 2019
witnessed a slowdown in the rural market due to factors such as liquidity crunch, drop in gross domestic product
(GDP), floods in several parts, weakened household spending, high food inflation due to spike in milk and onion
prices impacted consumer wallet in rural regions. The rural consumption was back on high single digit growth in
FY20, helped by factors including government spending in infra projects and increased rural spending.
Additionally, the expected rise in consumerism in rural areas will lead to increased gold loans being taken for
non-income generating purposes.

Changing attitudes towards Gold Loan

Few decades back, the gold loan was a high-cost affair, interest charged were around 35-50% (local moneylenders)
but now organized players in the market (banks and NBFCS) offer the loan at 7.5-20% per annum. In recent, gold
loan is becoming a word of mouth whether it is Tierl, Tier2 or Tier 3 cities — people are turning more towards
depositing gold with banks and NBFCs because it is one of the easiest ways to avail money. The overall process
to avail gold loans has become more formal and transparent with an entry of organized financial players. Further,
gold is a secured asset and there is no requirement of any additional collateral, but however, to avail home loans
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& personal loans, one need to show income certificates, bank statements & income tax returns. One good thing
about gold loan is that it can be used for any purpose so more and more people are migrating towards this loan. It
is not only the rural communities who are willing to put household jewelry in the market — acceptance towards
using family gold for financial needs is increasing in the relatively untapped urban market. Using gold loans to
meet household exigencies is gaining popularity in Indian cities and metros.

Ease of availability of Gold Loan

NBFCs offer very competitive gold loan schemes with a wide range of tenures, interest slabs and repayment
options making it very attractive for the customer. Unlike the rigid products offered by traditional banks, gold
loan products are designed in a way that specifically meets the situation of the target customer segments.
Disbursements are made within a quick time period after loan approval with a turnaround time (TAT) of around
10 minutes. A good number of loans do not have fixed Equated Monthly Instalment (EMI) facility - only the
interest needs to be paid on a monthly basis while the principle should be paid at the end of the tenure. The ability
to choose product features (repayment scheme, tenure) has facilitated increased gold loan penetration.

Untapped opportunities in the non-south regions

Since ages, most of the gold loan companies have their maximum presence in the southern pockets of India.
Western, northern and eastern region have minimal gold loan credit penetration, which reflects that gold loan
companies can unlock this potential in the coming years. The gold loan market is expected to demonstrate high
growth potential as banks are becoming more selective and stringent in credit disbursement. The emergence of
the online and digital models in the gold loan space by NBFCs and new-age FinTech players that offer gold loans
at the customers' doorstep have opened up an untapped market for gold loan companies.

Lower default rates

There is very low NPA in gold loans. A low default rate is the reason why many formal institutions have
comfortably entered the gold loan space. Default rates typically are between 1-2% which is much lower than other
traditional financial products offered by financial institutions. This makes gold loan attractive product for
organised players.

Development of online gold loan market

Many new age fintech companies and traditional players have started to offer innovative products such as online
gold loans (OGL) catering to the young and urban population. Primary beneficiaries of online gold loan facilities
are digitally and financially literate customers who belong to the age group of 25 to 40 years. Gold loan companies

have come up with various operating models like visiting customer’s residence, allowing customers to place their
gold within the NBFC’s vault after which customers have the option to pledge this gold via online channels and
receive funds directly to their bank accounts.

The increasing adoption of smartphones and expanding internet connectivity in rural and semi urban area will
enable NBFCs in the coming years to get most of their customers to transact in the online gold loan platform.
Further, NBFCs have started targeting MSME segment for the OGL as they are not very comfortable visiting gold
loan offices for their finance requirements.

REGULATORY MEASURES IMPACTING THE GOLD LOAN MARKET IN INDIA
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NBFCs primarily engaged in lending against gold jewelry (such loans comprising 50% of more of their financial
assets) shall maintain a minimum Tier 1 capital of 12% of aggregate risk weighted assets of on-balance sheet and
of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items. The Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (Updated as on February 27, 2025) have issued
guidelines with regard to the following:

Verification of the Ownership of Gold: Where the gold jewelry pledged by a borrower at any one time or
cumulatively on loan outstanding is more than 20 grams, NBFCs shall keep a record of the verification of the
ownership of the jewelry. The ownership verification need not necessarily be through original receipts for the
jewelry pledged but a suitable document shall be prepared to explain how the ownership of the jewelry has been
determined, particularly in each and every case where the gold jewelry pledged by a borrower at any one time or
cumulatively on loan outstanding is more than 20 grams. Also, NBFCs shall have an explicit policy in this regard
as approved by the Board in their overall loan policy.

Safety and security measures to be followed by NBFCs lending against collateral of gold jewellery:
NBFCs, which are in the business of lending against collateral of gold jewellery, shall ensure that necessary
infrastructure and facilities are put in place, including safe deposit vault and appropriate security measures for
operating the vault, in each of its branches where gold jewellery is accepted as collateral. This is required to
safeguard the gold jewellery accepted as collateral and to ensure convenience of borrowers. No new branch/es
shall be opened without suitable arrangements for security and for storage of gold jewellery, including safe deposit
vault.

Standardization of Value of Gold in Arriving at the Loan to Value Ratio: The gold jewellery accepted as
collateral by the NBFC shall be valued by taking into account the preceding 30 days’ average of the closing price
of 22 carat gold as per the rate as quoted by the Bombay Bullion Association Ltd. (BBA) or the historical spot
gold price data publicly disseminated by a commodity exchange regulated by the Forward Markets Commission.
If the purity of the gold is less than 22 carats, the NBFC shall convert the collateral into 22 carat and state the
exact grams of the collateral. In other words, jewellery of lower purity of gold shall be valued proportionately.
NBFC, while accepting gold as collateral, shall give a certificate to the borrower on their letterhead, of having
assayed the gold and state the purity (in terms of carats) and the weight of the gold pledged. NBFCs may have
suitable caveats to protect themselves against disputes during redemption, but the certified purity shall be applied
both for determining the maximum permissible loan and the reserve price for auction.

Prior Approval of RBI for Opening Branches in Excess of 1,000: It is mandatory for NBFC to obtain prior
approval of the RBI to open branches exceeding 1,000. However, NBFCs which already have more than 1,000
branches may approach the Bank for prior approval for any further branch expansion. Besides, no new branches
will be allowed to be opened without the facilities for storage of gold jewellery and minimum-security facilities
for the pledged gold jewellery.

Auction Process and Procedures: The following additional stipulations are made with respect to auctioning of
pledged gold jewellery:

e The auction should be conducted in the same town or taluka in which the branch that has extended the loan
is located. NBFCs can however pool gold jewellery from different branches in a district and auction it at any
location within the district, subject to meeting the following conditions:

o The first auction has failed.
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o The NBFC shall ensure that all other requirements of the extant directions regarding auction (prior
notice, reserve price, arms-length relationship, disclosures, etc.) are met.

o Non-adherence to the above conditions will attract strict enforcement action.
While auctioning the gold the NBFC must declare a reserve price for the pledged ornaments. The reserve
price for the pledged ornaments shall not be less than 85% of the previous 30-day average closing price of 22
carat gold as declared by the Bombay Bullion Association Ltd. (BBA), or the historical spot gold price data
publicly disseminated by a commodity exchange regulated by the Forward Markets Commission and value
of the jewellery of lower purity in terms of carats shall be proportionately reduced.
It will be mandatory on the part of the NBFCs to provide full details of the value fetched in the auction and
the outstanding dues adjusted and any amount over and above the loan outstanding should be payable to the
borrower.
NBFCs must disclose in their annual reports the details of the auctions conducted during the financial year
including the number of loan accounts, outstanding amounts, value fetched and whether any of its sister
concerns participated in the auction.

Other Instructions:

NBFCs financing against the collateral of gold must insist on a copy of the PAN Card of the borrower for all
transaction above INR0O.5mn

Documentation across all branches must be standardized.

NBFCs shall not issue misleading advertisements like claiming the availability of loans in a matter of 2-3
minutes.

Guidelines proposed for Gold Loan companies on settling the outstanding debt in case of death of the

borrower, communicating terms and conditions in local languages, process to refund surplus from the

auction of gold:

RBI had set up a six-member committee in May 2022, headed by former Deputy Governor Mr. BP Kanungo to
examine and review customer services in regulated entities with an aim to protect the interests of customers. On
June 05, 2023, Mr. BP Kanungo proposed a list of recommendations to improve customer service standards in
regulated entities as follows:

The committee recommends that in case of the death of the borrower, a notice may be served to the nominee
or legal heir to settle the outstanding and keep the same on record before auctioning the pledged gold.
Accountability may be fixed for non-adherence to the due notification process prior to the auction of gold.
For facilitating this, the gold loan companies may be required to register nominees while extending loans.
The committee highlights circumstances leading to the auction of gold, and the requirement of a notice period
should mandatorily be a part of gold loan companies’ fair practices code and the loan agreement. Regulated
entities shall record the acknowledgement receipt of the notice before scheduling an auction of gold.

A large volume of gold loan accounts belongs to middle and low-income households and rural population.
Hence, the committee recommends that the lender should communicate the terms and conditions to the
borrowers in local and regional languages. Recording of oral communication, if any, must be preserved.
The committee suggests that the loan agreement should incorporate the time limit (maximum one month)
within which the surplus, if any, from the auction of gold would be refunded to the customers, failing which
the company should be required to pay interest, as may be stipulated by the RBI. Surplus from the auction of
gold must be credited to the account of the borrower.

Details of other key guidelines impacting the gold loan market in India are provided below:
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Loan to Value Ratio (LTV)

LTV ratio describes the size of a loan which is taken out compared to the value of the asset securing the loan.
Lenders and others use LTVs to determine how risky a loan is. A higher LTV ratio suggests more risk because
the assets behind the loan are less likely to pay off the loan as the LTV ratio increases. The LTV ratio has been
capped at 75% for traditional banks and NBFCs. RBI regulations state that - gold jewellery accepted as
security/collateral will have to be valued at the average of the closing price of 22 carat gold for the preceding 30
days as quoted by the India Bullion and Jewellers Association Ltd. If the gold is of purity less than 22 carats, the
collateral should be translated into 22 carat value and exact grams need to be valued. Loan against bullion, units
of Exchange-Traded Fund (ETF) and units of gold mutual funds is not permitted. This standardisation and
increased transparency of LTV calculations across the organised sector has meant healthy businesses for NBFCs.

RBI directions on lending against security of single product-gold jewellery
As per RBI directions all applicable NBFCs should follow the below mentioned directives:

i NBFCs shall maintain a Loan-to-Value (LTV) Ratio not exceeding 75% for loans granted against the
collateral of gold jewellery; provided that the value of gold jewellery for the purpose of determining the
maximum permissible loan, amount shall be the intrinsic value of the gold content therein and no other
cost elements shall be added thereto.

ii. NBFCs shall disclose in their balance sheet the percentage of such loans to their total assets.

iii. NBFCs shall not grant any advance against bullion / primary gold and gold coins. NBFCs shall not grant
any advance for purchase of gold in any form including primary gold, gold bullion, gold jewellery, gold
coins, units of Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) and units of gold mutual fund.

Know Your Customer (KYC)

The RBI KYC directions are applicable to NBFCs, and RBI has advised all NBFCs to adopt the same with suitable
modifications depending upon the activity undertaken by them and ensure that a proper policy framework of anti-
money laundering measures is put in place. The KYC policies are required to have certain key elements, including,
customer acceptance policy, customer identification procedures, monitoring of transactions and risk management,
diligence of client accounts opened by professional intermediaries, customer due diligence and diligence of
accounts of politically exposed persons, adherence to RBI KYC directions and the exercise of due diligence by
persons authorised by the NBFC, including its brokers and agents.

For verification purposes, a customer needs to submit the following: government issued identity proof (passport,
PAN card, voter’s ID or driving license, along with passport size photographs), address proof (either electricity
bill, ration card or telephone bill) and signature proof. The NBFCs are now allowed to make use of e-KYC which
uses Aadhaar card validation. The move towards e- KYCs is meant to reduce risk of fraud and forgery as well as
improve application processing speeds.

Changes in classification of Non-Performing Asset

The RBI Master Directions require that every non-deposit taking NBFC shall, after taking into account the degree
of well-defined credit weaknesses and extent of dependence on collateral security for realisation, classify its
lease/hire purchase assets, loans and advances and any other forms of credit into the following classes:

e  Standard Assets.

e  Sub-Standard Assets.

e  Doubtful Assets; and

e  Loss Assets
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Further, the class of assets referred to above shall not be upgraded merely as a result of rescheduling, unless it
satisfies the conditions required for an upgrade. A NBFCs-ND is required to make provisions against sub-standard
assets, doubtful assets and loss assets in accordance with the Master Directions. In terms of the Master Directions,
NBFCs-ND has to make the following provisions on their loan portfolio.

Provisioning Policy for Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC

Asset Classification Provisioning Policy
Standard Asset 0.40% of outstanding
Sub-standard Assets 10% of outstanding

100% of unsecured portion + 20% - 50% of
secured portion

Loss Assets 100% provided if not written off

Source: RBI Circular

Doubtful Assets

Provisioning Policy for Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC

Asset Classification Provisioning Policy
Standard Asset 0.25% of outstanding
Sub-standard Assets 10% of outstanding

100% of unsecured portion + 20% - 50% of
secured portion

Loss Assets 100% provided if not written off

Source: RBI Circular

Doubtful Assets

The time frame for classification of NPAs for NBFCs has been brought on par with banks. RBI mandated from
FY18; a loan is termed as a NPA if interest is not paid for 90 days (3 months). In 2016, the time period was 5
months, while it was 4 months in 2017. However, it should not be a cause for concern, since default is not an issue
for a gold finance company, as the loan is fully secured. In case of non-payment, the gold finance company could
simply auction off the gold underlying to recover the interest and principal.

Impact of GST on purchase of Gold Jewellery

Earlier excise duty and VAT of 1% each were attracted to gold jewellery initially. Once GST was implemented,
all the other taxes were eliminated, and only a GST of 3% was brought into effect. Whenever a customer purchases
gold jewellery, they have to bear a flat rate of 3% GST. Additionally, he also has to pay GST at 5% on the making
charges. It is important to note that the import, purchase, and making charges of gold have different GST rates
individually. However, there is no GST attracted if you sell old gold jewellery and purchase new jewellery in a
single transaction.

Gold Monetisation Scheme (GMS)

The government in the late 1990s also tried to monetize the idle gold hold by Indian households by bringing it
into use for the industry and to reduce dependency on imports. Gold Deposit Scheme (GDS) was introduced in
September 1999 to allow individuals to deposit gold at banks and receive interest in return. Further, the scheme
was also exempt from capital gains, wealth and income tax. However, the minimum deposit of 500 grams was a
huge deterrent for many individuals and households to avail this scheme. Between 1999 and 2015, only 15% of
gold was mobilized reflecting the inefficiency of GDS structure. GDS was reintroduced in the Union Budget 2015
by Finance Minister Mr. Arun Jaitley in a new avatar - ‘Gold Monetisation Scheme’ with the minimum deposit
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size being reduced to 30 grams. This scheme offers an annual tax-free interest starting from 0.6% (Short-term: up
to 3 years) to 2.5% (Long-term: up to 15 years).

The objective of GMS is to mobilize gold held by households and institutions of the country and facilitate its use
for productive purposes, and in the long run, to reduce country’s reliance on the import of gold. All Scheduled
Commercial Banks excluding Regional Rural Banks are eligible to implement the scheme. It includes Revamped
Gold Deposit Scheme (R-GDS) and Revamped Gold Metal Loan Scheme (R-GML). The minimum deposit at any
one time is 30 grams of raw gold (bars, coins, jewellery excluding stones and other metals). There is no maximum
limit for deposit under the scheme. Also, the interest earned on the gold deposit will be exempted from not only
income tax but also capital gains tax.

RBI ordered urgent reforms after finding major lapses by Gold loan players

On 30" September 2024, RBI expressed concerns over irregular practices by banks and NBFCs (supervised
entities) and asked them to comprehensively review their policies, processes and practices on gold loans to identify
gaps and initiate appropriate remedial measures. The major deficiencies include shortcomings in use of third
parties for sourcing and appraisal of loans; valuation of gold without the presence of the customer; inadequate due
diligence and lack of end use monitoring of the loans; lack of transparency during auction of gold ornaments and
jewellery on default by customers; weaknesses in monitoring of LTV; and incorrect application of risk-weights
etc. All players were advised to comprehensively review their policies, processes and practices on gold loans to
identify gaps and initiate appropriate remedial measures in a timebound manner. The RBI has underscored that
players must ensure stronger controls over outsourced activities, including those involving third-party fintech
firms, which have sometimes been left in charge of crucial tasks like loan appraisal, gold custody and KYC
compliance.

KEY RISKS IN GOLD LOANS FINANCING
Few of the risks involved in gold loan financing is as follows:

Price Risk: Gold being a globally traded precious commodity, its price fluctuates daily depending on domestic
and international factors. When gold price increases, it is beneficial to lenders as well as borrowers whereas when
it falls drastically on a continuous basis, the current loan to value ratio (LTV) increases. This increases the
possibility of delinquencies and the internally set mark to market (MTM) or LTV trigger may breach. As a policy,
the financier in this case would ask for the part prepayment or additional collateral to avoid jewellery from
auctioning. But in an extreme scenario when most of the customers fail to comply with either of the options
combined with an unfavourable economic environment, a large chunk of jewellery may get auctioned for a value
lower than market prices pre-auction, resulting in a lower recovery.

Credit Risk: Unlike other retail loans, where an independent credit team does assessment of a borrower, gold
loans involve limited borrower credit check (by major non-banking finance companies), given that lending is
purely collateral based. Given the limited role of credit risk assessment in gold loans’ disbursement, the presence
of robust internal processes for collateral assessment becomes crucial.

Valuation Risk: The LTV ratio at the time of sanction depends on the valuation conducted by the valuation
officer to arrive at an intrinsic value/net weight of gold content in jewellery based on its purity, weight and
excluding non-gold content. Often, one to two months of training is provided to staff before they are enrolled to
the branches. Staff follows an internal policy of valuation which generally includes acid test and sound test, and
disregarding stones and non-gold content to arrive at the net weight of jewellery. Lack of a standardised valuation
procedure across branches of the originator will involve judgement of the valuer, which may result in mispricing
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the asset which can lead to an under collateralised loan. Moreover, to curb the risk of spurious gold being pledged,
strong valuation system/process should be in place.

Auction Risk: Auction is typically conducted either on loan crossing 90 days past due (dpd) or when MTM
breaches an internally defined threshold. Once it is established that an auction needs to be conducted, there are
operational challenges of moving jewellery to a designated auction centre, risk of losing it in transit and finding
buyers when quantity/weight is high.

Safety and Insurance Risk: In any secured loan, the substance of collateral is high from recovery perspective.
Safety and protection of collateral becomes more crucial when servicer has custody of it. When security systems
of storage and surveillance of gold have weak controls, the collateral is prone to the risk of burglary and fraud
which can lead to unwanted losses. Also, financiers store high-value gold in vaults at their branches and make
disbursements up to certain value in cash with high daily cash turnover. It is crucial to adequately and effectively
cover the risk of losing collateral and cash through insurance.

Delinquency: Gold loan is considered as an emergency source of funding typically disbursed in a quick time.
Although the product is fully secured, historically it has been noticed that there can be chances of delinquencies
in the softer buckets because of the nature, purpose and tenor of loans. Income levels of the underlying borrowers
during the tenor of loan and gold price volatility determine delinquency levels in the deeper buckets.

Seasoning Risk: Gold loans being a short tenure product where the weighted average life is often less than 12
months, the average seasoning at the time of securitisation may be three to four months and of only interest
payment (principal repayment being bullet in nature). Hence, loan’s performance history is limited. Although the
short-tenure gold loan has the advantage over a correction in gold prices, it does not give a larger picture on pre-
securitisation credit behaviour.

OUTLOOK OF THE GOLD LOAN MARKET IN INDIA

Outlook of the Gold Loan Market in India

India is one of the largest markets for gold and in our Indian culture gold is considered as auspicious, particularly
in Hindu and Jain cultures and gold is worn for important ceremonies and occasions. Gifting gold is a deeply
ingrained part of marriage rituals in Indian society where weddings generate approximately about 50% of annual
gold demand. Rural residents and low-income groups are the major customers of gold loans, as gold is usually the
only asset they possess. Gold loan has emerged as one of the most reliable credit sources for these categories of
customers. Further the gold loan market is still underpenetrated, considering the abundant availability of gold as
collateral with Indian private households. This could play a vital role in the expansion of gold loan market.
FSIAPL has estimated that the gold loan market size of organised players will grow to INR15,713.9 bn by FY28P.

Demand for gold loans, both through banks and NBFC, has grown in response to the economic impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The need for quick credit among small businesses will further spur gold loans' growth post
the pandemic. With the credit demand expected to rise, the organised gold loan industry is expected to grow over
the next few years at a CAGR of 18-20% from INR7,706.5bn in FY24 to INR15,713.5bn in FY28P which would
be driven by gold loan NBFCs moving into non-southern Indian territories, improving penetration, improving
product awareness and building brand identity. Diversification into other regional geographies and untapped
markets would be the key for industry AUM to grow. Gold loan industry AUM projection from FY24 to FY28P
is provided below:
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Outlook of gold loan market of organised players (FY24 - FY28P)
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Since the COVID-19 outbreak of the pandemic, gold loans have become an easy way of accessing capital and
both banks and NBFCs have reported higher disbursements and increasing revenue numbers from their gold loans
portfolio. Industry report suggests that MSME companies are turning to gold to raise funds, rebuild their business
and manage working capital requirements. Gold loan processing is perceived to be faster and more convenient,
compared to personal loans. Organized players are adopting marketing initiatives to raise awareness against heavy
interest rates charged by the unorganized players (which are in the range of 25-50%) especially in rural parts.
Also, player’s ability to leverage technology and improve their online gold disbursements could turn out to be a
game changer. Based on these growth drivers, we expect gold loan NBFCs’ AUM to grow at 16-17% CAGR,
from INR1,618.4bn in FY24 to INR2,980.8bn in FY28P. Indian NBFC’s gold loan AUM projection for the
coming 4 years is provided below:

Outlook of Indian NBFC's Gold Loan market
(FY24-FY28P)
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The overall organized NBFC’s gold loan penetration level is around 25-30%, which confirms that there is
headroom for growth in this market. So, financial institutions with the right focus, operational capabilities,
availability of funds, refreshing products and modern technology can capture a large market share.

Various factors affect the gold demand in India. The relationship between these factors is provided below:
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Long Term Factors Short Term Factors

Rising Income Gold Price Movement Inflation Excess Rainfall

Itis anticipated that fora 1% Fora 1% increase in gold |Fora 1% increase in |For a 1% increase in
increase in income, the price, demand will inflation, demand |monsoon rainfall, gold
demand for gold will rise by 1% |decrease by 0.5% rises by 2.6% demand rises by 0.5%
Source: World Gold Council

The arrival of new online gold loan products and digital models by various NBFCs and fintech players are
expected to tap the gold loan market. These products offer gold loans at the client’s doorstep and complete the
process without much hassle. More and more tech driven consumers are opting for these loans as these products
have lower interest rates vis-a-vis its competing brick and motor NBFCs.

Gold as a Hedge against Inflation, Fluctuation in Interest Rates and Rupee Devaluation

The Indian rupee was at INR 86.6 per US dollar as on 21% February 2025. Foreign Portfolio Investment outflows
and the renewed Greenback demand weigh on the local currency. The recovery in crude oil prices might also
contribute to the Indian Rupee’s downside as India is the world's third-largest oil consumer. Any significant
depreciation of the Indian Rupee might be limited amid the likely intervention by the Reserve Bank of India.

Higher inflation leads to increase in expenses and lesser savings thereby affecting personal finances. Higher
inflation over a period can cause higher interest rates, thereby making loans expensive. A weak rupee against
dollar affects any investment done abroad, foreign education and foreign travel. The inflationary pressures have
led to interest rate hike by RBI which has already raised interest rates several times last year. A higher interest
rate will lead to higher EMIs. For the investor of debt funds, rise in interest rates would bring down the bond
prices and hence has a negative impact on the debt funds ‘net asset values. As explained above, the rising exchange
rates and the resulting inflationary pressures will have an impact on the value of the assets of the retail investors
and hence it is imperative for the retail investors to invest in class of assets which are a good inflation hedge.
Among all the class of assets, gold is considered as a best hedge against inflation and seen as an ideal asset for
portfolio diversification.

The demand for gold rises whenever there is political chaos and gold is considered as safe haven. The gold is high
on safe haven demand due to fears of a global trade war after US President Donald Trump announced new tariff
plans. Trump announced plans to impose an additional 25% tariff on all steel and aluminum imports. He also said
he will announce reciprocal tariffs, matching rates imposed by other countries and applying them immediately.
Gold is considered a safe investment during economic and geopolitical turmoil.

The RBI added 72.6 tonnes to its stock of gold in 2024, quadrupling the incremental additions from a year ago,
as it ranked just behind the Polish and Turkish central banks in net buying bullion through the year that witnessed
massive currency volatility after Trump’s election in November. The RBI’s latest stock of gold amounted to 876.2
tonnes as of 31 December 2024 valued at USD66.2 billion, up from 803.58 tonnes valued at USD48.3 hillion in
the same period a year ago, implying a purchase of 72.6 tonnes in the calendar year. Incremental additions totaled
18 tonnes in 2023. The 2024 gold purchase is the highest since 2021 and the second highest in any calendar year
since it started buying gold in 2017. The central bank has been aggressively buying gold because gold purchases
help the central bank protect itself against currency volatility and the consequent revaluation of reserves.
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The RBI has been actively accumulating gold as part of its reserves management strategy since December 2017.
But it has become more aggressive post COVID and is one of the major buyers of gold among global central
banks. The central bank’s stated objective of holding gold in reserves is mainly to diversify its foreign currency
assets base, as a hedge against inflation and foreign currency risks. Central banks globally have actively started
accumulating gold more aggressively after the Russia- Ukraine war started in February of 2022. The RBI too has

followed the trend of central banks globally.
KEY CHALLENGES FACED BY THE GOLD LOAN INDUSTRY

Volatility in Gold prices

Volatility in the gold prices has impact on the performance of the gold loan market. Though gold prices are
increasing, it is expected to decrease over the long term. As per the Pink Sheet of World Bank Commaodities Price
Data of 4™ February 2025, average price of gold was at USD 2,388.0 per toz in CY2024. As per the World Bank
Commodity Markets Outlook of October 2024, the global prices of gold are expected to decline from USD2,388.0
per toz in CY2024 to USD2,250.0 per toz in CY2026P. With increase in LTV, the asset portfolio of gold finance
companies become more vulnerable if gold price crash suddenly. This is because the safety margin reduces with
higher LTV. Banks would be exposed to greater risk due to higher LTV.

Global Gold Prices Projections (CY21-CY26P)
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Regulatory pressure

At present, every NBFCs-ND-SI is required to make a provision for standard assets at 0.4% of the outstanding.
In March 2017, RBI stated that NBFCs cannot disburse more than INR20,000/- in cash against the gold loans.
This RBI move is being part of its go digital drive post demonetization. RBI had increased the maximum limit for
LTV for gold loans for scheduled commercial banks to 90% (earlier it was 75%) till March 2021 but it was brought
back to 75% post 31st March 2021. The LTV is still 75% for NBFCs. The objective behind increasing the LTV
would be to provide some lending room for the lenders. The higher LTV ratio suggests more credit risk for the
lenders as the collateral available in the form of gold ornaments or jewellery may not be sufficient to fully cover
both principal and interest components on these loans. Higher LTV could adversely impact the recoverability and
asset quality of lenders in the case of a weakening in the borrower’s credit risk profile and/or sharp decline in gold
prices.

Security Threats and Risks of Theft
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One of the principal risks in the operations of gold loan NBFCs are robbery and employee theft or fraud which
needs to be safeguarded. To safeguard against theft or loss of collateralized gold NBFCs install safe vaults, in-
house or outsourced storage model, electronic surveillance, internal and external audits and insurance.

Lack of financial literacy among rural customers

The customer segment living in remote areas is financially illiterate and till date they are under the impression
that they are not eligible for any loans from the organized (banks, NBFCs, financial institutions) sector and they
approach local moneylenders. This financial illiteracy among rural people is a factor that hampers the growth of
market to a great extent.

Young Indians attraction to alternative jewellery

India is the largest consumer of gold in the world. From last few years the young population of India is more
inclined towards high-end designer and gem-set jewellery with a preference to platinum and diamonds. This
indicates buying patterns are shifting and the demand for plain gold jewellery is declining especially in the urban
areas. As per industry reports, India is the world’s fourth largest platinum market and customers have the assurance
of buy-back similar to gold ornaments. In recent times, diamonds are also gaining equal popularity to gold as an
investment option. Further, the Indian Commaodity Exchange is offering a Systematic Investment Plan to acquire
precious stones for retail buyers. Since, the last seven years, gold and platinum have appreciated by a similar
extent. All these are indicators of slightly diminishing popularity of gold amongst the urban youth in urban
markets.

Change in Savings Pattern

The youth are turning towards alternative options such as equity markets/mutual funds for wealth creation as
against traditional method of buying gold. Also, the percentage of discretionary spending is also rising day by
day. These alternate investment options are gaining more traction.

Data Security

Protection of data is the most importance given to the rise of cyberattacks through malware and phishing targeted
at the confidential client information. All the financial institutions need to make sure that sufficient attention is
given to such challenges and a strong network and data infrastructure is in place which would be capable of
preventing such attacks.

According to industry sources, cyber-crime is the third most reported fraud across the financial sector. The RBI

directed that all NBFCs were required to have a board-approved information security policy with the following

basic tenets:

¢ Confidentiality - Ensuring access to sensitive data to authorized users only.

e Integrity - Ensuring accuracy and reliability of information by ensuring that there is no modification without
authorization.

e Availability - Ensuring that uninterrupted data is available to users when it is needed.

e Authenticity - For information security it is necessary to ensure that the data, transactions, communications
or documents (electronic or physical) are genuine.
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OUR BUSINESS

Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context otherwise requires or in respect of certain operation data, the
financial information for the Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 included herein is derived from the Audited Financial
Statements and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 is derived from the Unaudited Financial
Results as included in this Prospectus. You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our Audited
Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial Results. We publish our financial statements in Indian Rupees.
Our Financial Year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the subsequent year, and references to a
particular Financial Year are for the 12 months ended March 31 of that year.

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our strengths
and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties.
This section should be read in conjunction with “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 14 for a discussion of
the risks and uncertainties related to such statements, “Risk Factors” on page 16 for a discussion of certain
factors that may affect our business, financial condition or results of operations and also “Industry Overview”
and “Financial Information” on pages 61 and 129 respectively. Our actual results may differ materially from
those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements.

In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, references to “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company” or “our
Company” refer to Muthoot Mercantile Limited.

The industry-related information contained in this section is derived from the Fitch Report, which has been
exclusively commissioned and paid for by our Company only for the purposes of confirming our understanding
of the industry in connection with the Issue.

Overview

We are a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company- base layer (NBFC — Base Layer) registered with the
RBI bearing registration no. N-16-00178 dated December 12, 2002 under section 45-1A of the RBI Act primarily
engaged in the gold loan sector lending money against the pledge of household and/or used gold jewellery (“Gold
Loan”) primarily to retail customers who require immediate availability of funds, but who do not have access to
formal credit on an immediate basis and are also engaged in providing unsecured loans (“Pronote Loan”) to
individual customers for their personal needs. As of February 28, 2025, we disbursed Gold Loan and Pronote
Loan to our customers from a network of 288 branches of our Company in 11 states and union territories of India
namely Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Delhi, Haryana, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, West
Bengal and Rajasthan. As of February 28, 2025, we employed 1,014 persons in our operations. Our branches
function as the key point of contact for loan origination, disbursement, and collection processes as well as
facilitating customer interaction

We are headquartered in the south Indian state of Kerala. Our Company commenced operations from
Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala and have decades of established history in the money lending business, mainly in
small-scale money lending against household and/or used gold jewellery. Our operating history has evolved over
a period of 84 years since late M. Ninan Muthoot (the father of our Promoter, Mathew Mathaininan) founded a
gold loan business in 1939 under the heritage of a trading business which was originally established in the year
1925. Since our formation, we have broadened the scale and geographic scope of our gold loan operations. For
nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022, our interest income from our Gold
Loan business constituted 95.76%, 95.27%, 96.58% and 98.66% respectively of our total income. Historically,
we have also provided other related services, including asset finance, money transfer and foreign exchange, sales
of gold coins and business and personal lending. Our Company was incorporated as a Public Limited Company
in the year 1997 and was registered as a NBFC by the Reserve Bank of India in the year 2002. We are also having
arrangements with various agencies and brokers for Money Transfer and Insurance Business.

Our Gold Loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024 comprised approximately 1.55 lakh customers aggregating a
principal amount of X 79,559.89 lakhs in Gold Loan, which accounted for 99.84% of our total loans. Our Gold
Loan portfolio as of Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023, and Fiscal 2022 had outstanding principal amounting to X 64,659.27
lakhs, 349,469.77 lakhs, and ¥33,255.80 lakhs respectively and has grown at a CAGR of 39.44% from Fiscal 2022
to Fiscal 2024.

We have developed various Gold Loan schemes, which offer variable terms in relation to the amount advanced
per gram of gold, the interest rate and the quantum of the loan, to meet different needs of various customers. Our
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Gold Loan customers are largely individuals from rural, semi-urban areas and metro cities, including, Mumbai
and Delhi, who typically require funds for social obligations, emergencies, agriculture-related activities, small
scale business operations or consumption purposes.

We believe that our focus on non-organized sections of society and our faster turn-around time are among the
factors which distinguish us from banks. Loan amounts advanced by us are generally in the range of 1,000 to
%100.00 lakhs per loan transaction. All our Gold Loan had a maximum tenure of 12 months. Our Gold Loan
portfolio yield for nine months period ended December 31, 2024 (representing interest income on Gold Loan as
a percentage of average outstanding at December 31, 2024), was 20.71% annualized.

We also provide Pronote Loan which are unsecured loans to our existing customers for their personal needs
including consumption needs. Our Pronote Loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024 had outstanding principal
amount of X 129.42 lakhs, which accounted for 0.16% of our total loans outstanding.

The following table sets forth certain key financial measures for us as of/for the years/period indicated:

(< in lakhs)

Metric Nine months period | As of and for the financial year ended March 31,

ended

December 31, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Gold Loan 77,559.89 64,659.27 49,469.77 33,255.80
Pronote Loan 129.42 1,654.74 1,269.02 596.13
Total AUM 79,689.31 66,314.01 50,738.79 33,851.93
Growth rate of AUM 26.89% 30.70% 49.88% 18.91%
(Annualized)
Gross NPA 719.87 346.14 139.16 123.56
Gross NPA (%) 0.90% 0.52% 0.27% 0.37%
Net NPA 559.03 231.32 58.20 111.08
Net NPA (%) 0.70% 0.35% 0.11% 0.33%
Average Interest Margin 20.69% 21.83% 22.01% 21.25%
(Interest Income/ Avg.
AUM)
Capital Adequacy Ratio 26.01% 29.82% 37.93% 47.66%
(%)
Net worth 17,800.30 15,858.04 13,556.33 11,737.31

Historically, we have raised capital by issuing secured non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis,
subordinated debt, loans from banks and financial institutions. As of nine months period ended December 31,
Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022, our total outstanding debt was % 69,437.09 lakhs, % 54,430.40 lakhs, ¥43,771.83 lakhs
and 27,864.39 lakhs, respectively and our finance cost was X 5,269.31 lakhs, 5,262.98 lakhs, 23,271.94 lakhs,
and X 2,207.48 lakhs respectively.

Key Operational and Financial Parameter based on the Unaudited Financial Results and Audited Financial
Statements

A summary of our key operational and financial parameters for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024
and last three completed financial years of the Company on a standalone basis are as under:

A. Based on the Unaudited Financial Results-

Details for key operational and financial parameters for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024

(In X lakhs)

Particulars December 31, 2024
PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 11,613.95
Other Income 80.79
Total Income 11,694.74
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Particulars December 31, 2024
Total Expense (including tax expense) 9,719.14
Profit after tax for the year 1,975.60
Other Comprehensive income (57.03)
Total Comprehensive Income 1,918.57|
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 5.42
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 5.42
/Additional Information

Net worth 17,800.30
Cash and cash equivalents N.A.
Loans N.A.
Loans (Principal Amount) N.A.
Total Debts to Total Assets N.A.
Interest Income 11,516.36
Interest Expense 5,269.31
Impairment on Financial Instruments 231.13
Bad Debts to Loans N.A.
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans (Principal Amount) N.A.
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans (Principal Amount) N.A.
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 19.30%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 6.71%

N.A. — Not available

B. Based on the Audited Ind AS Financial Statements

(In % lakhs)

Particulars Fiscal 2024
BALANCE SHEET

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 642.01
Financial Assets 73,937.44
Non-financial Assets excluding property, plant and equipment 5,325.88
Total Assets 79,905.33
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

-Derivative financial instruments -
-Trade Payables 119.74
-Debt Securities 14,050.62
-Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 19,271.94
-Subordinated liabilities 20,978.08
-Other financial liabilities 7,786.49
Non-Financial Liabilities

-Current tax liabilities (net) 930.86
-Provisions 117.92
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) -
-Other non-financial liabilities 91.74
Equity (Equity Share Capital and Other Equity) 16,557.95
Total Liabilities and Equity 79,905.33
PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 12,993.00
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Particulars Fiscal 2024
Other Income 184.91
Total Income 13,177.91
[Total Expense 10,658.32
Profit after tax for the year 2,519.60
Other Comprehensive income 11.77
Total Comprehensive Income 2,531.37
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 8.25)
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 8.25
Cash Flow
Net cash from / used in(-) operating activities (10,875.19)
Net cash from / used in(-) investing activities (1,737.57)
Net cash from / used in (-)financing activities 9,125.46
Net increase/decrease(-) in cash and cash equivalents (3,487.29)
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement as at end of year/period 1,066.27
/Additional Information
Net worth 15,858.04
Cash and cash equivalents 1,066.27
Loans 66,138.56
Loans (Principal Amount) 66,314.01
Total Debts to Total Assets 67.96%
Interest Income 12,777.58
Interest Expense 5,262.98
Impairment on Financial Instruments (ECL Provision) 102.38
Bad Debts to Loans -
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans(Principal Amount) 0.52%
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans (Principal Amount) 0.37%
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 20.87%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 8.95%
C. Based on the Audited IGAAP Financial Statements

(In X lakhs
Particulars Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 579.42 423.98
Financial Assets 59,210.68 40,805.52
Non-financial Assets excluding property, plant and equipment 860.46 806.24
Total Assets 60,650.56 42,035.74
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative financial instruments - -
-Trade Payables - -
-Debt Securities 5,173.97 4,495.85
-Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 18,174.31 8,006.66
-Subordinated liabilities 20,423.55 15,362.54
-Other financial liabilities 2,045.70 1,329.29
Non-Financial Liabilities
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Particulars Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
-Current tax liabilities (net) 677.28 614.13
-Provisions 320.83 193.43
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - -
-Other non-financial liabilities 278.49 296.53
Equity (Equity Share Capital and Other Equity) 13,556.33 11,737.31
Total Liabilities and Equity 60,650.56 42,035.74
PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue from operations 9,430.97 6,673.83
Other Income 35.86 28.56
Total Income 9,466.83 6,702.39
Total Expense 7,647.81 4,999.97
Profit after tax for the year 1,819.02 1,702.42
Other Comprehensive income NA NA
Total Comprehensive Income NA NA
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 6.18 5.79
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 6.18 5.79
Cash Flow

Net cash from / used in(-) operating activities (15,544.08) (3,269.11)
Net cash from / used in(-) investing activities 756.82 (1,320.47)
Net cash from / used in (-)financing activities 15,876.63 7,851.06
Net increase/decrease(-) in cash and cash equivalents 1,089.37 3,261.48
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement as at end of year/period 4,553.66 3,464.29
/Additional Information

Net worth 13,556.33 11,737.31
Cash and cash equivalents 4,553.66 3,464.29
Loans 50,738.79 33,851.92
Loans (Principal Amount) 50,738.79 33,851.92
Total Debts to Total Assets 75.58% 69.50%
Interest Income 9,310.02 6,622.15
Interest Expense 3,271.94 2,207.48
Impairment on Financial Instruments - -
Bad Debts to Loans - -
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans (Principal Amount) NA NA
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans (Principal Amount) NA NA
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 25.13% 31.62%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 12.80% 16.04%

Note: 1) Items such as Other Comprehensive income, Total Comprehensive Income, Stage 3 loans were not to be
disclosed as per the financial statements prepared under IGAAP so the items are disclosed as “NA” (“Not

Applicable™).

2) Stage 3 Loans were not disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ended on March
31, 2023, and March 31, 2022, respectively as it was not required to be disclosed under IGAAP. The NPA position

as on March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022 are as under:

Particulars For the financial years ended

March 31, 2023

| March 31, 2022
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Gross NPA (%) 0.27% 0.37%
Net NPA (%) 0.11% 0.33%

3) Total Debts to Total assets = Debt securities + Borrowings (other than debt securities) + Subordinated liabilities/
Total Assets

4) Net worth (under Ind AS) = Total Equity (-) Prepaid Expenses (-) Deferred Tax Assets (-) Intangible Assets (-
) impairment reserve

5) Net worth (IGAAP) = Equity Share Capital + Reserve and Surplus

Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following are our key strengths:
Strong brand name, track record in India with a long operating history

We are headquartered in the south Indian state of Kerala. Our Company commenced operations from
Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala and have decades of established history in the money lending business, mainly in
small-scale money lending against household and/or used gold jewellery. Our operating history has evolved over
a period of 84 years since late M. Ninan Muthoot (the father of our Promoter, Mathew Mathaininan) founded a
gold loan business in 1939 under the heritage of a trading business which was originally established in the year
1925. Since our formation, we have broadened the scale and geographic scope of our gold loan operations. We
have established an effective process for origination, monitoring and collecting receivables through our branches
and believe that has helped created a strong brand image in the Gold Loan market by catering to the expectations
of our Gold Loan customer. Promoted by the Muthoot family, we believe that our long operating history, track
record, management expertise and Promoters support have established a strong brand name for us in the markets
we serve. A strong brand name has contributed to our ability to earn the trust of individuals who entrust us with
their gold jewellery and will be key in allowing us to further expand business operations across India.

Our Gold Loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024, comprised approximately 1.55 lakhs customers aggregating a
principal amount of ¥79,559.89 lakhs in Gold Loan, which accounted for 99.84% of our total loans. We attribute
our growth, in part, to our market penetration, particularly in areas less served by organized lending institutions
and the efficient and streamlined procedural formalities which our customers need to complete in order to
complete a loan transaction with us, which makes us a preferred mode of finance for our customers. We also
attribute our growth to customer loyalty which in turn leads to repeat business. We believe that a large portion of
our customer base returns to us when they are in need of funds.

Flexible loan schemes, high quality customer service and short response time

We believe the growth in our Gold Loan portfolio is partly due to the flexible gold loan schemes which offer
variable terms in relation to the amount advanced per gram of gold, the interest rate and the quantum of the loan,
to meet different needs of various customers. Depending on the needs of each customer, we are able to customize
loans for our customers in terms of the loan amount, advance rate per gram of gold and interest rate. We also
allow customers to prepay their loans availed from us without penalty. Further, we also provide shorter tenure
loans which is up to 12 months (depending on the customer’s requirement) at the discretion of the Company, to
facilitate lower interest burden on the customers. The LTV varies across the various Gold Loan schemes and is
dependent on the specific scheme opted for by a customer.

Our products and services are aligned to the lifestyle and needs of our customers. We adhere to a strict set of
market survey and location guidelines at the time of selecting branch sites to ensure that our branches are set up
close to our customers. We provide our customers with a transparent process and a clean, attractive and secure
environment in which to transact their business, and we believe that our staff is professional, adequately trained
and attentive at all our branch locations. Each of our branches is staffed with customer representatives who possess
local knowledge and understanding of customers’ needs. In addition, we strive to complete our Gold Loan
transactions within a short time frame, which we believe is an important component in our competitive edge over
other lenders. We believe that we are able to process Gold Loan within a short time frame as a result of our
efficient technology support, skilled workforce and clear policies on internal processes. Although the duration for
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disbursement may vary due to the loan size and the number of items pledged, we have the ability to disburse loans
within short period from the time gold is tendered to the appraiser.

Furthermore, since our Gold Loan are all collateralized by gold jewellery, there are minimal documentary and
credit assessment requirements, which also shorten our turnaround time and increases the ease with which our
customers can do business with us. We believe our high quality customer service and short response time are
significant competitive strengths that differentiate our services and products from those provided by other lenders
including commercial banks.

Geographical reach of our branch network

We have steadily expanded our branch network in the past, which we believe has provided us with an advantage
over our competitors. The total number of branches of our Company grew from 178 branches in 9 states and union
territories of India as at March 31, 2022 to 288 branches in 11 states and union territories as at February 28, 2025.
Although we have historically had most of our branches in the states of Kerala, we have expanded our branch
network to the other states and currently have 202 branches in states other than Kerala as on February 28, 2025.
Our customers are typically retail customers, small business persons, vendors, traders, farmers and salaried
individuals, who for reasons of convenience, accessibility or necessity, avail our credit facilities by pledging their
gold with us rather than taking loans from banks and other financial institutions. A significant proportion of our
branches are located in rural locations and in semi-urban locations. We believe that we have a wide reach in rural
markets in this category. Our reach in rural and semi-urban locations gives us an added advantage of being able
to reach a large set of potential rural customers. In order to manage our expanding operations as well as our
increased customer base, we have developed a proprietary technology framework that provides an integrated,
robust platform to run our operations and scale our branch network. We intend to continue to develop our
technology framework in order to equip ourselves for further growth of our business.

Experienced Management Team and Skilled Personnel

Our Promoters and Key Managerial Personnel have extensive experience and in-depth industry knowledge in the
gold loan business and we believe that their considerable knowledge of, and experience in, the industry enhances
our ability to operate effectively. Our staff, including professionals, covers a variety of disciplines, including gold
appraisal, internal audit, technology, accounting, marketing and sales. Mathew Mathaininan is a Mechanical
Engineering graduate with a work experience of more than 60 years in the financial services and chitty business.
Our Managing Director Richi Mathew is a Computer Engineering graduate, has a work experience of more than
20 years in the Financial Sector.

We believe that the in-depth industry knowledge and loyalty of our management and professionals provide us
with a distinct competitive advantage. Our management has experience in identifying market trends and suitable
locations for expanding and setting up branches to suit our target customers. Our management further promotes a
result-oriented culture that rewards our employees on the basis of merit. Our workforce also consists of appraisers
who are skilled in the evaluation of the worth and authenticity of the gold that is pledged with us and we conduct
periodic training programs to augment their knowledge and efficiency in performing this task. In order to
strengthen our credit appraisal and risk management systems and to develop and implement our credit policies,
we have hired a number of senior managers who have extensive experience in the Indian banking and financial
services sector and in specialized finance firms providing loans to retail customers.

Effective internal controls and risk management systems

Risk management forms an integral part of our business as we are exposed to various risks relating to our business.
We believe that we have effective internal controls and risk management systems that allow us to assess and
monitor risks across our business lines. Our lending functions are supported by an in-house, custom developed
information technology platform that allows us to, among other things, record relevant customer details, approve
and disburse the loan, manage access to the strong rooms at all our branches from our head office. Our technology
platform also handles internal audit, risk monitoring and management of the relevant loan and pledged gold related
information. Our internal audit is carried out by a team of gold inspectors and internal auditors specially identified
for the purpose based on a schedule fixed by the risk management team in our head office. Our Board has
constituted various committees, including the Audit Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee and Risk
Management Committee, to monitor and manage risks at various levels. For details of Committees, please refer
to section titled ‘Our Management’ on page 112. We place emphasis on risk management measures to maintain
an appropriate balance between risk and return and have taken steps to implement comprehensive policies and
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procedures to identify, measure, monitor and manage risks. New loan schemes under loan products are launched
as approved in meeting of the management team consisting of heads of departments. Such meetings are held as
required and approvals are granted taking into account the lending policy approved by the Board. We believe that
we have effective procedures for evaluating and managing the market, credit and other relevant risks.

Strategy

Our business strategy is designed to capitalize on our competitive strengths and enhance our market position in
the Gold Loan industry. Key elements of our strategy include:

Further strengthen and grow our Gold Loan business

Historically, Indians have been one of the largest consumers of gold due to the strong preference for gold jewellery
among Indian households and its widespread use as a savings instrument. Further, the market for our loan products
was traditionally confined to lower and middle income groups, who viewed Gold Loan as an option of the last
resort in case of instant requirement of money. As per report issued by FSIAPL, factors such as lack of reach of
banking to rural and lower-income groups, rising consumerism in rural areas, changing attitudes towards Gold
Loan, ease of availability of Gold Loan, untapped opportunities in the non-south regions and lower default rates
could lead to exponential growth in Gold Loan business at a CAGR of 12% till Fiscal 2027. We have undertaken
and intend to continue undertaking sustained marketing efforts to diminish the stigma attached to pledging gold
jewellery in India and further capture the untapped opportunity. We continue to work to position Gold Loan as a
convenient or lifestyle product and expand our customer base to include upper-middle income and upper income
groups. We continue to emphasize our Gold Loan products' key advantages of expediency and minimal
documentation, and alter the image of Gold Loan from an option of the last resort to an option of convenience.

We believe that we have built a recognizable brand in the rural and semi-urban markets of India, largely in the
southern states of Kerala and Tamil Nadu and are growing our presence in Maharashtra, Delhi, Haryana, Orrisa,
Punjab and other parts of India. We intend to leverage on our well connected branch network to strengthen our
position in existing markets and reach out to customers in newer markets. To further strengthen our brand equity,
we have a planned and consistent marketing approach based on long term as well as short term marketing goals.

Expand branch network and geographical reach

We intend to continuously grow our loan portfolio by expanding our network through the addition of new
branches. In order to optimize our expansion, we carefully assess potential markets by analyzing demographic,
competitive and regulatory factors, site selection and availability, and growth potential. We have a long-standing
presence in southern India and have expanded operations in other states than southern India. Our strategy for
branch expansion includes further strengthening our market position in south Indian states by providing higher
accessibility to customers as well as leveraging our expertise and presence in Kerala and Maharashtra. We also
seek to enhance our presence in other regions of India, particularly in northern and western India, where we intend
to open branches in most states. As a strategy, we will continue to leverage on the brand image and reputation of
‘Muthoot Ninan Group’ to further expand our business operations. We had 178 branches in Fiscal 2022 and have
added 39 branches and 25 branches in Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2024, respectively. Subsequently, we have opened
46 branches as of February 28, 2025 and our Company had a total of 288 branches located across 11 states and
union territories of India. Based on our branch expansion strategy, we expect to penetrate new markets and expand
our customer base in rural and semi-urban markets where a large portion of the population has limited access to
credit either because they do not meet the eligibility requirements of banks or financial institutions, or because
credit is not available in a timely manner at reasonable rates of interest, or at all. We also intend to increase our
efforts on increasing the number of customers in our existing branches, thereby increasing our loan portfolio while
continuing to expand our branch network.

Strengthen our operating processes and risk management systems

Risk management forms an integral part of our business as we are exposed to various risks relating to the Gold
Loan business. The objective of our risk management systems is to measure and monitor the various risks we are
subject to and to implement policies and procedures to address such risks. We intend to continue to improve our
operating processes and risk management systems that will further enhance our ability to manage the risks inherent
to our business. For example, we have installed surveillance cameras in all our branches across India, centralised
control on access to strong rooms. Furthermore, we intend to continue to train existing and new employees in
appraisal skills, customer relations, communication skills and risk management procedures, update our employees
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with latest developments to mitigate risks against frauds, cheating and spurious gold and strengthen their gold
assessment skills.

Corporate Structure

The following diagram sets out an overview of our group structure as of the date of this Prospectus:
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Our Gold Loan Business

Our core business is providing Gold Loan, which are typically small ticket loans secured by the pledge of
household, and/or used gold jewellery. Loan amounts advanced by us are typically within the range of X 1,000.00
to T 100 lakhs per loan transaction and are typically for short tenor of up to 12 months. However, there is no
maximum limit on the amount of Gold Loan to be advanced to any customer. As of nine months period ended
December 31, 2024, Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022, we had Gold Loan outstanding aggregating to ¥79,559.89 lakhs,
% 64,659.27 lakhs, ¥49,469.77 lakhs and %33,255.80 lakhs in principal amount.

We are able to offer a variety of Gold Loan schemes to our customers to suit their individual needs. We have
developed various Gold Loan schemes which offer variable terms in relation to the amount advanced per gram of
gold, the interest rate and the quantum of the loan, to meet different needs of various customers. The schemes
differ in relation to the amount advanced per evaluated gram of gold, the interest rate chargeable, the number of
days the scheme is valid and the amount of the loan. The elements of a scheme do not remain constant and are
dependent on external factors such as the market price of gold, our cost of funds, the advance and the rate of
interest that is offered by our competitors.

In the Fiscals 2022, 2023, 2024 and as on nine months period ended December 31, 2024 our gross Gold Loan

portfolio yield representing net interest income on gross Gold loan as a percentage of gross average outstanding
of Gold Loan were 21.43%, 22.10%, 22.00%, and 20.71% per annum respectively. In Fiscals 2022, 2023, 2024

100



and as on nine months period ended December 31, 2024 interest income from Gold Loan constituted 98.66%,
96.58%, 95.27 % and 95.76% respectively, of our total revenue. For Fiscal 2024, the average loan amount
advanced by us was approximately 20.53 lakhs per loan transaction.

Loan Disbursement Process

The principal form of security that we accept is household, gold jewellery. The RBI Master Directions provide
that NBFCs shall not grant any advance against primary gold, gold bullion, gold coins and bars, units of Exchange
Traded Funds (ETF) and units of gold mutual fund. We restrict acceptance of jewellery from other money lenders.
Our internal policies have been suitably modified to ensure the same. While these restrictions narrow the pool of
assets that may be provided to us as security, we believe that it provides us with the following key advantages:

o It filters out spurious jewellery that may be pledged by jewellers and goldsmiths. We find that household,
used jewellery is less likely to be spurious or fake.

e The emotional value attached by each household to the pledged jewellery acts as a strong incentive for
timely repayment of loans and revoking the pledge.

e As we only accept the pledge of household jewellery, the value of the pledged gold is typically only as
much as the worth of gold that is owned by an average Indian household. This prevents our exposure to
large-sized loans where the chances of default and subsequent losses are high.

The amount that we finance against the pledged gold jewellery is typically based on a fixed rate per gram of gold
content in the jewellery. We value the gold jewellery brought by customers based on our centralized policies and
guidelines. We generally lend up to 75.00% of the value of jewellery (basis the category of gold loan scheme of
the 22 carat gold price based on 30 days average price of 22 carat gold declared by India Bullion and Jewellers
Association Limited, as per RBI guidelines). As per our internal Gold Loan manual, we do not accept household
gold jewellery below 19 carats as security for Gold Loan.

The actual loan amount varies according to the type of jewellery pledged. While jewellery can be appraised based
on a variety of factors, such as total weight, weight of gold content, production cost, style, brand and value of any
gemstones, we appraise the gold jewellery solely based on its gold content. Our Gold Loans are, therefore,
generally well collateralized because the actual value of the gold jewellery is higher than our appraised value
when the loan is disbursed. The amount we lend against an item and the total value of the pledged gold we hold
fluctuates according to the market price of gold. An increase in the price of gold will not automatically result in
an increase in the value of our Gold Loan portfolio unless the rate per gram is revised by our Registered Office.
It only results in a favourable movement in the value of the security, pledged with us. Similarly, since adequate
margins are built in at the time of the loan disbursement and owing to the short tenure of these loans, on average,
a decrease in the price of gold generally has little impact on our interest income. However, a sustained decrease
in the market price of gold could cause a decrease in the growth rate of Gold Loans in our loan portfolio.

All our Gold Loans have a maximum term of 365 days. In the event that a loan is not repaid on time and after
providing due notice to the customer, the unredeemed pledged gold is disposed off, on behalf of the customer in
satisfaction of the principal and interest charges. Any surplus arising out of the disposal of the pledged gold is
refunded to the customer or is appropriated towards any other liability by the borrower. In the event that the
recoverable amount is more than the realizable value of the pledged gold, the customer remains liable for the
shortfall.

We make provisions for losses that we believe are not recoverable from the customer when the respective loans
remain outstanding after 90 days from the date of agreed tenor of the loan.

The processes involved in approving and disbursing a Gold Loan are divided into three phases:
e  Pre-disbursement,
e  Post-disbursement;

and

e Release of the pledge
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Pre-Disbursement

Pre-disbursement processes include all the actions that are carried out from the moment a customer enters any of
our branches for procuring a Gold Loan until the customer receives the loan amount and include the following:

Identification and Appraisal of the Customer

Gold Loans are sanctioned only to genuine borrowers. Gold loans are sanctioned only to genuine borrowers.
Compliance with the KYC policies ensures that the personal data provided by a particular customer is accurate.
For all loans, the customer must provide a document that confirms the customer’s identity, which could be a
Government issued document, such as a passport, driver’s license, PAN card, voter identification card, ration card
or UIDAI card (Aadhar) and proof of address required. For mandatory compliance of KYC norms, as mandated
by RBI and easy identification of each borrower, a photograph, proof of identity and address are always obtained.
Any KYC document that is received is verified for authenticity. A KYC register is maintained in every branch to
enter all KYC related details of our customers. We also maintain and file electronic copies of all KYC documents
at each branch, retain a photograph of each customer captured through web-cameras installed in our branches, and
confirm the customer’s mobile number by generation of a unique identification number through text message at
the time of the pledge.

The RBI Master Directions provides that Gold Loan NBFCs have been mandated to insist on a copy of the PAN
card of the borrower for all transaction above ¥500,000. Further, where the gold jewellery pledged by a borrower
at any one time or cumulatively on loan outstanding is more than 20 grams, NBFCs must keep record of the
verification of the ownership of the jewellery. Further, it is not necessary to produce original receipts to establish
ownership. Instead, a suitable document may be prepared to explain how the ownership is determined and an
explicit policy within the overall loan policy must be established by the Company. Our internal policies have been
suitably modified to ensure the same.

Appraisal of Gold

The first step in the process is the appraisal or evaluation of the gold to be used as security for the Gold Loan.
Once the manager is satisfied regarding ownership of the ornaments, the ornaments would then be appraised by
the manager himself and/or other staff members who are assigned with the responsibility of appraising the gold
jewellery. The ornaments being tendered are not appraised by any person who is not associated with our Company
nor are the ornaments sent out of the concerned branch for appraisal. We use the services of our in-house gold
appraisers in case of large value loans. These gold appraisers are professionally qualified for appraising the quality
of gold and usually have multiple years of experience in appraising gold.

Several steps are involved in the gold appraisal process. The process of measuring the “fineness”, or purity, of
gold is referred to as ‘assaying’. There are different methods of assaying the purity of gold. We first test the
authenticity of the gold in accordance with standard guidelines that are applied across all our branches. This
process involves several principal tests, which includes the acid test, the touchstone test, checking for hallmarks
and the sound test. As per our policy, all types of stones are ignored, and their weight reduced from gross weight
when advancing against ornaments. Sufficient margin is, therefore retained for the approximate weight of such
stones and for arriving at eligible loan amount; net weight of the ornaments so arrived at alone is taken into
account. Wherever weight of stones cannot be ascertained, such ornaments are avoided. The manager also verifies
and satisfies himself that the ornaments have been properly tested for purity and details - gross weight as well as
net weight, are correctly noted. He should also confirm correctness of valuation made.

We use weighing machines of high quality at various branches of our Company. Pursuant to RBI Master
Directions, in order to standardize the valuation and make it more transparent to the borrower, gold jewellery
accepted as collateral shall have to be valued at the average of the closing price of 22 carat gold for the preceding
30 days as quoted by the Indian Bullion and Jewellers Association Limited and value of the jewellery of lower
purity in terms of carats shall be proportionately reduced.

Documentation
The standard set of documents that are executed in a typical Gold Loan transaction include the pawn ticket and
the applications cum terms and conditions. Basic details of the pledge, such as the name of the customer and the

net weight of the jewellery pledged is recorded on the gold loan slip, which is retained by us. The pawn ticket,
which contains the details of the customer and the pledged jewellery, is filled in by the employee who appraised
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the gold and a copy is retained by the customer. The terms and conditions that are contained in the application
form empower us to sell the pledged jewellery if the customer defaults on the Gold Loan. After execution of
prescribed documents, a loan ticket detailing the particulars of the loan including the details of the items pledged,
rate per gram, interest rate and maturity date is handed over to the customers along with disbursal of the loan.

Post-Disbursement
Custody of the Pledged Gold

The post disbursement process involves the storage of the pledged gold jewellery. The pledged gold jewellery is
packed in plastic bag and sealed separately by staff of the branch along with the relevant documents about the
loan and the customer are stored in the strong room of the branch. Once lodged in cabinets in the strong room of
the concerned branch, the branch head and the assistant branch head are the joint custodians of the gold. The safes
and strong rooms in which the gold jewellery is kept are built in accordance with industry practice. The strong
rooms are vaults with reinforced concrete cement structures. Separate cupboards are used within the strong rooms
for the safe keeping of the gold collateral. The physical stock of pledge packets is also verified and tallied with
the general ledger on a fortnightly basis and at the time of internal audit and gold inspection. Pursuant to the RBI
Master Directions, the business of granting loans against the security of gold cannot be transacted at places where
there are no proper facilities for storage/security of the gold jewellery. Further, no new branches can be opened
without suitable storage arrangements having been made.

Inventory Control

Once the pledged gold is packed and moved to the safe or strong room, colour coded stickers are affixed on the
packet. Tamper proof stickers are also affixed on the jewellery packets to ensure inventory control. Additional
stickers are used to seal packets by persons examining packages subsequently, including our internal auditors. In
addition to the colour coding, these stickers also contain details of the persons inspecting the gold. We have
procedures in place for random verification of gold packets by the branch heads/ other authorised officers. A
separate register is maintained for updating the details of the stickers used by a branch.

Branch Security and Safety Measures

Ensuring the safety and security of the branch premises is vital to our business since cash and gold inventory are
stored in each branch. Branch security measures implemented by us include:

e Strong Rooms: Every branch of the Company, without exception, is provided with a strong room
constructed as per the specifications of RBI with fireproof strong room doors. This is a provision at each
location to ensure safety of the pledged ornaments, of the clients.

e Access to the strong room is with the help of two distinct keys, which are in the hands of two different
individuals attached to the branch. The strong room has a grill door, joint custody of whose keys are with
the Branch Manager and another staff (the “Joint Custodian”). Both the branch head and the Joint
Custodian hold the keys to grill in the strong room. While this will open the physical locks, as an added
security measure, we have installed an electronic lock that can be opened only through “OTP(One-Time-
Password)” delivered to the Branch head. This is a unique surveillance measure installed and
operationalised by our Company.

e Electronic Security System: All our branches are installed with CCTV cameras and other numerous
surveillance system. Such kind of a surveillance system helps to avert any major incidents of frauds,
thefts, etc. in the branch premises.

e Insurance: Entire gold stock of the branches is insured for their gold content against theft and other
calamities and also fidelity insurance.

Release of the Pledge
Once a loan is fully repaid, the pledged gold jewellery is returned to the customer. The customer has to be present
personally along with the gold loan token, at the branch where the pledge was originally made. The branch will

verify the person with the photo taken at the time of pledge and confirm that there is no foul play and the amount
to be paid is informed to the customer from the software and clarifies doubts if any on the amount demanded. The
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customer pays the amount at the cash counter and the ornaments are taken out of the safe and handed over to the
customer after confirming them with the list of ornaments mentioned in the token and gold loan application form.

When a customer does not repay a loan on or before its maturity, we initiate the recovery process and dispose of
the pledged gold to satisfy the amount owed to us, including both the principal and accrued interest. Before starting
the recovery process, we inform the customer through registered letters or legal notices.

We also reserve the right, subject to notification to the customer, to sell the pledged gold even before a loan
becomes past due in the event the market value of the underlying pledged gold falls below amounts outstanding
on the loan. Pursuant to the RBI Master Directions, the following additional stipulations have been made in respect
to auctioning of gold jewellery:

(i) Auction should be conducted in the same town or taluka in which the branch that has extended the loan
is located and the auction will be conducted only through auctioneers approved and appointed by the
Board;

(i) While auctioning the gold, NBFCs have been mandated to declare a reserve price for the pledged
ornaments. The reserve price for the pledged ornaments should not be less than 85.00% of the previous
30 day average closing price of 22 carat gold as declared by India Bullion and Jewellers Association
Limited and value of the jewellery of lower purity in terms of carats should be proportionately reduced;

(iii) NBFCs have been mandated to provide full details of the value fetched in the auction and the outstanding
dues adjusted and any amount over and above the loan outstanding should be payable to the borrower;
and NBFCs shall disclose in their annual reports, the details of the auctions conducted during the financial
year including the number of loan accounts, outstanding amounts, value fetched and whether any of its
sister concerns participated in the auction.

The situation for auction of the gold ornaments pledged arises only when the borrower has not repaid the dues in
spite of the various opportunities given to him by our Company. Thus, auction of the pledged gold ornaments is
the last measure resorted by our Company to recover the dues from the borrower. It shall be the practice of our
Company to avoid the auction of the ornaments pledged by the customer to the maximum possible extent. Our
Company shall follow up with the borrowers for release of the pledged ornaments before putting the same in the
auction list by sending registered notice reminding the borrowers. Even after putting the ornaments in the auction
list, a last opportunity shall be given to the customer to get the pledged items released by all possible means of
settlement.

If the loan is not settled by the customer even after receipt of the registered notice sent in respect of the overdue
loans, final auction intimation shall be given to the customer by registered post with acknowledgement due giving
him another 15 days’ time and intimating him of date and place of auction. This intimation shall contain the details
of loan such as the loan number, date of loan, net weight of the ornament pledged, principal amount, interest,
additional interest and other charges due from the customer, and total amount due. Our Company keeps the post
office receipt towards proof of intimation/ notice to the customer auction shall be announced to the public by issue
of advertisement in at least two daily newspapers (one in national and one in vernacular language) and shall be
made well in advance before the auction. The auction list shall also be displayed at respective branch office(s).

Pronote Loan

We also offer unsecured loans i.e., Pronote Loan for their personal needs including consumption needs. These
types of loans are provided exclusively to existing customers, with eligibility determined by the branch manager's
credit assessment and the repayment history of the customer. This assessment helps gauge the customer's capacity
to repay both the principal loan amount and the associated interest. Our Pronote Loan portfolio as of nine months
period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 had outstanding principal amounting
to ¥129.42 lakhs, ¥1,654.74 lakhs, X1,269.02 lakhs, and ¥596.13 lakhs respectively. In the Fiscals 2022, 2023,
2024, and as on nine months period ended December 31, 2024 our gross Pronote Loan portfolio yield representing
net interest income on gross Pronote loan as a percentage of average outstanding of Pronote Loan were 3.19%,
17.90%, 15.22% and 19.67% per annum respectively. In Fiscals 2022, 2023 and 2024 and as on nine months
period ended December 31, 2024 interest income from Pronote Loan constituted 0.14%, 1.76%, 1.69%, and
1.13%, respectively, of our total revenue.

Our Other Business:
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Money Transfer Services

We provide money transfer service as a fee-based business for transfer of money from abroad through our
branches. Under our money transfer agreements, with agents of Money Transfer companies we make payment of
money remitted by persons from abroad to the beneficiaries after checking their identity. The money paid by us
on behalf of the agent of the Money Transfer company is refunded to us by the agent on the next working day
after payment. We are entitled to receive a commission for the services provided depending on the number of
transactions and the amount of money transferred.

Risk Management

Risk management forms an integral element of our business. Our risk management policy approved vide board
resolution dated March 3, 2023. Given the changes in the business environment and increase in competition, we
have revised our risk management policy, effective from July 11, 2023. Our risk management policy represents
the standards of risk assessment to be followed by our Company as an NBFC, formulated in line with the RBI
guidelines, and with the approval of the Board of Directors. As a lending institution, we are exposed to various
risks that are related to our gold lending business, including volatility in gold process, regulatory directives and
operating environment.

Our objective in our risk management processes is to ensure growth with profitability within the limits of risk
absorption capacity. The policy lays down a framework for identifying, assessing, and measuring various elements
of risk involved in the business and formulation of procedures and systems for mitigating such risks. The major
types of risk we face in our businesses are credit risk, operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of loss due to the failure of any counterparty to abide by the terms and conditions of
any financial contract with us. Credit risk in our Gold Loan business is relatively low because all our loans are
adequately collateralised with pledged gold jewellery. We aim to reduce credit risk through a rigorous structured
gold appraisal and loan sanction process, an effective system for monitoring the credit portfolio and recovery of
dues. Credit risk is relatively low as the gold jewellery (pledged) as security for our loans are largely household
used jewellery which carry the emotional attachment of the borrower due to which defaults are lesser in number.
In any case they can be readily liquidated, and the possibility of any loss is relatively low.

We also manage credit risk by restricting loans in excess of specified limits to a single customer. For high value
loans (loan amounts exceeding a certain limit), we undertake a credit check on the borrower before higher
exposure is assumed. The methodology for fixation of loan to value or loan per gram is fixed in a manner so as to
even out any large fluctuations. Our internal control system ensures independent verification of gold at the branch
level for all loans. The level of verification at the branch level increases with the quantity of gold pledged. In
addition, the quality of gold is checked by the area head through random check conducted during branch visits.
Post-disbursement of loan, analysis of daily disbursements is undertaken by skilled officials to identify risk prone
accounts which are then subsequently verified by internal auditor team within the shortest possible time.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is broadly defined as the risk of direct or indirect loss due to the failure of systems, people or
processes, or due to external events.

We have instituted a series of checks and balances and internal audit reviews to address the various operational
risks. Loans are considered only after proper KYC procedures for which detailed instructions have been issued
and its compliance monitored. We also have detailed guidelines/procedures on the custody of cash or gold to
address custodial risk, which is a risk associated with the safety and security of gold inventory. We have
implemented centralized software that grants branch personnel access to strong rooms upon receipt of OTPs. This
software is operated from our head office. All pledged gold and cash holdings are suitably and adequately insured
with reputed insurance companies to cover burglary risks.

Process definitions and internal controls also aid in controlling operational risk. For instance, the branch manager
and the assistant branch head are the joint custodians of the pledged gold and cash, indicating that the strong
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rooms or vaults will only be opened granted access if both officials are present. We undertake adequate employee
profiling and background verification checks before hiring. Fidelity Insurance cover has also been taken to protect
the Company from employee frauds.

Market Risk

Market risk arises from any decline in the value of the security due to adverse fluctuation in gold prices. This risk
(to a great extent) is mitigated by the adequate margins we build into our loan to value/loan per gram used to
calculate the loan amount, as well as by linking the LTV calculation to 30 days average price of 22 carat gold
declared by India Bullion and Jewellers Association Limited. Market risk also arises on account of variations in
interest rates on borrowings availed by the Company since interest is payable on the Gold Loan at a predetermined
rate. This risk is mitigated by periodically reviewing the interest rates charged on the Gold Loan, extending only
short term loans which correlate to the interest rate payable on borrowings availed by the Company.

Liquidity Risk

The liquidity risk associated with the business is mitigated by suitably matching the tenure of assets and liabilities.
Gold Loan, typically are short term loans with maximum term upto 12 months. Funding of these Gold Loan is
through a combination of equity, bank borrowings and liability products. We have also implemented a robust
collection and recovery mechanism and cash management system, ensuring adequate undrawn borrowing limits
to meet contingencies, investing surplus funds in liquid investments in approved institutions and schemes,
reducing the level of non-performing loans.

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Foreign currency risk for the Company arises majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings. The
Company’s foreign currency exposures are managed through hedging its foreign currency risk on its foreign
currency borrowings as on March 31, 2024 by entering into forward contracts. The counterparties for such hedge
transactions are banks.

Non-Performing Assets (NPAS)

The Prudential Norms require that every non-deposit taking NBFC shall, after taking into account the degree of
well-defined credit weaknesses and extent of dependence on collateral security for realisation, classify its
lease/hire purchase assets, loans and advances and any other forms of credit into the following classes:

a) Standard assets;

b) Sub-Standard assets;
c) Doubtful assets; and
d) Loss assets

Further, the class of assets referred to above shall not be upgraded merely as a result of rescheduling, unless it
satisfies the conditions required for the upgradation. A non-deposit taking NBFC is required to make provisions
against sub-standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets in the manner provided for in the Prudential Norms. In
terms of the RBI Master Directions, non-deposit taking NBFC has to make inter alia the following provisions on
their loan portfolio:

Asset Classification Provisioning Policy

Standard Assets 0.40% of outstanding amount

Sub-standard Assets 10% of the outstanding amount

Doubtful Assets 100% of unsecured portion + 20% - 50% of
secured portion

Loss Assets 100% provided if not written off

Based on the Prudential Norms for asset classification, details of the classification of our gross NPAs for
significant classes of our assets as of Fiscals 2022, 2023 and 2024 are provided below:
(< in lakhs except %)
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Asset Type Nine months period ended Fiscals

December 31, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Sub-standard 580.05 189.53 114.28 122.77
Doubtful 139.83 139.87 24.88 0.79
Loss - 16.75 - -
Gross NPA 719.87 346.14 139.16 123.56
Gross NPA (%) 0.90% 0.52% 0.27% 0.37%
Less: (160.84) (114.83) (80.96) (12.48)
Provisions
Net NPA 559.03 231.32 58.20 111.08
Net NPA (%) 0.70% 0.35% 0.11% 0.33%

Branch Network and Customer Service

As of February 28, 2025 we had 288 branches located in 11 states and union territories. The distribution of
branches across India by region as of March 31, 2022, March 31,2023, March 31, 2024 and February 28, 2025, is
as set out in the following table:

Ason

Sr. | State/ Union | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 February 28,
No. | territory of India 2025
1. Tamil Nadu 22 17 16 15
2 Kerala 71 69 78 86
3 Delhi 21 23 22 41
4. Haryana 5 7 8 8
5. Maharashtra 24 38 44 38
6 Madhya Pradesh 2 8 12 16
7 Odisha 27 35 40 47
8. | Punjab 4 17 12 14
9. Uttar Pradesh 2 3 6 4
10. | Rajasthan - - 4 5
11. | West Bengal - - - 10
12. | Gujarat - - - 4

Total 178 217 242 288

For further details on our branches please refer the QR code and web link below:

QR Code:

Weblink: https://muthootenterprises.com/pdf/branch-details.pdf

Capital Adequacy Ratio

As per the RBI Master Directions, every NBFC-BL including us are subject to capital adequacy requirements.
Currently, we are required to maintain a minimum capital ratio consisting of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital which shall
not be less than 15% of its aggregate risk weighted assets on balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-
balance sheet items. Further, we need to maintain a Tier 1 capital of 12%. Also, the total of Tier Il capital, at any
point of time, shall not exceed one hundred percent of Tier | capital. Additionally, we are required to transfer up
to 20% of our annual profit to a reserve fund and make provisions for NPAs. We had a capital adequacy ratio of
47.66%, 37.93%, 29.82% and 26.01%, on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, March 31,2024 and nine months
period ended December 31, 2024 respectively.

We have satisfied the minimum capital adequacy ratios prescribed by the RBI for the financial year ended March
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31, 2023.
Technology

We use information technology as a strategic tool for our business operations to improve our overall productivity
and efficiency. The operations of our Company function through CBS software program named “MuthootOne”.
We have moved to this CBS Software System with effect from April 1, 2016. Our Software department is managed
by five engineers and three hardware technicians. We believe that through our information systems which are
currently in place, we are able to manage our operations efficiently, market effectively to our target customers,
and effectively monitor and control risks. We believe that this system has improved customer service by reducing
transaction time and has allowed us to manage loan collection efforts better and to comply with regulatory record-
keeping and reporting requirements. All our branches are computerised.

Funding Sources and Credit Ratings

Source of funding

We have expanded our sources of funds in order to reduce our funding costs, protect interest margins and maintain
a diverse funding portfolio that will enable us to achieve funding stability and liquidity. Our sources of funding
comprise of term loans and working capital limits from bank, issuance of secured and unsecured non-convertible
debentures through private placement and subordinated debts.

Please refer to sections titled “Financial Statements” and “Financial Indebtedness” on pages 129 and 131

Credit Rating

February 24,
2025

with this rating
are considered to

Credit Rating | Instrument Date Ratings Remarks Rated
Agency Amount in
X lakhs
India Ratings Non-Convertible | Credit Rating | IND The rating of | 310,000
Debenture Issue | letter dated July | BBB/Stable NCDs by India
23, 2024 the Ratings indicates
revalidation letter that instruments

have  moderate
degree of safety
regarding timely
servicing of
financial

obligations and
carry moderate
credit risk.

Security threats and measures taken to mitigate them

The principal security risks to our operations are robbery and employee theft or fraud. We have extensive security
and surveillance systems and dedicated security personnel to counter external security threats. To mitigate internal
threats, we undertake careful pre-employment screening, including obtaining references before appointment. We
have installed surveillance cameras across our branches. To protect against robbery, all branch employees work
behind wooden/ glass and steel counters, and the back office, strong room/safe are locked and closed to customers.
We also keep the pledged gold in joint custody. While we provide armed security guards for risk prone branches,
the majority of our branches do not require security guards as the gold jewellery are stored securely in strong
rooms. Since we handle high volumes of cash and gold jewellery at our locations, daily monitoring, spot audits
and immediate responses to irregularities are critical to our operations. We have an internal auditing program that
includes unannounced branch audits and cash counts at randomly selected branches.

Competition

We face competition from banks, NBFCs and other unregulated/unorganised money lenders. Our Board believes
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that we can achieve economies of scale and increased operating efficiencies by increasing the number of branches
under operation and proven operating methods. We believe that the primary elements of competition are the
quality of customer service and relationship management, branch location and the ability to lend competitive
amounts at competitive rates. In addition, we believe the ability to compete effectively will be based increasingly
on strong management, regional market focus, automated management information systems and access to capital.

Property

Our registered office is located in Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala and is owned by some of the Promoters i.e.
Mathew Mathaininan and Ammini Mathew. As of February 28, 2025, we have 288 branches located in 11 states
and union territories of India namely Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Delhi, Haryana, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha,
Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal and Rajasthan all of which are contracted on a leasehold basis.

Intellectual Property

The trademark/service mark and logo in connection with the “” logo is owned by our Chairman Mathew
Mathaininan and is registered with the Trade Marks Registry under class 36 and received a Certificate of
Registration of Trademark bearing number 1267883 dated February 19, 2004. We have obtained permission from
our one of the Promoter i.e. Mathew Mathaininan in writing to use the logo. For further details, see section titled
“Risk Factors” on page 16. As on the date of this Prospectus, we have obtained Five trademark registration with
the Trade Marks Registry under the Trade Marks Act, 1999.

Employees

As on February 28, 2025, we had 1,014 employees engaged in various business operations like sales, marketing,
recovery, audit etc. We adhere to a policy of nurturing dedicated talent by conducting regular training
programmes. We provide training to our employees both as a commitment to their career development and also
to ensure quality service to our customers. These trainings are conducted on joining as part of employee initiation
and include additional on-the-job trainings.

Branding

We have launched many tailor-made marketing communications with the primary objectives of growing the Gold
Loan Category as a whole and creating significant business impact to the brand in terms of new customer
acquisition; besides creating substantial brand awareness and brand recall.

Insurance Coverage

We maintain insurance coverage on all our assets located at our registered and on all our movable assets in branch
premises owned by us against fire, earthquake and related perils. We also maintain insurance against burglaries
at our registered office and at our branches, and against loss by riots, strikes or terrorist activities, cash in transit
and employee theft. We maintain special contingency insurance covering gold in transit, gold in branches and
cash in transit against burglary. Our insurance policies are generally annual policies that we renew regularly.
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN OTHER CORPORATE MATTERS
Brief background of our Company

Our Company was incorporated on March 3, 1997, as ‘Muthoot Mercantile Limited’, a public limited company
under the Companies Act, 1956 with a certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, Kerala
at Kochi. Our Company also obtained the certificate of commencement of business dated March 11, 1997 from
the Registrar of Companies, Kerala at Kochi. The Corporate Identity Number of our Company is
U65921KL1997PLC011260.

Our Company has obtained a Certificate of Registration in the name of Muthoot Mercantile Limited dated
December 12, 2002 bearing registration no. 16.00178 issued by the RBI to commence the business of non-banking
financial institution without accepting public deposits subject to the conditions mentioned in the Certificate of
Registration under Section 45 IA of the RBI Act.

As on date of this Prospectus, Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited and Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited are our
Group Companies.

Registered Office of our Company

The registered office of our Company is located at 1% Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors, Opposite W&C
Hospital, Thycaud, Thiruvananthapuram — 695014, Kerala, India.

Change in Registered Office of our Company

Except as set forth, there has not been any change to the Registered Office since incorporation.

Date Details of registered office Reason for change
At Incorporation F 19, | Floor, Pulickal Trade Centre, Near -

Nagambadam Bridge, Kottayam - 686 006,

Kerala, India.

March 24, 2003 113, Attukal Shopping Complex, East Fort, For effective and efficient business
Thiruvananthapuram — 695023, Kerala, India.

September 1, 2013 1% Floor, North Block, Muthoot Floors, Opposite  For administrative and operational
W&C hospital, Thycaud, Thiruvananthapuram — convenience
695014, Kerala, India.

Main objects of our Company
The main objects of our Company as contained in our Memorandum of Association are:

1. Tocarry onthe business of purchasing or otherwise acquiring and/or financing the purchase of or acquisition
of equipment’s, plant and machinery, air conditioners, generators, fridges, electrical and electronic goods,
land sites, houses, shopping complexes, motor cars, buses, lorries and other automobile vehicles, fishing
vessels including deep sea fishing vessels, computers and equipment’s on hire purchase and or on leasing.

2. To carry on the business of financiers, money lenders, pawn brokers and to receive deposits, borrow and lend
monies with or without security. But the Company shall not do the business of Banking within the meaning
of Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

3. To undertake, carry on and manage the business of Corporate Insurance Agency for all insurance business
of every nature, description and class and soliciting, procuring and servicing insurance products subject to
the laws, regulations and rules in force in the Country.

4. To carry on the business as Authorized Person, Authorized Dealer, Money Changer or otherwise, subject to
the Regulations, approvals and conditions as may be prescribed from time to time by the Reserve Bank of
India.

5. To carry on the business of hire purchase financing to acquire or to purchase or to install the Solar Systems
for energy generations including Solar Photovoltaic, Solar Thermal, Solar Chimney and any other Solar
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based devices used in households, industry and commercial establishments.

Key milestones and major events

Financial year Particulars

1997 Incorporation of our Company as a public limited company

2002 Certificate of registration issued by RBI to our Company to act as non-deposit taking
NBFC

2003 Expanded its operations and opened its first branch outside Kerala in Tamil Nadu
(Vadasserry)

2019 Our operations have expanded beyond South India with the opening of branches East

Chowdwar Branch Odisha Badlapur Branch in the West and Najafgarh Branch, in Delhi
to the North

2021 As on March 31, 2021 our Company crossed 150 branches.

2022 The AUM of the company crossed 50,000 lakhs as on March 31, 2022.

2023 Successfully mobilised 310,420.49 lakhs in the maiden public offer of NCD opened on
December 4, 2023

2024 Our Company crossed 240 branches as on March 31, 2024

Key Agreements

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has not entered into any material agreements which are not in the
ordinary course of business

Holding Company and Subsidiary Company

Our Company does not have a holding company and subsidiary company.
Joint Venture

As at the date of this Prospectus, our Company has no joint ventures.
Associate

As at the date of this Prospectus, our Company has no associate companies as defined under Companies Act,
2013, as amended.

Acquisition or Amalgamation in the preceding one year

Our Company has not made any acquisition or amalgamation in the preceding one year prior, preceding the date
of this Prospectus.

Reorganization or Reconstruction undertaken by our Company in the preceding one year

There have been no reorganization or reconstruction undertaken by our Company in the preceding one year,
preceding the date of this Prospectus.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

The general supervision, direction and management of our Company, its operations, affairs and business are vested
in the Board, which exercises its power subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company
and the requirements of the applicable laws.

The Articles of Association of our Company require us to have not less than three Directors and not more than
fifteen Directors.

The general superintendence, direction and management of our affairs and business are vested in our Board of
Directors. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is
governed by the Articles of Association of our Company, the relevant directions issued by the RBI.

As of the date of this Prospectus, we have six Directors on our Board of Directors including three Executive
Director, one Non-Executive Director and two Independent Directors. Further, the Board of Directors have 2
women directors. The Board of Directors of the Company are in compliance with Companies Act, 2013.

The following table sets forth details regarding the Board as on the date of this Prospectus.

Name, designation, DIN, | Age Date of | Other Directorships

nationality, occupation, date of | (years) appointment

appointment, term and address /reappointment:

Mathew Mathaininan 82 September 5, | 1. Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited
2023 2. Muthoot  Computer  Software

Designation: Chairman and Development and Research Institute

Whole-Time Director Private Limited

3.  Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited
DIN: 00063078

Nationality: Indian

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26,
Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695 003,
Kowdiar, Kerala India.

Richi Mathew 50 September 5, | 1. Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited
2023 2. Richi Mathew Securities Limited

Designation: Managing Director 3. Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited

4. Richi Mathew Software

DIN: 00224336 Technologies Limited.

Nationality: Indian

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26,

Mummy’s Colony,

Kuravankonam,

Thiruvananthapuram — 695 003

Kowdiar, Kerala India

Ammini Mathew 74 September 5, | 1. Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited;
2023 2. Muthoot  Computer  Software

Designation: Whole Time Development and Research Institute

Director Private Limited,;

3.  Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited.
DIN: 00533771

Nationality: Indian

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26,
Mummy’s Colony,
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Name, designation, DIN,
nationality, occupation, date of
appointment, term and address

Age
(years)

Date of
appointment
/reappointment:

Other Directorships

Kuravankonam,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695 003,
Kowdiar, Kerala, India.

Asha Richi Mathew

Designation: Non-Executive
Director

DIN: 05172361
Nationality: Indian

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26,
Mummy’s Colony,
Kuravankonam,
Thiruvananthapuram — 695 003,
Kowdiar, Kerala India.

39

June 2, 2022 and
reappointment
date September
30, 2024

1. Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited:;

Richi Mathew Securities Limited

3. Richi Mathew Software
Technologies Limited.

N

Anthony Robert John

Designation: Independent
Director

DIN: 10213030

Nationality: Indian

Address: Little Flower, Cottage,
Pravachambalam, Nemom P O,

Pallichal, Thiruvananthapuram —
695020, Kerala India.

58

June 26, 2023

NIL

Dillark Justin

Designation: Independent
Director

DIN: 09771752

Nationality: Indian

Address: Pushpa Vihar, TENRA -
124-A, Elankam Nagar, Thycadu

PO, Thiruvananthapuram  —
695014, Kerala, India.

44

October 21, 2022

NIL

Brief Profile of Directors

Mathew Mathaininan is the Chairman and Whole-Time Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in Engineering from University of Mysore. He has been associated with our Company since incorporation.

Richi Mathew is the Managing Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Mangalore University. He has been associated with our Company since July 1, 2002.

Ammini Mathew is the Whole Time Director of our Company. She holds a pre-degree course from the Mysore
University. She has been associated with our Company since 1998.

Asha Richi Mathew is the Non-Executive Director of our Company. She holds a Degree of Master of Business
Administration from the Anna University of Technology Tirunelveli. She has been associated with our Company
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since 2022.

Anthony Robert John is an Independent Director of our Company. He has completed his Masters of Commerce

from the University of Kerala.

Dillark Justin is an Independent Director of our Company. He holds a degree in Bachelors of Law from the

University of Kerala.

Relationship between Directors

Except as stated below, none of our Directors are related to each other.

Name of Director

Designation

Relationship with other Directors

Mathew Mathaininan

Chairman and Whole
Time Director

He is the husband of Ammini Mathew, father of Richi
Mathew and father-in-law of Asha Richi Mathew.

Richi Mathew

Manging Director

He is the son of Mathew Mathaininan and Ammini
Mathew and he is the husband of Asha Richi Mathew.

Ammini Mathew

Whole Time Director

She is wife of Mathew Mathainian, mother of Richi
Mathew and mother-in-law of Asha Richi Mathew.

Asha Richi Mathew

Whole Time Director

She is wife of Richi Mathew and daughter-in-law of
Mathew Mathainian and Ammini Mathew.

Remuneration paid to our Directors

The following table sets forth the remuneration (which includes sitting fees) paid by our Company to our Directors
during the nine months ended December 31, 2024 and during last three financial years ended March 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

(< in lakhs)
Name of Directors  Designation As on As on Ason March As on March
December March 31, 31,2023 31, 2022
31, 2024 2024
Mathew Whole-Time 159.24 94.76 20.70 NIL
Mathaininan Director
Richi Mathew Managing 201.24 145.76 80.20 30.00
Director
Ammini Mathew Whole-Time 18.21 25.15 24.70 24.00
Director
Asha Richi Mathew  Director 9.24 13.15 10.60 NIL
Dillark Justin Director 0.21 0.85 0.10 NIL
(Independent and
Non- executive)
Antony Robert John  Director 0.24 0.85 NIL NIL
(Independent and
Non- executive)
Neelakandan Director NIL - 0.70 NIL
Madaswamy (Independent and
Non- executive)
Reena Verghese Director NIL - 0.20 NIL

Confirmations

No Director of our Company is a director or is otherwise associated in any manner with, any company that appears

in the list of the vanishing companies as maintained by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, wilful defaulter list as
categorized by the RBI or Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited or any other regulatory or

governmental authority.

Our Company does not have any employee stock option scheme.

We also confirm that none of our Directors is restrained or prohibited or debarred from accessing the securities
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market or dealing in securities by the Board. Further, none of our Directors is a promoter or director of another
company which is debarred from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities by SEBI. No Director in
our Company is, or was, a director of any listed company, which has been or was compulsorily delisted from any
recognised stock exchange within a period of ten years preceding the date of this Prospectus, in accordance with
Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021.

None of our Directors have committed any violation of securities laws in the past and no proceedings in such
regard by SEBI or, RBI are pending against any of our Directors.

No Director of our Company is a fugitive economic offender, as defined in the SEBI NCS Regulations.

We confirm that the Permanent Account Number of the Directors and Promoters of the Company has been
submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing the Prospectus.

We confirm that no fine or penalties levied by the Board /Stock Exchanges is pending to be paid at the time of
filing the offer document.

We are not in default of payment of interest or repayment of principal amount in respect of non-convertible
securities, if any, for a period of more than six months.

Borrowing Powers of the Board

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company at their AGM held on September 30, 2024
and in accordance with provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of our Company, the Board has been
authorised to borrow money on and behalf of the Company from time to time as deemed by the Company to be
requisite and proper for the business of the Company, notwithstanding that the monies to be borrowed together
with the monies already borrowed by the Company as per the latest annual audited financial statements (apart
from temporary loans obtained from the company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall not exceed
an amount of X 1,40,000 lakhs .

The aggregate value of the NCDs offered under this Prospectus, together with the existing borrowings of the
Company, is within the approved borrowing limits as abovementioned.

Interest of the Directors

Our Managing Director and Whole Time Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration
paid by our Company as well as to the extent of reimbursement of expenses payable to them. Our Independent
Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of sitting fees, if any, payable to them for attending
meetings of the Board or a committee thereof as well as to the extent of other reimbursement of expenses and/or
to the extent of their shareholding and profit linked incentives payable to them.

Our Directors may be deemed to be interested in the contracts, agreements/ arrangements entered into or to be
entered into by the Company with any company in which they hold directorships or any partnership firm in which
they are partners as declared in their respective capacity. Except as stated in the section “Financial Statements”
on page 129 and to the extent of compensation and commission if any, and their shareholding in the Company,
the Directors do not have any other interest in the business of the Company.

Some of our Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent, including of consideration received/paid or
any loans or advances provided to anybody corporate, including companies, firms, and trusts, in which they are
interested as directors, members, partners or trustees.

Except as stated in this section, “- Interest of our Directors” none of our Directors are interested in their capacity
as a member of any firm or company and no sums have been paid or are proposed to be paid to any Director or to
such firm of company in which he is interested, by any person, in cash or shares or otherwise, either to induce
them or to help them qualify as a director or for services rendered by him or by such firm or company, in
connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.

Our Directors have no interest in any immovable property acquired in the preceding two years of filing this
Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by our Company nor do they have any interest in any transaction regarding
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the acquisition of land, construction of buildings and supply of machinery, etc. with respect to our Company. No
benefit/interest will accrue to our Promoters/Directors out of the proceeds of the Issue.

Except for Richi Mathew, Mathew Mathaininan, Ammini Mathew and Asha Richi Mathew, none of our Directors
are interested in the promotion of our Company, except in the ordinary course of business.

None of our Directors have taken any loan from our Company. Further, our Company has not availed any loans
from the Directors which are currently outstanding.

None of our Directors, Promoters or Key Managerial Personnel have any financial or other material interest in the
offer. None of our Directors are interested in their capacity as a member of any firm or company and no sums
have been paid or are proposed to be paid to any Director or to such firm of company in which he is interested,
by any person, in cash or shares or otherwise, either to induce them or to help them qualify as a director or for
services rendered by him or by such firm or company, in connection with the promotion or formation of our
Company.

For the details of securities purchased or sold by our Directors or their relatives have not in the six month preceding
the date of this Prospectus, refer “Capital Structure” on page 42.

Shareholding of our Directors

Except as stated below, none of our Directors hold any Equity Shares as on December 31, 2024.

Name, Designation and DIN No. of Equity Shares of % of total Equity Shares of

face value 210 each our Company on fully
diluted basis

Mathew Mathaininan 1,30,61,100 35.86

Designation: Chairman and Whole-time

Director

DIN: 00063078

Richi Mathew 1,30,07,317 35.72

Designation: Managing Director

DIN: 00224336

Ammini Mathew 1,16,241 0.32
Designation: Whole Time Director

DIN: 00533771

Asha Richi Mathew 21,85,125 6.00
Designation: Non-Executive Director

DIN: 05172361

Appointment of any relatives of Directors to an Office or place of profit of Company during the preceding
three financial years and as on date of this Prospectus.

None of our Directors’ relatives have been appointed to an office or place of profit of our Company.
Debentures/Subordinated Debt holding of our Directors

As on the date of this Prospectus, except for Mathew Mathaininan, Ammini Mathew and Asha Richi Mathew,
none of our Directors hold debentures or subordinated debt issued by our Company.

Changes in our Directors of our Company during the preceding three financial years and as on date of this
Prospectus

The changes in our Board of Directors of our Company in the preceding three financial years and as on date of
this Prospectus are as follows:

Name, Designation Date of Date of Cessation, Date of Resignation, = Remarks
and DIN Appointment  if applicable if applicable
Reena Verghese March 3, 1997 - August 8, 2022 Resignation
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Name, Designation

and DIN

Date of
Appointment

Date of Cessation,
if applicable

Date of Resignation,
if applicable

Remarks

Designation: Director

DIN: 00533836

Chandrasekharan
Nair Kamparath

Designation:

Independent Director

DIN: 02052516

February 29,
2008

October 3, 2022

Resignation

Neelakandan
Madaswamy
Designation:

Independent Director

DIN: 08023247

December 15,
2017

March 31, 2023

Resignation

Asha Richi Mathew

Appointment

Designation: Director June 2, 2022 - -

DIN: 05172361

Dillark Justin Appointment
Designation: October 21,

Independent Director 2022 i i

DIN: 09771752

Anthony Robert John

Designation:

Independent Director

DIN: 10213030

June 26, 2023

Appointment

Note: This does not include changes such as regularisations or change in designations

Key Managerial Personnel

Our Company’s Key Managerial Personnel are as follows:

1.

Rajeev M R, aged 57 years, is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He holds a degree of Bachelors
of Commerce from the University of Madurai, Master of Commerce from Manonmaniam Sundaranar
University and a fellow member of Institute of Cost and Works Accountants of India. He was appointed as
the Chief Financial Officer of our Company on July 17, 2020. Prior to joining our Company, he was
associated with Anubhav Homes Limited as the Senior Accounts Officer, Tata Housing Development
Company Limited as their Senior Executive - Finance and Asianet Digital Network Private Limited as their
Deputy Vice President — Finance and Accounts.

Arun Kumar V.K, aged 33 years, is the Company Secretary of our Company. He holds a degree of Bachelors
of Commerce from the University of Kerala, Master of Commerce from Annamalai University, Bachelors of
Law from Shri Venketeswara University, associate member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India and
an associate member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He was appointed as the Company
Secretary of our Company on March 06, 2025. Prior to joining our Company, he was associated with Choice
Trading Corporation Private Limited as Company Secretary, SML Finance Limited as Company Secretary,
Baiju Ramachandran Associates’s Corporate Solutions Private Limited as Associate, Cheraman Financial
Services Limited as Company Secretary and Uniroyal Marine Exports Limited as Company Secretary.

For details about our Whole Time Director, please refer to “Our Management” on page 112.

Senior Management

Our Company’s Senior Management are as follows:

S Premkumar aged 63 years is the Assistant General Manager of our Company. He holds a degree of
Bachelors of Law from the University of Kerala and Bachelor of Science Degree from University of Calicut.
He has experience of three decades in different fields of banking. He was associated with South Indian Bank
as the Chief Manager. He has been associated with our Company since March 8, 2022.
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2. Prashanth S aged 42 years is the Chief Manager Business Development Northern Development of our
Company. He holds a Bachelors of Fisheries Science from the Kerala Agricultural University. He was
associated with Hindustan Lever Limited as Marine Supervisor, he was associated with Subiksha Trading
Services Limited as Executive Procurement — F & M and he was associated with Allahabad Bank as the
Officer in IMG, Scale — 1. He has been associated with our Company since January 7, 2022.

All our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management are permanent employees of our Company.
Relationship with other Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

None of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel are related to each other.
Interests of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

Except to the extent of their remuneration or extent of their shareholding or/and benefits to which they are entitled
to as per their terms of appointment and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them during the ordinary course
of business, the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company do not have any
interest in the Company.

Our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management have no financial or other material interest in
the Issue.

Payment or Benefit to Officers of our Company
Nil
Shareholding of our Company’s Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

Except as stated above — Shareholdings of Whole Time Director and Managing Director, none of our Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel hold any Equity shares in our Company as on the date
of this Prospectus.

Related Party Transactions

For details in relation to the related party transactions entered by our Company during the preceding three financial
years and current financial year with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities provided, as per the
requirements specified under the Companies Act, refer Note 38, Note 23 and Note 23 of “Financial Statements”
on page F-184, F - 95, F — 39, respectively for the Financial Year 2024, 2023 and 2022 under chapter “Financial
Statements” beginning on page 129.

Corporate Governance

Our Company believes that good corporate governance is an important constituent in enhancing stakeholder value.
Our Company has in place processes and systems whereby it complies with the requirements to the corporate
governance provided in SEBI Listing Regulations (to the extent applicable to a company which has listed debt
securities) and the applicable RBI Guidelines. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective
independent Board, separation of the supervisory role of the Board from the executive management team and
constitution of the committees of the Board, as required under applicable law. Our Company believes that its
Board is constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Board
functions either as a full Board or through various committees constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

Details of various committees of the Board of Directors
1. Audit Committee

Audit committee was re-constituted by the Board of directors through its resolution dated June 26, 2023. It
currently comprises of the following directors:

| Name of Director | Position in the committee | Designation |
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Mathew Mathaininan Member Chairman cum Whole Time Director
Dillark Justin Member Independent Director
Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

The role of audit committee shall classify into three. Review, Recommendation and approval

. Review of the following
1. Financial reporting process and disclosure
2. Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process

3. Annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:
a. Matters included in the director’s responsibility statement in board report (refer section 134(3) (c) of
the Companies Act, 2013)
Changes in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same
Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings
Compliance with legal requirements
Disclosure of related party transactions
Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report

Q@ 0 o0 T

4. Performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems and adequacy of
internal audit function

5. Findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board

6. Functioning of the whistle blower mechanism
7. End use of funds raised through public offers and related matters
8. Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the followings:

e Statement of related party transactions on quarterly basis.
e Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors
¢ Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses
e The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to
review by the audit committee
1. Approval of the following
1. Payment to statutory auditors for any other services.

2. Transactions and any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties read with policy on
related party transactions.

I11. Recommendation
1. Appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company.
IV. Other Roles

1. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
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Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings

Discussion with statutory auditors about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion
to ascertain any area of concern

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination Committee was re-constituted by a board resolution dated June 26, 2023. It currently
comprises the following Directors:

Name of Director Position in the committee Designation

Mathew Mathaininan Member Chairman cum Whole Time
Director

Dillark Justin Member Independent Director

Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

The roles and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1.

10.

11.

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with criteria as laid down and recommend to Board their appointment and
removal.

Ensure persons proposed to be appointed on the Board do not suffer any disqualifications for being
appointed as a Director under the Companies Act, 2013.

Ensure that the proposed appointees have given their consent in writing to the Company.

Review and carry out every Director’s performance, the structure, size and composition including skills,
knowledge and experience required of the Board compared to its current position and make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes.

Plan for the succession planning for Directors in the course of its work, taking into account the challenges
and opportunities facing the Company and what skills and expertise are therefore needed on the Board
in the future.

Be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise.

Keep under review the leadership needs of the organization, both Executive and Non-Executive, with a
view to ensuring the continued ability of the organization to compete efficiently in the market place.

Ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment
setting out clearly what is expected of them in terms of services and involvement outside Board Meetings.

Determine and agree with the Board the framework for broad policy for criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attitudes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees

Review the on-going appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

Ensure that contractual terms of the agreement that Company enters into with Directors as part of their
employment in the Company are fair to the individual and the Company.
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3.

4.

5.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Ensure that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration and Remuneration Policy as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 or such other acts, rules, regulations or guidelines are complied with.

Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

Draft and submit a Remuneration Policy on Annual Basis for the approval of Board of Directors of the
Company.

Sign and submit copies of the Minutes or Resolutions of the Meetings of the Committee with any judicial,
quasi-judicial, regulatory, other government department or anyone concerned or interested in the matter
signed by the Chairman of the Committee, whenever and wherever required.

Submit Minutes of the Committee Meetings at the subsequent meeting of Board of Directors of the
Company for consideration and approval.

Review and submit an Annual Report for the approval of Board of Directors of the Company.

Asset Liability Management Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee was re-constituted by a Board Resolution dated June 26, 2023
and it currently comprises:

Name of Director Position in the committee Designation

Mathew Mathaininan Member Chairman cum Whole Time
Director

Dillark Justin Member Independent Director

Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

Rajeev M R Member Chief Financial Officer

The scope and function of the Asset Liability Committee and its terms of reference are as follows:

1.

2.

3.

4,

5.

Liquidity risk management
Management of Market risks
Funding & Capital Planning

Profit planning and growth projection

Forecasting and analysing ‘What if scenario’ and preparation of contingency plans.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was re-constituted by a Board Resolution dated June 26, 2023 and it
currently comprises:

Name of Director Position in the committee Designation

Mathew Mathaininan Member Chairman cum Whole Time
Director

Dillark Justin Member Independent Director

Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

Rajeev M R Member Chief Financial Officer

The scope and function of the Risk Management Committee and its terms of reference are as follows:

1. The Risk Management Committee is involved in the process of identification, measurement and migration
of various risks associated with the Company.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee was re-constituted by a Board Resolution dated June 26, 2023 and it

currently comprises:

Name of Director

Position in the committee

Designation

Ammini Mathew Member Whole Time Director
Dillark Justin Member Independent Director
Anthony Robert John Member Independent Director

The scope and function of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee are as follows:

1.

6.

To consider and ensure resolution of the grievances of the security holders of the Company including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares/Debentures, non-receipt of annual reports, non-receipt
of dividends, general meetings etc

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

To review compliance relating to all securities including dividend payments, transfer of unclaimed amounts
or shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund,;

Recommendation and Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the entity for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the company.

To undertake self-evaluation of its own functioning of the committee in yearly

To perform such other functions or duties as may be required under the relevant Act, rules if applicable to
the committee from time to time.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

The CSR Committee was re-constituted by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated June 26, 2023. The
CSR Committee comprises of the following persons:

Name of Director Position in the committee Designation

Mathew Mathaininan Member Chairman cum Whole Time
Director

Richi Mathew Member Managing Director

Dillark Justin Member Independent Director

Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are approved by the Board and includes the following:

1.

4,

7.

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken, as
specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013.

Recommend the amount of budgeted expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in clause 5(a) above.
Monitor the CSR policy and activities of the company a quarterly basis.
Approve projects/ activities of value which are outside the ambit of Schedule VII.

Debenture Allotment Committee:

The Debenture Allotment Committee was reconstituted by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated
September 11, 2023. The Debenture Allotment Committee comprises of the following persons:
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Name of Director

Position in the committee

Designation

Mathew Mathaininan

Member

Chairman cum Whole Time
Director

Richi Mathew Member Managing Director
Ammini Mathew Member Whole Time Director
Rajeev M R Member Chief Financial Officer
Shyamala Devi L Member FD Section Manager

The terms of reference of the Debenture Allotment Committee are approved by the Board and includes the
following:

8.

To determine and approve, by a Resolution passed at a meeting of the Debenture Allotment Committee or by
Resolution passed by Circulation;

the terms and conditions and number of the Debentures to be issued including issue size not exceeding the
limit mentioned by the Board, the timing, nature, type, pricing and such other terms and conditions of the
issue including coupon rate, minimum subscription, retention of oversubscription, if any, etc.,

to direct any officers of the Company to do such things and to take such actions as the Company is entitled
to do or take (as the case may be) in terms of this resolution,

to approve and make changes/ modifications to the draft offer document, to approve the offer document,
including any corrigendum, amendments supplements thereto

to finalise the terms and conditions of the appointment of Merchant banker, a debenture trustee, a registrar
and transfer agent, a credit rating agency, legal counsel, a depository and such other intermediaries as may
be required including their successors and their agents and the issue thereof

to issue and allot the Debentures and authorize such person to file necessary e-forms with Registrar of
Companies with respect to creation or modification of charge and to approve all other matters relating to the
issue and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things including execution of all such deeds, documents,
instruments, applications and writings as it may, at its discretion, deem necessary for the purpose of issue of
NCDs through public offers

to issue and allot the Debentures and authorize such person to file necessary e-forms with Registrar of
Companies with respect to creation or modification of charge and to approve all other matters relating to the
issue and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things including execution of all such deeds, documents,
instruments, applications and writings as it may, at its discretion, deem necessary for the purpose of issue of
NCDs through private placement offers.

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee

The IT Strategy Committee was re-constituted by the Board of Directors through its resolution dated September
11, 2023. The IT Strategy Committee comprises of the following persons:

Name of Director

Position in the committee

Designation

Richi Mathew Member Managing Director

Antony Robert John Member Independent Director

Rajeev M R Member Chief Financial Officer
AnjanaB S Member Head of Software/ IT Department

The terms of reference of the IT Strategy Committee includes the following:

8.

9.

effective strategic planning process in place;

to the business;
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Approvingand reviewing IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put an

Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the IT delivers value



10.

11.

12.

Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are acceptable;

Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals
and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining company’s growth and becoming aware about
exposure towards IT risks and controls.
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OUR PROMOTERS
Our Promoters are Mathew Mathaininan and Richi Mathew.

As on the date of this Prospectus, the Promoters and promoters group of our Company collectively hold
3,64,18,737 Equity Shares aggregating to 99.99% of the share capital of our Company.

The profile of our Promoters is given below:

Mathew Mathaininan

Mathew Mathaininan, aged 82 years, is the Promoter, Chairman and
Whole Time Director of the Company.

Date of Birth: October 31, 1942

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummys Colony, Kuravankonam,
Thiruvananthapuram — 6950 003, Kerala, India.

Education: He holds a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
University of Mysore.

Experience: He has been associated with our Company since
incorporation.

He is serving as a director in Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited,
Muthoot Computer Software Development and Research Institute
Private Limited, Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited. For further details,
see “Our Management” on page 112.

Our Company confirms that details of the permanent account humber,
aadhaar number, driving license number, bank account number(s)
personal addresses and passport number of our Promoter have been
submitted to the Stock Exchange at the timing of filing the Prospectus.

Richi Mathew

Richi Mathew, aged 50 years, is the Promoter and Managing Director
of our Company

Date of Birth: May 13, 1974

Address: Muthoot House, No. 26, Mummys Colony, Kuravankonam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 6950003, Kerala, India.

Education: He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Mangalore University.

Experience: He has been associated with our Company since 2002.

He is serving as a director in Muthoot Syndicate Nidhi Limited, Richi
Mathew Securities Limited, Muthoot Mercantile Nidhi Limited, Richi
Mathew Software Technologies Limited. For further details, see “Our
Management” on page 112.

Our Company confirms that details of the permanent account number,
aadhaar number, driving license number, bank account number(s)
personal addresses and passport number of our Promoter have been
submitted to the Stock Exchange at the timing of filing the Prospectus.
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There have been no changes in the Promoter’s holding in our Company during last financial year beyond the
threshold prescribed by RBI.

Interest of our Promoter in our Company

Except as stated under “Our Management” beginning on page 112 and as stated above, to the extent of their
shareholding and debenture holding in our Company and to the extent of remuneration received by them in their
capacity as Directors, our Promoters do not have any other interest in our Company’s business.

Further, our Promoters have no interest in any property acquired by our Company in the last two years from the
date of this Prospectus, or proposed to be acquired by our Company, or in any transaction with respect to the
acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery.

Our Promoters do not propose to subscribe to the Issue and none of our Promoters have any interest in the
promotion of the Issue.

Our Promoters equity shareholding in our Company, as on December 31, 2024, is as set forth below:

Name of Promoter  Total number  Number of Percentage Equity % of Equity
of Equity shares held in of issued Shares Shares
Shares dematerialised  Equity Share pledged or pledged
Form capital otherwise
encumbered
Mathew 1,30,61,100 1,30,61,100 35.86 NIL NIL
Mathaininan
Richi Mathew 1,30,07,317 1,30,07,317 35.72 NIL NIL

Other Confirmations

Our Promoters have confirmed that neither it nor its directors, have been identified as Wilful Defaulters by the
RBI or any other governmental authority and are not a Promoter of any such company which has been identified
as a Wilful Defaulter by the RBI or any other governmental authority or which has been in default of payment of
interest or repayment of principal amount in respect of debt securities issued by it to the public, if any, for a period
of more than six months. Further, no members of our Promoter Group have been identified as Wilful Defaulters.

None of our Promoters have been declared as a fugitive economic offender.

No violation of securities laws has been committed by our Promoters in the past and no regulatory action before
SEBI, RBI is currently pending against our Promoters except as disclosed in section titled “Outstanding
Litigations” on page 220. Our Promoters were not a promoter of any company which was delisted within a period
of ten years preceding the date of this Prospectus, in accordance with Chapter V of the SEBI Delisting Regulations.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group are not restrained or debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital markets
or restrained\ or debarred or prohibited from buying, selling, or dealing in securities under any order or directions
passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other authority or refused listing of any of the securities issued by any
such entity by any stock exchange in India or abroad and are not promoters, directors or person in control of any
other company which is prohibited from accessing or operating in capital markets under any order or direction
passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority

No benefit or interest will accrue to our Promoters out of the objects of the Issue.

Payment of benefits to our Promoters during the preceding three years

Other than as disclosed under “Our Management” segment of “Financial Statements” beginning on pages 112and
129, respectively, our Company has not made payment of any benefit to our Promoters during the preceding three

years preceding the date of this Prospectus.

Details of Equity Shares allotted to our Promoters during the preceding three Fiscal Years
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Except as disclosed under “Capital Structure” on page 42, our Promoters have not been allotted any Equity Shares
of our Company during the preceding three Fiscal Years.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transaction as at and for each of the years ended March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
as per the requirements under the applicable accounting standards, see Note 38, Note 23 and Note 23 of “Financial
Statements” on page F-184, F - 95, F — 39, respectively.

Details of related party transactions under the applicable accounting standards entered during the preceding three
financial years with regard to loans made or guarantees given or securities provided:

(Zin lakhs)
Name of Related Fiscal Loans Made Guarantees given Securities
Party provided
Nil 2022 Nil Nil Nil
Nil 2023 Nil Nil Nil
Nil 2024 Nil Nil Nil

Related party transactions entered during the current financial year for the period from April 01, 2024, till

Cut-off date, with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities provided

(Zin lakhs)
Name of Related Fiscal Loans Made Guarantees given Securities
Party provided
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sr. Particulars

Page No.
No.

1. Audited Financial Statements as at and for the Financial Year ended March 31, F-1 to F-56
2022

2. Audited Financial Statements as at and for the Financial Year ended March 31, F-57 to F-113
2023

3. Audited Financial Statements as at and for the Financial Year ended March 31, F-114to F-197
2024

4, Unaudited Financial Results for nine months period ended December 31, 2024 F-198 to F-207
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I Manikandan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2022, STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARENDED MARCH 31, 2022 OF MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

To the Board of Directors of Muthoot Mercantile Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muthoot Mercantile Limited(the
“Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of profit and
loss, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

Management’sResponsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amendedand based on the provisions of Para 3.3.10 of Schedule | to the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended (the “SEBI NCS
Regulations”).This also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’sResponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedurés to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to theexplanations given to us, the
financial statements are prepared in the manner so required as per Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI
NCS Regulations andgive a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India,of thestate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and of its results
ofoperations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

The financial statementsare prepared to assist the Company to meet the requirements of SEBI NCS
Regulations, as amended. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable foranother purpose.

Other Matter

Muthoot Mercantile Limited has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022, in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, on which
M/s. Paulson Michael & Co, Chartered Accountants,has issued a separate auditor’s report to the
shareholders of the Company dated July15, 2022.

For Manikandan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number:008520S

s (&N\‘

; A oY 4:\"

CK Mamkandal\uz ( cv\i&g‘t& ) @l

Partner “Qf},;\\ &7
Ny

M. No.: 208654
UDIN: 23208654BGSIDL7061

Place: Chalakudy
Date: 04" October, 2023
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31* March, 2022

{ All gmounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Note
Shareholders’ funds .
Share capital 3 2,941.88 2,941.88
Reserves and surplus ' 4 8,795.44 7,093.01
11,737.31 10,034.89
Non-current liabilities .
Long-t_ci‘n‘] bqrrowings 5 23,587.46 14,788.80
Other long term liabilities 6 1,209.12 633.71
Long-term provisions 9 73.61 73.80
' 24,870.19 15,496.30
Current liabilities _
Short-term Borrowings ~— 7 4,264.32 5,211.92
Tradé payables S o ] '
{A) total outstanding dues af micro enterpnses
and small enterprises; and 17.20 i
(B_‘) total outsf‘andmg dues ofcreditf)rs other th_an £5 35 42.86
micro enterprises and small enterprises.
Other current liabilities 6 35742 216.42
~ Short-term provisions ' 9 733.95 621.21
' : . 5,428.24 6,092.41
Total 42,035.74 31,623.60
Assets
Non-current assets
~ Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets _
Praperty, Plant and Equipment 10A 423.98 34089
Intangible assets ' 108 - 1693
Deferred tax assets (net) 1 126.00 106.90
Long-term loans and advances 12 655.90 533.89
(ther non current assets -~ 15 463.62 - 385.86
' a 1,669.50 1,384.46
Currentassets S
Tnvestments 13 1,101.98 -
Cash and bank balances 14 3,479.50 21755
" Short-term loans and advances ' . 12 33,859.87 28,474.71
Other current assets - ' 15 "1,924.89 1,546.88
: 40,366.24 - 30,239.14
Total - 42,035.74 31,623.60
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

Asper cur report of even date attached
For Manikandan & Associates
Chartered Ac

* TCAI Firm Registiation Nimber: 0085205
[Partncr]' .
Membershipfip _-2(}8654

Place: Thrissur
Date: 04th October, 2023

Wffﬁa‘ihew

J : .
[Wholetime Director] : [Managing Director]

(1] 00063078 . DIN 00224336
W L

1‘.
MR Rajee ”,,.,;g;-:l;m Neetlri C Biju
[Chief Financial Offiésg ‘:ﬁﬁ?‘*

ompany Secretary]
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31° March, 2022
{All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Continuing Operations _ Notes 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Revenue from operation 16 6,673.83 4,910.32
Other income 17 2856 29.10
Total Income N 6,702.38 493942
Expenses ' : _

Finance costs _ 18 2,207.48 1,395.69
Employee benefits expense . 19 1,113.66 878.86
Other expenses _ 20 925.63 665.81
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 158,17 : 122.52
Total Expenses . . 4,404.94 . 3,062.88
Profit before tax _ ' 2,297.45 1,876.54

Tax expenses

Currenttax ' . ' 614.13 : 500.31
{Excess)/Short provision for tax relating to previous ' _

: - (5.10)
year . : _ _
Deferred tax expense/(income) ' (19.10) . : (20.23)

Total tax expense ' ' _ 595.03 47498
Profit for the year. : _ 1,702.42 . 1,401.56

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share ¥10/-] .
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (%) 22 : 579 4.76

Summary of significant accounting policies A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For Manikandan & Associates Muthoot Mercantile Limited '

Chartered Accountant _ e i e
ICAI Firm Registratioit Number: 0085208 M Mathew ichi Mathew
¥ ~ [Wholétime Director] [Managing Director]

€ R-Manik:
[Partner] :
Membership nior20865.

DINAGO63078 r—-7 DIN(?224336
M RRaje:?‘ ' N_eetﬁu’cjﬁiiu

[Chief Financial Officer) [Compahy Secretary]
" Place: Thrissur _ ' :
Date: 04th Qctober, 2023
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LTD _
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31-March-22

{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

T - 31-Mar-2Z . .. - 31-Mar-21
Cash flow from operating activities . o
Profit before tax $2,29745 1,876.54
Acl]ustments o SR
- Depreciation and amortization 158.17 17252
* Provision for employu benefits : -[6.2{)]_ ' (52.13)
Provision far Standard Assets . 13.28 © 2971
Provision for Non- p_erfnrmm_g assets 6.38 . “(40.50)
Gain on sale of Mutual Fund _ (209 .
Provision for CSR Expenditure - 14.54
Profit ot sale of Property, Plant & Fqu1pment (3.75) Co-
. Finance Cost 2,207.48 . _ 1,395.69
" Operating profit before workmg capltal changes 4,670.70 - .3,346.37
" Movements in wor kmg capital : : : R e
e Increase/ {decrease) in other current hablhtles &trade payables ' : 128;77_ 6572
Decrease / (increase) in long- -term loans and advances ; - {122.0%1) - (88.88) .
‘Decrease / (increasc) in short-term loans and advances - (5,385.15) " (11,896.26)
“ -Decrease / (increase) in other current assets (378.01) : {7_6_8.77)' '
‘Decrease / (increase) bank balances other than cash equwalents' : ('0.4_8] (599
Decrease/ {(incrcase) in other non-current assets . (77.76) R
Cash generated from /[usu:l in) operal:lons (1,163.94) (9,347.£0)
Direct taxes pald ~ [500.31) [294.26)

-Finance cost paid {1,590.33) (1,947.61)°
CSR Fxpendlture paid previous year: {1454} . s
Net cash flow from/ (used m) 0peratmg actmtzes [A] (3,269.11) . ... (11,589.67)

- Cash flows from investing activities - A
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equlpment tnc]udlng CW[P and capital [225 08) (8111) -
‘advances - : e

. Disposal ofProerty Plant& Eqmpment 4 50

. (Investment}/Redempnon nfMutual Fund (net} o (1,_09_9_.89} =
Net-cash flow fromi/ (used in) investing activities (B) (1,320.47) (81.11)
Cash flows from financing activities =~ - _ L
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings(net) 8,798.66 7,688.91 '

- Proceeds/{Repayment) of short-term borrowings(net) (947.60) 3,782.35

Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) - 7,851.06 11,471.26
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equwalents [A+B+ C) $3,261.47. - (199.53)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beglnnmg of the year : - 202.82 402.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - " 3,46429 - 202.82

' Components 0fcash and. cash equwalents S ' - : I _
Cashonhand ' 66098 8191

" Balance with banks _ _ : ~2,803.31 120.90°
~ Total cash and cash equivalents (1iote 14) -~ 3,464.29 202.82

As per our report of even date attached

" Forand on behalf of the board of: dlrectors Uf o
For Maniikandan & Associates o

Muthoot Mercantlle Limlted

"harter"ed Accnunta;’_ﬂ’“ : *%' W""
| 4 MMathew < F B
[Wholetime D1rector] = [Managing Dlrectorj ce
IN 00063078 - . DING ﬁ@:ﬂ% -
_'Partner]_ ) ! %Vl Nt L ﬁg/
Vlembership no: 2086- : M R Rajee - . NeethuC Biju _
o ' [ChlefFlnan al Ofﬁcer o [Company Secretary]' '

lace: Thrissur
Jate: (4th October, 2023

_ Place: Thlruvananth§
Date: (04th October, $
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March, 2022
{All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Continuing Operations Notes 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Revenue from operation 16 6,673.83 4,910.32
Other income ' 17 28.56 2910
Total Income _ . 6,702.38 - 4,939.42
Expenses _

Finance costs : ' ' 18 2,207.48 ' 1,395.69
tmployec benefits expense . 19 1,113.66 878.86
Other expenses - _ 20 925.63 - 665.81
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 158.17 122.52
Total Expenses . . . 4,404.94 3,062.88
Profit before tax - ) 2,297.45 ' 1,876.54

Tax expenses

Current tax ' < 614,13 : ] 50031

[Excess]/Short provision for tax relatmg to previous i (5.10)

year : _ :

Deferred tax expense/[mcome) : : (19.10) ' {20.23)
Total tax expense ' 595.03 474.98
Profit for the year : 1,702.42 . 1,401.56

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share ¥10/-] .
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share X) . ' 22 _ 5.79 - 4,76

Summary of significant accounting policies : 2]
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For Manikandan & Associates Muthoot Mercantile lelted _ / '
Chartered Accountant U\vy.w_/-—-_.- ,-.,,..,...:3 ’ -

trafiotiNimber: 0085208 M Miatliew Tohi Mathew

. [Wholetime Director] . [Managing Director]
DINA0063075 DIN 00224336
[Partner] L. r" /Q.:Z/f,
Membership no:? MR Raj : ' ' Neetlﬁ?ﬁ;u
' _ _ [Chief Financial Officer] [Company Secretary]

Place: Thrissur : _ 'Place Thiruvananthapuram ' '

Date: 04th October, 2023
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22

d.

=

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation has been provided on Written Down Value methed as per the useful life estimated by the
management, The estimates of useful life followed by the company is provided as under:

Assets : Life of Assets (Years)

20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)*
St R : :
Yo oot 10 (Others)
H - _ *
Furniture and Fixtures 20 {acquired up to 31 0.3 1)
. 10 (Others) .
Vehicles _ . 8 '

3 {End user devices)
6 (Servers and networks)

Com'puter & Accessories

20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)*
10 [Others)

Office & Electrical Equipments

_ E!!ER!!WING COST

*Based on the estimation given by the chartered engineer
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The company assesses at each rr:po'fting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount.Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

. REVENUES

Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Interest, where installments are overdue in respect of non performing assets
are re'cognised on realisation basis. Any such income recognised and remaining unrealised after the instaliments
become overdue with respect to non performing assets is reversed. Interest on deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis taking into-account the amount cutstanding and the rate applicable.

. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined contribution scheme
and the contributions are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the fund
is due. Gratuity payable under "The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972" is accrued and provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method. The Company does not have a scheme of encashment of earned
leave. The Earned leave which is not utilized during the year will be automatically lapsed at the end of the year and
can not be carrled forward. Hence no plu\nsmn has been made in the accounts for encqshment of leave and carried
forward of earned leave.




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22

L

k.

i)

ii)

INCOME TAX

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflect
the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current
year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that there is reasonable ccrtainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balancesheet
date. The Company write-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain ,as the case may be, that sufficient fiture taxable income witl be available.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity share
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a
right issue to existing sharc holders; share split;and reverse share split, it any. :

PROVISIONS
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligati'on' as a result of past event and it is probable
that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made . These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
Provisioning policy for guld loan and cther portfolio loans
Secured loans are classified /prowded for as per management's hést estimates, subject t¢ minimum prowsmn
required as per Non Banking Financial Company-Non Systematlcally Impoertant Non-Deposit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as follows
Asset Classification Provisioning policy
Standard Assets .- 0.25% o
Sub-standard Assets 10% on Qutstanding
Doubtful Assets _ , , _
D1 100% of unsecured portion + 20 % of secured portion
Dz 100% of unsecured portion + 30 % of secured portion
D3 B 100% of unsecured portion + 50 % of secured portion
Loss Assets ' S C o 100%
EGMENT REPORTING
The Company primarily operates in the business of gold loan and its operatlons are -in India. Accordmgly no
segment reporting is apphcable :
.. !;ASH AND !;ASH E( !!]]VALEN IS,

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in hand ,cash at bank and dep051ts having orginal
maturity of three months orless - ' '




' MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22

.

BILITIES

A contingent liahility is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurence or non-occurence of one-or more uncertain future events which is beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not prebable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation.The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements :

. LEASES

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership for the leased term,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments in respect of non-canceliable leases are recognised as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,whereby profit / (oss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past / future cash
l'ecéipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information

. INVESTMENTS

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
investiments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at
lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Quoted current investments for each

category is valued at cost or market value whichever is lower. Long-term invéstments are carried at cost.

-Provision for diminution shall be made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the
investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSA( ;T]!. INS

Foreign cwrrency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applyihg to the foreign currency amount’
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign' currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate preirailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreigni currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reperted using the exchange rates that existed when the values -
were determined. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recogmzed as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise,
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 4
Reserves and surplus
o 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per the last financial statement . ] 2,280.63 2,280.63
Total (A) ' 2,280.63 T 2,280.63
Statutory reserve
Balance as per the last financial statement . 2.168.87 1,885.87
Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit -
and loss pursuant to section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 343.00 283.00
1934 : :
Total (B) ' 2,511.87 —_ 2,168.87
Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss .
Balance as per last fmancla] statement ' _ 2,643.52 1,524.96
Profit for the year : ' 1,702.42 - 140156
: - 4,345.95 2,926.52
Less: Appropriations :
Transfer to statutory reserve pursuant to section 45-I1C of the
- 343.00 283.00
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 '
Total (C} 4,002.95 2,643.52
Total {A)+(B)+(C) _ 8,795.44 7,093.01
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 5 (contd.) .
if]Non Convertible Debentures of ¥1,000/- each - Serieswise Classification

Asat 31" March, 2022
SINo| Series Date of From Debenture 0/s Rate of Terms of Redemption
Issue Interest
1 122 18-Aug-11 0.40 15.35%}At par at the end 36 months
2 126 1%9-Nov-11 1.00 14.85% At par at the end 36 months
3 139 14-Sep-12 1.05 14.75% (At par at the end 60 months
4 143 22-Dec-12 £.25 11%-12%}At par at the end 36 months
5 146 26-Dec-12 0.07 10%-11.25% At par at the end 36 months
8 172 _23-Mar-19 6,50 | 9.25%-14.3% At par at the ead 36 months
9 173 15-jul-19 « - .292.00 | 9.25%-18.75% At par at the end 36 months
10 174 15-Jan-20 75.67 | 9.25%-15.35%At par at the end 36-60 months
11 175 10-Feb-20] 302.70 59%-14.85% At par at the end 36-50 months
12 176 22-Feb-20 258.10 9.25%-20% | At par at the end 36-30 months
13 177 23-Mar-20 209.80.] 9.75%-14.75%|At par at the end 36-84 months
14 178 Z22-May-20 258,30 G%-14.29% |At par at the end 24-84 months
15 179 03-Jul-20 401.74 10%%-13.33% | At par at the end 60-90 months
16 180 .12-Dct-20 229.02 9%h-12.50% At par at the end 36-96 months
17 181 19-Nov-20 520.01 { 9.25%-13.33% | At par at the end 36-90 months
18 182 07-Jan-21 279.50 | 9.25%-13.33%[At par at the end 36-90 months
19 183 29-Jun-21 322.13 8%-13,79%| At par at the end 12-87 months
20 184 11-Sep-21 222.00 | 9.25%-13.799%| At par at the end 36-87 months
21 185 30-Nov-21 480.50 | 9.25%-13.79%| At par at the end 36-87 months
22 186 05-Feh-22 300.00 | 7.25%-10.12%] At par at the end 12-60 months.
23 187 12-Mar-22 185.66 7.25%0-9.6%| At par at the end 12-60 months
24 188 30-Mar-22 145.45 7.25%-9.6%| At par at the end 12-60 months
Total 4,491.85 : ) . . ’
As at 31" March, 2021
SINo| Series Date of From Debenture G/s Rate of . Terms of Redemption
. Issue Interest
1 122 18-Aup-11 .40 15.35%|At par at the end 36 months
2 126 19-Nov-11 1.00 14.85% [At par at the end 36 months
3 139 14-Sep-12 1.05 14.75%| At par at the end 60 months
4 143 22-Dec-12 0.25 11%-12%|At par-at the end 36 months
5 146 26-Dec-12] - 0.67 1084-11.25% | At par at the end 36 months
6 169 18-Sep-17 . 5.00{ . 9.25%-20%]|At par at the end 30 months
7 171 27-Feb-19 217.55 | 9%-18.75%|At par at the end 36 months
B8 172 29-Mar-19 108.80 | 9.25%-14.3%|At par at the end 36 months
9 173 15-Jul-19 292,00 | 9,25%-18.75%| At par at the end 36 manths
10 174 15-Jan-20 -75.67 | 9.25%-15.35% At par at the end 36-60 months
11 175 10-Feb-20 309.70 9%-14.85% At par at the end 36-90 months
12 176 22-Feb-20 261.10 9.25%-20% At par at the end 36-90 months
13 177 23-Mar-20| 216.80 | 9.75%-14.75%At par at the end 36-84 months
14 178 22-May-20 278.30 9%-14.29%jAt par at the end 24-84 months
15 179 03-Jul-20 465.74 10%-13.33% At par at the end 60-90 months
16 180 12-0ct-20 234.02 994-12.50% |At par at the end 36-96 months
17 181 19-Nov-20 525.01 | 9.25%-13.33%]|At par at the end 36-90 months
18 182 | 07-an-21 284.50 | 9.25%-13.33%|At par at the end 36-90 months
: Total 3,276.96 . .
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MUTHCOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 5 [contd.) '
il] Subordinate Debts of T1,000/- each - Serieswise Classification

As at 31" March, 2022

S1No; Month of Receipt | From Subordinate Debts 0/s | Rate of Interest Terms of Redemption
1 |February 2019 : 15861 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
2 |March 2019 28527 | 9.5%-11.81% | At parat the end 60 months
3 [April 2019 361.66 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
4 |iuly 2019 323.62 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
S |Aupust 2019 26249 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
6 . {September 2019 57852 [ 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
7 [October 2019 528.98 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months -
8 [November 2019 710.14 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
9 [December 2015 ) 71471 | 10%-11.25% At par at the end 60 months
10 [January 2020 - 632.34 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
11 ([February 2020 444.93 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
12 |March 2020 287.50 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
13 |April 2020 31941 | 10%-11.29% _At par at the end 60 months -
14 |May 2020 -598.00 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
15 }June 2020 -353.65 | 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
16 [uly 2020 33171 ) 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
17 JAugust 2020 771.37 9%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
18 [September 2020 318.30 5%6-9.75% At par at the end 60 months
19 [Octoher 2020 330.53 9.25%-10% At par at the end 60 months
20 [November 2020 73093 | 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
21 |December 2020 311.04 | 9.85%-10.5% - At par at the end 60 months
22 |January 2021 985.50 |  10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
23 |February 2021, 814.01 | 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
24 [March 2021 392.74 9.20%-11% At par at the end 60 months
25 |April 2021 341.61.{ 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
26 [May 2021 276.95 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
27 |June 2021 250.67 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
28 {july 2021 319.21 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
29 {August 2021 29549 | 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
.30 [September 2021 471,59 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
31 |October 2021 - 393.01 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
32 |November 2021 363.26 3%-11% At par at the end 60 months
33 |December 2021 348.94 5% - 10% At par at the end 60 months
34 |January 2022 .321.99 9% -10% ° At par at the end 60 months
35 |February 2022 79.05 8%-9% At par at the end 60 months
36 [March 2022 14.80 8%-9% At par at the end 60 months
' Total 15,062.54 : .
As at 31st March, 2021
S1 No| Month of Receipt | From Subordinate Debts 0/s | Rate of Interest Terms of Redemption . ... |
1 |February 2019 186.11 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60.fapths |- -
2 |March 2019 257.77 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 6@_{39&%& ;
L0550 0




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless cther wise stated)

3 |April 2019 361.66 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
4 |luly 2019 355.62 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
5 [Aupust 2019 23049 | 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
6 |September 2019 578.52 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
7 i0ctober 2019 549.27 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
8 [November 2019 689.85 |  10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
9 |December 2019 742.86 109%-11.25% At par at the end 60 months
10 |January 2020 620.14 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
11 |February 2020 42898 | 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
12 |March 2020 287.50 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
13 [April 2020 31941 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
14 |May 2020 558.00 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
15 JJune 2020 - 353.65 [ 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
16 |July 2020 33171 | 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
17 |August 2020 . - 771.37 9%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
- 18 |September 2020 318.30 8%-9.75% At par at the end 60 months
19 |October-2020 330.53 9.25%-10% . At par at the end 60 months
20 |November 2020 730.93 1 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
21 |December 2020 311.04 | 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
22 |january 2021 985.30 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
23 |February 2021 814.01] 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
24 [March 2021 392.74 2.20%-11% At par at the end 60 months
Total 11,545.96 - '
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED :
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 7
Short-term borrowings
' 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Secured Borrawings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings {Note 5)* 1,776.58 326.35
-Loan repayable on demand
From Banks (Cash credit)
State Bank of India** : 2,443.86 4,710.09
Indian Overseas Bank*** : 7.8 _811
Karur Vysya Bank**** 35.590 -
Unsecured Borrowings# . _
Loan from Director _ _ _ ' oo 167.38
Total 4,264.32 5,211.92

*Include 33,000.00/- {Previous Year; ¥3,500.00) from related parties which are detailed in Note 23 "Related party
Transactions” of the financial statements ' .

**Secured by exclusive First charge over all movable assets and current assets, including book debts and receivabies,
cash and bank balances, loans and advances, both present and future, of the company, on pari-passu basis with the
Secured Creditors including debenture trustees and other banks(excluding book debts) with a margin of 25% as
primary security and by equitable mortgage of the personal land and building of Mr.M Mathew & Mrs.Ammini
Mathew, directors of the company as collateral security. The loan has been personally guaranteed by Mr.M Mathew,
Ammini Mathew & Mr.Richi Mathew. Rate of interest is 255 bps above six month MCLR(present effective rate of
interest is 9.50% per annum). Cash credit limit is rupees fifty Crore. '

*** Rate of interest is 6.65% per annum. Amount Sanctioned is rupees eight lakhs, Tenure of Cash Credit is for one
year,

*#+* Secured by first pari-passu charge along with other lenders on Current Assets, Book Debts, loans and Advances
and the receivables including the gold loan receivables with a margin of 25% as primary security and by equitable
mortgage of personnal land in the nrame of Mr. M Mathew & Mr. Richi Mathew, directors of the company as colletral
security, The loan has been personally guaranteed by Mr.M Mathew, Ammini Mathew & Mr.Richi Mathew. The rate of
interest shall be 0.80% p.a. over and above the One year Marginal Cost of funds based Lending Rate(MCLR) which is
presently at 8.65% (present effective rate of interest is 9.45% per annum]. Cash credit limit is rupees fifteen Crore.

#During the year the Company has accepted unsecured loan of ¥12,500.00/- {Previous year: ¥ 3,88,750.00/-) from
Mr.M Mathew, Whoelctime director of the Company. The loan is repayable on demand. Rate of interest is @ 9% per
annum. Qustanding balance as on 31* March, 2022 is NIL/-(Previous Year: T1,67,380.90/-)
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MUTHQOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ Al amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 8
Trade payables
' 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Total ocutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 17.20
enterprises; and : ' o o
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
o . 55.35 4286 -
enterprises and small enterprises.
Total ' - 72.55 42.86
Disclosure relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises .
: ' 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
the principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each ' - 17.20 -

accounting year;

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section

16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises .

Development Act, 2006, along with theamount of the ©Nil N Nil
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year;

mne amlount of interest due ana payame ror the perlou ol

delay in making payment {which have been paid but _
beyond the appointed day during theyear) but without NI Nil
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and '
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; '

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the . Nit Nl
end of each accountang vear; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actuallypaid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expénditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

Nil . Nl

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outsta'nding for more than 45
days as at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED :
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Disclosure:- Schedule for Trade payables due for payment for the year ended 31st march 2022

: Outstanding for following periods from the date of payment
i thanl | _ '
Particulars Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
year
i) MSME 17.20 NIL NiL NIL 17.20
ii) Others 55.35 NiL NIL NIL 55.35
fii) Disputed dues - MSME NIL NiL NIL NIL NIL
iv) Disputed dues - Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Disclosure:- Schedule for Trade payables due for payment for the year ended 31st march 2021
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
vear )
i) MSME NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
if) Others 42.86 NIL NIL NIL 42.86.
iii) Disputed dues - MSME NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
iv} Disputed dues - Others NIL NIL NIL ~NIL NIL
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, uniess other wise stated}

Note 10B
Intangible assets
Computer Software

Cost

01-Apr-20 84.63
Additions -
Deletions : -
31-Mar-21 ' 84.63
Cost : :

01-Apr-21 * 84.63
Additions . -
Deletions . -

31-Mar-22 ' ' 84.63

Amortization

01-Apr-20 o 50.78
Charge for the year 1693
Deletions -
31-Mar-21 67.71
Amortization :

01-Apr-21 - _ 67.71
Charge for the year 1693
Deletions - '
31-Mar-22 84.63
Net Block

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-21 - , 16.93 : /9
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ Alf amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 11
Deferred tax assets (net)

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Current year Deferred tax asset/(liability)
On account of Depreciation _ 7168 . 53.42
On account of Provision for Gratuity 32.34 34.78
On account of 40 a disallowances ' ] : - 0.09
On account of Provision for Standard Assets ' . 2197 18.60
Total : 12600 106.90
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indion rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 16
Revenue from operation

Interest Income

Other Financial services
Service Charges Received
Commission Received

Total

Note 17
Other income

[nterest on Treasury deposit

Interest on Fixed deposit-with banks

Interest on Inconte tax refund

Interest on electricity deposit

Rent Received )
Creditors na longer required written off

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment’
Gain on sale of niutual fund

Total

Note 18
Finance costs

Interest
Interest on Debentuore
Anterest un Subordinate Debts
Interest on Bank borrowings
Interest on Loan from director
Interest on Perpetual Debt Instrument
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax

Total

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
6,622.15 4,888.61
42.47 17.83
9.20 3.87
6,673.83 4,919.32
J31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
3.88 3.88
2440 2.62
087 6.20
0.12 .16
1544 16.20
- 0.02
3.75 -
2.09 -
28.56 29.10
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
39241 316.39
1,401.35 853.54
374.98 178.25
2.47 11.51
36.00 36.00
0.26 -
2,207.48 1!39'5.69
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
(Al ainounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 19
Employee benefits expense
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Salaries and allowances 1,078.51 853.71
Contribution to provident and other funds 35.15 25.15
Total , 1,113.66 878.86
Note 20
‘Other expenses : .
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Electricity Charges o . ) . 35.02 29.31
Rent . ' : . 43257 365.53
Rates and taxes . 686 8.81
Insurance . . ) 13,72 992
" Repairs and maintenance 18.26 3160
Computer maintenance and services : 3.04 133
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure ' ' - 4B.76 19.54
Advertising and sales promotion 25.34 33.83
Travelling and conveyance 57.59 20.09
Telephone Charges 2195 15.40
Printing and stationery 22.08 6.90
Office expenses 52.30 4603
Bank charges o _ . 109.22 23.07
Professional charges 39.38 2018
Bad Debt - 40.63
Provision for non performing assets _ ' 6.38 {40.50)
- Contingent provisions against standard assets - 13.28 29.71
Loss on account of exchange rate fluctuation® ' i8.92 -
Refreshment Expenses : ' 0.93 043
Total . 925.63 665.81

*During the year the company has incurred ioss of ¥18,915.45/- due to foreign exchange rate difference on term

loan availed by the company.

Professional charges include payment to auditors:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

as auditor : . 1.18 1.18
for taxation matters - -
for company law matters _ ) - -
for management services : - -
far other services . ' - -
for reimbursement of expenses : - -

Total . 1.18 1.18




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All aimounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 19
Employee benefits expense
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Salaries and allowances 1,078.51 853.71
Contribution to provident and other funds : 35.15 25.15
Total , 1,113.66 878.86
Note 20
‘Other expenses :
31-Mar-22 : 31-Mar-21
Electricity Charges . ) . 3502 28.31
Rent . ' : . 43257 365.53
Rates and taxes " 6.86 8.81
Insurance . 13,72 9.92
" Repairs and maintenance . : 18.26 3160
Computer maintenance and services 3.04 1.33
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure ' - 4B.76 19.54
Advertising and sales promotion 25.34 33.83
Travelling and conveyance . ' 57.59 20,09
Telephone Charges 2195 15.40
Printing and stationery . : 22.08 . 6.90
Office expenses 52.30 46.03
Bank charges o 109.22 . 23.07
Professional charges 39.38 : 2018
Bad Debt - 40.63
Provision for non performing assets a 6.38 {40.50)
Contingent provisions against standard assets - . 13.28 29.71
Loss on account of exchange rate Auctuation® : 1892 -
Refreshment Expenses : : ' 0.93 043
Total . 925.63 665.81

*During the year the company has incurred ioss of ¥18,915.45/- due ta foreign excha nge rate difference on term
loan availed by the company.

Professional charges include payment to auditors:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

as anditor 118 1.18
for taxation matters ' - .
for company law matters ) - -
for management services : - . -
for other services . : ' - -
for reimbursement of expenses . -

Total | ' ) 118 : 118




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 21
Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-22 31-Mar 21

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible asscts

Total

14124 105.59
16.93 _ 16,93
15817 12252
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 25
Employee Benefit Disclosure

i} Gratuity

Changes in Present value of obligation

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-21

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year.

Acquisition adjustment
[nterest cost

Past service cost
Current service cost
Curtailment cost
Settlement cost.
Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/loss on obligation

103.02

7.23

15.54

(17.23)
(11.93)
96.63

1.00
88.21
13.81

Present value of ohligations at the end of the year
Chaﬁgés'_in fair value of plan assets
Not applicable as scheme is unfunded

Funded status .
Not applicable as scheme is unfunded

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit/Loss

“31-Mar-22 .

_ 31-Mar-21

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Expected return of plan asset

Curtailment cost

Settlement cost

Actuarial gain/loss recognised in the year

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit/Loss

15.54

7.23

(11.93)

13.81
‘88
1.00

103.02

_10.84

|Actuarial assumptions

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-21

Mortality table

Superannuation age

Early retirement and disablement
Discount rate

Inflaticn rate

-|Return on asset

Remaining working life

Formuia used

IALM 2012-14
Ultimate table
- 58
None
6.1%
7%
N/A
49

Projected unit credit
Method with control

period of ane year

IALM 2012-14 -
Ultimate table
58
None
6.1%
7%
N/A
4.4

Projected unit credit
Method with control

period of one year |

"”m\

T'HYCAUD r-\
595 014 -

5_'

‘s
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22

{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 25
Emplovee Benefit Disclosure {C ontd_]

Movements in Liability

Recognised in Balancesheet; . 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Opcening Net liability 103.02 -
Expensoes as above 10.84 103.02
Contributions - -
Closing Netliability _ _ 96.63 103.02
Closing fund/provision at the end of year 96.63 103.02

Notes to Appendix B of AS 15(r 2005)

As the scheme is unfunded, charges to Profit/Loss account has been based on the h:ullt)wmg assumpuons:
1. Previcus obligation was provided for at last accounting date

2. Benefit to exits has been paid to debit of above provisions

3. Current obligation will be provided for at current accounting date

Experience adjustment . :
o . 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Fair value on plan assets NA ‘NA
Status { Surplus/Defieit) _ . oo -
Actuarial Gain/Loss on plan assets NA NA
Difference due to change in assumptions -] -
Experience Adjustment of Plan Assets (Gain / loss) ' - -
Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obligation (11.93)] -
Diference due te change in assumptions ' - -
Experience Adjustment of obligation (Gain/ loss) (11.93) - B -

Actuallal valudtlon is avallahle for the last 2 years only, hence flgures are given for the Prewous yearand -
Current year

- ii) Provident Fund
The ameunt of Provident Fund contribution charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
aggregating to T 31,319.12/-(Previous year : ¥ 21,042.86/-).

iii) Employee State Insurance
The amounts of Employee State Insurance contribution charged to the ‘;tatement of profit and loss during
the year aggregate to T 3,830.73/- (Previous year-T 4,106.13/-)
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 27 i
Conti Liabiliti iC .

Contingent Lighilities

(a) Claitns against the company not acknowledged as debt.
(b) Guarantees

(c) Other moncy for which the company is contingently liable

Commitments )
(a) Estimated amount of contract remaining to'be executed on capital account

and not provided for
(b} Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid
(c) Other commitments

Note 28 -

" Additional informati h f Profitand L

{a) Value of imports calculated on CI¥ basis by the company duri ing the-
financial year in respect of -
i) Raw materials
il Components and spare arts;
* i1} Capital goods '

(b) Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of
royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees, interest, and other
matters;

(c) Total value if all imported raw materials, spare parts and components
consumed during the financial year and the total value of all indigenocus

raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the

percentage of each to the total consumptlon

(d) The amount remitted during the, year in foreign currencies on account of
dividends with a specific mention of the total number of non-resident
shareholders, the total number of shares held by them on which the dividends
were due and the year to which the dividends related;

(¢) Earnings in.foreign exchange classified under the following heads,
namely:-
i) Export of goods calculated on F.0.B. basis;
ii} Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees;
iii) Interest and dividend; '
iv) Other income, indicating the nature thereof

R\_’J‘\ﬂa
%, "H‘xCA‘UD
émm 2
’? \.-,f

s
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31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
31-Mar-22 "31-Mar-21
NIL CNIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL - NIL
NIL - NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL -

NIL



MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 29
Lease
The total of future minimum lease payments of the company are as follows:
a)  Notlater than 1 year : ¥ 7,40,154.63/- (Previous year: T 3,88,358.61/-)

b}  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years : ¥ 27,33,393.57/- (Previous year:3 14, 48 944.34/-)
) AboveS5 years T20,12,201.66/- (Prekus year: ¥ 9,72,569.35/-)

The lease payment recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year is ¥ 4,32,565.16/- (Previous
Year:73,65,530.20/-)

Note 30
Impairment of assets

In the opinion of management, there is no impairment during the year under review.

Note 31
Utilization of Proceeds

During the year the Company has raised an amount of 16, 55 740,00/-(Previous Year: ¥17,87,570.00/-) by way of non-
convertible debentures , ¥35,16,580.00/-(Previous Year: €62,57,190.00/-) by way of subordinate debts and
¥55,18,922.34/- (Previous Year: NIL) by way of term loan, ¥12,500.00/- (Previous Year: ¥1,67,380.90/-) by way of loan
from directors, the same has been utilized for the purpose ofworkmg capital requirements.

Note 32 . : .
The following is disclosed with regard to CSR activities : _
o 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
-a)] Amount Required to be spend by the company during the yéar : 26.37 19.54
b) Amount of expenditure incurred : _ _ : 48.76 119.54

¢) Shortfall at the end of the year: _ - -

d) Total of previous year shortfall : . | : -
€) Reason for shortfall : : _ o : ' NIL NIL
. Amount distributed Prime Minister's

| N fCSR Activities ;. : : : i i
f) Nature of €S Ltl.\fltlf..‘,S . | forCovid 19 releif National Relief

_ Fund
: g] Details of related party transactions : o ' NIL NIL
h]} Provision incured by entering into a contractual obligarion : NIL NIL
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

- Note 33
Details of Auction held during the year

; 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

-|No. of Loan accounts _ _ 5298 _ 166

Principal amount Cutstanding at the dates of auction(A) : 2,323.26 39.04
|Interest and Other charges Qutstanding at the dates of auction(B) 55879 | ~ B0.07

Total{A+B) : ) _ : . 288205 - - 11911

Value fetched?* _ ' _ _ 2,886.07 | © 8819

*excluding GST / Sales tax ggll'gctgd from the buyer.

‘No sister concerns partcipated in t -t ] ing the period.

Note 34

~ and provisiohing

Details of resglution plan implg._t_n'gntg_ d under the resolution framework for Covid-19 related 'stre'ss as per RBI

circular dated August 6, 2020 are 'given below:
@ ®) © of | (@ (E)
Number of Exposure to | (B), aggregate | Additional funding Increase in
accounts where accounts amount of debt | sanctioned ,ifany, | provisions on
: resolution plan mentioned at that was including between { account of the
Type of borrower ‘has been (A) before |convertedinto| invocationofthe | implementation
implemented |implementatio |other securities plan and of the resolution
under this n of the plan ' implementation plan

window

Personal Loans ' - : - - - -

Corporate Persons . , - - - ' o - : -

Of which MSMEs : - - - - -

Others - - - - : -
[Total ' ' - o . .
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-22
{ Alf amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 35

Disclosure on the following matters required under schedule 111 as amended not heing or applicable in case of

the company, same are not covered such as :

a) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder;

b} The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial mstltutmn or government or any
government authority.

¢} No registeration or satisfaction of charges are pending to be filed with ROC.

d} The company has not entercd into any scheme of arragement. '

e] There are notransactions which have not been recorded in the books. _

f) The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

g) The company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 or the Companies Act 2013.
‘h) Utlllsatlon of Barrowed funds or share premium :

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either bormwad fum:ls or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds)} by the company to or in any other person(s) orentity(ies), including foreign entities (Ihtermediaries) with

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or-provide any guarantee; security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

No funds have been received by the company fmm any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Fundmg Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 36 .
C_omgaratives

The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board ofdlrectors of "/Q/
For Manikandan & Associates 3 Mu,hoot Mercantile Limited - - 7
Chartered Accourifait - et T ‘ e
ICALFirm Regls' '

' i PP p——
r_t1on Nu.mber 00852058 ' M Mathew Richi Mathew

_ [Wholetime Director] _[Managing Director}
CK anlkandtm ~ DIN 00063078 ;"7 DIN 00224336
[Partner} ' 2L ﬁégﬁ;
Membership no: MR Raje Neethii CBiju

. : [Chief Financtial Officer] [Company Secretary]
~ Place: Thrissur : : Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date: 04th October, 2023 ’ Date: 04th October, 2023 i-

i \\J
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a NBFC

(%.in lakhs)
8l Particulars ’
No |{Liabilities side:
(1) JLoans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company Amount ' _
. . _ . : . Amount overdue
inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not paid outstanding _
(a) Debentures : Secured 4758 13
: Unsecured 0 0
(other than falling within the '
meaning of public deposits®)
[b) Deferred Credits 0 0
(c) Term Loans 4479 0
(d) [nter-corporate loans and borrowing 0 0
{c) Commercial paper 0 ]|
{f) Public Deposits* -
(g) Other Loans(Specify nature)
(i)Overdraft 2452 0
(ii)Perpetual Debt Instrument 308 0
fii{}Loan from Director .0 ]
: (iv)Subordinate Debts 16108 0
*Please see Note 1 below : '
.(2) |Break-up of {1)(f) above [Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid) :
{2) In the form of Unsecured debentires
(b} In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shertfall in the value of security
() Cther public deposits
* Please see Note 1 below
Assets side: Amount outstanding
.(3)|Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other : '
than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured 33256
(b) Unsecured - 596
.(4) |Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on hive and other assets cuuntmg
towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{a} Financial lease 0
(b} . Operating lease 0
(ii) Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a} Assetson Hire 0
~ {b) Repossessed assets 0
(iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC Activities
~ (a) Loanswhere assets have been repossessed 0.
0

{b] Leans other than {a) above




.(5) |Break-up of Investments;
Current Investments :
1. Quoted
{i} Shares: (a) Equity
{b) Preference

{(ii} Debentures and Bonds :
(ii) Units of Mutual funds . ' ' 110
(iv) Government securities '
(v) - Others (please specify)

S oWn o o0

2. Unguoted: .
(i} Shares: [a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iif) Units of Mutual funds
{iv) Government securities
{v) Others (please specify}
Long term Investmments: '
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
* (b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual funds
(iv) Government securities
(v) Others (please specify]
2. Unguoted: ’
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
_ (b} Preference
(if) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual funds
(iv] Government securities

Le- Tk - o B o B - - |

[P o R - Y oo i ]

oo o oo

(v} Others {please specify) :
.(6) |Borrower Group-wise classification ofassets financed as in (3) and (4) above :
Please see Note 2 below g .
Category : Amount net of provisions
: ~Secured Unsecured ) Total

1. Related Parties** . .
' (a) Subsidiaries o 0 0 0
(k) Companics in the same group ' o ' ) .
(¢) Other related Parties o : 0] - ' 0 . o

(=]
o .
(=

2. DOther than related parties ' ' 33160 . 0] - 33160

Total 33160 0 33160

R e
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(7]

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below

Category Market value/Break-up or fair value or NAV Book value {net of provisions)
1. Related Parties**
(a)Subsidiaries ¢ 0
(b)Companies in the ] 0
same group
(c)Other related 0 0
patties
2. Other than related 0 _ ]
Parties . .
Total - - ' -0
{**As per Accounting Standard of ICAI {Please see Note 3)
.(8) 1Other information ,
Particulars : : ' Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets _ . _ :
(a) Related Parties : : [
{b} Other than related parties : : _ : ' 124
(if) Net Non-Performing Assets . _ : _
" {a) Related Parties : ' : : : 0
() Other than related parties ' ' ' 111
(iii) Asset acquired in Satisfaction of Debt o : ' 0

Notes: .

1} Asdefined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2}  Provisioning norms shail be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.

3)  All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of investrients and
other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, Market value in respect of quoted investments
and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments should ke disclosed irrespective of whether they
are classified as long term or current in column (5) above.

" As per our report of even date attached Forand on behalf of the board of directors of

For Manikandan & Associates - Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Chartered Accountant —_— :

ICAI Firm .R'ég-ifs"fﬁit:itjﬁfﬂumbcr: 0085205 - ——MMathéw § fchi Mather

: [Wholetime Director] [Managing Director}
%)63078 ra' DlN/G;%4 36
) MR Rafg(gv/% ZCA 3;;' Neethu C Biju
e [Chief Financial Officer] & X {Company Secretary]
Place: Thrissur _ Place: Thiruvananthapur &@JD "
Date: 04th October, 2023 _ Date: 04th October, 2023 4 24695014 Ji7 o
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Manikandan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2023, STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARENDED MARCH 31, 2023 OF MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

To the Board of Directorsof Muthoot Mercantile Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Muthoot Mercantile Limited (the
“Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of profit and
loss, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

Management’sResponsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results of operations and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amended and based on the provisions of Para 3.3.10 of Schedule | to the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended(the “SEBI NCS
Regulations”).This also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’sResponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI"”). Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

.

Chalakudy: "Krishna Arcade”,Near Marathompiliy Krishna femple, KSRTC Road, Chalakudy - 680 307, Kochi: KV 50,5th Cross Road, Panampilly Nagar
Cochin-682 036, Thrissur: S-16 Alukkas Castle, Opp.Collectorate, Ayyanthole, Thrissur - 680 003
Phone - Off: L. 0480 2960504, Off: M: 80788 37443, Partner: 94471 005(&;5¢mail :Off: ckmauditors@gmail.com Partner: manikandan_ck@yahoo.com

Website: www.manikandanca.com _ o A s



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to theexplanations given to us, the
financial statements are prepared in the manner so required as per Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI
NCS Regulations and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of thestate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and of its results
ofoperations and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

The financial statementsare prepared to assist the Company to meet the requirements of SEBI NCS
Regulations, as amended. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable foranother purpose.

Other Matter

Muthoot Mercantile Limited has prepared a separate set of financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023, in accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, on which
M/s. Mohandas & Associates,Chartered ‘Accountants,has issued a separate auditor’s report to the
shareholders of the Company dated June30, 2023.

For Manikandan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registratio :008520S

A T U
¢ SHAL

C KManikandlal.t')-;; Cwe

[Partner] SIS
M. No.: 208654 i

UDIN: 23208654BGSIDM4322

~ Place: Chalakudy
Date: 04™ October, 2023
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31% March , 2023
{Ail amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 31-Mar-23 21-Mar-22
Shareholders’ funds :
Share capital 3 ' 2,941.88 294188
Reserves and surplus ' 4 . 1061446 T B795.44
_ 13,556.33 11,737.31
Non-current liabilities .
Long-term borrowings . 5 33,330.22 23,587.46
Other long term liabilities 6 1,854.44 1,209.12
Long-term provisions 9 86.46 - 7361
35,271.12 ) 24,870.19
Current liahilities
Short-term borrowings : 7 . 10,398.20 4,264.32
Trade payables ' 8 '
(4} total oi.rcsfandfng dues of micro enterprises and : 840 _ 17.20
small enterprises; and
{B{T total outsfandmg dues ofcredzt.ors ather than 17.45 o 5535
micrg enterprises und smalf enterprises. : : : _
Other current liabilities 6 _ '487.32 357.42
Short-term provisions 9 : 911.64 73395
' ' -11,823.10 542824

Total 60,650.56 ) 42,035.74

Assets
Nen-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intdngible assets

Property, Plunt and Equipment : 10A 579.42 42398
-Intangible assets : 10B - : 0.87 -
Deferred tax assets (net) i 11 154.25 126.00
Long-term loans and advances - 12 ' ' 649.97 655.30
Other non current assets 15 489.31 _ 463.62
' 1,873.82 1,669.50
Current asseis . _ _ )
investments _ 13 . _ - : 1,101.98
Cash arid bank balances o 14 5.394.26. : 3,479.50
Short-term loans and advances 12 50,750.36 ... 3385987
Other current assets ' 15 263212 _ 1,924.89
' 58,776.73 - 40,366.24
. Total ) 60,650.56 42,035.74
Summary of significant accouiting policies 21 '

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached : For and on behaif of the board of directors of f{_g/‘) -
For Manikandan & Assocmtes : N Muthoot Mercantile Limite/ti -
Chartered Accountant _ : s N—---ﬂ-';-’. : A _ _
ICAI Firm Registratioz ; : : M Mathew - ! athew o

[Wholetime Director] [Managing Dlrector]

] 00630?8 r" i 0 24336
MRRa]ee I.lCB]]ll :

[Fartner]
Membership No.: 208

. . [Chief Financial Ofﬁcer]
Place: Thrissur _ : Place: '[‘h1ruvananthapur
Date: 04th October 2023 Date: 04th Octobm 202 e’*h

\7'1 693014

&\\-—- i
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023
{All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Continuing Operations Notes 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22
Revenue from operation 16 9,43097 - - 6,673.83
Other income 17 35.86 28.56
Total Income : 9,466.83 . 6,702.38
Expenses . '

Finance costs i8 3,271.94 2,207.48
Employee benefits expense 19 2,028.00 1,113.66
Other cxpenses . 20 1,495.26 925.63
Depreciation and amortization expense ' 21 203.61 ' 158.17
Total Expenses o _ £ 6,998.82 4,404.94
Profit before tax S ' 246801 2,297.45

Tax expenses . .
Current tax ) 677.28 614,13

(Excess)/Short provision for tax relating to previous : '

year : ' (0.03)

Deferred tax expense/(income) . : (28.25)  {15.10)
Total tax expense | 64899 595.03
Profit for the year - 1,819.02 -1,702.42

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share 10/-] i _ .
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share () _ 22 6.18 579

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached Forand on behalf of the board of directors of N
For Manikanda_n & Associates Muthoot Merca_n_tile Limited W M/://
Chartered Accountant V- S e

0s M Mathew ~Richi Mathew
i {Wholetime Director] [Managing Director]

' CKM@nikandan  §E| ©Ivi gl DIN 00063078 r’ DIN 00224336
[Partner] . : ¥y ﬂ&

[CAl Firm Registration,

Membership No.: 208654 M R Rajec¥

o : . _ [Chiet Financial Officer}
Place: Thrissur _ Place: Thiruvananthapur;
Date: 04th October 2023 -~ . -  Date: 04th October 202
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LTD |
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in La’khs of Indian rupe_es,. un.’ess ather wise stated)}

L _ _ 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Cash ﬂowfrom operatmg activities' co Co S o ' : o
Profit before tax _ : R oo L 2,46801 2,29745
Adjustments:” : ' . T : o ' R
Deprecmtmn and amortlzatmn _ o : e . ' - - 20361 . 15817
“Provision for employee benefits _ T - - 1674 . . (6.39)
Prov'ision'fo'r'Standard Assets o _ S 4218 . 13.28 _
~ Provision for Non- perforniing assets.. B ' 6848 638
“Gain on sale of Mutual Fund .~ S - R L (341) - (209)
- Profit on sale of Property, P]ant&Eqmpment - B L S S < 4 I
. Finance Cost : S S 327194 . 2,20748
Operating profit before working capital changes S - 6,067.55 ' 4,670.52
Movements in working capital : R S _ ' B
_ Increasc/ [du:rease] in other. current llabilmes&trade payables.-- S [18.-[_]4} 12877 -
. Increase / (decrease} in CSR pmwsmn ) - : - : R - (14.54).
_ Decrease / (increase) in long-term loans and advances . . T o (541) o (106:26)
~ Decrease / (increase) in short-terin loans and advanc'es' S S - {16,880.50) _ (5,385.15)
‘Decrease / (increase) in other current assets C S - [707.23) C . (378.01)
Decrease / (increase) bank balances other than cash equlvalents _ o '[82"5__;39) : o {0;48_]
_ Decrease / (increase) in other non- currentassets : S o C [25.69) : - {72.76) _'
~ Cashi generated from /{used in) operatlons o o . {12,404.70} ~ (1,162.92)
Direct taxes paid A L _ . . (61409 . - {500.31)
Finance costpaid =~~~ T . o (2,525.29) {1,590.14)
Net cash flow fram/ (used in) operatmg actlvmes (A) S - - (15,544.08) - {3,253.36)
Cash ﬂows from investing activities . ' ' ' ' - ' o o
Purchase of Propert ,PIant&E ui ment&[ntan ible Asse mc]udm CW!P : L :
and capltal advalilcesy ' q p g : t’ : . : (348.58) . [240"83]-
Disposal ofProperty, Plant&Eqmpment N - o - _ o 450
: [Investment]}Redemphon of Mutual Fund (net) I . C . ©1,10540 - (1,099.89)
Net cash flow from/ (used m] mvestmgactwltles [B) ' o - - . 756,82 . {1,336.22)
Cashﬂows fromi ﬁnancmgactmtles _ ' ' ' L P
' Proceeds{[Repayment) of long-term horrowmgs(net] g - ' 9;742'.7:6 R 8,798.66
' Proceeds[[Repayment}ofshort-termborrowmgs{net) o - - . . 6,133.88 S [947;60]'
Nét cash flow frém/ (used in) in finaricing activities (C] ' - S 15,876.63 - 7,851.06
Net mcrease/[decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C} . 1,089.37 o 3,261,47
. ‘ Cashahd cash. equwalents at th(. beginning of the year B o e '-"'3,464.29 , . L 2'{)2.82 _
'Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year S t o - - - 4,553.66 - 3,464.29.
Components ofcash and cash equlvalents e . i y L B
Cashonhand =~ . S e S L 4a8205 T 66098
Bdlance w1t11 banks o R o . 4,071.62 280331
Total cash and cash equwalents [note 14] I I : 4,553.66. 3,464.29
As per our report of even date attached L .. For and on behalf of the board of directors of '
For Mamkandan & Associates . - - o Muthoot Mercantile Limited :
Cll_artered Ac_count__ant SN 7. e AU -~ ‘,—',"‘_i"‘__..--"'“"'ﬁ _
ICAI Pir Registratip Der:00B3Z0S f"M’Mamew - ~LGehT Mathew .
L U, 150 S - [Wholetime Director]~ ~ - . . .[Managing Director]
CK Mani S DIN00063078 - )/’ a © . DIN00224336 | . -
artoer] % _ 4%/% _ o %&"ﬁ/ |
Membershlp No.: 208654 © “MRRajeev T [ - | omee - Neethu CBiju-
' '[Chieff‘inanc'ial fficer] L CA R '[CbmpanySecretﬁry]

Phce Thllssur - LT P - Place: Th:ruvananthapu _ -
Date 04th OLtober 2023 . R o _Date: 04th October 202 (S frrveaup e
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23

21

-losses, if any.

1 NATURE OF OPERATION

Muthoot Mercantile Limited(CIN:U65921KL1997PLC011260} was incorporated on 3™ March 1997 having

registered office at 1™ Floor, North Block, "Muthoot Floors"opposite W & C Haspital, Thycaud,
Thiruvananthapuram, 635014, Kerala The Contpany is a Non-Systemically Tmportant Non-Deposit Taking Non-
Banking Financial Company [NBFC-ND] which provides a wide range of fund based and fee based services

including Gold Iéan, Ménsey Transfer eté.The Company is a Non-Depesit taking Non Banking Financial Corfpany

registered under section 45 [A of the Reserve Bank of India Act; 1934 vide Certificate of Registration (‘CoR’)

number N-16,00178 dated 12th December, 2002

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in Tadia(Indian GAAP).The Cofipany has prepuared thése finaiicial statetients to comply i all riaterial
respects with the Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013, read together with

- paragraph 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) Rules 2014 and the guidelines jssued by the Reserve Bank of India as -

applicable to a Non-Systemically Imepertant Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND).
The firancial statements have heen prepared under historical cost convention and on accrual basis except for
interest ort Non Performing Assets which are recognised on realisation basis.The accuunting policies have been
consistently applied by the Company and arc consistent with thase used in the previous year.All amounts
included jn the financial statements are reported in Lakhs of indian rupees (Rupees in Lakhs) except share and
per share data, unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the humbers presented throughout the document -
may not be add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the sbsolute figures.

Significant Accounting Policies udopted in the Preparation and Presentation of

Financial Statements are as under-;

. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and asswmptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
Habilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the repotting period.Althmigh these estimates

dre based on the mabggerient's best knowledgé of durrent évents dnd aActions, uncertainity about thése

assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in filture periods. Co

. PROPERTY.PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and eqm’}iment are stated at cost less accumutated depreciation and impairment losses if any. The

cost coniprises plirchase price, bofrowing costs if capitalisation criteria arg' mgt and any cost dirédly
attributable to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. '

Intangible assets aéquired separately are measured on initjz_ﬂ recognition at cost. Foll_pwing initial
récognition,intngible assets are cairied at cost less avcumiiilited amortzation and scitdiilatéd impairment




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis cver the estimated useful economic life of 5 years as
determined by the management.The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

.D 10N

Depreciation has been provi.ded on Written Down Value method as per the useful life estimated by the
management. The estimates of usefiil life followed by the company is provided as under:

Assets ~ Life of Assets (Years)

— e
Strong Room 20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)
10 (Others)
1 - - *
Furniture and Fixtures . 20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)
10 {Others)
Vehicles S ] B

3 (End user devices)
6 (Servers and networks)

Computer & Accessories

20 {acquired up ta 31-03-15)*

Office & Electrical Equipments

10 (Qthers)

*Based on the estimation given by the chartered engineer

. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS .

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impairedIf any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount.Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and.is written down to its recoverable amount.After ihlpairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. ' '

. REVENUES

Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. [nterest, where installments are overdue in respect of non performing assets
are recognised on realisation basis. Any such income recognised and remaining unrealised after the installments
become overdue with respect to non performing assets is reversed. Interest on deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basig taking into-account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined contribution scheme -
and the contributions are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the fund
is due. Gratuity payable under "The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972" is accrued and provided for on the basis of an

- actuarial valuation on Projected unit credit method with control period of one year. The Company does not have a

scheme of encashment of earned leave, The Earned leave which is not utilized during the year will be automatically
lapsed at the end of the year and can not be carried forward. Hence no provision has been made in the accounts for
encashment of leave and carried forward of earned leave, '




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23

h.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset.All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they incur,

. ME TAX

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflect

_ the impéct of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating during the current

k.

i)

year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax assets are reécognised only to the extent
that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balancesheet
date. The Company write-down the cairying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain ,as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity share

holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average '
number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a’
rightissue to existing share holders; share split;and reverse share split, if any. '

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable

_ that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be

ii)

made . These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Provisioning policy for gold loan and other portfolic loans o
Secured loans are classified /provided for as per management's best estimates, subject to minimum provision
required as per Non Banking Financial Company-Non Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as follows

Gold and other loans

. Asset Classification Provisioning poticy
Standard Assets : 0.25% .
Sub-standard Assets _ 10% on Cutstanding
Doubtful Assets ' : . ]
Dt ' : 100% of unsecured portion + 20 % of secured portion
Dz . ' 100% of unsecured pt_lrtidn + 30 % of secured portion
D3 : ' 100% of unsecured portion + 50 % of secured portion

Loss Assets _ - 100%

' 'The Company has also provided additional provisions based on management estimates wherever necessary.

L

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company primarily operates in the business of gold loan and its operations are in India. Accordingly no

segment reporting is applicable. .
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23

m. CASH AND IVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in hand ,cash at bank and deposits having orginal
maturity of three months or less

. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent lability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the

" pccurence oF non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events which is beyond the control of the Company or

a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation.The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the -
financial statements.

LEASES .
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership for the leased term,

are classified as operating leases. Qperating lease payments in respect of non-cancellable leases are recognised as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

" Cash flows are reportéd using the indirect method,whereby profit /. (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is .

adjusted for the effects of transactions of nen-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past / future cash
receipts or payments.-The cash flows from operatmg, investing and ﬁnancmg activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information

. INVESTMENTS

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current

investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at

_ lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Quoted current investments for each

category is valued at cost or market value whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost

Provision for diminution shall be made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the

investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

N CURRENCY T TIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign

“currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary |

itemns which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange ratc at the date of the transaction and non- monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed whe_n the values
were determined. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED _
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All ameunts are in Lakhs of indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 4
Reserves and surplus
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Capital redemption reserve
‘Balance as per the {ast financial statement o 2,280.63 " - 2280.63
Total (A) 2,280.63 2,280.63
Stamlory reserve
Balance ag per the last financial statement ' 2511.87 2168.87
Amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit
and loss pursuant to section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 : ' _ o 366.00 ' 343.00
Total (B) ' 2,877.87 2,511.87
Surplusf(deﬁcitj in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statement : T 400295 2643.52
Profit for the year 1,819.02 1702.42
' 5,821.97 : 4,345.95
Less: Appropriations ' :
Transfer to statutory reserve pursuant to section 45-IC of the c
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 . - 366.00 343.00
Total (C) 5,455.97 4,002.95
Total (A}+(B)+(C) 18,614.46 8,795.44
x _ . .
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 5 (contd.)

if]lNon Convertible Debentures of¥1,000/- each - Serieswise Classification

As at 31" March, 2023

S1No | Series Date of From Debenture 0/s Rate of Terms of Redemption
_Issue Interest

1 139 14-Sep-12 1.05] 14.75%]| At par at the end 60 menths

143 22-Dec-12 0.25 11%-129%| At par at the end 64 months

3 146 26-Dec-12 0.07] 10%-11.25%]|At par at the end 36 manths
4 174 15-Jan-20 56.00] 9.25%-15.35%)]|At par at the end 36-60 months
5 175 10-Feb-20 . 227.65 9%%-14.85%)} At par at the end 36-90 months
6 176 22-Feb-20 175.90 9.25%-20%] At par at the end 36-30 months
7 177 23-Mar-20 168.50| 9.25%-14.75%]At par at the end 36-84 months
8 | 178 | 22-May-20§ 186.30 9%-14.29%] At par at the end 24-84 months
9 179 03-)ul-20} - 367.74|  10%-13.33%|At par at the end 60-90 months
10 180 12-0ct-201. 216.02 ‘9%-12,50% | At par at the end 36-96 months
11 131 19-Nov-20 520.01| 9:25%-13.33%|At par at the end 36-90 months
12 182 07-Jan-21 226,50} 9.25%-13.33%|At par at the end 36-90 months
13 133 29-Jun-21 302.13 8%-13.79%]| At par at the end 12-87 months
14 154 11-Sep-21 222,00} 9.25%-13.79%|At par at the end 36-87 months
15 185 30-Nov-21 445.00f 9.25%-13.79%| At par at the end 36-87 months
16 186 05-Feh-22 214.00f 7.25%-10.12%|At par at the end 12-60 months
17 187 12-Mar-22 - 141.39 7.25%-9.6%)| At par at the end 12-60 months
18 188 30-Mar-22 145.45 7.25%-9.6%| At par at the end 12-60 months
19- 1 189 31-May-22 268.05] 7.25%-9.75%]|At par at the end 12-60 months
20 190 | 08-Aug-22 432.40 9%-11%]| At par at the end 36-60 months
21 191 | 05-Sep-22 385.00 994-119%/| At par at the end 36-60 months

22 192 13-Jan-23 100.00 10.5% At par at the end 60 months
23 193 18-Mar-23 248.00] 9.25%-11.75%/|At par at the end 18-60 months
24 194 30-Mar-23 120.00| 9.25%-11.75%|At par at the end 18-60 months

: © - 5,169.32 )
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{All.amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

As at 31" March, 2022

SINo | Series Date of From Debenture O/s Rate of Terms of Redemption
1ssue _Interest . .

1 122 18-Aug-11 0.40 15.35%| At par at the end 36 months
2 126 19-Nov-11 1.60 14.85%| At par at the end 36 months
3 139 14-Sep-12 105 14.75%| At par at the end 60 months
4 143 22-Dac-12 0.25 11%-12%{At par at the end 64 months
5 146 26-Dec-12 L 0.07]  10%-11.25%] At par at the end 36 months
6 172 29-Mar-19 650f 9.25%-14.3%|Atpar at the end 36 months
7 173 15-Jul-19 292.00} 9.25%-18.75%|At par at the end 36 months
8 174 15-an-20 75.67| 9.25%-15.35%]|At par at the end 36-60 months
9 175 10-Feb-20 302,70 904-14.85%| At par at the end 36-90 months
10 176 22-Feb-20 258.10 9,25%-20%[At par at the end 36-90 months
11 177 23-Mar-20 209.80] 9.75%-14.75%]JAt par at the end 36-84 months
12 178 22-May-20 258.30 9%-14.29%{ At par at the end 24-84 months
13 179 3-Jul-20 401,741  10%-13.33%]JAt par at the end 60-50 months
14 | 180 12-0ct-20 . 229.02 995-12.509%] At par at the end 36-96 months
15 181 15-Nov-2{) 520.01] 9.25%-13.33% At par at the end 36-90 months
16 182 07-Jan-21 - 279.50| 9.25%-13.33%|At par at the end 36-90 months
17 183 29-jun-21 322.13 8%-13.79%]At par at the'end 12-87 months
18 184 11-Sep-21 222.00] 9.25%-13.79%]At par at the end 36-87 months
19 185 30-Nov-21 480.50( 9.25%-13.79%]| At par at the end 36-87 months
20 186 (5-Feb-22 300.00| 7.25%-10.12%|At par at the end 12-60 months
21 187 12-Mar-22|- 185.66 7.25%-9.6% | At par at the end 1Z-60 months
22 188 30-Mar-22 145.45 7.25%-9.6%[At par at the end 12-60 months

Total 4,491.85 '
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise sta ted)

Note 5 (contd.)

ji] Subordinate Debts of ¥1,000/- each - Serieswise Classification

As at 31% March, 2023

51 No| Month of Receipt | From Subordinate Debts 0/s | Rate of Interest Terms of Redemption
1 [February 2019 . 159] 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
2 |March 201% 2.85] 9.5%-11.81% Atpar at the end 60 months
3 |April 2019 3.62] 95%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
4 |Juiy 2019 3.24] 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
5 |August 2019 T 2621 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
6 |September 2019 5.79] 10%-11.85% Atpar at the end 60 months
7 . |October 2019 . 5.29] 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
8 {November 2019 7.0 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
9 |December 2019 7.15] 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
10 |January 2020 6.32] 109%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
11 |February 2020 4.45]  10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
12 {March 2020 2881 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
13 |April 2020 319 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
14 [May 2020 598 10%-11.29% " At par at the end 60 months
15 lJune 2020 3.54] 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
16 |July 2020 3.32] 9.75%-10:97% | = Atpar at the end 60 months
17 |August 2020 7.71]  9%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
18 |September 2020 3.18 0%-9.75% - At par at the end 60 months
19 |Qctober 2020 .3.31]  9.25%-10% At par at the end 60 months
20 |November 2020 7.31] 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
21 |December 2020 311 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
22 January 2021 9,86 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
23 |February 2021 8.14] 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
24 |March 2021 3931 9.20%-i1% At par at the end 60 months
25 |April 2021 3.42[. 10.25%-11% Atpar at the end 60 months
26 [May 2021 2.77 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
27 |June 2021 S 2.91 100-11% At par at the end 60 months
28 [July 2021 3.19]  10%-11% Atpar at the end 60 months
29 |August 2021 2,95 -10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
30 ISeptember 2021 4.72 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months -
31 |Oc¢tober 2021 3.93 10%-11% Atpar at the end 60 months
.32 [November 2021 3.63 9%-11% At par at the end 60 months
33 |December 2021 3.49 9% - 10% At par at the end 60 months _
34 |January 2022 3.22 9% - 10% At par at the end 60 months
35 |February 2022 0.79 89%-9% At par at the end 60 months
36 |March 2022 0.15 8%-9% . At par at tie end 60 months
37 {luly 2022 4.66 9.5 9-11% At par at the end 60 months
38 |August 2022 727 9.5%-11% " At par at the end 60 months
39 [September 2022 - 3.53 9.5%-12% At par at the end 60 months
40 §October 2022 7.68 10%-12% At par at the end 60 months
41 |November 2022 879 10.25%-12% At par at the end 68 months
42 |Deccmber 2022 6.27] - 10.25%-12% At par at the end 60 months
43 fJanuary 2023 3,76 10.25%-12% At par at the end 60 menths
44 |February 2023 4801 10.5%-12 % At-par at the end 60 months
45 |March 2023 3.80] 10.5%-12% Atpar at the end 60 months
Total : 201.24 '




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ Al amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Asat 31st March, 2022

SINo| Month of Receipt | From Subordinate Debts 0/s | Rate of Interest Terms of Redemption
1 |February 2019 1.59[ 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
2 |March 2019 2.85] 9.59%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months |
3 |April 2019 3.62] 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
4 |july 2019 324 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
5 |Augnst 2019 2.62] 9.5%-11.81% At par at the end 60 months
6 |September 2019 5791 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
7 |October 2019 - 5291 10%-11.85% At par at the end 60 months
‘8 [November 2019 7.10] 14%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
9 |December 2019 7.15] 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
10 [January 2020 6321 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
- 11 |February 202¢ 445] 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
12 |March 2020 288 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 months
13 |April 2020 - 3.19§ ~10%-11.29% Atpar at the end 60 months
14 |May 2020 598! 10%-11.29% At par at the end 60 manths
15 |June 2020 3.54] 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
16 |July 2020 3.321 9.75%-10.97% At par at the end 60 months
17 |August 2020 7.71 9%-10.97% At par at the end 68 months
18 [September 2020 3.18 9%-5.75% At par at the end 60 months
19 |October 2020 3.31 9.25%-10% At parat the end 60 months
20 |Novembher 2020 7.31| 9.85%-10.5% At.par at the end 60 months
21 [December 2020 311 9.85%-10.5% At par at the end 60 months
22 |January 2021 9.86] 10.25%-119% At par at the end 60 months
23 [February 2021 8.14] 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
24 |March 2021 3931 9.20%-11% At par at the end 60 months
25 JApril 2021 3421 10.25%-11% At par at the end 60 months
26 [May 2021 2.77 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
27 [ne 2021 2.91 10%-11% Atpar at the end 60 months
28 |uly 2021 3.19[  10%-11% - Atpar at the end 60 months
29 |August 2021 2.95 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
30 ISeptember 2021 472 10%-11% At par at the end 60 months
31 |October 2021 3.93 10%-11% - At par at the end 60 months
32 {November 2021 3.63 9%-11% At par at the end 60 months
33 |December 2021 3.49 024 - 10% At par at the end 60 months
34 {January 2022 . 3.22 9% - 10% At par at the end 60 months
35 {February 2022 0.7% 8%-9% At par at the end 60 months
36 {March 2022 0.15 8%-9% At par at the end 60 months
Total 150.63
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 7
Short-term borrowings

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Secured Borrowings

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Note 5)* 4,437.66 - 1,776.58
-Loan repayable ¢n demand
From Banks (Cash credit}

State Bank of India** . - 4,087.70 2,443.86
[ndian Gverseas Bank*** _ : 7.87 7.98
Karur Vysya Banlk**** ' 031 35.90

 Federal Bank**** .~ - . 15.07 -

From Banks (Overdraft)

Karur Vysya Bank®#*** ) 1,449.59 -
Federal Bank**##* - ' 400.00 -
Total _ 10,398.20 4,264.32

*“Include T 1,99,000/-(Previous Year: ?3,00,000) from related parties which are detailed in Note 23
"Related party Transactions” of the financial statements

**Secured by exclusive First charge over ail movable assets and current assets, including book debts and
receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and advances, both present and future, of the company, on pari-
passu basis with the Sccured Creditors including debenture trustees and other bank and by equitable
‘mortgage of the personal land and building of Mr.M Mathew & Mrs.Ammini Mathew, directors of the
company and Term deposit of Rs 5 Crore secured by lien as cash collateral security. The loan has been
personally guaranteed by Mr.M Mathew, Ammini Mathew & Mr.Richi Mathew. Rate of interest is 255 bps -
above six month MCLR{present effective rate of interest is 9. '30% per annum). Cash credit limit is rupees
fifty Crore.

*++* Rate of interest is 6.60% per annum. Amount Sanctioned is yupees eightlakhs. Tenure of Cash Credit
is for one year.

waxt Secured by first pari-passu charge on the receivables of the company including the Gold loan
receivables both present and future , and other current assets of the company with other secured
lenders(Banks,F1's and NCD Holders except those which are specifically charged to any term lenders
whether under refinance facility or otherwise(Net of NPA Accounts) with a margin of 25% as primary
security and by equitable mortgage of personal land in the name of Mr. M Matlrew & Mr. Richi Mathew,
directors of the company as collatral security. The loan has been personally guaranteed by Mr.M Mathew,
Ammini Mathew & Mr.Richi Mathew. The rate of interest shall be 1.65% p.a. over and above the One year
Marginal Cost of funds based Lending Rate(MCLR) which is presently at 8.35% (present effective rate of

interest is 10.00% ner annum). Cash creédit limit is runees fifteen Crore.
*ekx Secured by first pari-passu by way of hypothecatlon of entire current assets of the company

(present and future) including Gold Loan Receivables,with secured debenture holders and other banks as
primary security and Fixed deposit of Rs 3 Crore in the name of the company as cash collateral
security.The loan has been personally guaranteed by Mr.M Mathew Ammini Mathew & Mr.Richi
Mathew. Tlleft"_tg ofmterest shallbe 10.30 %.




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ Alt amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 8
Trade payables

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

] standing d f mi >nterpri d small ' _
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises an ma 8.49 17.20

enterprises; and :
al tanding d f dit ther th i -
Tota o.uts anding dues o 'cre itors other than micro . 1745 5538
enterprises and small enterpriscs.
Total | 25.94 7255

Disclosure relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises _ :
' 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22

the principal amount and the interest due therecn
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 4,40 17.20
accounting year; '

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sectien
16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the . Nil . Nil
payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinted day

during cach accounting year; '

e amoutit of mterest due and payable tor the perigd of

delay in making payment (which have been paid but _
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without _ Nil ' Nil
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smail and '

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the Nil Nil

end of each accountang year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues above are actuallypaid to the small NG ' Nil
) DN

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding tor
more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022. This information as required to be
disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.’




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Disclosure:- Schedule for Trade payables due for payment for the year ended 31st march 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from the date of payment

Particulars Less than I year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

i) MSME 849 NIL NIL NIL 849
ii) Others ' 17.45 NIL NIL NiL _ 17.45
iii) Disputed dues - MSME NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

iv) Disputed dues - Others ' NIL NIL NiL NIL _ NIL

Disclosure:- Scheduile for Trade payables due fer payment for the year ended 31st march 2022

Outstanding_foi- following periods from the date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year | 1-2 yezirs 2-3years | Morethan 3 years Total
i) MSME 17.20 NIL NIL . NIL . 17.20
it} Others : 55.35 NIL NIL _ NIL 55.35
iif) Disputed dues - MSME NIL NIL NIL NIL NiL
iv} Disputed dues - Others NIL NIL NIL NIL . NIL
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ Altamounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 10B
Intangible assets

Computer Software
Cost
01-Apr-21 84.63
Additions . -
" Deletions . ‘-
31-Mar-22 ' 84._63
Cost -
01-Apr-22 = . - 84.63
Additions : 1.09
Deletions ' -
‘31-Mar-23 : 85.72
Amortization _ _
01-Apr-21 67.71
Charge for the year 1693
Deletions -
31-Mar-22 84.63
Amdrtization'
01-Apr-22 ' B4.63
Charge for the year 0.22
Deletions -
31-Mar-23 . 84.85
Net Block
31-Mar-23
31-Mar-22
(N S
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% B
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£
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 11
Deferred tax assets (net) .

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current year Deferred tax asset/(liability) _
On account of Depreciation . o 51.10 71.68
On account of Provision for Gratuity : 30.56 32.34
On account of 40 a disallowances _ : - -
(On account of Provision for Standard Assets 32.59 _ 2197
Total 154.25 126.00
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ Aif amounts ave in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 16
Revenug from operation .
31-Mar-23 3i-Mar-22
Interest Income 9,310.02 6622.15
Other'FinanciaI services
Service Charges Received. o 108.27 42.47
Commission Received ‘ 12.69 Q.20
Total : 9,4ﬂ3 0.97 6,673.83
Note 17
Qther income : -
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Interest on Treasury deposit 1.89 ' 388
Interest on Fixed deposit with banks 14.88 : .40
interest on Income tax refund . : ' - .87
Interest on electricity deposit B : : 012
Rent Received 15.68 15.44
Creditors no longer required written off ' - -
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - ' 3.75
Gain on sale of mutual fund ) ) 341 2.09
Total ' 3586 28.56
Note 18
Finitnce costs :
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Interest . . )
Interest on Debenture _ ' 48595 . 392,41
Interest on Subordinate Debts 1,762.94 1401.35
Interest on Bank borrowings . 587.06 . 37498
Interest an Loan from divector - : 2.47
Interest on Perpetual Debt Instrment . 36.00 36.00
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income Lax - 0.26
Total : 3,271.94 2,207.48
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ Al amounts are in Lokhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 19
Employee benefits expense
i 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Salaries and allowances 1,988.58 1078.51
Contribution to provident and other funds o 39.42 35.15
Total : 2,028.00 1,113.66
Note 20
Other expenses . =
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Electricity Charges . o 51.80 35.02
Rent 746.21 432,57
Rates and taxes 7.00 6.86
Insurance S . 17.09 13.72
‘Repairs and maintenance 33.78 18.26
Computer maintenance and services 4.32 3.04
Corporate Social Responsibility Exponditure 35.24 48,76
Advertising and sales promotion . _ . 24.59 25.39
Travelling and conveyance : _ " 76.63 57.59
Telephoue Charges . 35.83 21.95
* Printing and stationery 60.90 - 22.08
Office expenses ' 124.00 52.30
Bank charges ) 118.27 105.22
Professional charges : 36.80 39.38
Provision for non performing assets o 68.48 6.38
Contingent provisions against standard assets : 42.18 ' 13.28
Provision for loss on account of exchange rate fluctuation® 11.08. 1852
Relreshment Expenses : _ - 105 0.93
Donation ) : : 002 -
Total 1,495.26 925.63

*during the year the company has incurred loss of T 11,07,880/- due to foreign exchange rate difference on term

loan availed by the company.

Professional charges include payment to auditors: :
: 31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22
as auditor : 1.40 1.18
for taxation matters ) 1.00 . -

for company law malters -
for management services : Col
for other services -
for reimbursement of expenses -

Total
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23 -
{ Alt amounts are in Lakhs of Indfan rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 21
Depreciation and amortization expense
31-Mar-23 31-Mayr-22
Depreciation of tangible assets 203.39 141.24
Amortization of intangible assets ] 0.22 16.93
Totat — 203.61 15817
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MUTHOOQOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ &l ameunts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

- Note 25 .
Employee Benefit Disclosure

i) Gratuity

Changes in Present value of obligation

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Acquisition adjustment

‘|Interest cost

Past service cost

Current service cost

Curtailment cost

Settlement cost

Beneéfits paid

Actuarial gain/loss on obligation

96.63
7.27
22.59

-17.22

4.08
113.37

103.02

7.23

15.54

-17.23}
-11.83
96.63]

Present value of obligations at the end of the year
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Not applicable as scheme is unfunded

Funded status
Not applicable as scheme is unfunded

. Expense recognised in the statement of Profit/Loss

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

-|Expected return of plan asset

Curtailment cost

Settlement cost

Actuarial gain/loss recognised in the year

Expense recognised in the statement of Profit/Loss

22.59

7.27

4.09
33.95

15.54

7.23

_(11-.93)

10.84 |

Actuarial assumptions

J1i-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Mottality table

Superannuation age

Early retirement and disablement
Discount rate

[nflation rate

Réturn on asset

Remaining working life

Formula used

TIALM 20012-14
Ultimate table
58
None
7.5%

7%

N/A
49

Projected unit credit
Method with control
period of one vear

TALM 2012-14
Ultimate table
58
Nene
6.1%

7%

N/A
49

Projected unit credit
Method with control
period of one year




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23

{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 25

Empl fit Disclosur ntd

Movements in Liability

Recognised in Balancesheet: 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Opening Net liability 96.63 96,629.74
Expenses as above 33.95 10.84
Contributions - -
Closing Net liability 113.37 96.63
Closing fund/provision at the end of year 113.37 96.63

Notes to Appendix B of AS 15(r 2005)

'As the scheme is unfunded, charges to Profit/Loss account has been based on the foI]nwmg assumptions:
1. Previous cbligation was provided for at last accounting date

Z. Benefit to exits has been paid to debit of above provisions

3. Current obligation will be provided for at current accounting date

Experience adjustment : - .

' 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31:Mar-21
Fair value on plan assets NA NA . NA
Status ( Surplus/Deficit) - - '
Actuarial Gain/Loss on plan assets 'NA NA NA
Difference due to change in assumptions - - oo
Experience Adjustment of Plan Assets {Gain / loss) - - -
Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obligation 4.09 (11.93) -
Diference due to change in assumptions - - -
Experience Adjustment of shlipation [(mun/ loss] 4.09 {11.93) -

Actuarial valuation is available for the last 3 years only, hence figures are given for the last 3 years.

ii) Provident Fund

The amount of Provident Fund contribution charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year aggregating to 4

35,62,323/-{Previous year : ¥ 31,31,912/-).

iii) Employee State Insurance

The ameunts of Employee State Insurance contribution charged to the statement of prof“t anfl loss during the year aggregate -

0% 3,79,977/- (Previous year-T 3,83,073/-)
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 27 . ]

Contingent Liabjlities and Commjtments 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Contingent Liabilities

(2] Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt. Nil Nil
-Demand from Income Tax Department- TDS Default# 4,741.72 Nil

(b) Guarantees K Nil Nil

{c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable Nil o Nil

Commitments i

(a) Estimated amount of contract remaining to he executed on capital account .

and not provided for : 1221020 _ Nil

(b} Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid . Nil Nil

(c} Other commitments _ Nil Nil

#The Income Tax Department also raised demand of ¥ 4,74,172.14/- on account of TDS default for the financial years 2007-08 to
2022-23. This happens due to cierical error in guarterly TDS return and the company proposes to revise the return to abolish
errors. Since the company does'nt expect any liability after revising the return no provision has been made in the books of accounts
of the raninany,

Note 28 : o :

Additi information to th t of Profitan ' 31-Mar-23 - 31-Mar-22
{a) Value of imports calculated on CIF basis by the compar‘iy during the financial '

year in respectof -

) Raw materials . ' NIL NIL
‘1i} Corupenents and spare arts; . NIL NIL
ii) Capital goods _ ' _ : _ NIL - NIL
- (b) Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of
royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees, interest, and other - 356,481.67 10,478.01
" matters; : )

() Total value if all imported raw materials, spare parts and components
consumed during the financial year and the total value of all indigenous

raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the NIL _ _ NIL

percentage of each to the total consumption;

(d} The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account of

dividends with.-a specific mention of the total number of non-resident NIL ' NIL

sharehalders, the total number of shares held by them on which the dividends

were duc and the year to which the dividends related;

(e) Earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads,

namely:- : : : o
i} Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis; - NIL NIL
ii) Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees ' NIL _ NIL
iii) Interest and dividend; ' ‘NIL _ . NIL
‘iv) Other income, indicating the nature thereof - NIL _ NIL
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated}

Note 29
Lease

The total of future minimum lease payments of the company are as follows:
a) Notlater than 1 year: ¥ 8,57,16,773.00/- (Previous year: T 7,40,15,463/-)
b} Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years : ¥ 30,79,77,045.68/- (Previous year: T 27, 33 39,357/-)
€) Above 5 years: ¥ 18,11,81,604.43/- (Previous year: ¥ 20,12,20,166/-)

The lease payment recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year is ¥ 7,46,21,372.24/-(Previous Year:¥4,32,56,516/-
) .

Noie 30
Impairment of asseis

In the opinion of management, there is ne impairment during the year under review.

‘Note 31
Additional Prows;gn Qn NPA

" During the year the com]jany has identified certain gold loan advances against spuridus gold. An additional provisionof ¥
64,39,222.90/- towards prabable loss against these pledges if not redeemed.

Note 32 _ : .
. Managerial R ign under section 197 o 1
] 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
M.Mathew _ 20.00 -
Richi Mathew : £0.00 30.00
. |Ammini Mathew : 24,00 24.00
Asha Richi Mathew 10.00 -
Note 33 -
tlllzatmn of Proceeds

During the year the Company has raised an amount of ¥15,88,45,000/- [Prevmus Year; ? 16,55,74,000/-) by way of non-convertible
debentures , ¥50,61,01,000/-(Previous Ycar: ¥35,16,58,000/-) by way of subordinate debts and ¥ 85,00,00,000/- (Previous Year: T
55,18,92 234] by way of term loan, ¥ Nil/- {Previous Year: ¥ 12,50,000/-) by way of loan from directers the same has been utilized
for the purpose of working capital requirements.

A
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of ndian rupees, unless other wise stated)

Note 34
Corpor: ial R nsibilit
The folloWing is disclosed with regard to CSR activities:

) 31-Mar-23| 31-Mar-22
a) Amount Required to.be spend by the company during the year: 34,954.77 26,372.16
b) Amount of expenditure incurred ; ’ 35.24 48,760.00
c) Shortfall at the end of the year: - -
d) Total of previous year shortfall : _ - -
e) Reason for shortfall : _ NIL . NIL

o : Amount distributed for Amount distributed
f Nature of CSR Activities - Covid 19 releif for Covid 19 releif
g} Details of related party transactions : . - NIL NIL
h) Provision incured by entering into a contractual obligation: - NIL . NIL
Note 35 _ _
Details of Auction held during the year

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Na. of Loan accounts _ ' : 4541 - 5298
Principal amount Qutstanding at the dates of auction(A) ' 1750.69 2323.26
Interest and Other charges Ouistanding at the dates of auction{(B) - : 484.13 558.79}
Amount to be édjusted against other loans (C) - ' 50.096 -
Total(A+B+C) . S 2,284.92 2,882.05
Value fetched* : : 229496 2886.07

*excluding GST / Sales tax collected from the buyer,

No sister concerns parteipated in the auctions held during the period.

a) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under t]le Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 -
of 1988) and rules made thereunder; i

b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or ﬁnanaal institution or government or any govemment
authority.

c) No registeration or satisfaction of charges are pending to be filed with ROC.

d) The company has not entered into any scheme of arragement,

@) There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books.

f] The company has not traded er invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

g) The company does net have any transaction with companies struck off under scction 248 or the Companies Act 2013

h) Utlisation of Borrowed funds or share premium :

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) w_it}lwglw'l‘g‘__
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest i BT
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or pr

auarantaa caruritv ar tha lilea ta ae an hahalf af tha THEmata Ranafiriariac

No funds have been received by the company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including fureign entities (Funding Par
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend oty
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate BeneFCI

nraviide anv suarantes, gee IH"ITV ar the lilke an Iwhalf of the Dlfimate Roneficiaries.
C - _——t -




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31-March-23
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees, unless other wise stated)
Note 37

mparativ

The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year's classification,

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For Manikandan & Associates Muythoot Mercantile Limited
Chartered Accountant . M-——-__. R . £ .
1 0 ' Richi Mathew

[CAI Firm Registration’ M Mathew
e i [Wholetime Director] . ~ [Managing Director]
C K;mﬁkﬁﬁ'dan : DIN pe063078 r7 DIN 00224336
[Partner] Ly (Mﬁ | | %
Metnbership No.: 20845 R Raieev? . Neethu C Biju
ciad Offi

[Chief Finan icer]

: : @&RCA&?
Place: Thrissur ' _ ’ Place: Thiruvananthapuram &/—\’{;\ .
Sfmvcaun\e) -

Date: 04th October 2023 : . Date: 04th October 2023

[Company Secretary]

—

T\ wseis JE
: ﬂ{%’_,. $;
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a NBFC

(¥. in lakhs)
Sl Particulars
No [Liabilities side:
(1) |Loans and advances avalled by the non-banking financial company Amount Amount overdue
inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not paid outstanding
(a) Debentures : Secured 5494 44
-+ Unsecured 0 0
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits*)
{b) Deferred Credits 0 0
" {c]) Term Loans 12214 ]
{d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 0 0
(e) Commercial paper ¢ 1]
(f) Public Deposits* : : Y 0
(g) Other Loans{Specify nature) :
{i)Overdraft 5961 0
(ii)Perpetual Debt Instrument 300 ]
" (iifi)Loan from Director 0 0
_ (iv)Subordinate Debts 21806 g
*Please see Note 1 below ’
.(2) |Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive o
interest accrued thereon but not paid) :
{(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures _
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of security
(¢} Other public deposits
* Please see Note 1 below
Assets side: Amount outstanding
(3] |Break-up of Loans and Advances 1n|:lud1ng bllls recewables [other
" |than those included in (4] below]
{a) Securcd 49470
{b) Unsecured 1269
.[4) |Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting
towards AFC activities
(i J.ease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
{a} Financial lease -0
(b} Operatinglease -0
(i) Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) AssetsonHire 0
(b) Repossessed assets 1]
(iii} Other Loans counting towards AFC Activities
{a). Loans where assets have been repossessed 0
(b) Loans other than {a) above 0

PN
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{5)

Current [nvestments
1. Quoted

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

Shares: {(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual funds
Government securities
Others (please specify)

i~ - R - B

LUinguoted:

(i)

(i)
(iif)
(iv)
v)

Shares: (a) Equity

(b} Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual funds
Government securities
Others [please specify)

v R T e B e Y s [ o

Long term Invesbments:
Quoted

L

0]

(i)
(iii)
(iv}
(v}

Shares: () Equity

' (b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual funds
Government securities
Others (please specify)

Unguoted:

(i)

(i)
(i)
(iv)
()

Shares: {a) Equity

{b} Preference
Deberitures and Bonds
Units of Mutual funds
Government securities
Qthers (please specify)

[ R e i e Y o e o}

oo o o o o

(6)

Borrower Group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :
Please see Note 2 helow

Amount net of provisions

Category
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries 0 0 0
(b} Companies in the same group 0 0 0
(c) Other related Parties 0 0] . 0

2. {ther than related parties 49266 - 1265.70 50531
' S Total 49266 1266 50531
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(7Y |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and fong term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted}:
Please see note 3 below _ .
Category Market value/Break-up or fair value or NAV Book value (net of provisions)
1. Related Parties**
{(a)Subsidiaries Q . 0
(b)}Companies in the 0 0
same group
{(c)Other related o ' 0
parties
2. Other than related ] . : 0
. Parties u L ' '
Total 0 o . -0
**As per Accounting Standard of ICAl (Please see Note 3) ' '
.(8) |Other information ' '
Particulars : Amount
() Gross Non-Performing Assets .
(2) Related Partics _ ¢
(b) Other than related parties ) . i ) -0
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets : :
(a) Related Parties S ' ' 0
(b} Other than related parties - o 0
(iii} Asset acquired in Satisfaction of Debt ' _ - 0

Notes:

1) Asdefined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2}  Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions. .

3)  All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and
other assels as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, Market value in respect of quoted investments
and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they
are classified as long term or current in column {5} above, :

As per our report of even date attached
riates

For Manikandan &

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
" Muthoot Mercantile Limited
m—-‘—d

Chartered Ac_qé_n_’p;ﬁ:t'aht 3 — = ]
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0085205 M Mathew “~Richi Mathew

L [Wholetime Director] " [Managing Director]
¢ RMafikanda DIN, 00063078 - r—7 DIN 00224336
[Partner] W" ' g%/zﬁ}L
Membership No.: 208654 R Raiee?’ .ppem,  NeethuCBiju .

[Chief Finantial Officer] = [Compény Secretary]
Place: Thrissur Place: Thiruvananthapuramm{;.
Date: 04th Octoher 2023 Date: 04th October 2023 ; ,‘ﬁ‘@“ﬁd :
. 4
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Manikandan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Muthoot Mercantile
Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2024, its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters

to be communicated in our report.
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Serial | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
No.

1. Provision for Expected Credit Losses | We examined Board Policy approving
(ECL) methodologies for computation of ECL
that address policies, procedures and
controls for assessing and measuring
credit risk on all lending exposures,
commensurate with the size, complexity
and risk profile specific to the Company.

We evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness  ofcontrols across the
processes relevant to ECL

We also tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3
on sample basis to verify that they were
allocated to the appropriate stage.

2. Due to the pervasive nature and | We performed the following audit

complexity of the IT environment, we | procedures:

have ascertained IT systems and controls 1. Tested the Company’s periodic

as a key audit matter. review of access rights.

2. Considered the control
environment relate to various
interfaces, configuration and
other application layer controls
identified as key to our audit.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. This is the audit report in respect of
the period ended on 31st March, 2024 and the annual report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

¢ Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the.other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Management'’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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g)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial rep orting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. Under Rule 11(e)

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether

recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the

company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(iii)Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-
statement.

v. During the period the Company has not declared or paid dividend on equity shares.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the period is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For Manikandanand Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg No: 0085208 b

g

CKM
[Partner]
Place:Chalakudy Membership No.208654
Date:29-05-2024 UDIN: 24208654BKACA]6917
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Manikandan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

The Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of the Our Report of even date to the members of Muthoot
Mercantile Limited on the accounts of the company for the period ended 31stMarch, 2024.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

b)  All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the period but there is a regular program of verification
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

¢)  The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company;

d)  The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the period;

e)  No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder;

ii) a) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of
providing loans and does not hold any type of physical inventories. Therefore, the
provisions of paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
are not applicable to the Company;

b)  During the period, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and the statements filed by the company with
such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of
the Company;

iii) During the period the company has granted loans or advances, secured or unsecured, to
parties other than firms, Limited Liability Partnerships.

a)  The Company is a Non- Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal
business of providing loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company;
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b)

)

d)

The terms and conditions of all the loans and advances granted by the company
during the period are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the company has
provided impairment allowance for expected credit losses on loans and advances
where repayments or receipts are irregular. In addition to that the company has
created impairment reserve as per Prudential Norms of RBI;

Total amount overdue for more than ninety days is * 2,17,63,085.34 /- and
reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal and
interest;

Type of No of Principal
Loan Loans Overdue Interest Overdue Total Overdue
Gold
Loan 178 2,10,57,466 6,687.34 2,10,64,153.34
Pronote 54 6,98,932 - 6,98,932
Loan

Since it's a NBFC their principal business is to give loans. The loans for which
overdue for more than 90 days are treated as irregular and these cases are classified
as NPA as per RBI IRACP norms. The income recognition of the above has been done
as per RBI IRACP norms.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company engaged in the principal
business ofproviding loans. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company;

The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
the Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

The Company has not given any loans, provided any guarantees, and given any security
to which the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable. The Company has made investments complying section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any Deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Therefore the Directives issued by the Reserve Bank Of India
and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under are not applicable to the
Company. The Company has not received any order from the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other
Tribunal in this regard;

F-121




vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

x)

Being a Non-Banking Finance Company, maintenance of cost records has not been
specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013;

a)

b)

The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax,
Goods and ServiceTax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities wherever applicable to
it. There are no arrears of statutory dues as at the last day of the period concerned
for a period of more than six months from the date on which they became payable;

There are no statutory dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Goods and Service Tax or duty of customs or
duty of excise or value added tax, cess which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute;

There are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

(a)

(b)

(@
(d)

(e)

(0

a)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender;

The Company isn’t a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender;

Term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;

The company has not utilized the funds raised on short term basis for long term
purposes;

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

The company has not raised any loans during the period on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
money raised by way of initial public offer of debt instruments obtained have been
applied by the Company during the period for the purpose for which they have
been raised;
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xi)

b)

(a)

Nature
of the
fund

raised

Purpose for
which the
funds were
raised;

Total
amount
raised;

Amount
utilized
for the
other
purpos
€;

Un-utilized
balance as
at Balance
sheet date;

Details of
default
(Reason/
Delay);

Subseque
ntly
rectified
(Yes/No)
and
details

Secure
d
Redee
mable
Non-
Conve
rtible
Deben
tures

1.For the
purpose of
onward
lending,
financing
and for the
repayment
/prepayme
nt of
principal
and
interest on
existing
borrowings
of the
company;
and

2. General
corporate
purposes,
subject to
such
utilization
not
exceeding
25% of the
amount
raised in
Issue, in
compliance
with  the
SEBI  NCS
Regulations

104.20c
rores

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the period;

During the period the Company has reported a fraud case, where gold loan related
misappropriations have occurred for amounts aggregating " 32,66,629/-, and has
provided equal amount of provision in the books of accounts.
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xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

Xvii)

xviii)

Xix)

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) The company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the period;

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to the Company;

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the sections 177 and 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements of the Company as required by the applicable accounting
standards;

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

(b) The reports of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered
by us;

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them;

(@) The Company has obtained the required registration under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934);

(b) The Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934;

() The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) There are no CICs as part of the Group to which the company belongs

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the period and in the immediately
preceding financial year;

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the period. There were no
issues or objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;
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a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, the company does not have any unspent
amount to be transferred to the Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to Section 135(5) of said Act;

b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company does not have any unspent amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, to be transferred
to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section
135 of the said Act;

The Company is not a holding or subsidiary of any other company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 are not applicable to

the Company;

For Manikandan& Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 00852085

cxmm

[Partner]
Place:Chalakudy Membership No.208654
Date: 29-05-2024 UDIN:24208654BKACAJ6917
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Manikandan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Muthoot Mercantile Limited for the
period ended 315t March , 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Muthoot Mercantile
Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31stMarch , 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note
on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting (the ‘Guidance Note') and the
Standards on Auditing (the ‘Standards’) issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance note issued by the ICAL

For Manikandan and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg No: 0085205

[Partner] s
Place: Chalakudy Membership No.208654
Date: 29-05-2024 UDIN:24208654BKACAJ6917
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To

The Board of Directors of
Muthoot Mercantile Limited

b)

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Muthoot Mercantile Limited as at 31stMarch,
2024 and also the Statement of profit and loss(including Other Comprehensive Income) and
the Cash flow statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended on that
date annexed thereto and issued our audit opinion dated 29t May, 2024 thereon. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
was to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was
conducted in the manner specified in the audit report.

As required by the Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016,issued by the Reserve Bank of India (the Bank) and amended from time to
time (the Directions), based on our audit referred to in paragraph 1 above and based on the
information and explanations given to us which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for this purpose, we report hereunder on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and

4 of the Directions.

The Company is engaged in the business of Non Banking Financial Institution (NBFI)as defined
in section 45-I(a) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the Act) during the period ended31st
March, 2024. With effect from 12t December , 2002 the Company is registered with the Bank
as an NBFI without accepting public deposits vide Certificate of Registration (‘CoR’) number N-
16.00178 dated 12t December, 2002 with the Bank.

Based on the asset/income pattern as on 31st March ,2024 determined by the Management in
accordance with the audited financial statements for the period ended as on that date, and
with reference to Non Banking Financial Company-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank)Directions, 2016,the Company is entitled to continue to hold such
CoR;

The Company has met the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

The Board of Directors has passed a resolution on 17t April, 2023 for non acceptance of any
public deposits.

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the period and also does not hold
any public deposit as on 31stMarch , 2024.

The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad & doubtful debts as
applicable to it in terms of Non Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or Holding)
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 during the period ended

31st March ,2024.
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3.  We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of our audit opinion mentioned in paragraph 1.

4. This report is issued solely for reporting on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the
Directions, to the Board of Directors and is not to be used or distributed for any other purpose.

For Manikandan and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg No: 008520S

C K Mahikandan

[Partner]
Place: Chalakudy Membership No.208654
Date : 29-05-2024 UDIN:24208654BKACAJ6917
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS Notes 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 01-Apr-22
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1,066.27 4,553.56 3464.19
Bank Balances other than above 7 2,285.62 840.69 1531
Loans 8 66,138.56 50,665.72 33,794.80
Investments 9 - - 1,101.98
Other Financial Assets 10 4,446.99 3,014.57 2,294.14
73,937.44 59,074.54 40,670.42
Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets 11 755.84 644,03 638.63
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 246.79 187.26 113.74
Property, Plant and Equipment 13A 642.01 579.42 423983
Right-of-Use Asset 13B 4,176.39 3,82843 3,680.91
Other Intangible Assets 14 1.57 0.87 -
Other Non-Financial Assets 15 145.30 21.43 23.69
5,967.89 5,261.45 4,880.94
TOTAL 79,905.33 64,336.00 45,551.36
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 19
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises; and 23.95 8.49 17.20
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises. 95.79 17.45 55.35
Debt Securities 20 14,050.62 5,130.45 4,482.58
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 21 19,271.94 18,474.41 8,306.66
Subordinate Liabilities 22 20,978.08 20,123.55 15,062.54
Lease Liability 13B 4,627.97 4,122.65 3.792.67
Other Financial Liabilities 2 i 3,158.52 2,292.46 1,488.71
62,206.87 50,169.47 33,205.71
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 16 1,048.78 790.64 710.76
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 18 91.74 49.30 77.83
1,140.51 839.95 788.59
Equity
Equity Share Capital 23 3,641.87 2,941.88 2,941.88
Other Equity 24 12,916.07 10,384.71 8,615.19
16,557.95 13,326.58 11,557.07
TOTAL 79,905.33 64,336.00 45,551.36
Summary of significant accounting policies
Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attatched For and on behalf of the board of directors of o,
For Manikandan and Associates Muthoot Mercantile Limited ~ !
Chartered Accountants o ,/fl! =

ICAI Firm Reg No.: 0885205 Y AL T
i‘ y/ - AN M %‘r\—:}: =, —
{ ) 2 |
CKM‘:ﬁanﬂﬁq o DY - M..—.rﬂ

) M Mathew Richi Mathew
[Partner] ol 1 [Wholetime Director] [Managing Director]
Membership no 208654 / IN 00063078 ( DIN 00224336
= 5 it
M R Rajeev Neethu C Biju
[Chief Financial Officer] [Company Secretary]
Place: Chalakudy Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date:29-05-2024 Date:29-05-2024
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
() Income

Revenue from Operations

(i) Interest Income 25 12,777.58 9,310.02
(ii) Feesand Commission Income 21542 120.96

Other Income 26 184.91 47.24

Total Revenue(l) 13,177.91 9,478.21
(1) Expenses

Finance Costs 27 5,262.98 3,663.91

Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) 29 102.38 15.94

Employee Benefits Expenses 28 2,552.92 2,023.92

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense 30 863.60 739.99

Administrative and Other Expenses 31 1,010.44 657.13

Total Expenses (II) 9,792.32 7,100.89
(1) Profit/(loss) before Exceptional Items & Tax (I-11) 3,385.60 2,377.32
(IV) Exceptional items - =
(V) Profit/(loss) before tax (I1I-1V) 3,385.60 2,377.32
(VI) Tax Expense:

(a) Current Tax 34 930.86 677.28

(b) (Excess)/Short provision of Previous Years - (0.03)

(c) Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense (64.86) (69.49)

Total tax expense (VI) 866.00 607.75
(vil) Profit/(loss) for the year (V) - (VI) 2,519.60 1,769.57

(Vi) Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

(a) Remeasurement Gains/ (Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan 17.10 (4.09)
(b} Gains/ (Losses) on Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
(ii) Tax related to above (5.33) 4.03
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) VIII) 11.77 {0.06)
(IX) Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the period (VII+VIII) 2,531:37 - 1,769.51
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive income for the year) B
Earnings per Equity share
[nominal value of share <10]
(Basic) ¥ 32 8.25 6.02
(Diluted) T 8.25 6.02

Summary of significant accounting policies
Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attatched

For Manikandan and Associates For and on behalf of the board of directors of ek
Chartered Accountants- Muthoct Mercantile Limited ,;;; ¥
ICAI Firm Reg No.: 0085205, w‘/ 7 o B
/, = 4 e 4 Q\_ Y. _-—/ e = o ‘I- -

1 O o= (e 770
C K{ ikandan M Mathew Richi Mathew
|Partner] WEN [Wholetime Director] [Managing Director]
Membership no.: 208654 DIN oooeso?r DIN 00224336

|Chief Fingncial Officer]

Place: Chalakudy Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date:29-05-2024 Date:29-05-2024
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net Profit before tax 3,385.60 2,377.32
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 863.60 739,99
Impairment on financial instruments 102.38 1594
Provision for Gratuity 21.65 1265
Finance cost 43251 380.89
Interest on Fixed deposit {126.18) (14.88)
Lease payments B66.64 716.39
Net (Gain),/Loss on sale of invesiments (8.62) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 5.537.79 4,228.31
Changes in working capital :
Decrease / (increase) in non-financial asset (123.86) 2.25
Decrease / (increase] in loans [15,575.22) (16,886.86)
Decrease / (increase] in investments - 1,101.98
Decrease / {increase] in current tax assets {111.80) {5.41)
Decrease / (increase) in other financial asset (1.432.42) (720.42)
Increase /[ (decrease] in trade payables 93.80 (46.61)
Increase / [decrease) in other financial liablities 866.06 803.75
Increase / (decrease] in Lease Liability (Net) 505.32 329.99
Increase [ (decrease) in other non-financial liablities : 4244 (28.53)
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (10,197.91) (11,221.54)
Net income Taxes Paid (677.28) (614.09)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) (10,875.19) (11,835.63)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net Gain/(Loss) on sale of investments 8.62
Purchase of property,plant and equipments including CWIP (300.12) (358.83)
Purchase of intangible assets (1.14) (1.09)
Bank balance not considerd as cash and cash equivaleuts (1,444 92) [825.38)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (1,737.57) (1,185.20)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from Debt Security (Net) 8.920.17 647.87
Proceed from Borrowings (Net) 797.52 10,167.75
Proceed frem Subordinate Liabilities (Net) B54.53 5,061.01
Finance cost (432.51) (380.89)
Interest on Fixed deposit 126.18 14.88
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 700.00 -
Lease payments (866.84) (716.39)
Right to Use Asset (Net) (973.59) (68391)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) 9,125.46 14,110.31
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (3.487.29) 1,089.37
Cash and cash eq |l at the begi g of the year 4,553.56 3.464.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,066.27 4,553.56
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand T02.46 482,05
With banks 363.81 4,071.52
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 1,066.27 4,553.56
Summary of significant accounting policies
As per our report of even date attatched
For Manikandan and Associates Forand on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Muthoot Mercantile Limited
ICAI Firm Reg No.: 0085205 . ) = !

K Manikangaid { (/L7007 o) M Mathew Richi Mathew ~ *
[Partner] !'.ll. o4 \ ] Ji "..‘ [Wholetime Directo: | [Managing Director]
Membership no; 208654 "/ DIN 000630 DIN 00224336
Neethu C Biju

[ChieffFinancial Officer]  [Company Secretary]

Place: Chalakudy Place: Thiruvananthapuram
Date: 29-05-2024 Date: 29-05-2024
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Muthoot Mercantile Limited(CIN:U65921KL1997PLC011260) was incorporated on 3rd March 1997 having registered office at 1st Floor, North Block,
"Muthoot Floors",opposite W & C Hospital, Thycaud, Thiruvananthapuram, 695014, Keraia

The Company is a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND) which provides a wide range of fund based
and fee based services including Gold loan, Money Transfer etc.The Company is a Non-Deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company registered
under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 vide Certificate of Registration ["CoR’) number N-16.00178 dated 12th December, 2002.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules , 2015 {as amended from time to time). The financial sratements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards and on accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in accounting policies below.

The above financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India mainly considering the
Master Directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") as applicable to Non-Banking Finance Companies = ND.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} except when otherwise indicated.

All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in Lakhs of indian rupees (Rupees in Lakhs) except share and per share data, unless
otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not be add up preciselv to the totals and percentages may
not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule 11l (Division 111} of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settleona
net basis in the following circumstances:

(i) The normal course of business

(ii) The event of default

(iii) The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant Accounting Policies adopted in the Preparation and Pr ion of Fil ial Stat ts are as under-;

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(1) Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

i) Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost.

ii) Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

iif) Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account.

The classification depends on the rontractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company's business model for managing firancial assets.
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.
The business model is assessed on the basis of aggregated portfolios based on observable factors. These factors include:

* Reports reviewed by the entity's key management personnel on the performance of the financial assets.
= The risks impacting the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and its management thereof.

* The compensation of the managing teams ( for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected)

+ The expected frequency, value and timing of trades. The business model assessement is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking '
worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account.

The Company also assesses the contractual terms of financial assets on the basis of its contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely for the
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount].

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account or
is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivatiye liabilities.
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( Alt amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(I1) Initial Recognition
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised i fiately in the Stat t of profitor loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised on the trade date i.e. when a Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans, debt securities and deposits are recognised when the funds are transferred to
the customers account. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.

(1) Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash flows
are classified in this category. Subsequently these are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Debt Instruments at FVOCI

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, These instruments largely comprise long-term investments made by the Company. FVOCI debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCL. Interest income and gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

Equity Instruments at FVOCI

These include financial assets that are equity instruments as defined in Ind AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and are not held for trading
and where the Company's management has elected to irrevocably designated the same as Equity instruments at FVOCI upon initial recognition.
Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income
taxes.

Gains and losses on these equity instruiaents are never recycled to profitor loss.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the payment has been
established,

Fair value through Profit and loss account
Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

(IV) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deduccing all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other Financial Liabilities
These are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

(V) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity,

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

(VI) Impairment of Financial Assets

The company recognises impairment allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets held at amortised cost. In addition to that the Company has
provided for Non-Performing Assets (NPA) as per Prudential Norms of RBIL

The Company recognises loss allowances (provisions) for expected credit losses on its financial assets (including non-fund exposures) that are
measured at amortised costs or at fair value through other comprehensive income account. The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring
expected credit losses (ECLs) for the following categories of financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profitor loss:

= debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income;

* loan commitments,

No ECL is recognised on equity investments.

Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: ECL.

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon origination,
ECL associated with the probability of default events is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired
For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e.
reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised

The company has identified the following stage classification to be the most appropriate for its loans:
Stage 1: 0 to 60 Days Past Due

Stage 2: 61 to 90 Days Past Due

Stage 3: above 90 Days Past Due

Reclassification of Financial assets

The company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances when the
company changes its business model for maraging such financial assets. The company does not re-classify its financial liabilities.

(VIT) Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a firancial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company determines that th= borrower /debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

(VIII) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted
bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation
techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

(IX) Foreign currency transactions and translation

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (%), which is the functional currency of the Company and the pr ion
currency for the financial statements. t f

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, menetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or settlement of monetary items are inciuded
in the statement of profit and loss for the period.

B. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(1) Recognitien of Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generaliy
when the shareholders or Board of Directors approve the dividend.

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost,
debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt instruments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that esactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that

are an integral part of the EIR.
—_—— W‘P.
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(II) Dividends on Ordinary Shares

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value r ement recognised directly in equity. Upon
distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(II) Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or receivable
based on a five-step model as set out below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.,

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
Processing fee which is not forming part of effective interest rate has been recognised as and when it is accrued.

(IV) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet
date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised as Revenue and if there is a net loss
the same is disclosed under as Expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately under the respective
head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

EXPENSES

(1) Finance costs

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial
liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed

a) As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability,
b) By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
c) Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts.
Any subsequent change the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the assets.

(1) Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-terin employee benefits. These benefits
include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Eenefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and
the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits
a) Defined contribution schemes

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme, defined
contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future
benefits other than its annual centribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date excecds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date,then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment wil' lead
ta, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to
employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, carried
out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entilement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

(1) Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company a whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether : [i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iiijthe Company has the right to direct the use of the assetAt the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes
a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases). For these short-term leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date un a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use] is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined lor the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or,if not readily determinable, using the incr | borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

(1V) Other Income and Expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

(V) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting period to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the
extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which impairment takes place.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

In determ ining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is vsed After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss,
M—-—-—-—- M.d
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(VI) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from,or paid to, the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss s current tax. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in
accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. They are held for the
purpases of meeting short term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above, as thev are
considered an integral par? of the Company’s cash management.

E. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of
assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner indended by the managment. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted
for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expentiture related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset,
beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as
and when incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the Written Down Value (WDV) method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful life estimated by company

Particulars (Vears)
20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)*
Strong Room 10 (Others)
20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)*
Furniture And Fixtures 10 (Others)
Vehicles 8

3 (End vser devices)

Offi i ts
e St 6 (Servers and netwnrks)

20 (acquired up to 31-03-15)*
10 (Others) .

Office & Electrical Equipments

*Based on the estimation given by the chartered engineer
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use.Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is recognised in other income /expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an
item of property,plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requir ts for determining when
a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on
assets acquired,/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

The Company’s intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life. Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognised,

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS AND CAPITAL ADVANCES
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of
property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed in Other Non-Financial Assets,

ACCOUNTING FOR PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is
expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are measured on a discounted basis. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties
that it will accept certain responsibilities, and

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities Contingent
liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

EARNING PER SHARE i

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per
share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive anu that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
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5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the
Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures including disclosures of
contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of: impairment of financial instruments, provisions and contingent liabilities.

BUSINESS MODEL ASSESSMENT

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model test The Company determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company
monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity
to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the r are consi with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous t of whether the busi model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues
to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of
those assets.

DEFINED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatilitv. Changes in assumpticas about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS PORTFOLIO

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.It has been the Company’s policy to regularly
review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more
detail in Note 9 Overview of ECL principles.In case, higher provisions are to be considered as per the prudential norms of the Reserve Bank of India,
they are considered and routed through Impairment Reserves.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS OTHER THAN IMPAIRMENT ON LOAN PORTFOLIO

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. Asa
result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.When the Company can reliably measure the
outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the
case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is
disclosed.Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents.Significant judgement is required to conclude on
these estimates,

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE (EIR) METHOD

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income /expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of
return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and
other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penaltyinterest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

OTHER ESTIMATES
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Pursuant to Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements, as the Company has only one
geographical segment and no other separate reportable business segment.
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8 Loans As at 31-March-2024
At Fair Value
Designated at
Particulars Amortised cost | "rough Other Through profit fair value Total
Comprehensiv Subtotal
or loss through profitor
e Income
loss
Loans
(A)
(i) Loans repayable on demand
Gold Loan 64,659.27 - - - 64,659.27
Pronote Loan 1,654.74 1,654.74
(iii) Other Loans:
Corporate Loans - - - - -
Letter of Credit - - - - -
Total (A} - Gross 66,314.01 - - - - 66,314.01
Less: Impairment loss allowance 17545 = - - - -175.45
Total (A) - Net 66,138.56 - - - - 66,138.56
(B)
(i) Secured by tangible assets 64,659.27 - g - 64,659.27
(ii) Secured by intangible assets - - - - - -
(iil) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees - - - - =
(iv) Unsecured 1,654.74 = & - 1,654.74
Total (B) Gross 66,314.01 - = 2 66,314.01
Less: Impairment loss allowance 175.45 - - - 175.45
Total (B) Net 66,138.56 - = ? n 66,138.56
8 Loans (Contd.)
(8]
(1) Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - - - =
(ii) Others 66,314.01 - - 66,314.01
Total (C) Gross 66,314.01 - - - - 66,314.01
Less: Impairment loss allowance 175.45 - - - 175.45
Total (C) (1) Net 66,138.56 - - - = 66,138.56
(1) Loans outside India - - - - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - = - B z =
Total (C) (11) Net ~ . . . . )
Total (C) (I) and C (IT} 66,138.56 - - - - 66,138.56
Loans and advances due by directors or other
officers of l.h',: l:om|?an_v or any of them either Nil Nil Nil ; Nil Nil
severally or jointly with any other persons
Amounts due by firms or private companies in
which any director is a partner or a director or a Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
member
( R~
/ ’-'-._._—-.
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8 Loans (Contd.) As at 31-March-2023
At Fair Value
Particulars Amortised cost THEOugh (ther Through profit Dets:iillvzﬁlial
Comprehensiv Subtotal Total
o Tncoime or loss through profit or
loss
Loans
(A)
(i) Loans repayable on demand
Gold Loan 49.469.77 - - - . 49,469.77
Pronote Loan 1,269.02 1,269.02
(ii) Other Loans:
Corporate Loans = = £ - - =
Letter of Credit = - - - -
Total (A) - Gross 50,738.79 - - - - 50,738.79
Less: Impairment loss allowance 73.07 ; £ = £ - 73.07
Total (A) - Net 50,665.72 = . E 2 50,665.72
(B)
(i) Secured by tangible assets 49.469.77 - = - - 49,469.77
(ii) Secured by intangible assets - - . - - -
(iil) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees - - - 3 - - -
(iv) Unsecured 1,269.02 - - - - 1,269.02
Total (B) Gross 50,738.79 - - - - 50,738.79
Less: Impairment loss allowance 73.07 8 % - - 73.07
Total (B) Net 50,665.72 - - - - 50,665.72
8 Loans (Contd.)
(©)
(1) Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - - - - - -
(ii) Others 50,738.79 = - - - 50,738.79
Total (C) Gross 50,738.79 - - - - 50,738.79
Less: Impairment loss allowance 73.07 = - = = 73.07
Total (C) (1) Net 50,665.72 - - - - 50,665.72
(11) Loans outside India . - - - . -
Less: Impairment loss allowance * - . - - -
Totai (C) () Net . - - . - -
Total (C) (1) and C (IT) 50,665.72 f . g T 50,6652

Loans and advances due by directors or other
officers of the company or any of them either Nil Nil Nil ) Nil Nil
severally or jointly with any other persons

Amounts due by firms or private companies in
which any director is a partner or a director or a
member

Nil Nil Nil Nl Nil
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( Allamounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

8 Loans

Particulars

Loans
(A)
(i) Loans repayable on demand
Gold Loan
Pronote loan
(ii) Other Loans:
Corporate Loans
Intercorporate Deposit
Letter of Credit
Total (A) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (A) - Net

(B)
(i) Secured by tangible assets
(i) Secured by intangible assets

(iil) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees

(iv} Unsecured

Total (B) Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (B) Net

8 Loans (Contd.)

©

(1) Loans in India

(i Public Sector

(ii} Others

Total (C) Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C) (I} Net

(I1) Loans outside India

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C) (II) Net

Total (C) (I) and C (11}

Loans and advances due by directors or other
officers of the company or any of them either

severally or jointly with any other persons

Amounts due by firms or private companies in
which any director is a partner or a director or a
member

As at 01-April-2022

At Fair Value
Designated at
Amortised cost  'nrough Other Through profit  fair value Total
Comprehensiv iTass th finrot Subtotal
& Inconie rough profit or
loss
33,255.80 - - - 33,255.80
596.13 596.13
33,851.93 - = * 33,851.93
57.13 = - - 57.13
33,794.80 - = = 33,794.80
33,255.80 - - 33,255.80
596.13 = > = 596.13
33,851.93 - - - 33,851.93
5713 - L 2 57.13
33,794.80 - - - 33,794.80
33,851.93 s = 33,851.93
33,851.93 - - d 33,851.93
57.13 % 57.13
33,794.80 - . - 33,794.80
33,794.80 = - B 33,794.80
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

F-145




MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ Allamounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

8 Summary of ECL Provisions

FY 2023-2024

Particulars

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gold Loan 66.03 891 97.16 172.11
Pronote Loan 2.64 0.23 0.47 3.34
Other Loans:
Total Closing ECL Provisions 68.67 9.14 97.63 17545
Pariiculars FY 2022-2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gold Loan 43.30 1242 16.54 72.26
Pronote Loan 0.78 0.00 0.03 0.81
Other Loans:
Total Closing ECL Provisions 44.07 12.43 16.57 73.07
Particulars EY2031-2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gold Loan 14.19 30.46 1248 57.13
Pronote Loan ~ - - -
Other Loans:
Total Closing ECL Provisions 419 30.46 12.48 57.13
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

8 Loans(Contd)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to receivables under

financing activities is, as follows:

Period ended 31st March 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening Gross carrying amount 49,355.77 1,242.62 140.40 50,738.79
Add:- New Assets 1,64,960.35 784.87 138.70 1,65,883.93
Less:- Assets repaid (1,49,091.37) (1,155.70) (61.64) (1,50,308.71)
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 -7.30 7.30 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 -124.73 -3.11 127.84 -
Less:- Write off -
Closing Gross carrying amount 65,092.74 875.98 345.29 66,314.01

Period ended 31st March 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening Gross carrying amount 30,682.01 3,046.37 123.55 33,851.93
Add:- New Assets 1,43,252.11 685.50 1.24 1,43,938.85
Less:- Assets repaid (1,23,964.12) (2,982.03) (105.84) (1,27,051.99)
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 -581.72 537.25 4447 -
Transfer to Stage 3 -32.50 -44.47 76.97 -
Less:- Write off -
Closing Gross carrying amount 49,355.77 1,242.62 140.40 50,738.79
Reconciliation of ECL Balance

Period ended 31st March 2024
ECL Provision Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 44.07 12.43 16.57 73.07
Add:- New Assets 68.66 9.06 32.89 110.61
Less:- Repaid (43.86) (12.39) (7.57) (63.81)
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (0.07) 0.07 5 -
Transfer to Stage 3 (7.38) (0.31) 7.69 2
Less:- Write off - - - -
Impact of changes in credit risk on
account of stage movements 7.25 0.28 48.05 55.58
Closing carrying amount 68.67 9.14 97.63 175.45

'C i M_“'
- .+
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Period ended 31st March 2023
ECL Provision Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount 14.19 30.46 12.48 57.13
Add:- New Assets 44.07 6.60 - 50.67
Less:- Repaid (14.13) (30.02) (6.06) (50.20)
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (5.82) 5.82 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (3.18) (4.45) 7.62 -
Less:- Write off - - - -
Impact of changes in credit risk on
account of stage movements 8.94 4.01 2.52 15.47
Closing carrying amount 44.07 12.43 16.57 73.07

Credit Quality of assets
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit rating
system and year-end stage classification

As at 31-Mar-2024

F-151

Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

High Grade 58,522.49 462.94 183.90 59,169.32
Medium Grade 3,017.01 270.21 4.42 3,291.65
Low Grade 3,553.24 141.98 157.82 3,853.04
Total 65,092.74 875.13 346.14 66,314.01
As at 31-Mar-2023

Internal Rating Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

High Grade 44,948.69 678.23 6.45 45,633.37
Medium Grade 3,008.96 214.22 3.46 3,226.64
Low Grade 1,398.12 350.16 130.49 1,878.78
Total 49,355.77 1,242.62 140.40 50,738.79
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

At Fair Value
Amortised  Through other Designated at fair
T h t
9 Investments cost comprehensive Ilrollglorsmﬂ T value through Subtotal Total

income profit or loss

Asat 31-March-2024
Mutual funds = 5 . = <
Total - Gross A - - - - % o

(i) Investments outside India

(ii) Investments in India - - -

Total -B - - - - - =
Less: Impairment loss allowance ()

Total - Net D =(A)-(C) - - - - : :

Asat 31-March-2023

Mutual funds - - . . - ) .
Total - Gross A = - - - 5 ”

{i) Investments outside India - - - - B Z

{ii] Investments in India - 2 -
Total - B = = % . = T 3
Less: Impairment loss allowance (C)

Total - Net D ={A)-(C) - - = 0 = =

Asat 01-April-2022

Mutual funds - - 1,101.98 - 1,101.98 1,101.98
Total - Gross A - = 1,101.98 = 1,101.98 1,101.98
(1] Investments outside India - E - - <
(1) Investments in India - 3 1,101.98 - 1.101.98 1,101.98
Total - B = - 1,101.98 - 1,101.98 1,101.98
Less: Impairment loss allowance [C)

Total - Net D =(A)-(C} - - 1,101.98 = 1,101.98 1,101.98

Details of Investments in Equity Instruments and Mutual Funds

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Name of Mutual Fund Quantity of
Quantity of Shares Market value | Quantity of Shares Market value Shares Market value
L0798 5B1 Savings Fund-Regular Plan Growth Nil Nil Nil Nil 17,96,122.71 602,01
LF47RG SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund Regular Growth Nil Nil Nil Nil 17,560.69 499.97
TOTAL Nil Nil Nil Nil 18,13,683 1,101.98
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024

( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

10

11

Other Financial Assets

GST Receivable

Interest accrued :

Interest accrued on Loan
Interest accrued on Bank deposit
Interest accrued on Treasury deposit
Security deposits

Treasury Deposit

Rental Deposits

Other Security Deposits

Others:

TDS Refund Due

Fringe Benefit Tax refund due

Other Receivables
Total
Current Tax Asset
Advance Tax
Other prepaid taxes
Income Tax Refund Due
Total

As at 31-March-2024

As at 31-March-2023

As at 01-April-2022

75.35 26.72 4.08
3,963.25 2,559.89 1,882.30
- 0.51 0.10

- 3.37 241
10.25 43.68 43.68
387.46 360.41 338.85
5.48 546 7.47
1.39 1.39 1.39

- 0.14 0.14

3.80 13.00 13.72
4,446.99 3,014.57 2,294.14

As at 31-March-2024

As at 31-March-2023

As at 01-April-2022

250.00 82.00 365.00
493.70 537.50 261.62

12.14 24.53 12.01
755.84 644.03 638.63
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

12 Deferred Tax Assets / (Deferred Tax Liability) (Net}

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Deferred Tax Assets  Deferred Tax Liabilities  Income St 0ocl Others

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2024 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
Depreciation 221.41 - 63.71 =
Impairment allowance for financial assets = < - &
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan - 4.30 - (5.33) ;
Provisions 29.68 - 115
Financial assets measured at amortised cost A - - =
Other temporary differences - - s
Total 251.09 4.30 64.86 {5.33) -
Net Deferred tax asset as at 31st March,2024 24679 -

Deferred Tax Assets  Deferred Tax Liabilities 1 Stat, t (1]} Others

Asat 31-March-2023 Asat 31-March-2023 2022-23 2022-23 2022-23
Depreclation 157.70 65.28 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 1 =
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan 1.03 403 «
Provisions 28.53 421 E
Financial assets measured at amortised cost -
Other temporary differences 5
Total 187.26 - 69.49 4.03 -
Net Deferred tax asset as at 31st March, 2023 187.26

Deferred Tax Assets  Deferred Tax Liabilitics

As at 01-April-2022

Asat 01-April-2022

Depreciation 92.42 -
Impairment aliowance for financial assets @ 3.00
Remeasurement gzin/ (loss) on defined benefit plan =

Provisions 24.32 -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other temporary differences

Total 116.74 3.00
Net Deferred tax asset as at As at 01-April-2022 11374
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

13B Right-of-Use Asset

Total

Building
At 1-Apr-2022 4,291.28
Additions 683.91
Disposals
As at 31-Mar-2023 4,975.20
Additions 973.59
Disposals
As at 31-March-2024 5,948.79
Depreciation
At 1-Apr-2022 610.38
Charge for the year 536.39
Disposals
Asat 31-Mar-2023 1,146.76
Charge for the year 625.63
Disposals :
As at 31-March-2024 1,772.39
Net Right-of-use asset
At 1-Apr-2022 3,680.91
Asat 31-Mar-2023 ' 3,828.43
As at 31-March-2024 4,176.39
At 1-Apr-2022 3,792.67
Additons 665.49
Finance cost accrued during the year 380.89
Deletions ' - )
Payment of lease liabilities , 716.39
Asat 31-Mar-2023 4,122.65
Additons 939.65
Finance cost accrued during the year 432.51
Deletions -
Payment of lease liabilities 366.84
As at 31-March-2024 4,627.97
Lease Liability
Particulars 3
Less than one year 6.05
One to five years 1,161.42
More than five years 3,460.50
Total £ 4,627.97
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED .
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

14 Intangible Assets

Computer Software
Cost
At 1-Apr-2022 84.63
Additions 1.09
Disposals -
Asat 31-Mar-2023 85.72
Additions 1.14
Disposals =
As at 31-March-2024 86.87
Amortization
At 1-Apr-2022 84.63
Charge for the year 0.22
Disposals
As at 31-Mar-2023 84.85
Charge for the year 0.45
Disposals -
As at 31-March-2024 85.30
Net Block

At 1-Apr-2022 =
As at 31-Mar-2023
As at 31-March-2024

),4—"5:
gl A
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

15 Other Non-Fi ial A
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Advance for Capital Expenditure 2.80 441 15.75
Prepaid Expenses 118.99 11.07 7.94
Other Advances 17.89 5.45 -
Employee Advances 5.61 0.50
Total 145.30 7143 23.69
st O~ ——;:__”':-j
5 9 rw_,ﬂ(y ~ ey
S
s el - He
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs af Indian Rupees unless atherwise stated)

16 Provisions
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Employee Benefits
- Gratuity 117.92 113.37 96.63
Provision for Taxation 930.86 677.28 614.13
Total 104878 7064 TIOTE
17 Other Financial Liabilities
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Interest accrued on Debentures 445.38 363.35 275
Interest accrued on Debentures(Public 1ssue) 125.38 . e
Interest accrued on Subordinate Debt 2,277.01 1,682.35 1,045.93
Interest Accrued on PDI = - B8.10
Employee Related Payables 17297 144.88 140,15
Unpaid matured debentures and Interest accrued thereon 351 4352 13.27
Unpaid Subordinate Debt and Interest Accrued thereon 3716 - -
Others 99.10 5837 596
Total 3,158.52 2,292.46 1,488.71
Amount to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund towards unpaid ;
Nil 0.10 2.03

dividends and unpaid matured debentures and interest on matured debentures

18 Other Non-financial liabilities
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Statutory Dues Payable 91.74 49.30 77.83
Total 91.74 49.30 77.83
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

19 Trade Payables
Asat31-March-2024  Asat31-March-2023  Asat 01-April-2022
Total outstanding dues af micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 2395 8.49 17.20
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. 95.79 1745 5535
TOTAL 119.74 2594 72.55
As at 31-March-2024
Patticilare Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears
i) MSME 23.95 2395
ii) Others 95.79 95.79
iii) Disputed dues-
MSME -
iv) Disputed dues-
Others
As at 31-March-2023
Piirtigilars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years
i) MSME 849 - 8.49
ii) Others 17.45 # 17.45
iii) Disputed dues-
MSME - = = = =
iv) Disputed dues-
Others = s % = =
As at 01-April-2022
B tinkiinn Outstanding for following periods frem due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
i) MSME 17.20 % 17.20
ii) Others 55.35 = 55.35
iii) Disputed dues- - = 2 - =
iv) Disputed dues- . - 8 - -
Disclosure:- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises As at 31-March-2024  Asat 31-March-2023  As at 01-April-2022

a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) 10.97
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; =
(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment Nil
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

() the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day (uring the year) but without

] ) pex 3 ; ! Nil
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises !
Development Act, 2006;

(d] the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting Nil
year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payabie even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small Nil

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

440

Nil

il

Nil

Nil

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extend such parties have been identified on the basis of information

collected by the Management.

— o \

sy

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

20 Debt Securities

Asat 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
At Amortised Cost
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures
(Secured)* 3,759.89 513045 4,482.58
!:lt_hers - Non-convertible Debentures - Public 1042049 B
issue(Secured |** -
Total 14,180.38 5,130.45 4,482.58
Less : Effective Interest Rate Adjustment as per IndAS 129.76 - -
Total (A) 14,050.62 5,130.45 4,482.58
Debt securities in India 14,050.62 5,13045 448258
Debt securities outside India - =
Total (B) 14,050.62 5.130.45 4,482.58
Nature of Security
*Secured by a hypothecation of Outstanding gold loan receivables both present and future and all assets to be accrued from the proceeds generated by
the private placement of Non Convertible Secured Debentures by the Company.The Company shall maintain a mini security,which shall not be less

than the amount of debentures outstanding at any point of time.

Debentures are offered for a period of 12 months to 96 months.

**First ranking pari passu charge with on all movable assets, including book debts and receivables, cash and bank balances, other moveable assets, loans

and advances, both present and future of the company equal to the value of one time of the NCDs outstanding plus interest .

o~ :\T
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

20 Debt Securitjes(contd).

B] Non Convertible Debentures of '1,000/- each - series-wise classification(Private Placement)

Asat31-Mar-2024

Sl. No. Series Date of Allotment Outstanding Interest Rate Tenure(months)
1 174 15-01-2020 42.00 9.25%-15.35% At par at the end 36-60 months
2 175 10-02-2020 210.15 9%-14.85% At par at the end 36-90 months
3 176 22-02-2020 143.90 9.25%-20% At par at the end 36-90 months
4 177 23-03-2020 135.50 9.25%-14.75% At par at the end 36-84 months
5 178 22-05-2020 122.80 9%-14.29% At par at the end 24-84 months
1 179 03-07-2020 280.33 10%-13.33% At par at the end 60-90 months
7 180 12-10-2020 50.75 3%-12.50% At par at the end 36-96 months |
8 181 19-11-2020 298.80 9.25%-13.33% At par at the end 36-90 months |
9 182 07-01-2021 137.50 9.25%-13.33% At par at the end 36-90 months |
10 183 29-06-2021 127.00 89%-13.79% At par at the end 12-87 months
11 184 11-09-2021 142.00 9.25%-13.79% At par at tl__l_e_end 36-87 mnntli
12 185 30-11-2021 __228.50 9.25%-13.79% At par at the end 36-87 months
13 186 ~ 05-02-2022 59.00 7.25%-10.12% At para_tﬂp end 12-60 mnntli
14 187 12-03-2022 79.30 7.25%-9.6% Al par at the end 12-60 months
15 188 30-03-2022 32.95 7.25%-9.6% At par at the end 12-60 months
16 189 31-05-2022 105.90 7.25%-9.75% At par at the end 12-60 months
17 190 08-08-2022 300.60 9%-11% At par at the end 26-60 months
18 191 05-09-2022 222.00 9%-11% At par at the end 36-60 morichs
19 192 13-01-2023 100.00 10.50% At par at the end 60 months
20 193 18-03-2023 248.00 9.25%-11.75% At par at the end 18-60 rnnn_tli
21 194 30-03-2023 120.00 9.25%-11.75% At par at the end 18-60 months
22 195 29-05-2023 239.50 9.25%-10.75% At par at the end 18-36 months
23 196 03-07-2023 255.41 9%-10.75% At par at the end 12-36 months
24 197 04-Aug-2023 49.00 9.75%-10% At par at the end 18-36 months
25 198 02-Sep-2023 29.00 9.75% At par at the end 36 months
TOTAL 3,759.89
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

B] Non Convertible Debentures of '1,000/- each - series-wise classification(Public Issue)

51 No. Series Date of Allotment Outstanding Interest Rate Tenure(months)
1 I 21-12-2023 564.31 9.50% 367 Days
2 | 21-12-2023 362.72 10.00% 367 Days
3 11 21-12-2023 870,58 NA 367 Days
4 11 21-12-2023 515.27 NA 367 Days
5 11 21-12-2023 35341 9.65% 18 Months
(] 11 21-12-2023 235.61 10.15% 18 Months
7 1V 21-12-2023 34463 NA 18 Months
8 v 21-12-202_3 260.18 NA 18 Months
9 v 21-12-2023 204.27 9.75% 24 Months
10 v 21-12-2023 254.98 10.25% 24 Months
11 Vi 21-12-2023 148.11 NA 24 Months
12 VI 21-12-2023 116.16 NA 24 Months
13 VIl 21-12-2023 1,046.72 10.25% 36 Months
14 VIl 21-12-2023 868142 10.75% 36 Mnnrl_-‘l_g_
15 VIl 21-12-2023 381.38 NA 36 Months
16 Vil 21-12-2023 6886 NA 36 Months
17 13 21-12-2023 1,188.78 10.50% 60 Months
18 1X 21-12-2023 1,030.72 11.00% 60 Months
19 X 21-12-2023 37.01 NA 60 Months
20 X 21-12-2023 104.05 NA 60 Months
21 Xl 21-12-2023 1,251.32 NA 75 Months

10,420.49

20 Debt Securities( i)

Bf Non Convertible Debentures of '1,000,- each - series-wise classification(Private Placement)

Asat 31-March-2023

Sl No. Series Date of Allotment Outstanding Interest Rate Tenure{months)
1 174 15-01-2020 56.00 9.25%-15.35% At par at the end 36-60 months
2 175 10-02-2020 227.65 9%-14.85% Al par at the end 36-90 months
3 176 22-02-2020 175.90 9.25%-20% At par at the end 36-90 months
4 177 23-03-2020 168.50 9.25%-14.75% At par at the end 36-84 months
5 178 22-05-2020 186.30 9%0-14.29% At par at the end 24-84 months
f 179 03-07-2020 367.74 10%-13.33% At par at the end 60-90 months
b 180 12-10-2020 216.02 9%-12.50% AL par at the end 36-96 months
8 181 19-11-2020 520.01 9.25%-13.33% Al par at the end 36-90 months
9 182 07-01-2021 226.50 9.25%-13.33% At par at the end 36-90 months |
10 183 29-06-2021 302.13 89%-13.79% At par at Lthe end 12-87 months
11 184 11-09-2021 222.00 9.25%-13.79% Al par at the end 36-8B7 months
12 185 30-11-2021 445.00 9.25%0-13.79% Al par at the end 36-87 months
13 186 U5-02-2022 214.00 7.25%-10.12% At par at the end 12-60 months |
14 187 12-03-2022 141.30 7.25%-9.6% At par at the end 12-60 months
15 188 30-03-2022 145.45 7.25%-9.6% AL par at the end 12-60 months
16 189 31-05-2022 268.05 7.25%-9.75% At par at the end 12-60 months
17 190 (18-08-2022 432.40 9%-11% At par at the end 36-60 months
18 191 05-09-2022 385.00 9%-11% At par at the end 36-60 months
19 192 13-01-2023 100.00 10.50% At par ar the cnd 60 months |
20 193 18-03-2023 248.00 9.25%-11.75% At par al the end 18-60 months
21 194 30-03-2023 82.50 1.25%-11.75% At par at the end 18-60 months
Total 5,130.45




Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ Allamounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

20 Debt Securities(contd),

B] Non Convertible Debentures of "1,000/- each - series-wise classification(Private Placement)

5l. No. Series Date of Allotment Outstanding Interest Rate _Tenure(months)

1 172 29-03-2019 6.50 9.25%-14.3% At par at the end 36 months

2 173 15-07-2019 292.00 9.25%-18.75% At par at the end 36 months

3 174 15-01-2020 75.67 9.25%-15.35% At paﬂe end 36-60 months
4 175 10-02-2020 302.70 9%-14.85% At par at the end 36-90 months
5 176 22-02-2020 258.10 9.25%-20% At par at the end 36-90 months
] 177 23-03-2020 209.80 9.75%-14.75% At par at the end 36-84 months
7 178 22-05-2020 258.30 9%-14.29% At par at the end 24-84 months
8 179 03-07-2020 401.74 10%-13.33% At par at the end 60-90 months
4 180 12-10-2020 229.02 9%-12.50% At par at the end 36-96 months
10 181 19-11-2020 520.01 9.25%-13.33% AL par at the end 36v9{}_months
11 182 07-01-2021 279.50 9.25%-13.33% At par at the end 36-90 months
12 183 29-06-2021 32213 8%-13.79% At par at the end 12-87 months
13 184 11-09-2021 222.00 9.25%-13.79% At par at the end 36-87 months
14 185 30-11-2021 480.50 9.25%-13.79% At par at the end 36-87 months
15 186 05-02-2022 300.00 7.25%-10.12% At par at the end 12-60 months
16 187 12-03-2022 185.66 7.25%-9.6% At par at the end 12-60 months
17 188 *  30-03-2022 138.95 7.25%-9.6% At par at the end 12-60 months

Total 4,482.58

el |
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

218 ings (Other than Debt Securities)

Term Loan (Secured)
Details of rate of interest and maturity pattern as on the date of the balance sheet is as under:

As at 31-March-2024

o Rate of Interest
Repayable within
8.50% 9.60% 10.00% Total

Due within 3-4 years 100.00 - - 100.00
Due within 2-3 years 1,320.00 538.90 500.00 2,358.90
Due within 1-2 years 3,166.73 1,338.67 666,67 5,372.06
Due within 1 year 3,400.00 1,713.67 666.67 5,780.33
Grand Total 8,186.73 3,591.23 1,833.33 13,611.29
As at 31-March-2023

Repayable within Rate of Interest

) 9.50% 10.60% Total

Due within 4-5 years 213.88 - 213.88
Due within 3-4 years 1,120.00 - 1,120.00
Due within 2-3 years 3,450.00 ~ 3,450.00
Due within 1-2 years . 3,400.00 375.00 3,775.00
Due within 1 year 2,905.00 750.00 3,655.00
Grand Total 11,088.88 1,125.00 12,213.88
As at 01-April-2022

Repayable within Rate of Interest

i 9.50% Total
Due within 4-5 years 8479 878.91
Due within 3-4 years 1,200 1,200.00
Due within 2-3 years 1,200 1,200.00
Due within 1-2 years 1,200 1,200.00
Due within 1 year 1,040 1,040.00
Grand Total 5,518.91 5,518.91
= )
S
S TS
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

22 Subordinate Liabilities
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at ﬂl-ﬂpl‘ﬂ-zu 22

At Amortised Cost

Subordinated debt from Others 20,978.08 20,123.55 15,062.54
Total 20,978.08 20,123.55 15,062.54
Borrowings in India 20,978.08 20,123.55 15,062.54
Borrowings outside India = '

Total 20,978.08 Z0,123.55 15,062.54
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

24 Other Equity

Statutory Reserve (pursuant to Section 451C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from retained earnings
Closing balance

Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance
Closing balance

Impairment Reserve

Opening balance

Add: Transferred from statement of Profit and loss account
Closing balance

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other Comprehensive Income [net of tax)
Add:Income Tax adjustment for Earlier years
Add/ Less: Appropriations

Transferred to Statutory Reserve

Transferred to Impairment Reserve

Total appropriations

Closing balance

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as per last financial statements

Add: Additions during the period

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Total

(i) Statutory Reserve:

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023
2,877.87 2,511.87
505.92 366.00
3,383.78 2,877.87
2,280.63 2,280.63
2,280.63 2,280.63
154.06 62.51
157.86 91.55
311.92 154.06
5,063.28 3,751.26
2,519.60 1,769.57
505.92 366.00
157.86 91.55
663.78 457.55
6,919.10 5,063.28
u.87 8.93
11.77 {0.06)
20.64 28.87
12,916.07 10,384.71

Transfer of 20% of the profit after tax hefore re-measurement adjustments on transition to Ind AS, if any, to the statutory reserves in accordance with the

provision of Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934 .

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:

No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be specified by the RBI from time to time

and every such apprepriation shail be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal. RBI may, in any particuliar case and

for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of twenty one days by such further period as it thinks fit or condone any delay in making such report.

(ii) Capital Redemption Reserve:

This reserve created on account of buyback of equity shares during the financial year 2016-17.

(iii) Impairment Reserve:

Where impairment allowance under Ind As 109 is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), the

differential amount is transferred to impairment reserve. The balance in the impairment reserve shal! not be reckoned for regulatory capital.

(iv) Retained Earnings:

This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(v) Other comprehensive income:

Other items of other comprehensive income consist of remeasurement of net defined benefit liability /asset.




Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

25 Revenue from operations

I)interest Income: L
For the year ended 31-March-2024 For the year ended 31-March-2023
On Pinapcial |n;zr;i5;::5?;;|3 On Mnancial Interest Income on
Assets On Financial Assets Assets On Financial Assets i y
Assets classified Financial Assets
measured at measured at measured at measured at
at fair value classified at fair value
fair value Amortised Cost through profit tair value Amortised Cost throngh pFOAE X Ioss
through 0CI P through OCI p
or loss
Interest on Loans - 12,777.58 - - 9,310.02 -
Total - 12,777.58 - - 9,310.02 -
(IT)Fees and Commission Income
As at 31-March-2024  Asat 31-March-2023
Service Charges Received 213.04 108,27
Commission Received 2.38 12.69
Total 215.42 120.96
26 Other Income
Particulars As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023
Interest on Treasury deposit 3.13 1.89
Interest on Fixed deposit with banks 126.18 14.88
Rent Received 18.78 15.68
Gain on sale oi mutual fund 8.62 iz
Interest Income on Lease 14.65 11.38
Miscellaneous Income 13.55
Total - 18491 47.24
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024

{All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

27 Finance Costs

Interest on Debenture

Interest on Subordinate Debts
Interest on Bank borrowings

Interest on Loan from director
Interest on Perpetual Debt Instrument

Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax

Interest on lLease Liability
Effective Interest Rate Written Off
Loss on account of exchange rate fluctuation

Total

28 Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Total

29 Impairmenton Financial Instruments (net)

Loans
Total

29.1 Impairment on Loans

Provision for Impairment
Total

30 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets

Depreciation of right-of- use asset

Amortization of intangible assets
Total

\
0

_/'_H'FF

As at 31-March-2024

As at31-March-2023

On Financial liabilities On Financial liabilities
measured at fair value measured at
through profit or loss Amortised Cost

On Financial
liabilities measured
at fair value through

profit or loss

On Financial
liabilities measured
at Amortised Cost

867.09 48595 -
2,197.39 - 1,762.94 o
1,549.38 * 987.06 :

396 - <
34.28 36.00 -
277 - - .
432,51 - 380.89 z
93.92 - -
B81.67 11.08 -
5,262.98 B 3,663.91 N

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023

2,507.80 1,984.49
45.13 3942
2,552.92 2,023.92

As at 31-March-2024

As at 31-March-2023

On Financial On Financial On Financial
Intruments measured On Financial Intruments Instruments
at fair value through Instr s er ed at falr measured at
oct at Amortised Cost value through 0CI Amortised Cost
= 102.39 - 15.94
= 102.38 - 15.94
As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023
On Financial On Financial On Financial
Intruments measured On Financial Intruments Instruments
at fair value through Instr t ed ed at fair measured at
ocl at Amortised Cost value through 0Cl Amortised Cost
=] 102.38 = 15.94
i 102.38 - 15.94

As at31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023

237.53 203.39
625.63 536.39

045 0.22
863.60 739.99




Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

31 Administrative and Other Expenses

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023
Electricity Charges ¥ 64.88 51.80
Rent " 67.79 29.82
Rates and taxes 15.87 7.03
Insurance 42,14 17.09
Repairs and maintenance 34.28 33.78
Computer maintenance and services 5.39 4.32
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 45.54 35.24
Advertising and sales promotion 89.29 24.59
Travelling and conveyance 88.02 76.63
Telephone Charges 36.42 35.83
Printing and stationery 51.59 60.90
Office expenses i 169.27 123.97
Bank charges 11146 118.27
Professional charges 185.72 36.80
Refreshment Expenses 262 1.05
Donation 0.04 0.02

Lease Line Charges 0.10
ol 1,010.44 657.13

31.1 Professional charges include payment to auditors(Exluding GST):

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023

as auditor 3.00 240
for taxation matters, 3 1.00 1.00
for company law matters R u
for other services 2,52 -
for reimbursement of expénses - = z
Total 6.02 340

31.2 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

As at31-March-2024 As at31-March-2023

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 45.05 34.95

Amount of expentiture incurred 4554 35.24

_Shortfall at the end of the year ; - .
Total of previous years shortfall } E £

Reason for shortfall - .

Amount digtributed

Nature of CSR activities for Covid 19 releif,Post
Covid 19 Relief

Amount distributed
for Covid 19 releif

Details of related party transactions NIL NIL
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Muthoot Mercantile Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
{ All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Profit after Tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders (A)
Basic and Diluted

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Number of Equity Shares issued during the year

Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year (B)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (€
Nominal Value of each Equity Share (3)

Basic Earnings per Share () (A/B)
Diluted Earnings per Share (') (A/C)

33 Conti Liabiliti i Commi Tott ided f

Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

-Demand from Income Tax Department- TDS Default#
(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees; and
(c) Other money for which the company is contingently liable,

Total

Commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
(b} Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid
(c) Other Commitments

As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023

2,519.60 1,769.57
2,94,18,750 2,94,18,750
69,99,997 -
3,64,18,747 2,94,18,750
3.05,50,256 2,94,18,750
10 10

8.25 6.02

8.25 6.02

As at
31-March-2024

As at
31-March-2023

9.69 474
9.69 4.74
4.20 12.21

#The Income Tax Department raised demand of ¥ 9,69,280.62/- on account of TDS default for the financial years 2007-08 to 2023-24. This happens due to
clerical error in quarterly TDS return and the company proposes to revise the return to abolish errors, Since the company doesn't expect any liability after

revising the return, no provisicn has been made in the books of accounts of the ?p)?

2

_
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

34 Income Tax

The components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2023 are:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31-March-2024 31-March-2023

Current tax

930.86 677.28
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - (0.03)
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (64.86) (69.49)
Total tax charge 866.00 607,75
Current tax 930.86 677.24
Deferred tax (64.86) (69.49)

Reconciliation of Income tax expense:

For the year ended 31-March-2024

For the year ended 31-March-2023

Accounting profit béfore tax as per Ind AS 3,385.60 2,377.32
Add/(Less) : Ind AS Adjustments on PBT

Accounting profit before tax for IT Computation 3,385.60 237732
Allowances / Disallowances and other adjustments {Net] 31297 223.01
Adjusted profit / (Loss) before tax for Income Tax 3,698.57 2,600.33
Current Tax as per Books

Tax at Normal Rate [Effective rate of 25.17%, March 2023: 25.17%) 930.86 677.28

Adjustment of prior year tax / MAT Credit S

Total Tax as given in Books 930.86 677.28
All India Statutory income tax rate of 25.17%, March 2023: 25.17%) 930.86 677.28
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MUTHOOT MERCANTILE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31-March-2024
( All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

35 Retirement Benefit Plan

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the
Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized
¥4,95494/- (Previous Year: ¥3,79,977 /-)(Preceeding previous year-T 3,83,073/-) for Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions and 340,17,471 /-(Previous Year:
¥35,62,323/-)(Preceeding Previous year : ¥ 31,31,912/- ) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by
the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the Schemes.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employes who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

i) Gratuity

|Actuarial assumptions As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Mortality table TALM 2012-14 Ult TALM 2012-14 Ult 1ALM 2012-14 Ult
Superannuation age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years

Early retirement and disablement None None None

Discount rate 7.20% 7.50% 6.10%

Inflation rate 7% 7% 7.00%

Return on asset N/A N/A N/A
Remaining working life 4.9 4.9 49

Projected unit credit Method
Formula used with control period of one Projected unit credit Method Projected unit credit Method
year with control period of orie year | with control veriod of one year

Reconciliation of PBO As at 31-March-2024 As at 31-March-2023 As at 01-April-2022
Projected Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year 11337 96.63 103.02
Current Service Cost 2414 22.59 15.54
Interest Cost 1031 7.27 723
Contributions by plan participants ] -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in assumptions and experience i
deviation (17.10) 4.09 (1193)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes on plans measured in a currency
diff